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You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus and any free writing
prospectus prepared by us or on our behalf. We have not, and the underwriters have not, authorized
anyone to provide you with any additional information or information that is different. This prospectus
may be used only where it is legal to sell these securities. You should assume that the information in this
prospectus is accurate only as of the date of this prospectus.

No action is being taken in any jurisdiction outside the United States to permit a public offering of
these securities or possession or distribution of this prospectus in that jurisdiction. Persons who come into
possession of this prospectus in jurisdictions outside the United States are required to inform themselves
about and to observe any restrictions as to this offering and the distribution of the prospectus applicable to
that jurisdiction.

“Fenix,” “Fenix Parts, Inc.” and “fenixparts.com” are trademarks and are the property of Fenix Parts,
Inc. All other trademarks, trade names and service marks appearing in this prospectus are the property of their
respective owners.



SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in the prospectus. Because it is a summary, it
does not contain all of the information that you should consider before investing in our common stock. You
should read and carefully consider this entire prospectus before making an investment decision, especially the
information presented under the headings “Risk Factors,” “Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements” and “Selected Financial Data.”

Concurrently with the closing of this offering, we plan to acquire in separate acquisitions eleven
corporate entities that conduct eight businesses: (i) Don’s Automotive Mall, Inc. (“Don’s”), (ii) Eiss Brothers,
Inc. (“Eiss Brothers”), (iii) Gary’s U-Pull It, Inc. (“Gary’s”), (iv) Green Oak Investments LLC dba GO Auto
Recycling (“GO Auto”), (v) Horseheads Automotive Recycling, Inc. (“Horseheads”), (vi) Jerry Brown, Ltd.
(“Jerry Brown”), (vii) Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc. (“Leesville”’) and (viii) Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc. and
its three Canadian affiliates (collectively, “Standard”). We collectively refer to these transactions as the
“Combinations,” and all of these companies are collectively referred to as the “Founding Companies.” The
Founding Companies will be acquired for cash, or cash and shares of our common stock, or, in the case of the
three Canadian affiliates of Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., cash and shares of our subsidiary. A portion of the net
proceeds from this offering will be used to pay the cash portion of the consideration in the Combinations. We will
not close the acquisition of any of the Founding Companies unless we close the acquisition of all of the Founding
Companies. Furthermore, the closing of the Combinations and this offering are conditioned on the closing of
each other. The description of our business that follows assumes that the Combinations have occurred and the
operations of the Founding Companies have been combined. See “Certain Relationships and Related Person
Transactions—The Combinations with the Founding Companies.”

Unless otherwise indicated by the context, references to “Fenix” refer to Fenix Parts, Inc. solely, and

references to the “Company,” “our,” “we,” “us” and similar terms refer to Fenix Parts, Inc., together with the
Founding Companies, after giving effect to the Combinations.

For accounting and reporting purposes, Fenix has been identified as the accounting acquirer of each of
the Founding Companies. Don’s, Gary’s and Horseheads (collectively, the “Beagell Group”) have historically
been under common control and on a combined basis have been identified as an accounting co-predecessor to the
Company. Standard’s members (Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., End of Life Vehicles Inc., Goldy Metals
Incorporated and Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated) are entities that have historically been under common
control and on a combined basis have also been identified as an accounting co-predecessor to the Company.

Our Company

We are a leading recycler and reseller of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) automotive
products. Fenix was founded in January 2014 to combine our eight Founding Companies and create a network
that offers sales, fulfillment and distribution in key regional markets in the United States and Canada. Our
Founding Companies have been in business an average of 25 years and operate from 13 locations. Our primary
business is auto recycling, which is the recovery and resale of OEM parts, components and systems (referred to
as “products”) reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. Our customers include collision repair
shops (body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual retail customers.

We provide customers with high quality recycled OEM products, extensive inventory and product
availability, responsive customer service and fast delivery. Upon receipt of vehicles, which we primarily
purchase at auto salvage auctions, we inventory and then dismantle the vehicles and sell the recycled
components. We operate a hub and spoke distribution network allowing us to efficiently move products among
our locations and expedite delivery to our customers. We also generate a portion of our revenue from the sale of




aftermarket parts, and from the sale as scrap of the unusable parts and materials. For the year ended

December 31, 2014, the Company generated unaudited pro forma revenues, Adjusted EBITDA and net loss of
$108.2 million, $3.4 million and $3.9 million, respectively. For a reconciliation of net income to Adjusted
EBITDA, which is a non-GAAP financial measure, see “Selected Financial Data—Use of Non-GAAP Financial
Measurements.”

The recycled OEM products that we sell include mechanical parts used to repair or replace worn or
damaged components, such as engines and transmissions, and collision repair parts used to repair vehicles
typically involved in a collision, such as door assemblies, trunk lids, lights, fenders and other products. These
products are “insurance quality,” which means of a quality that is acceptable for use in a repair paid for by an
insurance company. Many consumers and repair facilities use recycled OEM products because they are less
expensive than new OEM products and are perceived to be of higher quality and fit than products made by non-
OEM manufacturers, known as aftermarket products. Recycled OEM products often are sold as assemblies,
which shorten repair times and help reduce labor costs. In addition, insurance companies are increasingly
influencing repair facilities to use recycled OEM products as a lower cost alternative to new OEM products.

Typically, damaged, totaled or low value vehicles acquired by insurance companies are resold through
auto salvage auctions. Because some insurance companies mandate that recycled OEM products be no older than
the vehicle they are used to repair, the majority of the vehicles we acquire are not more than ten years old. We
employ software-based inventory management systems to determine what vehicles to purchase and at what price,
based upon our estimation of the demand for the products on the vehicle, the prices we can obtain for those
products and the final scrap value of the vehicle.

We have nine full-service recycling facilities, concentrated in the Northeastern United States and
Southeastern Canada. These locations include Binghamton, NY, Niagara Falls, NY, Pennsburg, PA, Rahway, NJ,
Ottawa, Ontario, Port Hope, Ontario, Queensbury, NY, Watertown, NY and Jacksonville, FL. Concentration of
our facilities provides significant advantages in distributing our products as well as in bidding for cars at
auctions. Our full-service recycling facilities have a total of 62 bays for the dismantling of vehicles. In 2014, we
dismantled and recycled over 12,500 vehicles and sold more than 450,000 parts and assemblies. Our full-service
recycling facilities have approximately 500,000 square feet of indoor warehouse space and approximately 150
acres of total storage. Typically, we do not begin to process a vehicle until we have an order for a significant part
at which point we process the entire vehicle, removing all resalable parts. Our facilities employ state-of-the art
environmental systems for removing hazardous fluids prior to dismantling. We have four self-service locations,
two of which are co-located with full-service facilities. Our self-service locations are in Binghamton, NY,
Elmira, NY, Ottawa, Ontario and Scarborough, Ontario. At these locations, we allow retail customers to directly
dismantle, recover and purchase recycled OEM products. Our self-service recycling facilities have approximately
40,000 square feet of indoor storage space and are situated on approximately 50 acres. Once each of our vehicles
has been dismantled, we sell the remaining parts and materials as scrap.

Our customers include collision and mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual retail
customers. Competition for sales is based primarily on product availability and delivery times. Our ability to
deliver insurance quality OEM products on a same or next day basis is a critical part of obtaining and retaining
customers. Customers can go online or call our fulfillment centers to find and order our products. In order to
increase the availability of our products, we maintain an extensive inventory. We apply a coordinated regional
approach to our inventory management and distribution activities, which allows us to efficiently meet demand
within the markets we serve. In 2014, this customer base exceeded 10,000 customers with no single OEM parts
customer accounting for more than 1% of our combined OEM parts revenue, and no single customer accounting
for more than 10% of our combined revenue.

Many of our Founding Companies have been operating for multiple generations of ownership and include
leaders within the industry. The management of the Founding Companies provides significant industry experience,




including extensive buying and inventory expertise, strong customer and industry relationships, knowledge of the
regulatory landscape and operational discipline. The operations managers of each of the Founding Companies will
continue as members of our management team. See “Management.”

We have entered into agreements with the owners of each of the Founding Companies to combine their
businesses. The aggregate consideration to be paid by Fenix in the Combinations, subject to adjustment and
including, among other things, amounts held in escrow, amounts payable as bonuses and amounts payable for the
reimbursement of certain capital expenditures by certain Founding Companies, consists of approximately $93.2
million in cash, approximately 3.2 million shares of our common stock and approximately 1.3 million
exchangeable preferred shares of our subsidiary, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. (collectively, the “Combination
Consideration”). The cash portion of the Combination Consideration will be adjusted upward, based upon the
Founding Companies’ working capital on the closing date, capital expenditures during the six months preceding
the closing of the Combinations and certain other factors, by approximately $6.5 million. The Combination
Consideration was determined by arm’s length negotiations between Fenix and representatives of each Founding
Company. Each of the owners of the Founding Companies has agreed not to sell their shares of our common stock
for 180 days after the date of this prospectus, subject to certain exceptions. For a more detailed description of
these transactions, see “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions—The Combinations with the
Founding Companies.”

Our Industry

The Auto Care Association (“ACA”) estimates that the U.S. automotive aftermarket was approximately
$245.9 billion in 2014. We operate in the U.S. collision and mechanical repair products market, a subset of the
U.S. automotive aftermarket. According to ACA, the U.S. collision and mechanical repair products market was
approximately $61.0 billion in 2014,

The automotive recycling industry is highly fragmented, with few multi-facility operators. According to
the Automotive Recyclers Association (“ARA”), there are an estimated 9,000 vehicle recycling facilities in the
United States and Canada. We believe that there is only one direct competitor with more than 1% market share
within the automotive recycling industry, who we believe has market share of less than 10%.

The automotive recycling industry obtains its insurance quality recycled OEM products from damaged,
totaled or low value vehicles purchased at salvage auctions. In 2014, there were over 300 salvage auctions in the
U.S. and Canada at which over 2.5 million damaged, totaled or low value vehicles were sold on behalf of
automobile insurance companies and other sellers to licensed buyers, such as the Company.

The industry’s direct customers are collision and mechanical shops that use recycled OEM products in
vehicle repairs. The industry also indirectly serves insurance companies as they pay for the majority of repairs to
insured vehicles and thus have significant influence over the repair process. As insurance companies seek more
cost effective repair solutions, collision repair partners are utilizing more recycled OEM products due to their
attractive value proposition. Presently, many major U.S. insurance companies are encouraging collision repair
shops to reduce costs, thus influencing them to utilize recycled OEM products in the repair of damaged vehicles.

In addition, automotive recycling is considered environmentally responsible, or “green,” as more than
85% by weight of the materials from processed vehicles are typically reclaimed or recycled. We also believe that
many environmentally conscious consumers will prefer a recycled product and over time government regulation
will continue to favor environmentally friendly solutions.




Our Competitive Strengths
Favorable Industry Dynamics

We believe that demand for recycled OEM products is highly stable and marked by consistent long-term
growth due to a number of favorable trends, including the number of vehicles on the road (commonly referred to
as the “car parc”), the increasing miles driven and the number and age of drivers. Additionally, we believe the
utilization of recycled OEM products over the last decade has continued to increase given the inherent favorable
pricing and product availability of recycled OEM products relative to other replacement products.

Competitive Market Position

Upon combining the Founding Companies, we believe that we will have the second largest network of
automotive recycling companies in the northeast region of North America (U.S. and Canada) with nine full-
service and four self-service recycling locations, two of which are co-located at existing full-service facilities.
We believe the strength of our regional network, our customer relationships and our extensive inventory of
insurance quality OEM products gives us a competitive advantage and creates high barriers to entry.

Extensive Inventory and Distribution Platform with Broad Customer Reach

Our extensive inventory of insurance quality recycled OEM products and our distribution infrastructure
give us the ability to help our customers reduce repair cycle time by delivering our products typically the same or
next day. In order to increase the availability of our products, we maintain an extensive inventory and have
developed a coordinated regional approach to inventory management and distribution. Our network enables us to
reach three of the ten largest cities in North America by population. This customer base exceeds 10,000
customers with no single OEM parts customer accounting for more than 1% of our combined OEM parts
revenue, and no single customer accounting for more than 10% of our combined revenue in 2014.

Dynamic Vehicle Procurement Process

A critical component of our success and growth is our ability to identify and value the products that can
be recycled on a vehicle. We have developed a scalable, data-driven approach, utilizing real-time sales and
inventory information, which allows us to procure vehicles in a cost-efficient manner, optimize the dismantling
process and profitably sell these products to our customers.

Deep Industry Expertise

We benefit from the industry expertise and deep customer relationships that have been established at the
Founding Companies over the course of their history as standalone businesses. Our key management personnel at
the Founding Companies have served an average of 20 years in the automotive recycling industry and many have
held senior leadership positions in key industry trade groups, such as the ARA.

Experienced Management Team

Our senior management has significant experience operating and growing automotive and logistics-based
businesses. Prior to joining Fenix, our Chief Executive Officer, Kent Robertson, held several senior leadership
positions at Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle”), a national reverse logistics and regulated waste management company.
Mr. Robertson had more than 20 years of experience managing multi-line decentralized distribution and services
businesses at Stericycle and at American Medical Disposal, Inc., a company he co-founded in 1990, which was
acquired by Stericycle in 2001. Under Mr. Robertson’s leadership, Stericycle successfully acquired and integrated
over 70 acquisitions. Our Chief Financial Officer, Scott Pettit, has significant automotive industry, public company,
acquisition and integration experience, including serving from 2001 to 2007 as the Chief Financial Officer of
Insurance Auto Auctions, Inc. Our Executive Vice President, David Gold, was the President and a co-owner of
Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., one of our Founding Companies. A third-generation automobile recycler, Mr. Gold
has over 20 years’ experience in our industry and is the President-elect of the ARA.




Attractive Financial Model

We believe our highly variable cost structure, low requirements for capital expenditures (in 2014, our
maintenance capital expenditures were less than 1% of pro forma revenues) and the stability of the collision and
mechanical repair products market combine to enable our business to deliver strong results through a variety of
business cycles. We believe that these factors will allow us to produce significant free cash flow and enable us to
continue to fund our growth.

Organizational Structure

We will operate on a decentralized basis with an emphasis on regional and local market execution supported
by corporate coordination. Local management will continue to operate the businesses and leverage their relationships
with customers and suppliers. At the same time, certain administrative functions will be centralized on a regional and,
in certain circumstances, a national basis following this offering, including but not limited to corporate strategy and
acquisitions, transactional processing, accounting support functions, marketing, systems support, insurance, human
resources, information technology and environmental compliance. In addition, by combining overlapping operations of
certain of the Founding Companies, we expect to achieve more efficient asset utilization.

Our Strategy
We intend to pursue the following strategies to grow our business and enhance shareholder value:
Enhance and Build our Network through Acquisitions

The acquisition of other OEM automotive products recycling businesses is a key element of our
strategy. This will increase our customer base, grow our distribution network and expand our inventory. There
are currently an estimated 9,000 facilities in the automotive recycling industry, and we expect that there will
continue to be an ample number of attractive acquisition candidates. We intend to actively pursue acquisitions to
increase customer and route density within our network and expand into new geographic markets, using a
disciplined approach to identify and evaluate acquisition candidates. Our goal is to complete between 10 and 15
acquisitions, ranging in size between $5 million and $10 million in revenue, in the near to mid term following the
completion of this offering.

Organically Grow Market Share and Unit Volume

We have identified initiatives to increase vehicle processing throughput, inventory and product
availability, thereby growing revenue, volume and market share. These initiatives include:

e Expand Dismantling Capacity. We operate over 62 dismantling bays within our full-service auto
recycling facilities. We plan to add dismantling bays within our current facility structure to support
inventory demand with minimal capital expense or regulatory involvement. We can also add shifts
to increase dismantling utilization. We believe these initiatives will help us increase dismantling
capacity and productivity, thereby increasing inventory and product availability.

e Develop an Integrated Technology Platform. We currently utilize third-party software solutions to
support our business. We believe this software is sufficient for our current needs, but we intend to
adopt an integrated technology platform to support our future growth. We believe that any
associated cost would be offset through improvements in salvage vehicle procurement, production
management, part pricing, inventory management, marketing, sales, logistics and compliance.

e Enhance Sales Force Effectiveness. We plan to maintain our sales specialists in their local markets
to preserve high levels of service and existing customer relationships. We will also provide our sales
force with enhanced training and additional resources to reach new markets and customers.




e Expand our Logistics Capacity. We will continue to expand our logistics capacity to meet the
delivery expectations of our customers (typically the same or next day). We may invest in additional
infrastructure, including trucks, employees or transfer hubs, to expand in existing markets and into
adjacent markets.

Increase our Margins and Enhance Operating Efficiencies

We have identified certain best practices among our Founding Companies that improve salvage vehicle
procurement and dismantling, enhance product delivery and maximize the value of end-of-life vehicles. We plan
to implement these best practices across our network to improve the operating margins of our Company and any
subsequently acquired businesses. Further, we believe an integrated operating platform within geographic areas
will create opportunities for cost synergies as well as economies of scale as we grow.

Recent Developments
Preliminary First Quarter Results

We and the Founding Companies, which we will not control until after completion of this offering, are
currently in the process of finalizing our financial results for the three months ended March 31, 2015. Based on
preliminary information, we estimate that, for the three months ended March 31, 2015, aggregate revenues at
Founding Companies Eiss Brothers, GO Auto, Jerry Brown and Leesville increased by approximately 11.5% to
approximately $15.2 million, as compared to $13.6 million in the same period of 2014. These revenues are
primarily from the sale of recycled OEM parts, which represents approximately 90% of the revenues of these
Founding Companies. Standard and the Beagell Group each experienced lower revenues in the first quarter due
to lower scrap prices, which negatively impacted their self-service operations, and Standard’s decision to
accumulate scrap with a view to selling it when scrap prices stabilize. Despite the negative effect of lower scrap
prices and the deferral of scrap sales, we estimate that pro forma total revenues remained relatively stable and
will be between $26.2 — 27.2 million, as compared to $27.2 million for the same period in 2014.

The preliminary financial data presented above are subject to the completion of our normal quarter-end
accounting procedures and adjustments and are subject to change. We currently expect that our final results will
be consistent with the estimates described above. However, the estimates described above are preliminary and
based on the most current information available to management. Our actual results may differ materially from
these estimates due to the completion of our final closing procedures, final adjustments and other developments
that may arise between now and the time our results for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 are finalized. This
preliminary financial data has been prepared by and is the responsibility of our management. BDO USA, LLP
has not audited or reviewed or performed any procedures with respect to this preliminary financial data.
Accordingly, BDO USA, LLP does not express an opinion or any other form of assurance with respect thereto. In
addition, these estimated results are not necessarily indicative of our results for the full fiscal year or any future
period.

Qutlook

Consistent with recent trends in the business operations of the Founding Companies, we believe that the
second quarter also will be characterized by higher recycled original equipment revenues and a soft but more
stable scrap market. In addition, our currently-private Founding Companies will have a short taxable year upon
the closing of this offering and the contingently concurrent Combinations, and we believe that they will employ
their normal year-end tax planning strategies.




Risk Factors

Investing in shares of our common stock involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning
on page 14 of this prospectus for a discussion of factors you should carefully consider before investing in our
common stock. If any of these risks actually occurs, our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash
flows and prospects would likely be materially and adversely affected. As a result, the trading price of our
common stock would likely decline, and you could lose all or part of your investment. Listed below is a summary
of some of the principal risks related to our business:

e We have not operated as a combined company, and we may not be able to successfully integrate the
Founding Companies into one entity.

e Our business strategy includes growth through acquisitions. If we are unable to finance such
acquisitions, or if we are unable to successfully integrate the companies we do acquire, our
operating results could be adversely affected.

e Our success depends in part on the contributions of our executives and managers, including those
who were employees of the Founding Companies. The loss of the services of any of them could
have an adverse effect on our business or business prospects.

e The recycled vehicle replacement parts industry is highly competitive with many well-established
competitors.

e Adverse changes in our relationships with our customers or with auction companies would
negatively affect our business.

e Increasingly stringent environmental laws and regulations may adversely affect our business,
financial condition or results of operations.

e One of our Founding Companies is currently the subject of environmental claims. We cannot assure
you that we will not become liable for these claims, which would adversely affect our financial
position and business prospects.

Our Corporate Information

We are incorporated in Delaware and our corporate offices are located at One Westbrook Corporate
Center, Suite 920, Westchester, Illinois 60154. Our telephone number is (630) 480-6413. Our website is
www.fenixparts.com. None of the information on our website or any other website identified herein is part of this
prospectus or the registration statement of which it forms a part.




The Offering

Common stock offered by us in this offering

Common stock to be outstanding after this offering . . . .

Option to purchase additional shares

Use of proceeds

12,000,000 shares
17,890,673 shares

We have granted the underwriters a 30-day option to
purchase up to an additional 1,800,000 shares at the
public offering price, less underwriting discounts and
commissions.

We estimate that our net proceeds from this offering
will be approximately $88.2 million (or $101.6 million
if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase
additional shares in full). We intend to use the net
proceeds plus up to $11.5 million of borrowings and
letter of credit utilization under our credit facility:

e To pay approximately $93.2 million, subject to
adjustment of approximately $6.5 million,
representing the cash component of the
Combination Consideration payable to the
Founding Companies at the closing of the
Combinations;

e To pay installments of the promissory notes we
issued in the aggregate principal amount of
$200,000 in connection with the Combinations;

e To repay debt assumed in the Combinations, which
we currently expect to be $0;

e While we have not allocated a specific amount of
the remaining net proceeds from this offering to
any particular purpose, we may use such remaining
net proceeds for the acquisitions of additional
businesses and general corporate purposes.

We intend to pay a portion of the cash component of
the Combination Consideration (i) with up to $5.6
million from our $10 million of borrowings (the
“Borrowings”) under the term loan portion of our
senior secured credit facility and (ii) through the
issuance of $5.9 million of letters of credit under our
senior secured credit facility in lieu of escrowing cash
to support a holdback of a portion of the consideration
that may be payable to the Canadian Founding
Companies.




See “Use of Proceeds,” “Certain Relationships and
Related Person Transactions—The Combinations with
the Founding Companies” and “Credit Facility.”

Risk factors ........ .. .. i See “Risk Factors” and other information included in
this prospectus for a discussion of factors you should
carefully consider before deciding to invest in shares
of our common stock.

Proposed Nasdaq Global Market symbol ............ We have been approved to list our common stock on
the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol “FENX.”

Unless we indicate otherwise, all share, per share and financial data set forth in this prospectus:

e have been adjusted to give effect to the 2,000-for-1 common stock split, which will occur
immediately prior to the closing of this offering;

e have been adjusted to give effect to the Combinations;
o reflect the public offering price of $8.00 per share;

e exclude 2,750,000 shares of common stock available for future option grants under our 2014
Incentive Stock Plan;

e exclude one share of our special voting stock (See “Description of Capital Stock of Fenix—
Authorized and Outstanding Capital Stock—Special Voting Stock™); and

e assume no exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares of our common
stock to cover over-allotments.

Except under the heading “Capitalization,” all pro forma information set forth in this prospectus:

e has been adjusted to give effect to the 2,000-for-1 common stock split, which will occur
immediately prior to the closing of this offering; and

e has been adjusted to give effect to the Combinations.




SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

The following summary historical financial data for Fenix Parts, Inc. (the accounting acquirer and
registrant) as of and for the period from its inception through December 31, 2014 are derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of Fenix included elsewhere in this prospectus. The following summary
historical financial data for the Beagell Group and Standard (the accounting co-predecessors) for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are derived from the audited combined financial statements of the Beagell
Group and Standard included elsewhere in this prospectus.

The summary unaudited pro forma financial data as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014 are
derived from the unaudited pro forma financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. The unaudited
pro forma financial data give effect to (a) the Combinations, (b) the 2,000-for-1 common stock split, which will
occur immediately prior to the completion of this offering, (c) the completion of this offering and the use of the
proceeds therefrom and (d) the Borrowings, as if they had occurred on January 1, 2014, and the use of the
proceeds therefrom. The pro forma adjustments are based on currently available information and certain
estimates and assumptions, and, therefore, the actual effects of the transactions reflected in the pro forma data
may differ from the effects reflected below. However, management believes that the assumptions provide a
reasonable basis for presenting the significant effects of these transactions as contemplated and that the pro forma
adjustments give appropriate effect to those assumptions. During the periods presented, Fenix and the Founding
Companies were not under common control or management and, therefore, the data presented may not be
comparable to, or indicative of, post-combination results.

You should review the information below together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements and the related
notes beginning on page F-3 of this prospectus, and the audited financial statements of Fenix, the Beagell Group
and Standard, and the related notes all included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Fenix
(Designated accounting
acquirer) Pro Forma
From January 2,2014  Year Ended
(Inception) December 31,
to December 31, 2014 2014
(Unaudited)
Statement of Operations Data:
Total TEVENUES . . .ottt $ — $ 108,216
Gross Profit . . ..ot — 37,030
Operating 10Ss . . .. ..ot (4,748) (7,227)
Nt 0SS . oot (4,747) (3,945)
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share(1) ....................... $ (4,427.77) $ (0.22)
Weighted average basic and diluted shares outstanding(l) ............ 1,072 17,154,526
Other Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(2) .. .ov i e $ (4,747) $ 3,361
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Beagell Group Standard
(Designated accounting predecessor) (Designated accounting predecessor)
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Statement of Operations Data:
Total revenues ............. ... $ 30,598 $30,661 $31,637 $31,126 $31,738 $31,037
Gross profit .............. i 10,701 11,009 11,710 11,409 12,024 10,794
Operating income .. ........ovuvennennen ... 2,393 1,751 2,061 1,885 422 417
Netincome . . ...oovvnini .. 2,242 1,417 1,693 2,043 281 305
Other Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(2) ..., § 4,578 $ 3,659 $ 4,242 $ 3,308 $ 2,325 $ 2,826
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities .. ..................... 2,915 2,609 2,499 2,267 (850) 1,753
Investing activities . ....................... 32 (267) (1,322) (2,183) (3,823) (132)
Financing activities ....................... (1,897) (2,390) (2,584) (246) 249 —
As of December 31, 2014
Fenix Beagell Group Standard Pro Forma
(Unaudited)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ................ $ 453 $ 2,770 $ 1,354 $ 7,270
Working capital (deficit) . ................. (1,128) 9,158 8,665 47,084
Totalassets ...........cooviiiiiinai... 849 16,001 22,265 169,934
Total debt, including current portion ........ — 130 — 10,000
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) .............. (1,128) 11,990 16,301 120,687

(1) Pro forma earnings per share and related weighted-average shares give effect to the 2,000-for-1 common
stock split and reflect the public offering price of $8.00 per share.

)

EBITDA consists of net income before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization and

includes net losses attributable to Fenix. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA less reductions in
compensation expenses for certain employees. Adjusted EBITDA is intended as a supplemental measure
of our performance that is not required by, or presented in accordance with, generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States (“GAAP”). We believe that Adjusted EBITDA provides
useful information to management and investors regarding certain financial and business trends relating
to our financial condition and operating results. See “Selected Financial Data—Use of Non-GAAP

Financial Measurements.”

11




Summary Individual Founding Company Financial Data
(In thousands)

The summary historical financial data as of and for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
for each of the Founding Companies, other than the Beagell Group and Standard, are derived from the audited
financial statements of each such Founding Company included elsewhere in this prospectus.

You should review the information below together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and the financial statements of each of the Founding Companies
and the related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. These summary historical financial results may not
be indicative of our future financial or operating results.

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Eiss Brothers
Total TEVENUES . . . . oottt et et e e e $11,975 $ 10,022 $ 9,054
GrOSS PrOfit . .ot 3,137 2,769 2,854
OPerating INCOME . . . .. vttt ettt et e e e et e e e e e e e e 843 349 271
NEEINCOME . . vt ettt e ettt e e et et e e e e e e e e e e e 798 348 245
GO Auto
TOtAl TEVEIUES . . . o\ ottt et e e et e e e e e e e $ 9984 §$ 8,022 $ 5,507
GrOSS PrOfit . .ot 3,381 2,435 1,730
OPerating INCOIME . . . .. vttt ettt et e et e e e e e e e e e e e 338 133 102
NELINCOME . .ottt ettt e e e e e e e e e et e e e e 289 84 40
Jerry Brown
TOtAl TEVEIUES . . . o o ettt e e e e e e e e e e $13,039 $ 12,084 $ 10,652
GrOSS Profit .. oot 4,920 4,365 4,037
Operating INCOME . .. ... vttt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e 589 720 290
NELINCOME . .ottt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 418 639 133
Leesville
TOtaAl TEVENUES . . . o oo ot et et et e e e e e e e e e e e e $16,865 $ 18,202 $ 16,967
GrOSS PrOfit . ot 4273 5,038 4,294
Operating income (10SS) ... ..ottt 767 219 (183)
Net income (I0SS) .. oottt 369 73 (148)
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IMPLICATIONS OF BEING AN EMERGING GROWTH COMPANY

We qualify as an emerging growth company as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of
2012 (the “JOBS Act”). An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting and
other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies. These provisions include, among other
things:

e arequirement to have only two years of audited financial statements and only two years of
related selected financial data and management’s discussion and analysis of financial condition
and results of operations disclosure;

e an exemption from the auditor attestation requirement in the assessment of our internal control
over financial reporting pursuant to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Sarbanes-Oxley
Act”);

e reduced disclosure about the emerging growth company’s executive compensation
arrangements; and

e no requirement to seek non-binding advisory votes on executive compensation or golden
parachute arrangements.

The JOBS Act also permits emerging growth companies to take advantage of an extended transition
period to comply with new or revised accounting standards applicable to public companies. We are choosing to
“opt out” of this provision, and as a result, we plan to comply with new or revised accounting standards as
required when they are adopted by public companies. This decision to opt out of the extended transition period is
irrevocable.

We have elected to adopt certain of the reduced disclosure requirements available to emerging growth
companies. As a result of these elections, the information that we provide in this prospectus may be different
from the information you may receive from other public companies in which you hold equity interests. In
addition, it is possible that some investors will find our common stock less attractive as a result of our elections,
which may result in a less active trading market for our common stock and more volatility in our stock price.

We may take advantage of these provisions until we are no longer an emerging growth company. We
will remain an emerging growth company until the earlier of (1) the last day of the fiscal year (a) following the
fifth anniversary of the completion of this offering, (b) in which we have total annual gross revenue of at least
$1.0 billion or (c) in which we are deemed to be a large accelerated filer, which means the market value of our
common stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last business day of our prior second
fiscal quarter, and (2) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in non-convertible debt during the
prior three-year period. We may choose to take advantage of some but not all of the reduced disclosure
requirements.
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below before buying shares in this offering. If any of
the following risks actually occur, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be harmed. In
that case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you could lose all or part of your investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

We have no combined operating history, and there are risks associated with the proposed
Combinations that could adversely affect the results of our operations.

Fenix was founded in January 2014 but has conducted no operations and generated no revenues to date.
Fenix has entered into agreements to combine with each of the Founding Companies simultaneously with, and as
a condition to, the sale of the shares in this offering. However, the Founding Companies have operated
independently of one another to date. There can be no assurance that we will be able to integrate the operations of
the Founding Companies successfully or to institute the necessary systems and procedures, including accounting
and financial reporting systems, to manage the combined enterprise on a profitable basis and to report the results
of operations of the combined entities on a timely basis. In addition, there can be no assurance that our recently
assembled management team will be able to successfully manage the combined entity and effectively implement
our operating or growth strategies. The pro forma financial results of the Founding Companies cover periods
during which they were not under common control or management and, therefore, may not be indicative of the
combined entity’s future financial or operating results. Our success will depend on management’s ability to
integrate the eight companies we are combining concurrently with this offering and other companies we may
acquire in the future into one organization. Our inability to successfully integrate the companies we acquire and
to coordinate and integrate certain operational, administrative, financial and information technology systems
would have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

If our efforts to locate desirable companies in the business of providing recycled OEM automotive
products are not successful or if we are unable to acquire desirable companies on commercially
reasonable terms, our revenue growth and profit will be adversely affected.

Following this offering, one of our principal growth strategies will be to increase our revenue through
the acquisition of additional businesses within our industry. We expect to face competition in our pursuit to
acquire additional businesses, which will limit the number of available companies for sale and may lead to higher
acquisition prices. When we identify desirable companies, their owners may not be willing to sell their
companies at all or on terms that we have determined to be commercially reasonable. If our efforts to locate and
acquire desirable companies are not successful, our revenue and profit growth may be adversely affected.

Our ability to acquire additional businesses may require debt financing that we are unable to
obtain on acceptable terms.

Following this offering, the timing, size and success of our acquisition efforts and the associated capital
commitments cannot be readily predicted. We intend to use our common stock and cash, if necessary, as
consideration for future acquisitions of companies. If our common stock does not maintain a sufficient market
value or potential acquisition candidates are unwilling to accept common stock as part of the consideration for
the sale of their businesses, we may be required to utilize more of our cash resources, including obtaining
additional capital through debt financing. However, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain
financing if and when it is needed or that it will be available on terms that we deem acceptable. As a result, we
may be unable to pursue our acquisition strategy successfully. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources,” “Business—Our Strategy.”
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We may not be able to successfully integrate future acquisitions or generate sufficient revenues
from future acquisitions, which could cause our business to suffer.

If we buy a company or a division of a company, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
profitably manage such business or successfully integrate such business without substantial costs, delays or other
operational or financial problems. There can be no assurance that the businesses we acquire in the future will
achieve anticipated revenues and earnings. Additionally:

e the key personnel of the acquired company may decide not to work for us;

e changes in management at an acquired business may impair its relationships with employees and
customers;

e we may be unable to maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies among acquired
businesses;

e we may be held liable for environmental risks and liabilities as a result of our acquisitions, some of
which we may not have discovered during our due diligence;

e our ongoing business may be disrupted or receive insufficient management attention; and
e we may not be able to realize the cost savings or other financial benefits we anticipated.

Some or all of these factors could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

If we are not able to manage our internal growth, the results of our operations will be adversely
affected.

We will attempt to grow our revenues through internal growth as well as through acquisitions. There can
be no assurance that our systems, procedures and controls will be adequate to support our operations as they
expand. Any future growth will also impose significant additional responsibilities on members of senior
management. Furthermore, as we grow, our ability to increase productivity and profitability will be limited by
our ability to employ, train and retain skilled personnel to provide services to our customers and partners. There
can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain an adequate skilled labor force necessary to operate
efficiently or that our labor expenses will not increase as a result of a shortage in the supply of skilled personnel.
To the extent that we are unable to manage our growth efficiently and effectively, or are unable to attract and
retain skilled personnel, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.
See “Business—Our Strategy.”

We depend upon the services of our management team.

Our success depends, in part, upon the continuing contributions of our executive officers and key
employees at the management level. This includes, in part, continuing efforts from many of the executives and
managers of the Founding Companies, whose reputations and client relationships have contributed significantly
to the success of those companies. Although we have employment and noncompetition agreements with certain
of our key executive officers and managers, there is no guarantee that they will not leave. The loss of the services
of any of our executive officers or managers, or our failure to attract other executive officers or managers could
have a material adverse effect on our business or our business prospects. If we lose the services of any of our key
employees at the operating or regional level, we may not be able to replace them with similarly qualified
personnel, which could harm our business.
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We face intense competition from local, national and internet-based automotive products
providers, and this competition could negatively affect our business.

The recycled vehicle replacement parts and automotive recycling industries are highly competitive and
are served by local owner-operated companies, several large regional companies and internet-based parts
providers. Additionally, in certain regions of the country where we operate, local automotive recycling
companies have formed cooperative inventory sharing programs. We currently participate in certain of these
programs, but may elect not to in the future. We could also face additional competition in the future from others
entering the market, such as OEMs, insurance companies, new parts producers other than OEMs, sometimes
referred to as “aftermarket” suppliers, and industry consolidators. Some of our current and potential competitors
may have more operational expertise and greater financial, technical, manufacturing, distribution and other
resources, longer operating histories, lower cost structures and better key relationships in the insurance and
automotive industries. As a result, they may be able to provide products that we are unable to supply, sell their
products at lower costs or serve customers we are unable to serve.

If we fail to maintain or adequately replace our relationships with auto body shops, insurers and
other customers, through which we make a significant portion of our revenue, our revenue will be
adversely affected.

The majority of our products and services are sold to collision repair shops, also known as body shops,
and mechanical repair shops. Additionally, we indirectly rely on insurance companies to help drive demand, as
insurance companies are increasingly influencing repair facilities to use recycled OEM products as a lower cost
alternative to new OEM products. We also generate a portion of our revenue from scrap sales to metal recyclers.
If we are not able to continue our current or similar arrangements with these body shops, mechanical repair
shops, insurers and scrap metal recyclers, the volume of our sales, revenue and profitability will be materially
adversely affected.

An adverse change in our relationships with auction companies could increase our expenses and
hurt our relationships with our customers.

Our inventory primarily consists of vehicles offered at salvage auctions operated by companies that own
auction facilities in numerous locations across the U.S. We do not typically have contracts with these auction
companies. A small number of companies control a large percentage of the salvage auction market in the U.S.
and Canada. We acquire substantially all of our salvage autos from two of these auction companies. If either of
these companies prohibited us from participating in its auctions, began competing with us, or significantly raised
its fees, our business could be adversely affected through higher costs or the resulting potential inability to
service our customers. Moreover, we face competition in the purchase of vehicles from direct competitors,
rebuilders, exporters and others.

We are subject to environmental regulations and incur costs relating to environmental matters.

We and our operations, both in the U.S. and Canada, are subject to national, state, provincial and local
environmental, health and safety laws and regulations governing, among other things:

e the emission and discharge of wastes, chemicals, contaminants and other hazardous materials into the
ground, air, or water;

e the exposure to hazardous materials; and
e the generation, handling, storage, use, treatment, identification, reporting, record-keeping, transportation

and disposal of industrial by-products, waste water, storm water, solid and hazardous wastes, petroleum
products and hazardous materials.
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We plan to implement environmental management processes that are designed to facilitate and support
our compliance with these requirements and to address current outstanding environmental and operating permit
issues. However, if we violate or fail to comply with these laws or regulations we could be fined or otherwise
sanctioned by regulators.

Contamination resulting from vehicle recycling processes can include air, soil, surface water and ground
water contamination from the release, storage, transportation, or disposal of motor oil, gasoline, or other
petroleum products, antifreeze, transmission fluid, waste solvents, chlorofluorocarbons from air conditioners,
other hazardous materials, or metals such as aluminum, cadmium, chromium, lead and mercury. Contamination
can migrate on-site or off-site which can increase the risk and the amount of any potential liability.

In connection with the Combinations and future acquisitions, we may assume the liabilities of the
companies we acquire. Contamination at properties owned or operated by the Founding Companies or companies
we acquire in the future may result in liability for us under environmental laws and regulations for the full
amount of assessment and remediation-related costs, including those for the investigation and cleanup of
contaminated soil, surface water and ground water, building contamination, and impacts to human health, and
damages to natural resources. Under certain environmental laws, including but not limited to the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, or CERCLA, we and our directors and officers could
be held responsible for all of the costs relating to any contamination at, or migrating to or from, the Founding
Companies’ or any newly acquired company’s past or present facilities and at third-party waste disposal sites.
These laws often impose liability even if the owner or operator did not know of, or was not responsible for
causing, any such contamination. The costs of complying with environmental laws and regulations and any
claims concerning noncompliance or liability with respect to contamination in the future could have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition or operating results.

Environmental laws are complex, change frequently and have tended to become more stringent over
time. Significant capital and operating costs may be incurred at any time to keep our operations in compliance
with environmental, health and safety laws and regulations. If it is not economical to make those expenditures, or
if we violate any of these laws and regulations, it may be necessary to restrict or modify our operations, which
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

One of our Founding Companies is the subject of environmental claims.

Groundwater and surface water contamination has been detected at the facility of Goldy Metals
Incorporated, doing business as Standard Auto Wreckers (“GMI”), in Toronto, Ontario, as a result of historical
releases and a petroleum hydrocarbon spill in November 2010. Since November 2010, the Ontario Ministry of
the Environment issued a series of regulatory orders under Ontario’s Environmental Protection Act that required
the owner of GMI to investigate and remediate all areas that were contaminated by the spill and to take protective
and remedial actions related to its property and operations as well as adjacent areas. We believe GMI has been
and is taking necessary steps to remediate the surface water and groundwater contamination. Furthermore, we are
not assuming this liability and GMI, its shareholder and certain affiliates have agreed to indemnify us against any
liability that may be imposed on us as a result of this contamination. However, as the successor to GMI’s
business and lessee of the facility, we may become legally responsible for this liability, and we and our directors
and officers may be responsible under national and provincial laws and regulations for the assessment,
delineation, control, clean-up, remediation, monitoring and verification of, or as a result of, any environmental
contamination at that site and any affected off-site areas. The current owner of GMI and certain affiliates have
agreed, pursuant to the Combination Agreements, to be responsible for the costs of an additional storm water
management, control and discharge system following the completion of the Combinations and this
offering. However, there can be no assurance that the current owner of GMI or its affiliates will perform their
obligations under such agreements and their failure to perform would require us to undertake these
environmental obligations. See “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions—The Combinations with
the Founding Companies.”
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The site and operations in Toronto have been operating since the 1960s. During the last decade, the
surrounding parkland and agricultural area, as well as the site itself, have been designated part of a new federal
urban park. Accordingly, there has been continual governmental, quasi-governmental, and non-governmental
body environmental oversight and intervention, including various enforcement initiatives. We anticipate that this
will continue following the completion of this offering and of the Combinations.

The Province of Ontario has filed a civil lawsuit against GMI and the owner of the land on which its
facility is located claiming damages of CAD $10.5 million plus pre- and post-judgment interest and court
costs, for alleged historical and spill-related contamination as well as for alleged property encroachment
damage. The lawsuit is currently in the pre-discovery stage. We are not assuming this liability, and GMI, its
shareholder and certain affiliates have agreed to indemnify us against any liability that may be imposed on us as
a result of this liability. However, we may become legally responsible for this liability as the successor to GMI’s
business and lessee of the facility. We cannot assure you that we will not become responsible for this liability, or
that GMI and its shareholder or their affiliates will have the capacity to indemnify us in the event we become
responsible for this liability in whole or in part. Our responsibility for this liability in whole or in significant part
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial position.

GMI was also charged by the Province of Ontario for causing or permitting an oil spill in Toronto which
allegedly impaired a nearby creek. This matter was recently settled through a guilty plea on consent, with GMI
paying a penalty of CAD $93,755. A future charge and conviction under the same or other environmental statute
in Ontario could result in the imposition of a minimum fine of CAD $100,000 per day plus a 25% surcharge, up
to a maximum of CAD $10 million. We are not assuming this liability, and GMI, its shareholder and certain
affiliates have agreed to indemnify us against any liability that may be imposed on us as a result of this liability.
However, we may become legally responsible for this liability as the successor to GMI’s business and lessee of
the facility. We cannot assure you that we will not become responsible for this liability, or that GMI, and its
shareholder or their affiliates will have the capacity to indemnify us in the event we become responsible for this
liability in whole or in part. Our responsibility for this liability in whole or in significant part could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial position.

GMI is also the subject of further regulatory orders relating to sedimentation monitoring and control in
the creek, rehabilitating the creek area that was diverted in 2011 as well as assessing, preventing, treating and
controlling off-site groundwater and surface water discharges. To address these orders, GMI intends to
implement a new surface water control, management and discharge system.

Governmental agencies may refuse to grant or renew our operating licenses and environmental
and other permits.

The Founding Companies and any companies we acquire in the future must receive certain licenses and
permits from state and local governments to conduct their operations, including but not limited to permits
required by environmental laws. We may face unexpected delays in obtaining the necessary permits and
approvals required by environmental and other laws in connection with our facilities. If we violate or fail to
obtain or comply with any permits required by environmental or other laws, we could be fined or otherwise
sanctioned by regulators. Furthermore, when we develop or acquire a new facility, we must seek the approval of
state and local units of government and satisfy applicable siting laws and regulations. Governmental agencies
often resist the establishment of an automotive recycling facility in their communities. There can be no assurance
that future approvals or transfers will be granted. In addition, there can be no assurance that we will be able to
maintain and renew the licenses and permits the Founding Companies currently hold.

We will have a large amount of goodwill as a result of the acquisition of the Founding Companies
and future acquisitions, and if such goodwill becomes impaired, our earnings would be adversely
affected.

Goodwill represents the excess of the amount we pay for our acquisitions over the fair value of the
acquired net assets. We will have substantial goodwill related to our acquisitions of the Founding Companies. As
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we implement our business acquisition strategy, we may be required to account for similar premiums paid on
future acquisitions in the same manner. We do not amortize acquired goodwill but instead we test it for
impairment on an annual basis based upon a fair value approach. Testing for impairment of goodwill involves an
estimation of the fair value of our net assets and involves a high degree of judgment and subjectivity. If we have
any significant impairment to our goodwill, it would have a material adverse effect on our reported financial
results for the period in which the charge is taken and could result in a decrease in the market price of our
common stock.

Our annual and quarterly performance may fluctuate.

Our Founding Companies’ revenue, cost of salvage vehicles and operating results have fluctuated on a
quarterly and annual basis in the past and on a combined basis can be expected to continue to fluctuate in the
future as a result of a number of factors, some of which are beyond our control. Future factors that may affect our
operating results include, but are not limited to, the following:

e fluctuations in the market value of salvage and used vehicles;

the availability of salvage vehicles at an attractive price;

e  variations in vehicle accident rates;

e changes in state or federal laws or regulations affecting our business;

e  our ability to successfully integrate in a timely manner and manage our acquisitions;
e severity of weather and seasonality of weather patterns;

e the amount and timing of operating costs and capital expenditures relating to the maintenance and
expansion of our business, operations and infrastructure; and

e declines in asset values.

Due to the foregoing factors, our operating results in one or more future periods can be expected to
fluctuate and period-to-period comparisons of our results of operations should not be relied upon as indications
of future performance. These fluctuations in our operating results may cause our results to fall below the
expectations of public market analysts and investors, which could cause our stock price to decline.

Fluctuations in the prices of metals could adversely affect our financial results.

Our operations generate scrap metal. After we dismantle a salvage vehicle for parts and after vehicles
have been used in our self-service business, any remaining metal is sold to processors and brokers of metal and
the remaining vehicle hulks are sold to scrap processors. In addition, we receive vehicles from various sources,
which we sell at scrap metal market rates calculated on a per-ton basis. The price of scrap metal has historically
fluctuated, sometimes significantly, due to market factors. In addition, buyers may stop purchasing metal entirely
due to excess supply. To the extent that the price of metal decreases materially, our revenue from such sales will
suffer and a write-down of our inventory value could be required. While the cost of our vehicle purchases may
change as a result of fluctuating metal prices, in a period of falling metal prices there can be no assurance that our
vehicle purchasing costs will decrease the same amount or at the same rate as the scrap metal prices decline, and
there may be a delay between the scrap metal price reductions and any vehicle purchasing cost reductions.

If we experience problems with our fleet of trucks, our business could be harmed.

We operate a fleet of trucks throughout our network to deliver products to our customers and transfer
hub. We are subject to the risks associated with providing trucking services, including inclement weather,
disruptions in the transportation infrastructure, availability and price of fuel, and liabilities arising from accidents
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to the extent we are not covered by insurance. In addition, our failure to deliver parts in a timely and accurate
manner could harm our customer relationships and reputation, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business.

We rely on information technology in critical areas of our operations, and a disruption relating to
such technology could harm our business.

We rely on information technology for significant aspects of our business, including our financial
reporting, accounting, accounts payable, payroll, procurement, inventory control, customer selling and billing,
sales analysis, vehicle tracking and profitability reporting, as well as an electronic exchange system for
identifying and locating parts at other selected recyclers and facilitating brokered sales to fill customer orders for
items not in stock. Any disruption relating to our technology could seriously harm our operations.

We may not be able to sell our products due to existing or new laws prohibiting or restricting the
sale of recycled automotive products.

Some jurisdictions have enacted laws prohibiting or severely restricting the sale of certain recycled
automotive products that we provide, such as airbags. Additional jurisdictions could enact similar laws or could
prohibit additional automotive products we sell. Restrictions on the products we are able to sell could decrease
our revenue and have an adverse effect on our business and operations.

Risks Related to this Offering
Our stock price could be volatile and could decline following this offering.

The price at which our common stock will trade after this offering could be extremely volatile and may
fluctuate substantially due to the following factors, some of which are beyond our control:

e variations in our operating results;

e variations between our actual operating results and the expectations of securities analysts, investors
and the financial community;

e announcements of developments affecting our business or expansion plans by us or others; and
e conditions and trends in the auto parts industry and the economy as a whole.

As a result of these and other factors, investors in our common stock may not be able to resell their
shares at or above the public offering price.

In the past, securities class action litigation often has been instituted against companies following
periods of volatility in the market price of their securities. This type of litigation, if directed at us, could result in
substantial costs and a diversion of management’s attention and resources.

There is no existing market for our common stock, and we do not know if one will develop to
provide you with adequate liquidity.

Prior to this offering, there has not been a public market for our common stock. An active market for our
common stock may not develop following the completion of this offering, or if it does develop, may not be
maintained. If an active trading market does not develop, you may have difficulty selling any of our common
stock that you buy. The public offering price for the shares of our common stock was determined by negotiations
between us and the representatives of the underwriters and may not be indicative of prices that will prevail in the
open market following this offering. Consequently, you may not be able to sell shares of our common stock at
prices equal to or greater than the price you paid in this offering.
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Our officers and directors and the stockholders and equity interest holders of the Founding
Companies and their affiliates will exercise significant control over us.

After the completion of this offering, our executive officers and directors and the stockholders and
equity interest holders of the Founding Companies and their immediate family members will beneficially own, in
the aggregate, approximately 24.5% of our outstanding common stock. As a result, these stockholders will be
able to exercise significant control over all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election of
directors and approval of significant corporate transactions, which could delay or prevent someone from
acquiring or merging with us. These stockholders may have interests that are different from yours.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws and under Delaware law could
discourage a takeover that stockholders may consider favorable.

Following this offering, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated
bylaws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition that a stockholder may consider favorable
because they, among other things:

e authorize our board of directors, without stockholder approval, to issue up to 100,000 shares of
undesignated preferred stock;

e do not provide for cumulative voting in the election of directors;

e cstablish supermajority voting requirements in order to amend certain provisions in our certificate
of incorporation; and

e prohibit stockholders from calling a special meeting of stockholders.

As a Delaware corporation, we are also subject to the Delaware anti-takeover provisions contained in
Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law. Under Delaware law, a corporation may not engage in a
business combination with any holder of 15% or more of its capital stock unless the holder has held the stock for
three years or, among other things, the board of directors has approved the transaction. Our board of directors
could rely on this provision to prevent or delay an acquisition of us. See “Description of Capital Stock of Fenix.”

Future sales of our common stock, including those purchased in this offering, may depress our
stock price.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market following this offering or the
perception that such sales may occur may adversely affect the market price of our common stock. Shares issued
upon the exercise of outstanding options and upon conversion of outstanding exchangeable preferred shares also
may be sold in the public market. Such sales could create the perception to the public of difficulties or problems
with our business. As a result, these sales might make it more difficult for us to sell securities in the future at a
time and price that we deem necessary or appropriate.

Upon completion of this offering, we will have outstanding 17,890,673 shares of common stock,
assuming no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option. Of these shares, 12,000,000 shares sold in this
offering to persons not subject to a lock-up agreement with our underwriters will be freely tradable without
restriction immediately following this offering. After the lock-up agreements expire 180 days from the date of
this prospectus, an additional 5,890,673 shares will be eligible for sale in the public market, 1,740,647 of which
will be held by our directors, executive officers and other affiliates, and will be subject to volume limitations
under Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and certain other restrictions.
The underwriters may also, in their sole discretion, permit our founders, officers, directors, current stockholders
and stockholders and equity interest holders of the Founding Companies to sell shares prior to the expiration of
the lockup agreements. See “Shares Eligible for Future Sale” for more information regarding shares of our
common stock that may be sold by existing stockholders after the closing of this offering.
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A majority of the proceeds we receive in this offering will be used as part of the Combination
Consideration and our management will have broad discretion over the use of the remaining
proceeds and may not apply those proceeds in ways that increase the value of your investment.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering, plus up to $11.5 million of borrowings and letter of
credit utilization under our credit facility to pay the approximately $93.2 million cash portion of the Combination
Consideration. Such cash portion of the Combination Consideration will be adjusted upward, based upon the
Founding Companies’ working capital on the closing date of the Combinations and certain other factors, by
approximately $6.5 million. We may also use a portion of the net proceeds from this offering to pay the
installments of the promissory notes we issued in the aggregate principal amount of $200,000 in connection with
the Combinations with the Founding Companies and to repay any debt assumed in the Combinations. As a result,
a majority of the net proceeds we receive in the offering will not be available to us to use to grow our business or
for other uses beneficial to the Company. Our management will have broad discretion to use the remaining net
proceeds from this offering, and you will be relying on the judgment of our management regarding the
application of such proceeds. See “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions—The Combinations
with the Founding Companies” and “Use of Proceeds.”

We do not intend to pay dividends. You will not receive funds without selling shares, and you may
lose the entire amount of your investment.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock and do not intend to pay
dividends in the foreseeable future. We intend to invest our future earnings, if any, to fund our growth. We
cannot assure you that you will receive a return on your investment when you sell your shares or that you will not
lose the entire amount of your investment.

You will experience immediate and substantial dilution in our pro forma as adjusted net tangible
book value.

After giving effect to the Combinations, purchasers of our common stock in this offering will
experience immediate and substantial dilution in the pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value of their shares
in the amount of $6.29 per share, or 78.6%. To the extent we raise additional capital in the future by issuing
equity securities, our stockholders may experience substantial additional dilution. See “Dilution.”

Following this offering we will be obligated to develop and maintain proper and effective internal
control over financial reporting. We may not complete our analysis of our internal control over
financial reporting in a timely manner, or these internal controls may not be determined to be
effective, which may adversely affect investor confidence in our Company and, as a result, the
value of our common stock.

The independent registered public accounting firm auditing the Founding Companies identified material
weaknesses in the internal control over financial reporting for all of our Founding Companies. We intend to
establish a company-wide system of uniform account classifications and internal control over financial reporting.
If we fail to establish and thereafter maintain effective controls over financial reporting, our ability to accurately
report on our financial results will be adversely affected. Following this offering, we will be required, pursuant to
Section 404(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. This assessment will need to include disclosure of
any material weaknesses identified by our management in our internal control over financial reporting. We may
not be able to complete the evaluation, testing and any required remediation in a timely fashion. During the
evaluation and testing process, if we identify one or more material weaknesses in our internal control over
financial reporting, we will be unable to confirm that our internal controls are effective.
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When we cease to be an “emerging growth company” as defined under the JOBS Act, our auditors will
be required to express an opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls. If we are unable to confirm that
our internal control over financial reporting is effective, or if our auditors are unable to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of our internal controls, we could lose investor confidence in the accuracy and completeness of our
financial reports, which would cause the price of our common stock to decline.

The requirements of being a public company may strain our resources, increase our costs and
distract management, and we may be unable to comply with these requirements in a timely or
cost-effective manner.

As a public company with listed equity securities, we will need to comply with certain laws, regulations
and requirements, including corporate governance provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, related regulations of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and the requirements of the NASDAQ Global Market,
with which the Founding Companies were not required to comply as private companies. Complying with these
statutes, regulations and requirements will occupy a significant amount of the time of our board of directors and
management and will result in significant costs and expenses, particularly after we are no longer an emerging
growth company under the JOBS Act. We will need to:

e institute comprehensive corporate governance and compliance functions;

e design, establish, evaluate and maintain a system of internal control over financial reporting in
compliance with the requirements of Section 404(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the related rules and
regulations of the SEC and the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board;

e comply with rules promulgated by the NASDAQ Global Market;

e prepare and distribute periodic public reports in compliance with our obligations under the federal
securities laws;

e cstablish internal policies, such as those relating to disclosure controls and procedures and insider
trading;

e involve and retain outside counsel and accountants in connection with these activities; and
e  establish an investor relations function.

We are an emerging growth company and our reliance on the reduced disclosure requirements
applicable to emerging growth companies may make our common stock less attractive to
investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the JOBS Act, and we may take advantage of
certain exemptions and relief from various reporting requirements that are applicable to other public companies
that are not emerging growth companies. In particular, while we are an emerging growth company we will not be
required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, we
will be subject to reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and
proxy statements, and we will not be required to hold nonbinding advisory votes on executive compensation or
shareholder approval of any golden parachute payments not previously approved. See “Implications of Being an
Emerging Growth Company.” Investors may find our common stock less attractive if we rely on these
exemptions and relief. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less
active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may decline and/or become more volatile.
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INDUSTRY AND MARKET DATA
In this prospectus, we rely on and refer to information and statistics regarding our industry. We obtained
this information and these statistics from sources other than us, which we have supplemented where necessary
with information from publicly available sources, discussions with our customers and our own internal estimates.
As used in this prospectus:
e Auto Care Association (“ACA”) refers to its “2015 Digital Auto Care Factbook” report;

e Automotive Recyclers Association (“ARA”) refers to its “Automotive Recycling Industry” report;

e R.L. Polk and Company refers to its “August 2013 Average Age of Passenger Cars and Light
Trucks” report;

e U.S. Department of Transportation refers to its “December 2014 Travel Trends” report; and
e Wards Automotive refers to its “U.S. Vehicles in Operation by Year” report.

We believe these sources and estimates to be reliable, but we cannot give you any assurance that any of
the projected results will occur.
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CAUTIONARY DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements contained in this prospectus are “forward-looking statements.” We have tried to
identify these forward-looking statements by using words such as “may,” “might,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,
“believe,” “could,” “intend,” “plan,” “estimate,” “should,” “if,” “project” and similar expressions. We have
based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future events.
However, these forward-looking statements are subject to risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that
may cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially different. Some of these risks,
uncertainties and other factors are set forth elsewhere in this prospectus and in other documents we have filed
with the SEC and include, among other things:

99 < 2

e  our lack of combined operating history and our ability to successfully integrate the Founding
Companies into one entity;

° our ability to successfully locate and acquire additional businesses that provide recycled OEM
automotive products and our ability to successfully integrate any acquired companies with our
business;

° our success in managing our internal growth;

° competition from vehicle replacement parts companies, including but not limited to those that
provide recycled parts;

° our ability to maintain our relationships with auto body shops, insurers and other customers and
with auction companies from which we purchase our salvage vehicles;

° our compliance and our Founding Companies’ past compliance with environmental laws and
regulations and federal, state and local operating and permit requirements;

° the known environmental liabilities at Standard’s Toronto, Ontario facility associated with
groundwater and surface water contamination as a result of historical releases and a petroleum
hydrocarbon spill in November 2010;

e  potential for significant impairment of goodwill and intangibles;

e fluctuations in the prices of scrap metal and other metals;

e  changes in the national, provincial or state laws and regulations affecting our business;

° disruptions in the information technology systems on which our business relies;

° material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting; and

° other factors discussed under the headings “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Business”.

Given these risks and uncertainties, readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on our forward-
looking statements. Projections and other forward-looking statements included in this prospectus have been
prepared based on assumptions, which we believe to be reasonable, but not in accordance with GAAP or any
guidelines of the SEC. Actual results may vary, perhaps materially. You are strongly cautioned not to place
undue reliance on such projections and other forward-looking statements. All subsequent written and oral
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forward-looking statements attributable to us or to persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their
entirety by these cautionary statements. Except as required by federal securities laws, we disclaim any intention
or obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future
events or otherwise. Any such forward-looking statements, whether made in this prospectus or elsewhere, should
be considered in the context of the various disclosures made by us about our businesses including, without
limitation, the risk factors discussed above. For further discussion of these and other factors that could impact our
future results, performance or transactions, please carefully read “Risk Factors.”
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds we will receive from the sale of 12,000,000 shares of our common
stock in this offering, after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and expenses payable by us, will
be approximately $88.2 million (approximately $101.6 million if the underwriters exercise their option to
purchase additional shares in full).

The principal purposes of this offering are to create a public market for our common stock, to fund the
acquisition of the Founding Companies, to facilitate future access to the public capital markets and to provide us
with flexibility in the future, including to acquire additional automotive recycling businesses, either with the net
proceeds from this offering or through the publicly traded common stock we create through this offering.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering, plus up to $11.5 million of borrowings and letter of
credit utilization under the credit facility to be entered into with BMO Harris Bank N.A., to pay the
approximately $93.2 million cash portion of the Combination Consideration in the Combinations with the
Founding Companies. Such cash portion of the Combination Consideration will be adjusted upward, based upon
the Founding Companies’ working capital on the closing date of the Combinations and certain other factors, by
approximately $6.5 million. Specifically, we intend to pay a portion of the cash component of the Combination
Consideration (i) with up to $5.6 million from our $10 million of borrowings under the term loan portion of our
credit facility and (ii) through the issuance of $5.9 million of letters of credit under our credit facility in lieu of
escrowing cash to support a holdback of a portion of the consideration that may be payable to the Canadian
Founding Companies. We may also use a portion of the net proceeds from this offering to pay the installments of
the promissory notes we issued in the aggregate principal amount of $200,000 in connection with the
Combinations with the Founding Companies and to repay debt assumed in the Combinations, which we currently
expect to be $0. See “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions—The Combinations with the
Founding Companies” and “Credit Facility.”

While we have not allocated a specific amount of the remaining net proceeds from this offering to any
particular purpose, we may use such remaining net proceeds for the acquisitions of additional automotive
recycling businesses and general corporate purposes. The net proceeds we actually expend for the acquisition of
additional businesses may vary significantly depending on a number of factors, including our ability to locate
such companies and enter into a binding acquisition agreement on favorable terms and the negotiated purchase
price. With the exception of confidentiality agreements, we currently have no understandings or agreements with
any companies related to acquisitions of businesses other than the Founding Companies. In addition, the net
proceeds we actually expend for general corporate purposes may vary significantly depending on a number of
factors, including future revenue growth and our cash flows. As a result, we will retain broad discretion over the
allocation of the remaining net proceeds from this offering. Pending use of the net proceeds from this offering,
we intend to invest the net proceeds in short-term, investment-grade securities.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock and do not anticipate paying any

cash dividends in the foreseeable future. We currently expect to retain future earnings, if any, to finance the
growth and development of our business.
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CAPITALIZATION
The following table sets forth our cash and cash equivalents and capitalization as of December 31, 2014:
e on an actual basis for Fenix (the designated accounting acquirer);

e on an actual basis for the Beagell Group and Standard (the designated accounting co-predecessors);
and

e ona pro forma basis to reflect (i) a 2,000- for-1 common stock split effective immediately prior to
the closing of this offering; (ii) the completion of the Combinations with the Founding Companies;
(iii) the sale of 12,000,000 shares of our common stock at the public offering price of $8.00 per
share, less the underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses, and (iv)
the Borrowings.

You should read this information in conjunction with the section entitled “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our unaudited pro forma financial statements and the
related notes and the historical financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

As of December 31, 2014
Actual
Fenix Beagell Group Standard Pro Forma
(in thousands)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash ............ $ 453 $ 2,770 $ 1,354 $ 7,270
Indebtedness, including current portion............... $ — $ 130 $ — $ 10,000

Shareholders’ equity (deficit):
Fenix common stock, $0.001 par value: 30,000,000
shares authorized and 1,215 shares issued and
outstanding (actual); 17,587,749 shares issued and

outstanding (pro forma) ...................... — — — 15
Fenix special voting stock ....................... — — — —
Beagell Group Capital Stock ..................... — 748 — —
Standard Capital Stock . . ................. ... ... — — 5,058 —
Additional paid-incapital ............ ... ... .... 3,619 — — 116,119
Retained earnings (deficit) ............... ... .... (4,747) 8,972 10,641 (3,847)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss . ........... — — (75) —
Total controlling interests shareholders’ equity

(deficit) . ..o (1,128) 9,720 15,624 112,287
Noncontrolling interests(1) ...................... — 2,270 677 8,400
Total shareholders’ equity (deficit) ................ (1,128) 11,990 16,301 120,687

Total capitalization ........................ $  (1,128) $ 12,120 $ 16,301 $ 130,687

(1) Actual balances represent interests in consolidated variable interest entities of the Founding Companies. Pro
forma balance represents 1.3 million Exchangeable Preferred Shares of Fenix Parts Canada, Inc., a
subsidiary of ours, issued as part of the Combinations.
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DILUTION

If you invest in our stock, your interest will be diluted to the extent of the difference between the public

offering price per share of our common stock and the pro forma net tangible book value per share of our common
stock after this offering.

The pro forma net tangible book value of our common stock on December 31, 2014 was a deficit of
$58.2 million or $(10.41) per share of common stock. Pro forma net tangible book value per share represents the
amount of our total tangible assets less total liabilities, divided by the number of shares of common stock
outstanding, after giving effect to the Combinations with the Founding Companies. Dilution in net tangible book
value per share represents the difference between the amount per share paid by purchasers of shares of our
common stock in this offering and the net tangible book value per share of our common stock immediately
afterwards. After giving effect to our sale of 12,000,000 shares of common stock offered by this prospectus and
to the Combinations with the Founding Companies, and after deducting the underwriting discounts, commissions
and estimated offering and acquisition expenses payable by us, our pro forma net tangible book value would have
been $30.0 million, or approximately $1.71 per share. This represents an immediate increase in pro forma net
tangible book value of $12.12 per share to existing stockholders (which will include the current owners of the
Founding Companies pursuant to the shares of our common stock they receive as part of the Combination
Consideration) and an immediate dilution in pro forma net tangible book value of $6.29 per share to new
investors. The following table illustrates the per share dilution:

Public offering price pershare . . . ........ . ... .. $8.00
Pro forma net tangible book value per share as of December 31,2014 ....  $(10.41)
Increase in pro forma net tangible book value per share attributable to new
INVESTOTS o . vttt ettt e e e e e e e e 12.12
Pro forma net tangible book value per share after this offering ............ 1.71
Dilution in pro forma net tangible book value per share to new investors . . .. $6.29

If the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, the pro forma net tangible book value per
share of our common stock after giving effect to this offering and the Combinations would be $2.24 per share of
our common stock. This represents an increase in net tangible book value of $12.65 per share of our common
stock to existing stockholders (which will include the current owners of the Founding Companies pursuant to the
shares of our common stock they receive as part of the Combination Consideration) and dilution in pro forma net
tangible book value of $5.76 per share to new investors.

30



The following table sets forth, on a pro forma basis to give effect to the completion of the Combinations
of the Founding Companies at December 31, 2014, the differences between the number of shares of common
stock purchased from us, the total price and average price per share paid by existing stockholders, stockholders
of the Founding Companies and by the new investors, before deducting estimated offering and acquisition
expenses payable by us.

. . Average
Shares Purchased Total Consideration Price Per
Number Percentage Amount Percentage Share
Existing stockholders and
stockholders of the Founding
Companies(l) ............... 5,587,750 31.8% $ 26,618,760 21.7% $4.76
New investors ................. 12,000,000 68.2 96,000,000 78.3 $8.00
Total ....... ... ... ...... 17,587,750 100.0% $122,618,760 100.0%

(1) See “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions” for a discussion of the issuance of common
stock to our initial stockholders and stockholders of the Founding Companies.

If the underwriters’ over-allotment option is exercised in full, the number of shares held by new public

investors will be increased to 13,800,000 or approximately 71.2% of the total number of shares of our common
stock outstanding after this offering.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

The following selected historical financial data for Fenix (the accounting acquirer and registrant) as of
and for the period from its inception through December 31, 2014 are derived from the audited financial
statements of Fenix included elsewhere in this prospectus. The following selected historical financial data for the
Beagell Group and Standard (the accounting co-predecessors) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are derived from the audited combined financial statements of
the Beagell Group and Standard included elsewhere in this prospectus.

The selected unaudited pro forma financial data as of and for the year ended December 31, 2014, are
derived from the unaudited pro forma financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus. The unaudited
pro forma financial data give effect to (a) the Combinations, (b) the 2,000-for-1 common stock split, which will
occur immediately prior to the completion of this offering, (c) the completion of this offering and the use of the
proceeds therefrom and (d) the Borrowings, as if they had occurred on January 1, 2014, and the use of the
proceeds therefrom. The pro forma adjustments are based on currently available information and certain
estimates and assumptions, and therefore, the actual effects of the transactions reflected in the pro forma data
may differ from the effects reflected below. However, management believes that the assumptions provide a
reasonable basis for presenting the significant effects of these transactions as contemplated and that the pro forma
adjustments give appropriate effect to those assumptions. During the periods presented, Fenix and the Founding
Companies were not under common control or management and, therefore, the data presented may not be
comparable to, or indicative of, post-combination results.

You should review the information below together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements and the related
notes beginning on page F-3 of this prospectus, and the audited financial statements of Fenix, the Beagell Group
and Standard and the related notes all included elsewhere in this prospectus.

Fenix
(Designated accounting
acquirer) Pro Forma
From January 2, 2014
(Inception) Year Ended
to December 31,2014  December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Statement of Operations Data:
TOtal TEVEINUES . . o . ottt e e e e e e e e e $ — $ 108,216
Costof goods sOld ... ..ot — 71,186
Gross Profit . ... v et — 37,030
OPErating EXPEISES . .+« v v v e ettt et et et e e (4,748) (44,257)
Operating 10Ss . . . .« o it (4,748) (7,227)
NONOPerating iNCOME . . . ..o .v vttt et ettt ettt 1 864
Loss before inCome taxes .. ........ouuuiiuneiin .. (4,747) (6,363)
Benefit for inCome taxes . . . ... ..o v it — (2,418)
Nt LOSS © v ottt e e e e e $ (4,747 $ (3,945)
Basic and diluted loss per share(1) . ............ i $(4,427.77) $ (0.22)
Weighted average basic and diluted shares outstanding(1) .................. 1,072 17,154,526
Other Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(2) . ..ottt e e e e e e e $ (4,747) $ 3,361



Beagell Group Standard

(Designated accounting predecessor) (Designated accounting predecessor)
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Statement of Operations Data:
Total revenues . ................... $ 30,598 $30,661 $31,637 $ 31,126 $ 31,738 $ 31,037
Costofgoodssold . ................ 19,897 19,652 19,927 19,717 19,714 20,243
Grossprofit . .......... ... ...... 10,701 11,009 11,710 11,409 12,024 10,794
Operating expenses . ............... 8,308 9,258 9,649 9,524 11,602 10,377
Operating income ............... 2,393 1,751 2,061 1,885 422 417
Nonoperating (expenses) income . . .. .. 297 (55) 38 842 31 (1)
Income before income taxes ....... 2,690 1,696 2,099 2,727 453 416
Provision for income taxes .......... 448 279 406 684 172 111
Netincome ...................... $ 2,242 $ 1,417 $ 1,693 § 2,043 $ 281 § 305
Other Data:
Adjusted EBITDA(2) .............. $ 4,578 $ 3,659 $ 4242 § 3,308 $ 2,325 $ 2,826
Net cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities . ............. 2,915 2,609 2,499 2,267 (850) 1,753
Investing activities .............. 32 (267) (1,322) (2,183) (3,823) (132)
Financing activities .............. (1,897) (2,390) (2,584) (246) 249 —
Fenix
(Designated accounting
acquirer) Pro Forma
As of December 31,2014  As of December 31, 2014
(Unaudited)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents . ................................... $ 453 $ 7,270
Working capital (deficit) ........... .. ... ... (1,128) 47,084
Total @SSELS . ..ot 849 169,934
Total debt, including current portion ............ ... .. ... ....... — 10,000
Stockholders’ equity (deficit) .......... ... .. i (1,128) 120,687
Beagell Group Standard
(Designated accounting predecessor)  (Designated accounting predecessor)
As of December 31, As of December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ..................... $ 2,770 $ 1,720 $ 1,354 $ 1,902
Working capital .......... .. ... .. ... 9,158 7,739 8,665 9,595
Total @ssets .. .. .ot 16,001 14,664 22,265 20,670
Total debt, including current portion . ............ 130 128 — —
Stockholders’ equity ............... ... ....... 11,990 11,647 16,301 15,486

(1) Pro forma earnings per share and related weighted-average shares give effect to the 2,000-for-1 common
stock split and reflect the public offering price of $8.00 per share.

(2) See “—Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measurements.”
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Selected Individual Founding Company Financial Data
(In thousands)

The selected historical financial data as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 for each of the Founding Companies, other than the Beagell Group and
Standard, are derived from the audited financial statements of each such Founding Company included elsewhere
in this prospectus.

You should review the information below together with “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations™ and the financial statements of each of the Founding Companies
and the related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. These selected historical financial results may not be
indicative of our future financial or operating results.

Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Eiss Brothers
Statement of Operations Data:
TOtal TEVENUES . . o . ottt e e e e e e e e $11,975 $ 10,022 $ 9,054
Cost of g00ds SOId . . ..ot 8,838 7,253 6,200
GIOSS PrOfIt . .ot e 3,137 2,769 2,854
OPErating EXPENSES . . .« .ttt ettt et e e e e e e e e e 2,294 2,420 2,583
OPErating INCOMIC . . .« o\ vttt ettt et et et e e e e e e ettt e e e 843 349 271
NONOPETAtING EXPEIISES . . . o v v ettt et et e e et e e e e e e e 45) (nH (26)
Income before inCOMe taxes .. ......... ..t 798 348 245
Provision for inCOME taxXes . . . . . ..ottt e e — — —
NELINCOME . . oottt et e e e e e e e e $ 798 $§ 348 § 245
As of December 31,
2014 2013
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents . .. ... . ... . $ 633 § 352
Working capital . .. ... o 6,189 5,830
Total ASSELS . . . ot 8,335 7,819
Total debt, including current portion ... ......... ..ttt 611 592
Shareholders” equity . ... ... ... 7,030 6,634
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
GO Auto
Statement of Operations Data:
TOtal TEVENUES . . . o o oot et et et et e e e e e e e e e $ 9984 $§ 8022 $ 5,507
Cost of g00ds SOId . . ..ot 6,603 5,587 3,777
GIOSS PrOTIt .« . oot e 3,381 2,435 1,730
OPErating EXPENSES . .« o« v v ettt et ettt et e e e e e e 3,043 2,303 1,628
OPErating INCOMEC . . . o\ vttt ettt et et e e e e e et e e e e e 338 132 102
NONOPETAING EXPEIISES .« .« vttt ettt et et e e et e et e e e e (49) (48) (62)
Income before iINCOME taXes . ... .. .. ittt 289 84 40
Provision for inCOME taXeS . . ... ... ..ttt e — — —
NELINCOMIE . . ottt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 289 § 84 40
As of December 31,
2014 2013
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ........ ... . $ 109 § 296
Working capital .. ... ... 1,063 933
Total ASSES . . ..\ttt 4,121 3,821
Total debt, including current portion . ... ........ ...ttt 1,047 1,179
Shareholders” equity . ... ... ..ot 2,023 1,934

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Jerry Brown
Statement of Operations Data:
TOtAl TEVEIUES . . . o\ o vttt e et e e e e e e e $ 13,039 $ 12,084 $ 10,652
Cost of g00ds SOId . . . ..ot 8,119 7,719 6,615
GrOSS PrOfIt . .ot 4,920 4,365 4,037
OPErating EXPEISES .+« v v v e ve ettt et et e et e e e e e e 4,331 3,645 3,747
OPErating IMNCOME . . . o\ vttt et et e et e e e e e e e e e e e 589 720 290
NONOPETAtING EXPEISES .« .+« v v e et ettt e et et e e e e e e e e (61) (18) “4)
Income before INCOME taXES . ... ...ttt 526 702 286
Provision for inCOMe taXes . .. ........iuii it e e 108 63 153
NEtINCOME . .ottt et e e e e e e e $§ 418 $ 639 $ 133
As of December 31,
2014 2013
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ... ...... .. .. . $ 362 $ 303
Working capital . ... ... 4,371 4,684
Total ASSES . . .\ttt 9,839 9,060
Total debt, including current POrtion . ... ..... ...ttt 1,703 1,265
Shareholders’ eqUILY . . ... ...ttt 5,279 5,082
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Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Leesville
Statement of Operations Data:
TOtAl TEVEIUES . . . o\ ottt et e e e e e e e e e e $ 16,865 $ 18,202 $ 16,967
Cost of g00ds SOId . . . ..ot 12,592 13,164 12,673
GrOSS PrOfIt . .ot 4,273 5,038 4,294
OPErating EXPEISES .+« v v v ettt et et et e et e e e e e 3,506 4,819 4,476
Operating income (10SS) ... ..ot 767 219 (182)
NONOPETAtING EXPEISES -+« « vt ettt et e e et et e e e e e e e e e (6) 3) )
Income (loss) before iNCOMe taxes ... .........iirniiintin i 761 216 (191)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .. ....... ...t 392 143 (43)
Netincome (I0SS) ..ottt e e e e $ 369 $ 738 (148)
As of December 31,
2014 2013
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... ... .. .. $ 674 $ 269
Working capital . ... ... 3,889 3,098
Total ASSES . . .\ttt 7,607 6,612
Total debt, including current POrtion . ... ...ttt 200 200
Shareholders’ eqUILY . . .. ..ottt e 4,802 4,165
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Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measurements

EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are presented in this prospectus as supplemental measures of our
performance that are not required by, or presented in accordance with, GAAP. EBITDA is net income before
interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA is EBITDA less reductions in
compensation paid to certain employees of the Founding Companies. We believe that EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA provide useful information to management and investors regarding certain financial and business trends
relating to our financial condition and operating results.

We believe that the use of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provides additional tools for investors to use
in evaluating ongoing operating results and trends and in comparing our financial measures with other
automotive parts recycling businesses, which may present similar non-GAAP financial measures to investors. In
addition, you should be aware when evaluating EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA that in the future we may incur
expenses similar to those excluded when calculating these measures. Our presentation of these measures should
not be construed as an inference that our future results will be unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Our
computation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures
computed by other companies, because all companies do not calculate EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA in the
same fashion.

Our management does not consider EBITDA or Adjusted EBITDA in isolation or as an alternative to
financial measures determined in accordance with GAAP. The principal limitations of EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA are that they exclude significant expenses and income that are required by GAAP to be recorded in our
financial statements. Some of these limitations are:

a. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect our cash expenditures, or future requirements, for capital
expenditures or contractual commitments;

b. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital
needs;

c. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect the interest expense, or the cash requirements necessary
to service interest or principal payments, on our debts;

d. although depreciation and amortization are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized
will often have to be replaced in the future, and EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect any cash
requirements for such replacements;

e. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA do not reflect the impact of certain cash charges resulting from matters
we consider not to be indicative of our ongoing operations; and

g. other companies in our industry may calculate EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA differently than we do,
limiting their usefulness as comparative measures.

Because of these limitations, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or
as a substitute for performance measures calculated in accordance with GAAP. We compensate for these
limitations by relying primarily on our GAAP results and using EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA only
supplementally. You should review the reconciliation of net income to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA below
and not rely on any single financial measure to evaluate our business.
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The following tables reconcile net income (loss) to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA for the periods
presented (in thousands).

Fenix
(Designated accounting
acquirer) Pro Forma
From January 2, 2014
(Inception) Year Ended
to December 31, 2014 December 31, 2014
NEt10SS .« .ottt e e $(4,747) $(3,945)
Interest EXPense . . . ..ottt — 263
Depreciation and amortization eXpense .. ......................o.o... — 5,724
Benefit for income taxes . .......... ... — (2,418)
EBIT DA (4,747) (376)
Compensation adjustment(a) .. ........couvireineineneeenn. — 3,737
Adjusted EBITDA ... ... $(4,747) $ 3,361
Beagell Group Standard
(Designated accounting predecessor) (Designated accounting predecessor)
Year Ended December 31, Year Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2014 2013 2012
Netincome . .........ouviniineineninnenenn... $2,242 $1,417 $1,693 $2,043 $ 281 $ 305
Interest eXpense .. ..........iiiiiiii i — — 10 — — —
Depreciation and amortization expense . .. ........... 853 863 881 682 918 737
Provision for income taxes ....................... 448 279 406 684 172 111
EBITDA . ... 3,543 2,559 2,990 3,409 1,371 1,153
Compensation adjustment(a) .. ................... 1,035 1,100 1,252 (101) 954 1,673
Adjusted EBITDA . ...... ... ... .. ... $4,578 $3,659 $4,242 $3,308 $2,325 $2,826

(a) Represents (i) a change in employment compensation paid by certain Founding Companies to their
shareholders, certain family members and other executives to amounts to be paid to those employees
except for potential performance based bonus amounts pursuant to executed employment agreements
with Fenix or its subsidiary and (ii) compensation expense for a one time bonus payable in shares of our
common stock by one of our Founding Companies to certain of its employees.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be
read in conjunction with the historical financial statements of the relevant entities and the pro forma financial
statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion and analysis contains
Jforward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results may differ materially from
those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth
under “Risk Factors” and “Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Business Overview

Fenix was founded in January 2014 to create a leading recycler and reseller of OEM automotive
products in the United States and Canada. Our primary business is auto recycling, which is the recovery and
resale of insurance quality OEM parts, components and systems reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value
vehicles. We sell recycled OEM products to collision repair shops, also known as body shops, and mechanical
repair shops, auto dealerships and individual retail customers through centralized distribution facilities. Our
recycled OEM products include mechanical parts used to repair worn or damaged components, such as engines
and transmissions, and collision repair parts used to repair vehicles typically involved in a collision, such as door
assemblies, trunk lids, lights, fenders and other products. We also sell aftermarket parts. We have nine full-
service recycling facilities, concentrated in the Northeastern United States and Southeastern Canada. These
locations include Binghamton, NY, Niagara Falls, NY, Pennsburg, PA, Rahway, NJ, Ottawa, Ontario, Port Hope,
Ontario, Queensbury, NY, Watertown, NY and Jacksonville, FL. We have four self-service locations, two of
which are co-located with full-service facilities. Our self-service locations are in Binghamton, NY, Elmira, NY,
Ottawa, Ontario and Scarborough, Ontario. At these self-service locations, we allow retail customers to directly
dismantle, recover and purchase recycled OEM products. Once each of our vehicles has been dismantled, we sell
as scrap the remaining materials.

Concurrently with the closing of the offering made hereby, we plan to acquire in the Combinations
eleven corporate entities that conduct eight businesses: (i) Don’s, (ii) Eiss Brothers, (iii) Gary’s, (iv) GO Auto,
(v) Horseheads, (vi) Jerry Brown, (vii) Leesville and (viii) Standard. All of these companies are collectively
referred to as the “Founding Companies.” The Founding Companies will be acquired for a combination of cash
and shares of our common stock or shares of our subsidiary. A portion of the net proceeds from this offering will
be used to pay the cash portion of the consideration in the Combinations. We will not close the acquisition of any
of the Founding Companies unless we close the acquisition of all of the Founding Companies. Furthermore, the
closing of the Combinations and this offering are conditioned on the closing of each other. The description of our
business that follows assumes that the Combinations have occurred and the operations of the Founding
Companies have been combined.

We have entered into agreements with the owners of each of the Founding Companies to combine their
businesses. The Combination Consideration to be paid by Fenix in the Combinations, subject to adjustment and
including, among other things, amounts held in escrow, amounts payable as bonuses and amounts payable for the
reimbursement of certain capital expenditures by certain Founding Companies, consists of approximately $93.2
million in cash, approximately 3.2 million shares of common stock and approximately 1.3 million exchangeable
preferred shares of our subsidiary, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. The cash portion of the Combination Consideration is
generally subject to adjustment based upon the Founding Companies’ working capital on the closing date, capital
expenditures during the six months preceding the closing of the Combinations and certain other factors. The
aggregate net adjustment for the cash portion of the Combination Consideration will be an increase of
approximately $6.5 million. The Combination Consideration was determined by arm’s length negotiations
between Fenix and representatives of each Founding Company. Each of the owners of the Founding Companies
has agreed not to sell their shares of our common stock for 180 days after the date of this prospectus, subject to
certain exceptions. For a more detailed description of these transactions, see “Certain Relationships and Related
Person Transactions—The Combinations with the Founding Companies.”
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Financial Statement Components
Sources of Revenue

Our combined sales consist of revenues from: (i) recycled OEM and related products, and (ii) other
sources. During 2014, sales of recycled OEM and related products represented approximately 72% of our
combined sales. We sell recycled OEM and related products to collision repair shops and mechanical repair
shops, parts suppliers and individual retail customers through centralized distribution facilities. Our recycled
OEM and related products include mechanical parts used to repair worn or damaged components, such as
engines, transmissions, transfer cases, air conditioning compressors and knee assemblies, and collision repair
parts used to repair vehicles typically involved in a collision, such as doors, lids, gates, front and rear bumpers,
and headlights. In addition, we purchase recycled OEM and related products from third parties for resale and
distribution to our customers.

Other revenues, which primarily include the disposal of end of life vehicles and related scrap sales,
represented the remaining 28% of our revenue for 2014. We obtain scrap metal from several sources, including
vehicles that have been used in both our full-service and self-service recycling operations. Other revenues will
vary based on fluctuations in commodity prices and the volume of materials sold. We sell extended warranty
contracts for certain mechanical products. Revenue from these contracts is deferred and recognized ratably over
the term of the contracts, or five years in the case of lifetime warranties.

The demand for our products and services is influenced by several factors, including the number of
vehicles on the road, the number of miles being driven, the number and age of drivers, the frequency and severity
of vehicle accidents, the age profile of vehicles in accidents, availability and pricing of new OEM parts and local
weather conditions.

There is no standard price for many of our products, but rather a pricing structure that varies based upon
such factors as product availability, quality, demand, new OEM product prices, the age and mileage of the
vehicle from which the part was obtained and competitor pricing.

Cost of Goods Sold

Our cost of goods sold for recycled OEM and related products includes the price we pay for the vehicles
we purchase and, where applicable, auction, storage and towing fees. We acquire vehicles for dismantling from
several sources, including auto salvage auctions and from the public. Prices for vehicles may be impacted by a
variety of factors, including the demand and pricing trends for used vehicles, the number of vehicles designated
as “total losses” by insurance companies, the production level of new vehicles, and the status of laws regulating
the titling of “total loss” vehicles and the bidders of vehicles at auction. Our cost of goods sold also includes the
price we pay to third parties for recycled OEM and related products purchased for resale and labor and other
costs we incur to acquire and dismantle vehicles. Our labor and labor-related costs to purchase and dismantle
vehicles account for approximately 13% of our cost of goods sold during 2014.

Some of our mechanical products are sold with a warranty against defects which could result in product
returns. We record the estimated returns reserves at the time of sale using historical returns information to project
future returns and related expenses.

Expenses
Our facility expenses primarily consist of costs of operations and distribution. These costs include

(1) wages for the operating management, facility and distribution personnel, related incentive compensation and
employee benefits; (2) costs to occupy and operate the facility including rent, utilities, insurance and taxes;
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(3) repairs and maintenance costs related to our facilities and equipment; and (4) other facility expenses. Our
distribution and operations expenses are integral to the operation of each facility and primarily include our costs
to prepare and deliver our products to our customers. These costs include labor costs for drivers, fuel, third party
freight costs, local delivery and transfer truck leases or rentals and related repairs and maintenance, insurance,
and supplies. The costs included in facility expenses do not relate to vehicle purchasing and to the dismantling
process and, therefore, are classified below the gross margin line on our statement of operations.

Our selling and marketing expenses primarily include salary, commission and other incentive
compensation expenses for sales personnel, advertising, promotion and marketing costs, telephone and other
communication expenses, credit card fees and bad debt expense. Most of our product sales personnel are paid on
a commission basis. The size and quality of our sales force are critical to our ability to respond to our customers’
needs and increase our sales volume.

Our general and administrative expenses primarily include the costs of our corporate offices and field
support services center that provide field management, treasury, accounting, legal, payroll, business
development, human resources and information systems functions. These costs include wages and benefits for
corporate, regional and administrative personnel, stock-based compensation and other incentive compensation,

IT system support and maintenance expenses, accounting, legal and other professional fees, and supplies. The
unaudited pro forma results for the periods included in this document do not include any allocation of overhead
for the parent company or other pre-offering expenses not already included in the historical operating expenses of
Fenix or the Founding Companies. Going forward, general and administrative expenses will include expenses
associated with our operation as a public company, including audit, legal, accounting, investor relations and rent.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates, assumptions, and
judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses, and related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, assumptions, and judgments,
including those related to revenue recognition, inventory valuation, business combinations, and goodwill
impairment. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances. The results of these estimates form the basis for our judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities and our recognition of revenue. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Revenue Recognition

For our recycled OEM and related products, we recognize and report revenue from the sale of recycled
OEM and related products when they are shipped or picked up by the customers and ownership has transferred,
subject to an allowance for estimated returns (often pursuant to standard warranties on sold products), discounts
and allowances that management estimates based upon historical information. We analyze historical returns and
allowances activity by comparing the items to the original invoice amounts and dates. We use this information to
project future returns and allowances on products sold. If actual returns and allowances are higher than our
historical experience, there would be an adverse impact on our operating results in the period of occurrence. For
an additional fee, we also sell extended warranty contracts for certain mechanical products. Revenue from these
contracts is deferred and recognized ratably over the term of the contracts, or five years in the case of lifetime
warranties.

For our other services revenue, we recognize revenue from the sale of scrap, cores and other metals
when ownership has transferred, which typically occurs upon delivery to the customer.
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Inventories

Our recycled OEM and related product inventory cost is established based upon the price we pay for a
vehicle, including auction, storage and towing fees, as well as expenditures for buying and dismantling vehicles.
After dismantling, the cost assigned to salvaged parts and scrap is determined using the average cost to sales
percentage at each of our facilities and applying that percentage to the facility’s inventory at expected selling
prices. The average cost to sales percentage is derived from each facility’s historical vehicle profitability for
salvage vehicles purchased at auction or from contracted rates for salvage vehicles acquired under certain direct
procurement arrangements.

For all inventories, carrying value is recorded at the lower of cost or market and is reduced to reflect the
age of the inventory and current anticipated demand. If actual demand differs from our estimates, additional
reductions to inventory carrying value would be necessary in the period such determination is made.

Business Combinations

We record our acquisitions under the acquisition method of accounting, under which most of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are initially recorded at their respective fair values and any excess purchase price
is reflected as goodwill. We utilize management estimates and, in some instances, independent third-party
valuation firms to assist in determining the fair values of assets acquired, liabilities assumed and contingent
consideration, if any. Such estimates and valuations require us to make significant assumptions, including
projections of future events and operating performance.

We make assumptions about the value of tangible assets purchased in the Combinations, particularly for
inventory and property and equipment. Inventory was marked up to 90% of its estimated selling price
representing the inventory’s cost and estimated related profit margin. Selling costs and related profit margin were
estimated at all Founding Companies to be 10%. The acquired inventory is expected to be sold within 18 months.
Assumptions for property and equipment valuation, which are based on cost and market approaches, are
primarily data from industry databases and dealers on current costs of new equipment and information about the
useful lives and age of the equipment. The remaining useful life of property and equipment is determined based
on historical experience using such assets and varies from 3-20 years depending on the Founding Company and
nature of the assets. All property and equipment is depreciated using the straight-line method.

The fair value of customer relationships and trade names acquired in business combinations are based
on a number of significant assumptions. Trade names are valued using a “relief from royalty” method, which
models cash savings from owning intangible assets as compared to paying a third party for their use. Descriptions
of the inputs into this method, and the estimates or ranges of these inputs used for all of the Combinations are as
follows:

Compound annual revenue growth rate over termofuse ................ 3%-7.9%
Percentage of revenue attributable to trade name in forecast year ......... 20%-100%
Royaltyrate .. ... ... o 2%
Discount rate ... ... ...ttt 12.5%-14%
TaXTate . ..ot 38.6%-40.9%

The expected useful life of trade names, which we have established as five years, is based on our
planned timeframe for using the existing trade names we will purchase in the Combinations. We expect to
amortize such trade names using the straight-line method as no other method of amortization is more
representative of our usage of these assets.

Customer relationships are valued using an income approach called the multi-period excess earnings
method, a form of discounted cash flow that estimates revenues and cash flows derived from the use of the
intangible asset and then deducts portions of the cash flow that can be attributed to supporting assets, such as
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other intangible assets or property and equipment, that contributed to the generation of the cash flows to arrive at
cash flows attributable solely to the intangible asset being valued. Descriptions of the inputs into this method,
and the estimates or ranges of these inputs used for all of the Combinations are as follows:

Compound annual revenue growth rate in forecast period . ................ 2.1%-3.8%
Annual customer attrition rate ............ ... 10%
Gross margin in forecast period ... ....... ... .. i 31.8%-47.5%
Contributory asset charges as a percentage of revenue ................... 0.1%-3.4%
DISCOUNt Tate . . . ..ottt 13.5%-16.0%
TaX 1ate . . ot 38.6%-40.9%

The expected useful life of customer relationships is established as 15 years, which is the period over
which these assets are expected to reasonably contribute to future cash flows. We expect to amortize such
customer relationships using an accelerated method that reflects a greater relative contribution to future cash
flows in the earlier years of the assets’ useful lives.

We also make assumptions to value off-market leases we expect to enter into as part of the
Combinations. Such leases are recorded as assets or liabilities when applying the acquisition method and we
expect to amortize these assets or liabilities over the 15 year life of the leases so that aggregate rent expense
reflects market rates. Amounts relating to off-market leases that are recorded under the acquisition method are
calculated based on a cost approach to value the land and buildings on a fee simple basis and then by applying a
capitalization rate to that value to calculate a market rate. Cost estimates are obtained by analyzing recent sales
transactions for similar properties.

The estimated fair values are subject to change during the measurement period, which is limited to one
year subsequent to the acquisition date.

For certain acquisitions, we may issue contingent consideration under which additional payments will
be made to the former owners if specified future events occur or conditions are met, such as meeting profitability
or earnings targets. Each contingent consideration obligation is measured at the acquisition date fair value of the
consideration, which is determined using the discounted expected cash flows. At each subsequent reporting
period, we measure the liability at fair value and record any changes to the fair value. The fair value
measurement of the liability is performed by our corporate accounting department using current information
about key assumptions, with the input from our sales and operating management. Each reporting period, we
evaluate the performance of the business compared to our previous expectations, along with any changes to our
future projections, and update the estimated cash flows accordingly. In addition, we consider changes to our cost
of capital and changes to the probability of achieving the contingent payment targets when updating our
estimates.

As of the date of the Combinations, we expect to record $8.9 million of discounted contingent
consideration liabilities payable in cash. Actual payouts under these contingent consideration arrangements will be
determined at the end of the performance periods, and if the maximum payments were earned, the total payout
would be approximately $7.9 million plus an uncapped amount which we estimate as $1.6 million.

Goodwill Impairment

We are required to assess our goodwill for impairment at least annually for each reporting unit that
carries goodwill. We may elect to first do a qualitative assessment to determine whether it is more likely than not
that a reporting unit’s fair value is in excess of its carrying value. If not, or if we elect to not perform a qualitative
assessment, we then perform a quantitative impairment test. The first step of the quantitative test includes us
estimating the fair value of the reporting unit and comparing that estimated fair value to the reporting unit’s
carrying value. If fair value exceeds carrying value, then no impairment is deemed to exist. Otherwise, we
proceed to the second step and use that estimated fair value as a hypothetical purchase price for the reporting unit
to determine the resulting “implied” goodwill (computed similarly to how goodwill is computed under
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acquisition accounting described above). An excess of a reporting unit’s recorded goodwill over its “implied”
goodwill is reported as an impairment charge. We perform goodwill impairment tests annually in the fourth
quarter and between annual tests whenever events or circumstances indicate that an impairment may exist. We
are required to evaluate events and circumstances that may affect the performance of the reporting unit and the
extent to which the events and circumstances may impact the future cash flows of the reporting unit.

Our reporting unit fair value estimates are established using weightings of the results of a discounted
cash flow methodology and a comparative market multiples approach. We believe that using two methods to
determine fair value limits the chances of an unrepresentative valuation. Nonetheless, these valuations are subject
to significant subjectivity and assumptions, including estimates of future sales growth rates, gross margin
patterns, changes in operating expenses, terminal values, discount rates and comparable companies. Changes in
such assumptions or estimates may require us to record goodwill impairment charges.

Intangible Assets Impairment

We evaluate the carrying value of intangible assets, such as trade names and customer relationships, and
other long lived assets for impairment whenever indicators of impairment exist. We test these assets for
recoverability by comparing the net carrying value of the asset or asset group to the undiscounted net cash flows
to be generated from the use and eventual disposition of that asset or asset group. If the assets are recoverable, an
impairment loss does not exist and no loss is recorded. If the assets are not recoverable, an impairment loss is
recognized for any deficiency of the asset or asset group’s fair value compared to their carrying value. Although
we base cash flow forecasts on assumptions that are consistent with plans and estimates we use to manage our
business, there is significant judgment in determining the cash flows attributable to these assets, including
markets and market share, sales volumes and mix, capital spending and working capital changes.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes using the asset and liability method, which requires the recognition of
deferred tax assets or liabilities for the tax-effected temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax
bases of our assets and liabilities and for certain tax credit carryforwards. The objectives of accounting for
income taxes are to recognize the amount of taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax
liabilities and assets for the future tax consequences of events that have been recognized in our financial
statements or tax returns. Judgment is required in addressing the future tax consequences of events that have been
recognized in our consolidated financial statements or tax returns. Deferred tax assets are recorded net of a
valuation allowance when, based on the weight of available evidence, we believe it is more likely than not that
some portion or all of the recorded deferred tax assets will not be realized in future periods. We consider many
factors when assessing the likelihood of future realization of our deferred tax assets, including recent cumulative
earnings experience, expectations of future taxable income, the ability to carryback losses and other relevant
factors.

In addition, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the Internal
Revenue Service and other tax authorities. A change in the assessment of the outcomes of such matters could
materially impact our consolidated financial statements.

The calculation of tax liabilities involves dealing with uncertainties in the application of complex tax
regulations. We recognize liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on our estimate of whether, and the
extent to which, additional taxes may be required. We also recognize tax benefits to the extent that it is more
likely than not that our positions will be sustained if challenged by the taxing authorities. To the extent we
prevail in matters for which liabilities have been established, or are required to pay amounts in excess of our
liabilities, our effective tax rate in a given period may be materially affected. An unfavorable tax settlement
would require cash payments and may result in an increase in our effective tax rate in the year of resolution. A
favorable tax settlement would be recognized as a reduction in our effective tax rate in the year of resolution.
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Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Under the JOBS Act, we meet the definition of an “emerging growth company.” We have irrevocably
elected to opt out of the extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting standards
pursuant to Section 107(b) of the JOBS Act. See “Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company.”

In April 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards
Update (“ASU”) No. 2015-3 which amends ASC Topic 835, Interest, to require presentation of debt issuance
costs as a direct deduction from the carrying amount of a debt liability, consistent with debt discounts. This
guidance will be effective for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. We do not expect adoption of this ASU
to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, FASB issued ASU 2014-15 which amends ASC Topic 205, Presentation of Financial
Statements, to describe management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an
organization’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This guidance
will be effective for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. We do not expect adoption of this ASU to have a
material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The
guidance in this Update supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and
creates a single, principle-based revenue recognition framework that is codified in a new FASB ASC Topic 606.
The core principle of this guidance is for the recognition of revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and
changes in judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new revenue
standard is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within
those years. Early adoption is not permitted. The new standard allows for either full retrospective or modified
retrospective adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the transition method that will be elected and the
potential effects of the adoption of the new standard on our consolidated financial statements.

In April 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-08, which amends FASB ASC Topic 205, Presentation
of Financial Statements and FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. This standard amends the
definition of a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations and certain
other disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective on a
prospective basis for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within those
years. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals that have not been reported in financial statements
previously issued or available for issuance. The Company has adopted this standard effective January 1, 2015.
Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Controls and Procedures

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision
of, that company’s principal executive and principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions,
and effected by that company’s board of directors, management and other personnel to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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In connection with our preparation for this offering, we concluded that there were material weaknesses
in our internal control over financial reporting. We did not maintain a sufficient complement of resources with an
appropriate level of accounting knowledge, experience and training commensurate with our financial reporting
requirements. This caused untimely closing of our books and difficulty in, among other things, reconciling
material accounts, recording tax adjustments and relevant tax positions, evaluating necessary valuation
information, and assessing related party and other transactions for appropriate accounting treatment. As of
December 31, 2014, our financial operations staff consisted only of paid consultants and we had no employees
performing accounting functions at this date. The Founding Companies also did not maintain a sufficient
complement of resources with an appropriate level of accounting knowledge, experience and training
commensurate with the relevant financial reporting requirements.

In preparation for this offering, we initiated various remediation efforts, including initiation of hiring
processes for additional personnel with the appropriate public company and technical accounting expertise and
other actions that are more fully described below. As such remediation efforts are still ongoing, we have
concluded that the material weaknesses have not been remediated. Our remediation efforts to date have included
the following:

e  We are in the process of adding appropriate full-time resources to our finance team and have hired additional
external consultants with public company and technical accounting experience to facilitate accurate and
timely accounting closes and to accurately prepare and review financial statements and related footnote
disclosures.

e  We are developing accounting policies and procedures to enhance the financial statement closing process to
improve the completeness, timeliness and accuracy of our financial reporting and disclosures including, but
not limited to, those procedures to ensure proper financial statement treatment in more judgmental areas of
accounting.

The actions that have been taken are subject to continued review, supported by confirmation and testing
by management as well as audit committee oversight. While we have implemented a plan to remediate these
weaknesses, we cannot assure you that we will be able to remediate them, which could impair our ability to
accurately and timely report our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Pro forma Results of Operations for Fenix for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the
Aggregated Results of Operations of the Founding Companies for the Year Ended December 31, 2013
Please refer to the Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements included in this Registration Statement

beginning on Page F-4, and to Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations for the Beagell Group, Standard and the other Founding Companies.
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Revenue

Our pro forma revenue was $108.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the aggregated
revenues of the Founding Companies were $106.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Pro forma
revenue represents the sum of the revenues of our predecessor companies, the Beagell Group and Standard, plus
the revenue of each of our other Founding Companies, less the intercompany elimination of recycled OEM and
related products sold from one Founding Company to another. The elimination was $4.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2014 and $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Pro forma revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2014 also includes the elimination of $791,000 of historical revenue related to certain
extended warranty contracts. The following table summarizes the revenue for each of the Founding Companies
for each of the periods presented.

Eliminations
Fenix Beagell Eiss Jerry and
Parts Group Standard Brothers GO Auto Brown Leesville Adjustments Total

Twelve months ended

December 31,

2014 ... .. $— $30,598 $31,126 $11,975 $9,984 $13,039 $16,865 $(5,371) $108.,216
Twelve months ended

December 31,

2013 ... — 30,661 31,738 10,022 8,022 12,084 18,202 (3,836) 106,893

Revenues increased due to higher recycled parts sales that more than offset the revenue lost due to a fire
at Standard in March 2014, lower parts sales at Leesville, and overall lower scrap sales.

Cost of Goods Sold

Our pro forma cost of goods sold was 65.8% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014, and the
aggregated cost of goods sold of the Founding Companies was 64.8% of revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Such cost of goods sold represents the sum of the Founding Companies’ cost of goods sold,
less the elimination for intercompany sales consistent with the elimination of intercompany revenue.

Costs of goods sold as a percentage of revenues increased primarily due to effects of a fire at Standard
offset by cost improvements at Standard and Leesville.

Operating Expenses

Our pro forma operating expense was 40.9% of revenue for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the
aggregated operating expenses of the Founding Companies were 31.9% of revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2013. Such operating expense represents the sum of the Founding Companies’ operating expenses,
plus the impact of certain pro forma adjustments in 2014. These adjustments include (i) compensation expense
adjustments; (ii) adjustments of depreciation and amortization of property and equipment and intangible assets as
a result of the Combinations; (iii) adjustments related to leased properties; and (iv) adjustments related to
contingent consideration.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from our operations. In addition, we will enter
into a $35,000,000 senior secured credit facility with BMO Harris Bank N.A. that will become effective
concurrent with the closing of this offering, under which we expect to borrow $10.0 million and to utilize $5.9
million of letters of credit on the closing date of the Combinations. See “Credit Facility.” We do not expect to
utilize the credit facility as a primary source of funding for working capital needs as we expect our cash flows
from operations to be sufficient for that purpose, but we do intend to maintain availability as we continue to

47



expand our facilities and network. Aggregated cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash of the Founding
Companies at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013 totaled $7.3 million on a pro forma basis and $4.8
million, respectively. Similarly, net working capital, defined as current assets less accounts payables and accrued
expenses, was $49.8 million on a pro forma basis as of December 31, 2014 and $36.5 million as of December 31,
2013.

The procurement of inventory is the largest operating use of our funds. We normally pay for salvage
vehicles acquired at salvage auctions and under some direct procurement arrangements at the time that we take
possession of the vehicles. We acquired approximately 35,000 and 31,000 vehicles in the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Inventories at December 31, 2014 and 2013 totaled $42.2 million on
a pro forma basis and $31.5 million, respectively.

As part of the consideration for certain of the Combinations, we entered into contingent consideration
agreements with the selling shareholders. Under the terms of the contingent consideration agreements, additional
payments will be made to the former owners if specified future events occur or conditions are met, such as
meeting profitability or earnings targets. For our Combination with Jerry Brown, we are required to pay (a) up to
an additional $1.75 million if the business achieves certain revenue targets during the twelve-month period
beginning with the month following the month of closing of this offering and (b) an additional, uncapped amount
if the business achieves certain EBITDA targets during 2016. Based on our evaluation of the likelihood of
meeting these performance targets, we recorded a liability for the Combination date fair value of the contingent
consideration of $3.1 million. We expect to fund these payments through either cash generated from operations
or through draws on our revolving credit facility. See “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions—
The Combinations with the Founding Companies—Consideration to be Paid in the Combinations—Earnouts.”

The Combination Agreements for Eiss Brothers and the Canadian Founding Companies provide for a
holdback of Combination Consideration which will be payable only if certain performance hurdles are achieved.
The maximum amount of consideration that is subject to holdback for Eiss Brothers is $245,000 in cash plus
11,667 shares of our common stock, of which none, some or all will be released to Eiss Brothers depending upon
its EBITDA during the twelve-month period beginning with the month following the month of the closing of this
offering. The maximum amount of consideration that is subject to holdback for the Canadian Founding
Companies is $5.9 million in cash (or, at our option, in the form of a letter of credit under our credit facility) plus
280,000 Exchangeable Preferred Shares, of which, none, some or all will be released to the Canadian Founding
Companies depending on their combined revenues from specific types of sales for the twelve-month period
beginning with the month following the month of the closing of this offering. Based on our evaluation of the
likelihood of meeting these performance targets, we recorded a liability for the Combination date fair value of the
contingent consideration of $8.1 million. We expect to fund the related cash payments through either cash
generated from operations or through draws on our credit facility. See “Certain Relationships and Related Person
Transactions—The Combinations with the Founding Companies—Consideration to be Paid in the
Combinations—Holdbacks” and “Credit Facility.”

We intend to continue to evaluate markets for potential growth through selected business acquisitions
and the internal development of distribution and dismantling facilities. Our future liquidity and capital
requirements will depend upon numerous factors, including the costs and timing of our future business
acquisitions and our internal development efforts. We expect our credit facility to provide additional sources of
liquidity to fund acquisitions.

We believe that our current cash and equivalents, cash provided by operating activities and funds
available from bank borrowings will be sufficient to meet our current operating and capital requirements,
although such sources may not be sufficient for future acquisitions depending on their size. From time to time,
we may need to raise additional funds through public or private financing, or other arrangements. There can be
no assurance that additional funding, or refinancing of our credit facility, if needed, will be available on terms
attractive to us, or at all. Furthermore, any additional equity financing may be dilutive to stockholders, and debt
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financing, if available, may involve restrictive covenants. Our failure to raise capital if and when needed could
have a material adverse impact on our business, operating results, and financial condition.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Future Commitments

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements or undisclosed borrowings or debt that would be
required to be disclosed pursuant to Item 303 of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act. Additionally, we do
not have any synthetic leases.

After the Combinations, we expect to have contractual commitments under operating leases of
approximately $2.6 million per year for 15 years. Further, we expect to pay cash with a present value of
approximately $8.9 million for contingent consideration one or two years after the closing of the Combinations
and cash with a present value of $1.8 million for nonsubstantive consulting fee payments over periods of one to
fifteen years from the closing of the Combinations. Although we may use proceeds from the offering to pay off
promissory notes related to the Combinations, we may have an obligation to pay $200,000 under such
promissory notes two years from the closing of the Combinations.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Our results of operations are exposed to market risk related to price fluctuations in scrap metal and other
metals. Market prices of these metals affect the amount that we pay for our inventory as well as the revenue that
we generate from sales of these metals. As both our revenue and costs are affected by the price fluctuations, we
have a natural hedge against the changes. However, there is typically a lag between the effect on our revenue
from metal price fluctuations and inventory cost changes. Therefore, we can experience positive or negative
gross margin effects in periods of rising or falling metal prices, particularly when such prices move rapidly. If
market prices were to fall at a greater rate than our vehicle acquisition costs, we could experience a decline in
gross margin.

Additionally, our results of operations are exposed to changes in interest rates primarily with respect to
borrowings under our credit facility, where interest rates are tied to the prime rate.

Our operations in Canada are also exposed to changes in the relationship between the U.S. dollar and the
Canadian dollar. As both our revenue and costs are affected by the price fluctuations, we have a natural hedge
against the changes. Our operations in Canada represented 26% and 25% of our revenue in 2014 and 2013,
respectively. An increase or decrease in the strength of the U.S. dollar against this currency by 10% would result
in approximately a 2.6% change in our consolidated revenue and operating income for the year ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Description of Fenix and the Founding Companies

For accounting and reporting purposes, Fenix has been identified as the accounting acquirer of each of
the Founding Companies. Don’s, Gary’s and Horseheads (collectively, the “Beagell Group”) have historically
been under common control and on a combined basis have been identified as an accounting co-predecessor to the
Company. Standard’s members (Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., End of Life Vehicles Inc., Goldy Metals
Incorporated and Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated) are entities that have historically been under common
control and on a combined basis have also been identified as an accounting co-predecessor to the Company. The
remaining Founding Companies are Eiss Brothers, GO Auto, Jerry Brown and Leesville. The historical operating
results, liquidity and capital resource considerations of Fenix, the Beagell Group, Standard and each of the other
Founding Companies are described below.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.

Overview

Fenix was founded in January 2014 for the purpose of effecting the Combinations. Fenix has no
operations at this time and has two employees. During 2014, Fenix incurred various legal, accounting and
administrative costs in preparation of this offering, the Combinations and assuring Fenix’s continued viability
upon consummation of this offering.
Results of Operations for the Period from January 2, 2014 (Inception) through December 31, 2014

Revenue and Cost of Goods Sold

Fenix did not generate any revenue or incur any cost of goods sold for the period from January 2, 2014
through December 31, 2014.

Operating Expenses

Fenix did not incur any facility or selling expenses for the period from January 2, 2014 through
December 31, 2014. Fenix’s general and administrative expenses for the period from January 2, 2014 through
December 31, 2014 totaled $4.7 million. The expenses were incurred for various legal and accounting services in
preparation of this offering and the Combinations.

Net Loss

Fenix’s net loss was $4.7 million for the period from January 2, 2014 through December 31, 2014.
Liquidity and Capital Resources

Fenix’s source of funding was capital raises of $3.7 million of cash through December 31, 2014 from a
small group of investors. Fenix may obtain additional financing as needed.

Net cash used in operating activities totaled $3.2 million for the period from January 2, 2014 through

December 31, 2014, which resulted in $453,000 of the cash capital raise left on hand as of December 31, 2014.
As of March 20, 2015, Fenix had $701,000 of cash on hand.
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Beagell Group
Overview

The Beagell Group includes three commonly-controlled companies: Don’s, Gary’s and Horseheads.
Don’s and Gary’s were founded in 1979 in Binghamton, New York, and Horseheads was founded in 1990 in
Elmira, New York. Don’s sells recycled OEM products through its two full-service dismantling and distribution
facilities located in Binghamton, New York and Pennsburg, Pennsylvania. As of December 31, 2014, Don’s
operated a total of six dismantling bays and had 81 full-time employees. Gary’s and Horseheads sell recycled
OEM products through their self-service facilities in Binghamton and Elmira, New York. As of December 31,
2014, Gary’s and Horseheads together had an additional 39 employees.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2013

Revenue

Revenue decreased by $63,000, or 0.2%, to $30.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
$30.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in revenue was due to an increase of recycled
parts sales at the full-service location that was more than offset by lower revenue at the self-service operations
primarily due to lower scrap sales. Total 2014 revenue was composed of 70% recycled OEM and related
products. Other revenue, including scrap sales, represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased by $245,000, or 1.2%, to $19.9 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $19.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The higher cost of goods sold resulted primarily
from higher costs as a percentage of revenue resulting from the impact of lower scrap sales. As a percentage of
revenue, cost of goods sold increased to 65.0% of revenue in 2014 from 64.1% of revenue in 2013.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased by $950,000, or 10.3%, to $8.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2014, as compared to $9.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in operating expenses
was driven primarily by lower sales and marketing costs that more than offset higher distribution expenses. As a
percentage of revenue, operating expenses decreased to 27.2% of revenue in 2014 compared to 30.7% of revenue
in 2013.

Net Income

Net income increased by $826,000, or 58.2%, to $2.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
from $1.4 million for 2013. This increase was primarily due to the reduction in operating expenses. As a
percentage of revenue, net income increased to 7.3% of revenue in 2014 compared to 4.7% of revenue in 2013.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31,2013 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2012

Revenue

Revenue decreased by $976,000, or 3.1%, to $30.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from
$31.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in revenue was due to a $2.0 million
reduction of other revenues at the self-service operations primarily due to lower scrap sales that more than offset
an increase in recycled parts sales at the full-service operations. Total 2013 revenue was composed of 66%
recycled OEM and related products. Other revenue, including scrap sales, represented the remaining revenue.
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Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold decreased by $275,000, or 1.4%, to $19.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from $19.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The lower cost of goods sold resulted primarily
from lower revenue, partially offset by higher costs as a percentage of revenue resulting from the impact of lower
scrap sales. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold increased to 64.1% of revenue in 2013 from 63.0% of
revenue in 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased by $391,000, or 4.1%, to $9.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2013, as compared to $9.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in operating expenses
was driven primarily by lower sales and marketing costs that more than offset higher distribution expenses. As a
percentage of revenue, operating expenses decreased to 30.2% of revenue in 2013 compared to 30.5% of revenue
in 2012.

Net Income

Net income decreased by $276,000, or 16.3%, to $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. This decrease was primarily due to lower revenue and
gross profit related to other services (scrap) revenue which was not fully offset by the reduction in operating
expenses. As a percentage of revenue, net income decreased to 4.6% of revenue in 2013 compared to 5.4% of
revenue in 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $2.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2013. The higher cash from operating activities resulted mostly from an increase in net income,
partially offset by increased inventory levels during 2014. Inventory is the largest operating use of cash and, as of
December 31, 2014, $6.7 million of inventory was on hand, compared to $5.8 million as of December 31, 2013.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $32,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
net cash used of $267,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The change in cash used in investing activities
primarily resulted from increased proceeds from disposals of property and equipment, offset by higher capital
expenditures.

Net cash used in financing activities was $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
net cash used in financing activities of $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The reduction in cash
used in financing activities resulted primarily from lower distributions to shareholders of $1.9 million in 2014,
compared to $2.5 million for the prior year.

Working capital was $9.2 million as of December 31, 2014.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $2.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. The higher cash provided by operating activities resulted mostly from a reduction in
inventory levels during 2013, compared to an increase in inventory during 2012. Inventory is the largest
operating use of cash and, as of December 31, 2013, $5.8 million of inventory was on hand, compared to $6.1
million as of December 31, 2012.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $267,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
$1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The reduction in cash used in investing activities primarily
resulted from lower capital expenditures of $181,000 in 2013, compared with $1.4 million in the prior year.

Net cash used in financing activities was $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared
to $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The reduction in cash used in financing activities resulted
primarily from lower distributions to shareholders of $2.5 million in 2013, compared to $2.8 million for the prior
year.

Working capital was $7.7 million as of December 31, 2013.
Debt

As of December 31, 2014, the Beagell Group had approximately $130,000 of debt, about half of which
is due in 2015. The Beagell Group has a line of credit of $500,000, under which no amount was outstanding as of
December 31, 2014.

Variable Interest Entities

The combined financial statements of the Beagell Group include the accounts of four limited liability
companies, which are the lessors of the premises from which the Beagell Group operates. The Beagell Group’s
net income includes the limited liability companies’ net income of $625,000 for the year ended December 31,
2014, $558,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 and $364,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
These lessors accounted for $1.4 million of net property and equipment and no debt as of December 31, 2014.
The membership interests in these limited liability companies will not be transferred to Fenix Parts, Inc. in the
Combinations.
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Standard
Overview

Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc. was founded in 2005, in Niagara Falls, New York; End of Life Vehicles
Inc. was founded in 2007 in Toronto, Ontario; Goldy Metals Incorporated was founded in 1979 in Toronto,
Ontario; and Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated was founded in 2013 in Ottawa, Ontario. We collectively refer
to Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc. and its three Canadian affiliates as “Standard.”

Standard sells recycled OEM products through three full-service dismantling and distribution facilities
located in Niagara Falls, New York; Scarborough, Ontario; and Ottawa, Ontario. As of December 31, 2014,
Standard operated a total of 22 dismantling bays and had 202 full-time employees. Both the Scarborough and
Ottawa facilities run self-service operations adjacent to the full-service operation. An additional full-service
dismantling and distribution facility with 12 dismantling bays was added in Port Hope, Ontario in 2014 to replace
the Scarborough full-service operation and allow for the expansion of the self-service operation.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2013

Revenue

Revenue decreased by $0.6 million, or 1.9%, to $31.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
from $31.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to a
reduction in revenue of approximately $2.9 million from parts sales at the Toronto facility following the fire
there in March 2014 that largely destroyed its full-service dismantling and distribution operations. The reduction
in revenue in Toronto was partially offset by higher parts sales at the Ottawa and Niagara Falls facilities as they
began servicing some of Toronto’s previous parts customers. Total 2014 revenue was composed of
approximately 60% recycled OEM and related products. Other services revenue, including scrap sales,
represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods was $19.7 million for both of the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. Total cost of
goods sold for 2014 includes an increase of approximately $1.3 million in environmental, freight, labor, travel,
repairs and maintenance expenses, primarily to support dismantling operations at the Ottawa and Port Hope
facilities following the March 2014 fire in Toronto, offset by lower cost of goods sold at the Niagara Falls
facility. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold increased to 63.3% of revenue in 2014 from 62.1% of
revenue in 2013.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased $2.1 million, or 18%, to $9.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $11.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in operating expenses was driven
primarily by lower management fees and salaries. Fenix will not pay any management fees after the
Combinations. As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses decreased to 30.6% of revenue in 2014 compared
t0 36.6% in 2013.

Net Income
Net income increased by $1.7 million, to $2.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from a net
income of $281,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. 2014 net income includes a $758,000 gain related to

insurance proceeds received as a result of a fire in Toronto. As a percentage of revenue, net income was 6.4% for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and 0.9% for the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2012

Revenue

Revenue increased by $0.7 million, or 2.3%, to $31.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from $31.0 million in for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in revenue was due to acquisition and
expansion of the Ottawa operation in March 2013, which added an incremental $2.1 million of revenue in 2013.
Driven by the new Ottawa operation, higher volumes of recycled OEM parts sales were largely offset by lower
revenue from the sale of scrap in the self-service business. There were no acquisitions in 2012. Total 2013
revenue was composed of approximately 64% recycled OEM and related products. Other services revenue,
including scrap sales, represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold decreased $529,000, or 2.6%, to $19.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from $20.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The lower cost of goods sold was driven primarily by
improvement in the Niagara Falls facility cost of goods sold and the impact of Ottawa which has a lower cost
structure than either Toronto or Niagara Falls. These factors more than offset higher costs at Standard’s Toronto
facility. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold decreased to 62.1% of revenue in 2013 from 65.2% of
revenue in 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $1.2 million, or 11.5%, to $11.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from $10.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in operating expenses was driven
primarily by the labor, supplies, advertising, repairs and maintenance costs associated with converting the Ottawa
operation into a dismantling facility. As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses increased to 36.6% of
revenue in 2013 compared to 33.5% in 2012.

Operating expenses include management fees of $1,020,000 and $1,050,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. There is no formal agreement and the amount paid each year was
largely discretionary. Fenix will not pay these management fees after the Combinations.

Net Income

Net income decreased by $24,000, to $281,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 from a net
income of $305,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. As a percentage of revenue, net income was 0.1% for
each of 2013 and 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $850,000 of net cash used in operating
activities for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in cash provided by operating activities resulted
primarily from the increase in net income and insurance recoveries for damaged inventory. Inventory is the
largest operating use of cash and, as of December 31, 2014, $11.1 million of inventory was on hand as compared
to $10.5 million as of December 31, 2013.

Net cash used in investing activities was $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared
to $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in cash used in investing activities for the
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year ended December 31, 2014 primarily relates to insurance proceeds from property damaged by fire in Toronto
offset by the start-up of the new Port Hope facility compared to the prior year that included the acquisition and
development of Standard’s Ottawa facility.

Cash used in financing activities was $246,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to cash
provided by financing activities of $249,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Working capital was $8.7 million as of December 31, 2014.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Inventory is the largest operating use of
funds and, as of December 31, 2013, $10.5 million of inventory was on hand compared to $10.1 million as of
December 31, 2012. Working capital was $9.6 million as of December 31, 2013.

Net cash used in operating activities totaled $850,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared
to $1.8 million provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in cash
provided by operating activities resulted mostly from changes in the level of inventory at year end.

Net cash used in investing activities was $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared
to $132,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in cash used in investing activities for the year
ended December 31, 2013 primarily relates to the acquisition and development of Standard’s Ottawa facility.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $249,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to $0 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Debt

Standard had $2.4 million due to related parties as of December 31, 2014, representing advances for
working capital needs.

Variable Interest Entities

Standard’s combined financial statements include the accounts of Dalana Realty, Inc. (“Dalana”) and
Standard Auto Wreckers (Port Hope), Inc. (“Port Hope™), the lessors of two of the premises from which Standard
operates. Standard’s net income includes Dalana and Port Hope income of $107,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2014, $68,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 and $61,000 for the year ended December
31, 2012. Dalana and Port Hope accounted for $2.4 million of net property and equipment and no debt as of
December 31, 2014. The shareholder interests in Dalana and Port Hope will not be transferred to Fenix Parts, Inc.
in the Combinations.
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Eiss Brothers, Inc.
Overview

Eiss Brothers was founded in 1980 in Watertown, New York. Eiss Brothers sells recycled OEM
products through its full-service dismantling and distribution facility located in Watertown, New York. As of
December 31, 2014, Eiss Brothers operated five dismantling bays and had 46 full-time employees.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31,2014 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2013
Revenue

Revenue increased by $2.0 million, or 19.5%, to $12.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
from $10.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in revenue was due to organic growth,
which was driven by the increase in volume of recycled OEM products sold. Total 2014 revenue was composed
of 87% recycled OEM and related products. Other revenues, including scrap sales, represented the remaining
revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased by $1.6 million, or 21.8%, to $8.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $7.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The higher cost of goods sold was a result of the
higher revenue. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold increased to 73.8% of revenue in 2014 from
72.4% of revenue in 2013. The higher cost of goods sold as a percentage of revenue was driven by an increase in
parts sold from vehicles dismantled in-house.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased by $126,000, or 5.2%, to $2.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in operating expenses was driven
primarily by lower promotion, repair, systems support and telephone expenses. As a percentage of revenue,
operating expenses decreased to 19.2% of revenue in 2014, compared to 24.1% of revenue in 2013.

Net Income

Net income increased by $450,000, or 129%, to $798,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
$348,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. This increase was primarily driven by the additional gross
profit generated from the higher revenue and lower operating expenses. As a percentage of revenue, net income
increased to 6.7% of revenue in 2014 compared to 3.5% in 2013.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Revenue

Revenue increased by $969,000, or 10.7%, to $10.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from
$9.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in revenue was due to organic growth, which
was driven by the increase in volume of recycled OEM products sold. Total 2013 revenue was composed of 93%
recycled OEM and related products. Other revenues, including scrap sales, represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased by $1.1 million, or 17.0%, to $7.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from $6.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The higher cost of goods sold was driven
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primarily by costs associated with revenue increases, higher costs and lower margin on products purchased from
third parties for resale and higher payroll costs associated with dismantling and inventory management. As a
percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold increased to 72.4% of revenue in 2013 from 68.5% of revenue in 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased by $162,000, or 6.3%, to $2.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from $2.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in operating expenses was driven
primarily by decreases in commission, advertising and shipping costs and overall reductions in the cost of
supplies. As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses decreased to 24.1% of revenue in 2013, compared to
28.5% of revenue in 2012.

Net Income

Net income increased by $103,000, or 42%, to $348,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 from
$245,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. This increase was primarily driven by the additional gross
profit generated from the higher revenue and lower operating expenses that were largely offset by lower margins.
As a percentage of revenue, net income increased to 3.5% of revenue in 2013 compared to 2.7% in 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $815,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $395,000 for the year ended December 31,
2013. The higher cash flow from operating activities resulted from the increase in net income in 2014, as
compared to the prior year, partially offset by higher receivables. Inventory continues to be the largest operating
use of cash and, as of each of December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, $5.4 million of inventory was on
hand. Inventory increased by $6,000 in 2014, compared to a decrease in inventory of $45,000 in 2013. Accounts
receivable increased by $177,000 to $753,000 as of December 31, 2014.

Net cash used in investing activities was $152,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
generating $2,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Capital expenditures totaled $179,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2014, compared to $5,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Cash used in financing activities was $382,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
$197,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Shareholder distributions and the borrowing and/or repayment
of debt are the primary components of cash used in financing activities.

Working capital was $6.2 million as of December 31, 2014.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $395,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $155,000 for the year ended December 31,
2012. The higher cash flow from operating activities resulted mostly from a reduction in inventory during 2013,
compared to an increase in inventory during 2012. Inventory is the largest operating use of cash and, as of
December 31, 2013, $5.37 million of inventory was on hand, compared with $5.41 million as of December 31,
2012. Inventory decreased by $45,000 in 2013, compared to an increase in inventory of $302,000 in 2012.

Net cash provided by investing activities was $2,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared
to a use of cash of $179,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The use of cash in 2012 was driven by a loan
to a shareholder of $155,000. Capital expenditures totaled $5,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to $32,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012.
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Cash used in financing activities was $197,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
$111,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Repayment of debt and shareholder distributions are the
primary components of cash used in financing activities.

Working capital was $5.8 million as of December 31, 2013.
Debt

Eiss Brothers had $612,000 in notes payable at December 31, 2014, including a mortgage loan of
$375,000, a term loan of $126,000 and various equipment loans of $111,000, $71,000 of which is due in 2015.

Variable Interest Entities

Eiss Brothers’ financial statements include the accounts of Eiss Brothers Partnership (“EBP”), which is
the lessor of the premises from which Eiss Brothers operates. Eiss Brothers’ net income included EBP income of
$15,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, $17,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 and $11,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2012. EBP accounted for $853,000 of net property and equipment and $375,000 of
debt as of December 31, 2014. The partnership interests in EBP and the related mortgage loan will not be
transferred to Fenix Parts, Inc. in the Combinations.
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Green Oak Investments LLC dba GO Auto Recycling
Overview

GO Auto was founded in 2008 in Jacksonville, Florida. GO Auto sells recycled OEM products through
its full-service dismantling and distribution facility located in Jacksonville, Florida. As of December 31, 2014,
GO Auto operated five dismantling bays and had 42 full-time employees.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2013

Revenue

Revenue increased $2.0 million, or 24.5%, to $10.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
$8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in revenue was due to organic growth, which
was primarily driven by a proportionate increase in both the volume of recycled OEM products sold through the
GO Auto distribution network and those sold to dismantlers in other markets for resale. Total revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2014 was composed of 86% recycled OEM and related products. Other revenues,
including scrap sales, represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased $1.0 million, or 18.2%, to $6.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The higher cost of goods sold was a result of the
higher revenue. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold decreased to 66.1% of revenue in 2014 from
69.6% of revenue in 2013. The lower cost of goods sold as a percentage of revenue was driven by an increase in
parts sold from vehicles dismantled in-house and less reliance on parts acquired from dismantlers in other
markets.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $740,000, or 32.1%, to $3.0 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in operating expenses was driven
primarily by incremental labor and other expenses for distribution, selling and marketing to support the 24.5%
increase in revenue. Professional fees were also higher in 2014 than in the prior year. As a percentage of revenue,
operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2014 increased to 30.5% of revenue compared to 28.7% of
revenue in 2013.

Net Income

Net income increased by $205,000 to $289,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $84,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2013. This increase was primarily driven by the impact of the incremental profit
from the revenue increase that was partially offset by higher labor and other operating expenses. As a percentage
of revenue, net income increased to 2.9% of revenue in 2014 compared to 1.0% of revenue in 2013.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31,2013 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2012
Revenue

Revenue increased $2.5 million, or 46.0%, to $8.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from
$5.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in revenue was due to organic growth, which
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was primarily driven by an increase in the volume of recycled OEM products sold from vehicles that GO Auto
purchased at auction and dismantled in-house as well as product acquired from other dismantling operations for
sale and distribution through the GO Auto distribution network. Total revenue for the year ended December 31,
2013 was composed of 90% recycled OEM and related products. Other revenues, including scrap sales,
represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased $1.8 million, or 48.0%, to $5.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The higher cost of goods sold was driven
primarily by an increase in the proportion of recycled OEM products that were acquired from other dismantling
operations for sale and distribution through the GO Auto network and by costs associated with the incremental
sales volume. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold increased to 69.6% of revenue in 2013 from 68.6%
of revenue in 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $675,000, or 41.0%, to $2.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from $1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in operating expenses was driven
primarily by incremental labor and other expenses for distribution, selling and marketing to support the 46%
increase in revenue. As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2013
decreased to 28.7% of revenue compared to 29.6% of revenue in 2012.

Net Income

Net income increased by $44,000, or 110.0%, to $84,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 from
$40,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. This increase was primarily driven by the impact of the
incremental profit from the revenue increase that was largely offset by the higher operating expenses. As a
percentage of revenue, net income increased to 1.0% of revenue in 2013 compared to 0.7% of revenue in 2012.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $264,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $295,000 for the year ended December 31,
2013. The decrease in cash flows from operations was primarily driven by changes in working capital mostly
related to an increase in inventory offset by an increase in accrued expenses and deferred warranty. Inventory is
the largest operating use of cash and, as of December 31, 2014, $1.4 million of inventory was on hand, compared
with $1.0 million as of December 31, 2013. Inventory increased by $413,000 in 2014, compared to a decrease in
inventory of $115,000 in 2013.

Net cash used in investing activities was $119,000 for capital expenditures for the year ended December
31, 2014, compared to $34,000 for capital expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Net cash used in financing activities was $332,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to
$81,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The largest portion of the use of cash in 2014 was for member
distributions. Additional cash was used in 2014 and 2013 to repay debt.

Working capital was $1.1 million as of December 31, 2014.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $295,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $57,000 for the year ended December 31,
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2012. The increase in cash flows from operations was primarily driven by changes in working capital mostly
related to increases in accounts payable to support sales growth and a decrease in inventories.

Net cash used in investing activities was $34,000 for capital expenditures for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to $69,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Net cash used in financing activities was $81,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to
net cash provided by financing activities of $40,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The use of cash in
2013 was to repay debt, compared to 2012 when GO Auto was a net borrower.

Working capital was $0.9 million as of December 31, 2013.

Debt

As of December 31, 2014, GO Auto had $1.0 million of debt, of which $164,000 is due in 2015. Debt is
primarily comprised of a related party mortgage and line of credit of $894,000 and $120,000, respectively.
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Jerry Brown, Ltd.
Overview

Jerry Brown was founded in 1980 in Queensbury, New York. Jerry Brown sells recycled OEM products
and a selection of aftermarket parts through its full-service dismantling and distribution facility located in
Queensbury, New York. As of December 31, 2014, Jerry Brown operated four dismantling bays and had 68 full-
time employees.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2013

Revenue

Revenue increased by $1.0 million, or 7.9%, to $13.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
from $12.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in revenue was due to organic growth,
which was driven by the increase in volume of recycled OEM products sold. Total 2014 revenue was composed
0f 91% recycled OEM and related products. Other revenues, including scrap sales, represented the remaining
revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased by $400,000, or 5.2%, to $8.1 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $7.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The higher cost of goods sold was driven
primarily by costs associated with the incremental revenue. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold
decreased to 62.3% of revenue in 2014 from 63.9% of revenue in 2013.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $685,000, or 18.8% to $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
from $3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The increase in operating expenses was driven
primarily by higher compensation incurred with the new warehouse brought on-line in 2014. As a percentage of
revenue, operating expenses increased to 33.2% of revenue in 2014 compared to 30.1% of revenue in 2013.

Net Income

Net income decreased by $221,000 to $418,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to
$639,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. This decrease was primarily driven by the higher operating
expenses that more than offset the gross profit generated on the incremental revenue. As a percentage of revenue,
net income decreased to 3.2% of revenue in 2014 compared to 5.3% of revenue in 2013.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,
2012

Revenue

Revenue increased by $1.4 million, or 13.4%, to $12.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from $10.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in revenue was due to organic growth,
which was driven by the increase in volume of recycled OEM products sold. Total 2013 revenue was composed
0of 92% recycled OEM and related products. Other revenues, including scrap sales, represented the remaining
revenue.
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Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased by $1.1 million, or 16.7%, to $7.7 million for the year ended December 31,
2013 from $6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The higher cost of goods sold was driven
primarily by costs associated with the incremental revenue. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold
increased to 63.9% of revenue in 2013 from 62.1% of revenue in 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased $101,000, or 2.7%, to $3.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from $3.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The decrease in operating expenses was driven
primarily by lower officer compensation. As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses decreased to 30.1% of
revenue compared to 35.1% of revenue in 2012.

Net Income

Net income increased by $506,000 to $639,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to
$133,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. This increase was primarily driven by the margin from the
incremental revenue.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $533,000 for the year ended December
31, 2013. The increase in cash flows from operations was primarily driven by changes in working capital mostly
related to a decrease in inventory and an increase in accrued expenses. Inventory is the largest operating use of
cash and, as of December 31, 2014, $4.6 million of inventory was on hand, compared to $4.9 million as of
December 31, 2013.

Net cash used in investing activities was $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared
to $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. Capital expenditures were $1.4 million in both 2014 and
2013. The capital expenditures for both years primarily related to the expansion of the storage yard and
construction of a new warehouse.

Net cash provided in financing activities was $216,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014,
compared to $864,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. Total borrowings of $0.7 million, net of
repayments of $238,000, were used largely to fund capital expenditures in 2014. Shareholder distributions were
$222,000 during 2014.

Working capital was $4.4 million as of December 31, 2014.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $533,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $463,000 for the year ended December 31,
2012. Net income was $506,000 higher in 2013, but was offset by a $533,000 larger increase in inventories in
2013. Inventory is the largest operating use of cash and, as of December 31, 2013, $4.9 million of inventory was
on hand, compared to $4.4 million as of December 31, 2012.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared
to $266,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Capital expenditures were $1.4 million in 2013, primarily
related to the expansion of the storage yard and construction of a new warehouse compared to $312,000 in 2012.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $864,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to net cash used in financing activities of $179,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Total
borrowings of $1.7 million, net of repayments of $0.9 million, were used largely to fund capital expenditures in
2013.

Working capital was $4.7 million as of December 31, 2013.
Debt

As of December 31, 2014, Jerry Brown had $1.7 million of debt, an increase of $438,000 from the
previous year end. Jerry Brown entered into a new term loan agreement in 2013 to facilitate the expansion of its
storage yard and the construction of a warehouse. $220,000 of debt is due in 2015.

Variable Interest Entities

Jerry Brown’s financial statements include the accounts of three limited liability companies, which are
the lessors of the premises from which Jerry Brown operates. Jerry Brown’s net income includes the limited
liability companies’ net income of $145,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, $138,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and $19,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. The lessors accounted for $353,000 of
net property and equipment and no debt as of December 31, 2014. The membership interests in these limited
liability companies will not be transferred to Fenix Parts, Inc. in the Combinations.
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Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
Overview

Leesville was founded in 1951 in Rahway, New Jersey. Leesville sells recycled OEM products through
its full-service dismantling and distribution facility located in Rahway, New Jersey. As of December 31, 2014,
Leesville operated eight dismantling bays and had 54 full-time employees.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31,2014 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2013
Revenue

Revenue decreased $1.3 million, or 7.3%, to $16.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 from
$18.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in revenue was primarily driven by lower
vehicle sales which more than offset a 6% increase in the volume of recycled OEM and related parts sold during
the period. Total 2014 revenue was composed of 69% recycled OEM and related products and 11% vehicles,
primarily motorcycles. Other services revenue, including scrap sales, represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold decreased $572,000, or 4.3%, to $12.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2014
from $13.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The lower cost of sales was related to the decrease in
vehicle sales. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold increased to 74.7% of revenue in 2014 from 72.3%
of revenue in 2013. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold was higher on both recycled parts and vehicle
sales compared to the period year.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased $1.3 million, or 27.2%, to $3.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2014 from $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease in operating expenses was driven
primarily by lower officer compensation, commissions and profit sharing expenses that more than offset higher
professional fees. As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses decreased to 20.8% of revenue in 2014,
compared to 26.5% of revenue in 2013.

Net Income

Net income increased by $296,000 to $369,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014 from $73,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2013. This improvement was primarily driven by the reduction in operating
expenses which more than offset lower revenue and the related gross profit.

Results of Operations for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Revenue

Revenue increased $1.2 million, or 7.2%, to $18.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013 from
$17.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in revenue was due to organic growth, which
was primarily driven by an increase in the volume of recycled OEM and related parts purchased from third
parties for sale. Total 2013 revenue was composed of 74% recycled OEM and related products and 24% vehicles,
primarily motorcycles. Other services revenue, including scrap sales, represented the remaining revenue.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold increased $491,000, or 3.9%, to $13.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from $12.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The higher cost of sales was driven primarily by an
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increase in the proportion of recycled OEM products that were acquired from other dismantling operations for
sale and distribution through the Leesville network. In general, margins are considerably higher on the recycled
OEM parts dismantled in-house. As a percentage of revenue, cost of goods sold decreased to 72.3% of revenue in
2013 from 74.7% of revenue in 2012.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $343,000, or 7.7%, to $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2013
from $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. The increase in operating expenses was driven
primarily by higher officer compensation and rent. As a percentage of revenue, operating expenses increased to
26.5% of revenue in 2013, compared to 26.4% of revenue in 2012.

Net Income (Loss)

Net income increased by $221,000 to $73,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013 from a net loss of
$148,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. This improvement was primarily driven by higher revenue and
improved operating margins.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2013

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $203,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, compared to $268,000 for the year ended December 31,
2013. Net income was $296,000 higher in 2014, however, this increase was partially offset by the impact of
working capital changes. Inventory is the largest operating use of cash and, as of December 31, 2014, $4.2
million of inventory was on hand, compared to $3.8 million as of December 31, 2013.

Net cash used in investing activities, entirely for capital expenditures, was $67,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2014, compared to $553,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $269,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014
compared to net cash provided by financing activities of $338,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013. The
2014 financing activities consisted of $389,000 of shareholder contributions net of $120,000 of shareholder
distributions, whereas the 2013 financing activities related primarily to a new note for $200,000 and shareholder
contributions of $164,000.

Working capital was $3.9 million as of December 31, 2014.
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2012

Sources of ongoing liquidity are cash flows from operations. Net cash provided by operating activities
totaled $268,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013, compared to $67,000 for the year ended December 31,
2012. Net income was $221,000 higher in 2013, however, this increase was partially offset by the impact of
working capital changes. Inventory is the largest operating use of cash and, as of December 31, 2013, $3.8
million of inventory was on hand, compared to $3.7 million as of December 31, 2012.

Net cash used in investing activities, entirely for capital expenditures, was $553,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to $127,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $338,000 for the year ended December 31, 2013,
compared to no net change for the year ended December 31, 2012. The 2013 change in cash flows related
primarily to a new note for $200,000 and shareholder contributions of $164,000.

Working capital was $3.1 million as of December 31, 2013.
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Debt

As of December 31, 2014, Leesville had $200,000 of debt, consisting of a note for that amount entered
into by one of the lessors of the Company’s premises in October 2013, none of which is due in 2015.

Variable Interest Entities

Leesville’s financial statements include the accounts of three limited liability companies and one
C corporation, which are the lessors of the premises from which Leesville operates. Leesville’s net income
includes the lessors’ net income of $74,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014, $161,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and $19,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012. These lessors accounted for $926,000 of
net property and equipment and $200,000 of debt as of December 31, 2014. The ownership interests in these
lessors will not be transferred to Fenix Parts, Inc. in the Combinations.
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BUSINESS
Our Company

We are a leading recycler and reseller of OEM automotive products. Fenix was founded in January 2014
to combine our eight Founding Companies and create a network that offers sales, fulfillment and distribution in
key regional markets in the United States and Canada. Our Founding Companies have been in business an
average of 25 years and operate from 13 locations. Our primary business is auto recycling, which is the recovery
and resale of OEM parts, components and systems reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. Our
customers include collision repair shops (body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual
retail customers.

We provide customers with high quality recycled OEM products, extensive inventory and product
availability, responsive customer service and fast delivery. Upon receipt of vehicles, which we primarily
purchase at auto salvage auctions, we inventory and then dismantle the vehicles and sell the recycled
components. We operate a hub and spoke distribution network allowing us to efficiently move products among
our locations and expedite delivery to our customers.

The recycled OEM products that we sell include mechanical parts used to repair or replace worn or
damaged components, such as engines and transmissions, and collision repair parts used to repair vehicles
typically involved in a collision, such as door assemblies, trunk lids, lights, fenders and other products. These
products are “insurance quality” which means of a quality that is acceptable for use in a repair paid for by an
insurance company. Many consumers and repair facilities use recycled OEM products because they are less
expensive than new OEM products and are perceived to be of higher quality and fit than aftermarket products.
Recycled OEM products often are sold as assemblies, which shorten repair times and help reduce labor costs. In
addition, insurance companies are increasingly influencing repair facilities to use recycled OEM products as a
lower cost alternative to new OEM products.

Typically, damaged, totaled or low value vehicles acquired by insurance companies are resold through
auto salvage auctions. Because some insurance companies mandate that recycled OEM products be no older than
the vehicle they are used to repair, the majority of the vehicles we acquire are not more than ten years old. We
employ software-based inventory management systems to determine what vehicles to purchase and at what price,
based upon our estimation of the demand for the products on the vehicle, the prices we can obtain for those
products and the final scrap value of the vehicle.

We have nine full-service recycling facilities, concentrated in the Northeastern United States and
Southeastern Canada. These locations include Binghamton, NY, Niagara Falls, NY, Pennsburg, PA, Rahway, NJ,
Ottawa, Ontario, Port Hope, Ontario, Queensbury, NY, Watertown, NY and Jacksonville, FL. Concentration of our
facilities provides significant advantages in distributing our products as well as in bidding for cars at auctions. Our
full-service recycling facilities have a total of 62 bays for the dismantling of vehicles. In 2014, we dismantled and
recycled a total of over 12,500 vehicles and sold more than 450,000 parts and assemblies. We also sell aftermarket
parts. Our full-service recycling facilities have approximately 500,000 square feet of indoor warehouse space and
approximately 150 acres of total storage. Typically we do not begin to process a vehicle until we have an order for a
significant part at which point we process the entire vehicle, removing all resalable parts. Our facilities employ
state-of-the art environmental systems for removing hazardous fluids prior to dismantling. We have four self-service
locations, two of which are co-located with full-service facilities. Our self-service locations are in Binghamton, NY,
Elmira, NY, Ottawa, Ontario and Scarborough, Ontario. At these locations, we allow retail customers to directly
dismantle, recover and purchase recycled OEM products. Our self-service recycling facilities have approximately
40,000 square feet of indoor storage space and are situated on approximately 50 acres. Once each of our vehicles
has been dismantled, we sell the remaining parts and materials as scrap.

Our customers include collision and mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual retail
customers. Competition for sales is based primarily on product availability and delivery times. Our ability to
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deliver insurance quality OEM products on a same or next day basis is a critical part of obtaining and retaining
customers. Customers can go online or call our fulfillment centers to find and order our products. In order to
increase the availability of our products, we maintain an extensive inventory. We apply a coordinated regional
approach to our inventory management and distribution activities, which allows us to efficiently meet demand
within the markets we serve. In 2014, this customer base exceeded 10,000 customers with no single OEM parts
customer accounting for more than 1% of our combined OEM parts revenue, and no single customer accounting
for more than 10% of our combined revenue.

Our Industry

The ACA estimates that the U.S. automotive aftermarket was approximately $245.9 billion in 2014. We
operate in the U.S. collision and mechanical repair products market, a subset of the U.S. automotive aftermarket.
According to ACA, the U.S. collision and mechanical repair products market was approximately $61.0 billion in
2014.

The following are key industry highlights:
Large and Stable Market Opportunity

Demand for collision repair products has been increasing since 2002 and is driven by the number of
annual collision repairs in the United States and Canada. Several key drivers of the number of collision repairs
include increased number and age of vehicles on the road (commonly referred to as the “car parc”), the increased
number and age of licensed drivers and the total miles driven annually. Wards Automotive estimates there were
more than 253 million passenger vehicles in the U.S. car parc in 2013 compared to 226 million in 2003; the U.S.
Department of Transportation estimates there were more than 212 million licensed drivers in 2012 versus
194 million in 2002; and the U.S. Department of Transportation estimates that total miles driven in the U.S. in
2014 was 3.0 trillion compared to 2.9 trillion in 2003.

We believe that improvements in automobile quality have extended the useful life of vehicles. We
believe this has resulted in an increasing age of the car parc over time, which has further increased demand for
recycled OEM products due to their attractive value proposition. According to R.L. Polk and Company, in 2013,
the average age of the U.S. car parc was 11.4 years, which has steadily increased from 9.7 years in 2003.

Increased Usage of Recycled OEM Products

Usage of recycled OEM products has experienced steady growth over the last decade. We believe there
are several industry dynamics that have contributed to the demand for recycled OEM products, including rising
collision repair costs and increasing age of the car parc, favorable price points relative to other replacement
products, shorter part delivery time and higher profit margins for the repair shops that utilize recycled OEM
products.

Demand for recycled OEM products is driven by the desire to reduce costs, including that of insurance
carriers since they pay for the majority of all collision repairs. In most cases, recycled OEM products are sold at a
discount relative to other replacement products.

Highly Fragmented Market with High Barriers to Entry

The automotive recycling industry is highly fragmented, with few multi-facility operators. According to
the ARA, there are an estimated 9,000 vehicle recycling facilities in the United States and Canada. We believe
that there is only one direct competitor with more than 1% market share within the automotive recycling
industry, who we believe has market share of less than 10%.

Typically, automotive recyclers are located near high-density, urban environments which provide both a
strong supply of salvage vehicles and stable consumer demand. Given the typical facility size and nature of the
industry’s full-service and self-service recycling facilities, it can be extremely difficult to receive the zoning
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necessary to conduct dismantling operations and the proper permits necessary to open a new facility. We believe
this insulates our business from new competitors entering the market. Furthermore, in order to access the 300
salvage auction sites that annually sell over 2.5 million damaged, totaled or low-value vehicles, prospective
buyers generally must meet state licensing requirements. Finally, given the cost associated with the logistics
required to meet the quick turnaround demands of repair shops, we believe it is difficult for suppliers outside of
local markets, including internet-based parts providers, to effectively compete with local automotive recycling
suppliers.

Our Competitive Strengths
Favorable Industry Dynamics

We believe that demand for recycled OEM products is highly stable and marked by consistent long-term
growth. Because our products are used principally in non-discretionary collision and mechanical repairs, we
believe the demand for our products remains stable through a variety of economic cycles. We believe that the
number of collision and mechanical repairs has increased over time due to favorable trends including the number
of vehicles in the car parc, the increasing miles driven and the number and age of drivers. Additionally, we
believe that there are several industry dynamics that have contributed to the increased utilization of recycled
OEM products over the last decade, including rising collision repair costs, favorable price points relative to other
replacement products, greater inventory availability, shorter part delivery time and higher profit margins for the
repair shops that utilize recycled OEM products.

Competitive Market Position

Upon combining the Founding Companies, we believe that we will have the second largest network of
automotive recycling companies in the northeast region of North America (U.S. and Canada) with nine full-
service and four self-service recycling locations, two of which are co-located at existing full-service facilities.
We believe the strength and scale of our regional network, our customer relationships and our extensive
inventory of insurance quality OEM products give us a competitive advantage. Furthermore, we believe that
obtaining the zoning and environmental permits required to greenfield a new location creates significant barriers
to entry. Finally, given the demand for insurance quality OEM replacement parts and the cost associated with the
logistics required to meet the quick turnaround demands of repair shops, we believe it is difficult for suppliers
outside of local markets and internet-based competitors to effectively compete with local automotive recycling
suppliers like us.

Extensive Inventory and Distribution Platform with Broad Customer Reach

Competition for sales is based primarily on product availability and delivery times. Our extensive
inventory of insurance quality recycled OEM products and our distribution infrastructure give us the ability to
help our customers reduce repair cycle time by delivering our products typically the same or next day. In order to
increase the availability of our products, we maintain an extensive inventory, which exceeds 300,000 products.
We have also developed a coordinated regional approach to our inventory management and distribution
activities, which allows us to efficiently meet demand within the markets we serve. According to the 2010
census, our network enables us to reach three of the ten largest cities in North America by population (New York,
Toronto and Philadelphia). This customer base exceeds 10,000 customers throughout the U.S. and Canada with
no single OEM parts customer accounting for more than 1% of our combined OEM parts revenue, and no single
customer accounting for more than 10% of our combined revenue in 2014. We believe this diverse customer base
protects us against adverse changes in the economy and market conditions.

Dynamic Vehicle Procurement Process

A critical component of our success and growth is our ability to identify and value the products that can
be recycled on a vehicle. We have developed a scalable, data-driven approach, utilizing real-time sales and
inventory information, which allows us to procure vehicles in a cost-efficient manner and optimize the
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dismantling process. Employing this real-time demand information per product enables us to determine which
vehicles to purchase, how much to pay per vehicle and the expected profit per vehicle. As our largest single
expenditure, the efficient procurement of vehicles is critical to our growth, operating results and cash flow.

Deep Industry Expertise

We benefit from the industry expertise and deep customer relationships that have been established at the
Founding Companies over the course of their history as standalone businesses. Our key management personnel at
the Founding Companies have served an average of 20 years in the automotive recycling industry and many have
held senior leadership positions in key industry trade groups, such as the ARA. We believe that our key
management personnel at the Founding Companies will be instrumental in the ongoing implementation of
operational best practices across our network. Additionally, as long-term participants in the industry, we believe
that our key management personnel at the Founding Companies have deep relationships with their peers that will
help facilitate the discussions for future acquisitions.

Experienced Management Team

Our senior management has significant experience operating and growing automotive and logistics-
based businesses. Prior to joining Fenix, our Chief Executive Officer, Kent Robertson, held several senior
leadership positions at Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle”), a national reverse logistics and regulated waste
management company. Mr. Robertson had more than 20 years of experience managing multi-line decentralized
distribution and services businesses at Stericycle and at American Medical Disposal, Inc., a company he co-
founded in 1990, which was acquired by Stericycle in 2001. Under Mr. Robertson’s leadership, Stericycle
successfully acquired and integrated over 70 acquisitions. Our Chief Financial Officer, Scott Pettit, has
significant automotive industry, public company, acquisition and integration experience, including serving from
2001 to 2007 as the Chief Financial Officer of Insurance Auto Auctions, Inc. Our Executive Vice President,
David Gold, was the President and a co-owner of Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., one of our Founding Companies.
A third-generation automobile recycler, Mr. Gold has over 20 years’ experience in our industry and is the
President-elect of the ARA.

Our senior management team and key employees will continue to have a significant equity stake in
Fenix following this offering.

Attractive Financial Model

We believe our highly variable cost structure, low requirements for capital expenditures (in 2014, our
maintenance capital expenditures were less than 1% of pro forma revenues) and the stability of the collision and
mechanical repair products market combine to enable our business to deliver strong results through a variety of
business cycles. We believe that these factors will allow us to produce significant free cash flow and enable us to
continue to fund our growth. Our cost of goods sold includes the price we pay for vehicles we purchase and,
where applicable, auction, storage and towing fees. We use analytic tools to value vehicles for purchase based on
industry pricing trends, historical parts usage, inventory availability and current scrap prices. Accordingly, we
can quickly react to positive or negative changes in our industry and in the economy by increasing or decreasing
our vehicle purchases. In addition, our dismantling, distribution and expense for our commissioned sales force
are largely variable in nature. We also believe that following the Combinations, our scale will create a broader
base for cost absorption, process improvement to facilitate more informed decision making and improved
financial management.

Organizational Structure

We will operate on a decentralized basis with an emphasis on regional and local market execution
supported by corporate coordination. Local management will continue to operate the businesses and leverage
their relationships with customers and suppliers. At the same time, certain administrative functions will be
centralized on a regional and, in certain circumstances, a national basis following this offering, including but not
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limited to corporate strategy and acquisitions, transactional processing, accounting support functions, marketing,
systems support, insurance, human resources, information technology and environmental compliance. In
addition, by combining overlapping operations of certain of the Founding Companies, we expect to achieve more
efficient asset utilization.

Our Strategy
We intend to pursue the following strategies to grow our business and enhance shareholder value:
Enhance and Build our Network through Acquisitions

The acquisition of other OEM automotive products recycling businesses in our markets or adjacent
markets is a key element of our strategy. This will increase our customer base, grow our distribution network and
expand our inventory. We believe that the highly fragmented nature of the automotive recycling industry presents
a significant opportunity for consolidation. There are currently an estimated 9,000 vehicle recycling facilities in
the automotive recycling industry, and we expect that there will continue to be an ample number of attractive
acquisition candidates. We believe the relationships developed by management of our Founding Companies will
assist us in gaining access to potential acquisition candidates. We intend to actively pursue acquisitions to
increase customer and route density within our network and expand into new geographic markets, using a
disciplined approach to identify and evaluate acquisition candidates. We believe that our expansion strategy also
makes us an attractive buyer to auto recyclers that may wish to remain active in their business while participating
in an acquisition growth strategy. Our goal is to complete between 10 and 15 acquisitions, ranging in size
between $5 million and $10 million in revenue, in the near to mid term following the completion of this offering.

Organically Grow Market Share and Unit Volume

We have identified initiatives to increase vehicle processing throughput, inventory and product
availability, thereby growing revenue, volume and market share. These initiatives include:

e Expand Dismantling Capacity. We operate 62 dismantling bays within our full-service auto
recycling facilities. We plan to add dismantling bays within our current facility structure to support
inventory demand with minimal capital expense or regulatory involvement. We can also add shifts
to increase dismantling utilization. Training is an important element to support our dismantling
operations, and we will continue to invest in the education of our dismantlers to further increase
their abilities. Collectively, we believe these initiatives will help us increase dismantling capacity
and productivity, thereby increasing inventory and product availability.

e Develop an Integrated Technology Platform. We currently utilize third-party software solutions to
support our business. We believe this software is sufficient for our current needs, but we intend to
adopt an integrated technology platform to support our future growth. We believe that any cost
associated with the development of a new technology platform would be offset through
improvements in salvage vehicle procurement, production management, part pricing, inventory
management, marketing, sales, logistics and compliance.

e Enhance Sales Force Effectiveness. We have built significant goodwill with our customers through
the use of local sales specialists. We plan to maintain our sales specialists in their local markets to
preserve high levels of service and existing customer relationships. We will also provide our sales
force with enhanced training and additional resources to reach new markets and customers. We
believe that the resulting increase in sales force effectiveness will strengthen our relationships with
customers and increase sales.

e Expand our Logistics Capacity. We will continue to expand our logistics capacity to meet the
delivery expectations of our customers (typically the same or next day). We believe that by
implementing certain business process improvements within our organization we will be able to
leverage our infrastructure without requiring additional capital investment. However we may invest
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in additional infrastructure including trucks, employees or transfer hubs to expand in existing
markets and into adjacent markets. By improving our logistics capacity, we expect to improve
customer fulfillment rates and enhance our value to customers.

Increase our Margins and Enhance Operating Efficiencies

We have identified certain best practices among our Founding Companies, including those that improve
salvage vehicle procurement and dismantling, enhance product delivery and maximize the value of end-of-life
vehicles. We plan to implement these best practices across our network to improve the operating margins of our
Company and any subsequently acquired businesses. Further, we believe an integrated operating platform within
geographic areas will create opportunities for cost synergies as well as economies of scale as we grow. We
expect cost savings in such areas as parts purchasing, vehicle leasing and maintenance, information systems and
contractual relationships with key suppliers. We also believe there are significant opportunities to improve
operating margins by consolidating administrative and support functions such as accounting tax, legal and
information technology. We have identified annual cost synergies in these areas of approximately $1.1 million.
While we believe that these cost synergies are achievable, we may be unable to realize all of these cost synergies
in the near term or at all.

Our Business Operations

We are a leading recycler and reseller of OEM automotive products in the United States and Canada.
Our primary business is the recovery and resale of insurance quality OEM parts, components and systems
reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. Our full-service recycling operations involve four
primary components: vehicle procurement, vehicle processing, sales and distribution.

Vehicle Procurement

Vehicle procurement is the acquisition of severely damaged or totaled vehicles for the purpose of
obtaining recycled OEM products and other inventory. Salvage auctions are our primary source for late model
high-value salvage vehicles to be processed and sold. We acquired approximately 12,500 vehicles from these
auctions in 2014. As part of the procurement process we pay certain fees that the auction companies charge to
both vehicle suppliers (primarily insurance companies) and purchasers. We also incur third-party fees to tow the
vehicles from the auction to our facilities. Salvage auctions ensure that vehicles have proper title documentation
and are in compliance with applicable laws, thereby assuring that the vehicle is not stolen.

Supported by industry leading third-party software, we utilize a scalable, data-driven approach to
vehicle procurement, which employs real-time sales and inventory information. Employing real-time demand
information, on a per part basis, enables us to determine which vehicles to purchase, how much to pay per
vehicle and the expected profit per vehicle, ensuring that we do not purchase vehicles where we have excess
inventory. The analysis of this data and the purchasing of the vehicles are led by our professionals at each
location in coordination with management. We plan to coordinate our teams on a regional and national basis to
support our growth strategy of inventory expansion and order fulfillment.

Vehicle Processing

Vehicle processing involves converting or dismantling a salvage vehicle into recycled OEM products
ready for distribution. When a salvage vehicle arrives at one of our facilities, our inventory specialists identify
and catalog the vehicle so that the parts become available in our inventory system. Supported by third-party
technology and our internal production scheduling, we will determine the optimal time to recover a significant
part from a salvage vehicle and, at that point, begin the dismantling process.

Our dismantlers remove components that will become products for sale. Once we receive an order for a
significant component, we transfer the vehicle into a dismantling bay. We then validate the useable parts and
harvest them from the vehicle. Harvested products include, among other things, engines, transmissions, transfer
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cases, air conditioning compressors, doors, hoods, trunk lids, tail lamps and bumpers. Each part is inspected for
quality, entered into our inventory tracking system, bar code tagged for identification and prepared for storage or
delivery to our customers. We also remove and use or sell any remaining recyclable items, such as gasoline and
catalytic converters. We use licensed third parties to dispose of any fluids that are not reused or recycled. The
remaining vehicle hulks and components such as fabrics, rubber, plastics and glass are delivered to automobile
shredders, crushers and scrap processors.

Sales

As of December 31, 2014, we employed 68 sales specialists, who are generally responsible for working
with our customers to provide part solutions. Our sales specialists receive a significant component of their
compensation as commission. We put all of our sales personnel through a thorough training program. We support
our sales specialists with route managers who deliver our products and help foster our client relationships. In
addition, our outside sales staff focuses on business development in various markets to enhance current market
penetration and develop geographically adjacent new markets.

We also employ specialists who regularly review and revise our product pricing. These specialists
analyze factors such as location, model year of the product, recent demand, product quality, inventory turnover,
new OEM part prices, aftermarket part prices and remanufactured part prices with the goal of optimizing
revenue.

Distribution

We operate our full-service locations as warehouse and distribution facilities. In-stock parts are
generally delivered the same or next day by one of our route delivery trucks. Our distribution is supported by our
regional transfer hub. On a daily basis, each full-service location supplements its internal inventory with recycled
OEM products and other inventory purchased from business partners in adjacent markets for sale to customers in
its local market. The transfer of products between locations is facilitated using a cross-docking system
established by the partners on a regional basis. This transfer activity enables us to have an expanded inventory
without the carrying cost of additional warehousing and increases fulfillment rates by having higher in-stock
levels and reduced product lead time. We believe that by implementing certain business process improvements,
we will be able to better leverage our distribution infrastructure.

Self-Service Operations

We operate four self-service locations, two of which are co-located at existing full-service facilities. At
our self-service locations, we primarily serve individual retail customers. In compliance with our policies, these
customers directly dismantle, recover and purchase recycled OEM products from our self-service inventory of
end-of-life vehicles at a pre-set product price.

We procure these end-of-life vehicles from a variety of sources including but not limited to charities,
individual customers, impound lots, third-party tow truck services and salvage auctions. We primarily pay for
these vehicles on a per ton basis, which allows us to typically ensure that the final scrap value of these vehicles is
greater than our initial purchase price. Once we determine that we have received proper title or other
documentation, we will begin the inventory process. The inventory process entails draining and recycling all
fluids, and removing the tires and certain mechanical parts, which are then held for sale to our customers. Our
self-service locations are typically open seven days a week, year-round. Once we determine that a vehicle in our
self-service inventory has few remaining valuable recoverable parts due to customers having dismantled and
recovered the majority of the vehicle, we sell the remainder as scrap on a per ton basis.

Products

We procure salvage vehicles which we determine have the greatest recyclable product demand and
provide the highest margins. These tend to be popular types of vehicles, reflective of the composition of the
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North American car parc, such as sport utility vehicles and pickup trucks, and, when available, high value late-
model foreign and domestic vehicles. Customers or their insurers generally require the use of recycled OEM
parts that are not older than the vehicle being repaired. The degree of damage is not a significant factor in our
procurement process as we only assign value to the undamaged product in our valuation.

Our most popular mechanical items include engines, transmissions, transfer cases, air condition
compressors and knee assemblies, while our most popular collision parts include doors, lids, gates, front and rear
bumpers and headlights. We also generate a portion of our revenues from the sale of aftermarket parts and from
the sale as scrap of unusable parts and materials.

For an additional fee, we sell extended warranty contracts for certain mechanical products. These
contracts cover the cost of parts and, in some cases, labor, and are sold for periods of six months or longer.

Competition

We operate in a highly competitive industry. We consider all suppliers of automotive products to be
competitors, including other participants in the recycled OEM product market, OEMs, and suppliers of
aftermarket, refurbished and remanufactured parts. We also compete with both online and offline retailers who
offer OEM and aftermarket parts, including national auto parts retailers, online marketplaces (such as eBay),
online retailers and auto repair information websites and local independent retailers or niche auto parts retailers.
We believe the principal areas of competition in our industry include availability of inventory, service, quality
and pricing.

The automotive recycling industry is highly fragmented, with few multi-facility operators. According to
the ARA, there are an estimated 9,000 vehicle recycling facilities in the United States and Canada. We believe
that LKQ Corporation, with what we believe is less than a 10% market share, is our only direct competitor with
more than a 1% market share within the automotive recycling industry.

Customers

We sell the majority of our products to collision repair shops and mechanical repair shops. The majority
of these shops tend to be independently-owned, although there has been a trend toward consolidation resulting in
the formation of several national and regional repair companies. We also sell recycled OEM products to
individual retail customers. In 2014, this customer base exceeded 10,000 customers with no single OEM parts
customer accounting for more than 1% of our combined OEM parts revenue, and no single customer accounting
for more than 10% of our combined revenue.

Although our products are delivered directly to the repair shop or installer, we consider insurance
companies to be indirect customers as they often ultimately pay for the repair of the insured vehicle. Insurance
companies thereby influence the decision-making process as to how a damaged vehicle is repaired, and the cost
level of the product used in the repair process. Insurance companies are also concerned with customer
satisfaction with the repair process and the total time to return the repaired vehicle to its owner, as well as
“green” initiatives consistent with recycling vehicle parts.

Information Technology

We use widely available third-party systems technology, as well as some proprietary applications. The
major features of our facility management systems include procurement, inventory control, order fulfillment and
billing, sales analysis, vehicle tracking and profitability reporting. These systems are primarily based at our
individual operating locations. The systems also support an electronic exchange system for identifying and
locating parts at other selected recyclers and facilitate brokered sales to fill customer orders for items not in
stock.

We have separate third-party financial systems for financial and budget reporting, general ledger
accounting, accounts payable, payroll and fixed assets. We utilize the same common financial systems
throughout our operations.
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We believe our existing information technology systems are sufficient for our current needs, but we
intend to adopt an integrated technology platform to support our future growth. We believe that any associated
cost would be offset through improvements in salvage vehicle procurement, production management, part
pricing, inventory management, marketing, sales, logistics and compliance.

Intellectual Property

We own two registered trademarks in the United States and two registered trademarks in Canada. Such
trademarks may endure in perpetuity on a country-by-country basis, provided that we comply with all statutory
maintenance requirements, including continued use of each trademark in each such country.

We currently do not own any registered copyrights or patents.
Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we employed 521 full-time team members, with 165 in Canada and 356 in
the United States. As of December 31, 2014, we also had two corporate employees. None of our employees are
members of unions or participate in other collective bargaining arrangements.

Facilities

Our corporate headquarters are located at One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 920, Westchester,
[llinois 60154, where we occupy approximately 7,600 square feet. We lease these premises under a sublease for a
term expiring September 30, 2018. The primary functions performed at our corporate headquarters are financial,
accounting, treasury, marketing, human resources, information systems support and legal.

We conduct operations from a total of thirteen full- and self-service facilities. All of these facilities
include a combination of processing and sales operations, and nine of them also include distribution facilities.
We do not own any real property; each of our thirteen facilities is leased, with its lease term commencing upon
the completion of this offering and expiring after 15 years, subject to renewal options. The following table
describes the leases for our thirteen facilities (three of which are composed of multiple leased properties).

Full-Service Recycling Facilities

State or
City Province Address Landlord Operations
Binghamton NY 216 Colesville Road D & B Holdings, Processing, sales and
LLC distribution
Binghamton NY 13 Barlow Road Beagell Properties, Processing, sales and
LLC distribution
Jacksonville FL 12270 New Kings Road New Kings LLC Processing, sales and
distribution
Niagara Falls NY 3800 Highland Avenue Dalana Realty, Inc.  Processing, sales and
distribution
Ottawa ONT 5402 Old Richmond Road Goldy Metals Processing, sales and
(Ottawa) distribution
Incorporated
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City

Ottawa (Cornwall)

Pennsburg

Port Hope

Queensbury

Rahway

Rahway
Rahway (Avenel)
Rahway (Avenel)

Watertown

City

Binghamton

Elmira

Ottawa

Scarborough

State or

Province Address
ONT 4345 Northfield Road
PA 1245 Sleepy Hollow Road

Landlord

Standard Auto
Wreckers
(Cornwall), Inc.

BBHC, LLC

Standard Auto
Wreckers (Port
Hope) Inc.

JBAP Properties
LLC, SBLB
Properties, LLC
and SBLB
Properties II, LLC

Loki-Lot I, LLC

PPP Group, LLC
Loki-Lot II, LLC
Gin-Jac, Inc.

Mark Eiss, John
Eiss and Tim Eiss

Landlord

Beagell Properties
LLC

Don’s Independent
Salvage Company,
LLC

Goldy Metals
(Ottawa)
Incorporated

ONT 260 Peter Street
NY 26 Lower Warren Street
NJ 391 E. Inman Avenue
NJ 63 Adele Street
NJ 20 Leesville Avenue
NJ 186 Leesville Avenue
NY 28250 St. Rte. 37
Self-Service Facilities
State or
Province Address
NY 230-246 Colesville Road
NY 1592 Sears Road
ONT 5402 Old Richmond Road
ONT 1216 Sewells Road
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Kenneth L. Gold &
Goldy Metals
Incorporated

Operations

Warehouse

Processing, sales and
distribution

Processing, sales and

distribution

Processing, sales and
distribution

Processing, sales and
distribution

Processing
Parking lot
Office and warehouse

Processing, sales and
distribution

Operations

Processing and sales

Processing and sales

Processing and sales

Processing and sales



Our typical facility with processing, sales and distribution operations has approximately ten or more
acres of real estate. The typical property has a large warechouse with multiple bays to dismantle vehicles, indoor
and outdoor storage areas and administrative and sales offices. Equipment typically used at each facility includes
hydraulic lifts, forklifts and loaders and hand tools to dismantle vehicles.

We utilize a multi-party transfer hub located at 650 Conklin Road, Conklin, New York which we lease
from an unaffiliated party under a one year lease.

Our facilities, and our operations at such facilities, are governed by various environmental, health and
safety laws and regulations. Prior to the closing of the Combinations, we conducted environmental due diligence
at the thirteen facilities operated by the Founding Companies. Such diligence included a third-party
environmental site assessment and limited environmental compliance audits of potential environmental risks at
each of these sites. The scope of our third-party due diligence included:

e  Submitting Freedom of Information Act requests to appropriate agencies to obtain public
information for each facility;

e Conducting a review of available information on each facility;

e Conducting interviews of the appropriate managers of each facility regarding permits and
compliance, facility equipment and operations, waste management and environmental
management practices;

e  Observing each facility’s equipment, operations, infrastructure and utilities as well as
neighboring properties; and

e Interviewing agency personnel familiar with the facility’s permitting and compliance history.

See “—Regulation,” “Risk Factors—We are subject to environmental regulations and incur costs
relating to environmental matters” and “Risk Factors—One of our Founding Companies is the subject of
environmental claims” for more information on environmental concerns.

Regulation
Environmental Compliance

Our operations and properties are subject to extensive laws and regulations relating to environmental
protection and health and safety in the U.S. as well as Canada. These environmental laws govern, among other
things, the emission and discharge of hazardous materials into the ground, air, or water; exposure to hazardous
materials; and the generation, handling, storage, use, treatment, identification, transportation, and disposal of
industrial by-products, solid and hazardous wastes, petroleum products, waste water, storm water and mercury
and other hazardous materials.

We have made and will continue to make capital and other expenditures relating to environmental
matters. We plan to implement environmental management processes designed to facilitate and support our
compliance with these requirements. We cannot assure you, however, that we will at all times be in complete
compliance with such requirements.

Although we presently do not expect to incur any capital or other expenditures relating to environmental
controls or other environmental matters in amounts that would be material to us, we may be required to make
such expenditures in the future. Environmental laws are complex, change frequently and have tended to become
more stringent over time. Accordingly, environmental laws may change or become more stringent in the future in
a manner that could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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Contamination resulting from vehicle recycling processes can include soil and ground water
contamination from the release, storage, transportation, or disposal of motor oil, gasoline or other petroleum
products, antifreeze, transmission fluid, waste solvents, chlorofluorocarbons from air conditioners, other
hazardous materials or metals such as aluminum, cadmium, chromium, lead and mercury. Contamination can
migrate on-site or off-site which can increase the risk and the amount of any potential liability. We are required
at all of our recycling sites to establish spill prevention controls and countermeasures and storm water control
and pollution prevention plans. Additionally, we are required to register our tanks that contain hazardous fluids.

In addition, many of our facilities are located on or near properties with a history of industrial use that
may have involved hazardous materials. As a result, some of our properties may be contaminated. Some
environmental laws hold current or previous owners or operators of real property liable for the costs of cleaning
up contamination, even if these owners or operators did not know of and were not responsible for causing such
contamination. These environmental laws also impose liability on any person who disposes of, treats, or arranges
for the disposal or treatment of hazardous substances, regardless of whether the affected site is owned or operated
by such person, and at times can impose liability on companies deemed under law to be a successor to such
person. Third parties may also make claims against owners or operators of properties, or successors to such
owners or operators, for personal injuries and property damage associated with releases of hazardous or toxic
substances.

See “Risk Factors—We are subject to environmental regulations and incur costs relating to
environmental matters” and “Risk Factors—One of our Founding Companies is the subject of environmental
claims.”

State and Provincial Licensing Requirements

Our operations are subject to licensing and supervision by various U.S. and Canadian state, provincial
and local authorities. For example, our automotive recycling facilities are generally required to obtain and
maintain licenses to dismantle salvage vehicles, recycle their component parts and, in certain cases, operate
junkyards. Licenses or other certifications also are typically required in order to participate in bidding on salvage
and end-of-life vehicles at salvage auctions. Our facilities may require permits, certifications or approvals for
stormwater discharge, petroleum tank storage, waste generation and environmental compliance. Local zoning
requirements impose restrictions on the location and operation of our facilities. If we violate applicable licensing
and zoning restrictions, it might become necessary to restrict or modify our operations, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Title Laws

In some U.S. states, when a vehicle is deemed a total loss, a salvage title is issued. Whether states issue
salvage titles is important to the supply of inventory for the vehicle recycling industry because an increase in
vehicles that qualify as salvage vehicles provides greater availability and typically lowers the price of such
vehicles. Currently, these titling issues are a matter of state law. In 1992, the U.S. Congress commissioned an
advisory committee to study problems relating to vehicle titling, registration and salvage. Since then, legislation
has been introduced seeking to establish national uniform requirements in this area, including a uniform
definition of a salvage vehicle. The vehicle recycling industry will generally favor a uniform definition, since it
will avoid inconsistencies across state lines and will generally favor a definition that expands the number of
damaged vehicles that qualify as salvage. However, certain interest groups, including repair shops and some
insurance associations, may oppose this type of legislation. National legislation has not yet been enacted in this
area, and there can be no assurance that such legislation will be enacted in the future.

Anti-Car Theft Act

In 1992, the U.S. Congress enacted the Anti-Car Theft Act to deter trafficking in stolen vehicles. One of
the purposes of the law is to implement an electronic system to track and monitor vehicle identification numbers
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and major automotive parts. In January 2009, the U.S. Department of Justice implemented the portion of the
system to track and monitor vehicle identification numbers. The portion of the system that would track and
monitor major automotive parts would require various entities, including automotive parts recyclers like us, to
inspect salvage vehicles for the purpose of collecting the part number for any “covered major part.” The
Department of Justice has not promulgated rules on this portion of the system, and therefore there has been no
progress on the implementation of the system to track and monitor major automotive parts. However, if this
system is fully implemented, the requirement to collect the information would place substantial burdens on
vehicle recyclers, including us, that otherwise would not normally exist. It would place similar burdens on repair
shops, which may discourage the use by such shops of recycled products. There is no pending initiative to
implement the parts registration from a law enforcement point of view. However, there is a risk that a heightened
legislative concern over safety of parts might precipitate an effort to push for the implementation of such rules.

Legal Proceedings

Groundwater and surface water contamination has been detected at the facility of GMI in Toronto,
Ontario, as a result of historical releases and a petroleum hydrocarbon spill in November 2010. Since
November 2010, the Ontario Ministry of the Environment issued a series of regulatory orders under Ontario’s
Environmental Protection Act that required the owner of GMI to investigate and remediate all areas that were
contaminated by the spill and to take protective and remedial actions related to its property and operations as well
as adjacent areas. We believe GMI has been and is taking necessary steps to remediate the surface water and
groundwater contamination. However, as the owner of the Toronto site following the Combinations, we and our
directors and officers may be responsible under national and provincial laws and regulations for the assessment,
delineation, control, cleanup, remediation, monitoring and verification of, or as a result of, any environmental
contamination at that site and any affected off-site areas. The current owner of GMI and certain affiliates have
agreed, pursuant to the Combination Agreements, to be responsible for the costs of an additional storm water
management, control and discharge system following the completion of the Combinations and this offering.
However, there can be no assurance that the current owner of GMI or its affiliates will perform their obligations
under such agreements and their failure to perform would require us to undertake these environmental
obligations. See “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions—The Combinations with the Founding
Companies.”

The Province of Ontario filed a civil lawsuit in November 2012 against Goldy Metals Incorporated,
doing business as Standard Auto Wreckers (“GMI”), in Toronto and the owner of the land on which its facility is
located claiming damages of CAD $10.5 million plus pre- and post-judgment interest and court costs, for alleged
historical and spill-related contamination as well as for alleged property encroachment damage. The lawsuit is
currently in the pre-discovery stage. We are not assuming this liability, and GMI, its shareholder and certain
affiliates have agreed to indemnify us against any liability that may be imposed on us as a result of this liability.
However, we may become legally responsible for this liability as the successor to GMI’s business and lessee of
the facility. We cannot assure you that we will not become responsible for this liability, or that GMI and its
shareholder or their affiliates will have the capacity to indemnify us in the event we become responsible for this
liability in whole or in part. Our responsibility for this liability in whole or in significant part could have a
material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial position.

GMI was also charged in November 2010 by the Province of Ontario for causing or permitting an oil
spill in Toronto which allegedly impaired a nearby creek. This matter was recently settled through a guilty plea
on consent, with GMI paying a penalty of CAD $93,755. A future charge and conviction under the same or other
environmental statute in Ontario could result in the imposition of a minimum fine of CAD $100,000 per day plus
a 25% surcharge, up to a maximum of CAD $10 million. We are not assuming this liability, and GMI and its
shareholder and certain affiliates have agreed to indemnify us against any liability that may be imposed on us as
a result of this liability. However, we may become legally responsible for this liability as the successor to GMI’s
business and lessee of the facility. We cannot assure you that we will not become responsible for this liability, or
that GMI and its shareholder or their affiliates will have the capacity to indemnify us in the event we become

81



responsible for this liability in whole or in part. Our responsibility for this liability in whole or in significant part
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial position.

GMI is also the subject of further regulatory orders issued in June 2012 relating to sedimentation
monitoring and control in the creek, rehabilitating the creek area that was diverted in 2011 as well as assessing,
preventing, treating and controlling off-site groundwater and surface water discharges. To address these orders,
GMI intends to implement a new surface water control, management and discharge system.

We are also subject to legal proceedings, claims and liabilities, such as workers-compensation
proceedings, which arise in the ordinary course of business and are generally covered by insurance. In the
opinion of management, the amount of ultimate liability with respect to such actions should not have a material
adverse impact on our financial position or results of operations.

Our Corporate Information
We are incorporated in Delaware and our corporate offices are located at One Westbrook Corporate
Center, Suite 920, Westchester, Illinois 60154. Our telephone number is (630) 480-6413. Our website is

www.fenixparts.com. None of the information on our website or any other website identified herein is part of this
prospectus or the registration statement of which it forms a part.
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MANAGEMENT
Executive Officers, Directors and Key Employees

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers, directors and
key employees as of March 31, 2015.

Name Age Position
Executive Officers and Directors
Kent Robertson .................... 47 President and Chief Executive Officer and a Director
Scott Pettit ........................ 52 Chief Financial Officer
David Gold(1) ..................... 40 Executive Vice President
Gary Beagell2)(5) .................. 63 Director
Steven Dayton(2)(3)(5) .............. 56 Director
Richard Kogler(2)(3)(4) .............. 55 Director
Thomas O’Brien(2)(4)(5) .. .. ......... 61 Director
Frank ten Brink(2)(3)(4) ............. 58 Director

(1) To be elected as Executive Vice President immediately prior to our listing on the NASDAQ Global Market.
(2) To be elected as a director effective immediately prior to our listing on the NASDAQ Global Market.

(3) To be appointed member of the Audit Committee.

(4) To be appointed member of the Compensation Committee.

(5) To be appointed member of the Nominating and Governance Committee.

Board Composition

Our board of directors may establish the authorized number of directors from time to time by resolution.
Our board of directors currently consists of one member, Kent Robertson. Prior to the completion of this
offering, Messrs. Beagell, Dayton, Kogler, O’Brien and ten Brink will be elected as directors by the incumbent
director, for a total of six directors.

Executive Officers

Kent Robertson has been our President and Chief Executive Officer and a Director since our inception in
January 2014. Since 2010, Mr. Robertson has been a director and interim Chief Executive Officer of Financial
Recovery Group (“FRG”), a healthcare data analytics company. From 2001 until joining FRG, Mr. Robertson
held senior leadership positions at Stericycle, a national reverse logistics and regulated waste management
company. Mr. Robertson had more than 20 years of experience managing multi-line decentralized distribution
and services businesses at Stericycle and at American Medical Disposal, Inc., a company he co-founded in 1990,
which was acquired by Stericycle in 2001. Under Mr. Robertson’s leadership, Stericycle successfully acquired
and integrated over 70 acquisitions. Mr. Robertson holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics from the University
of Oklahoma. We believe that Mr. Robertson is qualified to serve on our board of directors because of his
business experience in management and in acquisitions.

Scott Pettit has been our Chief Financial Officer since March 2014. Mr. Pettit has significant automotive
industry, public company, acquisition and integration experience, including serving from 2007 to 2013 as a
consultant to Insurance Auto Auctions, Inc. Mr. Pettit has also been President and Chief Operating Officer of
Central Illinois Grain Inspection from January 2009 to present. From 2001 to 2007, Mr. Pettit served as Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Insurance Auto Auctions, Inc. Mr. Pettit has a Bachelor of
Business Administration degree from University of Wisconsin-Madison and a Masters of Management from
Kellogg Graduate School of Management at Northwestern University.
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David Gold will become our Executive Vice President and President — Canadian Operations of our
subsidiary, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc., upon the completion of this offering. From 2004 through 2014, Mr. Gold
has served as President and Chief Executive Officer of Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., an integrated recycler and
reseller of OEM automotive parts and one of our Founding Companies. From 1990 through 2004, Mr. Gold
served as a manager and a co-owner of Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc. Mr. Gold is a third-generation automobile
recycler, and is the President-elect of the Automobile Recycling Association, an international automotive
recycling trade association (the “ARA”).

Board Members

Gary Beagell will be elected as a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Mr. Beagell is
the founder and Chief Executive Officer of Gary’s U-Pull It, one of our Founding Companies, established in
1979. Mr. Beagell has been a leader in the automotive recycling industry domestically and internationally for
over 40 years. Mr. Beagell is a former President of the ARA, and has owned and operated multiple self-service
automobile recycling centers throughout the U.S. Mr. Beagell is a pioneer in recycling technology, holds patents
in automotive fluid management systems and has developed yard management software. We believe that
Mr. Beagell is qualified to serve on our board of directors because of his experience and leadership in the
automotive recycling industry.

Steven Dayton will be elected as a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Mr. Dayton has
been a partner in RVG Management and Development Company, a real property and commercial development
and management company, since 2009. Mr. Dayton co-founded CODi, Inc. (“CODi”), a global manufacturer of
computer cases and electronics accessories, in 1992. Prior to founding COD1i, Mr. Dayton served as a technology
consultant in the automotive aftermarket industry. Mr. Dayton currently serves as a Director at Centric Bank.
Mr. Dayton holds a bachelor’s degree in Finance from Temple University. We believe that Mr. Dayton is
qualified to serve on our board of directors because of his general business experience.

Richard Kogler will be elected as a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Mr. Kogler
served as an Executive Vice President and the Chief Operating Officer of Stericycle from January 1999 until
December 31, 2014, when he became Senior Vice President, International. From 1995 until he joined Stericycle,
Mr. Kogler served as Chief Operating Officer for American Disposal Services, Inc., a waste management
company. Prior to his position at American Disposal, he spent 11 years with Waste Management, Inc. where he
held a number of management positions prior to being promoted to Vice President of Operations. Mr. Kogler
received a B.A. in Chemistry from St. Louis University. We believe that Mr. Kogler is qualified to serve on our
board of directors because of his experience in operating businesses and integrating acquired companies.

Thomas O’Brien will be elected as a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Mr. O’Brien
was the Chief Executive Officer of Insurance Auto Auctions, Inc. (“IAA”), a subsidiary of KAR Auction
Services, Inc. (“KAR?”), from November 2000 until May 2014. Mr. O’Brien served as a director of [AA from
2001 until May 2007 and served as a director of KAR from May 2007 until June 2014. Mr. O’Brien also served
as President of IAA from November 2000 to June 2011. Prior to joining IAA, Mr. O’Brien served as President of
Thomas O’Brien & Associates, a management consulting firm, from 1999 to 2000, Executive Vice President of
Safelite Glass Corporation from 1998 to 1999, Executive Vice President of Vistar, Inc., an automotive glass
repair and replacement company, from 1996 to 1997 and President of U.S.A. Glass, Inc. from 1992 to 1996.

Mr. O’Brien is also currently a director of CoreLogic, Inc., an information technology firm serving the financial
services and real estate industries. Mr. O’Brien holds a bachelor’s degree in history from Northwestern
University and a Masters of Management from the Kellogg Graduate School of Management at Northwestern
University. We believe that Mr. O’Brien is qualified to serve on our board of directors because of his experience
in the auto salvage industry.

Frank ten Brink will be elected as a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Mr. ten Brink
has been the Senior Vice President of Mergers and Acquisitions at Stericycle since August 1, 2014. He served as
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Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Administrative Officer of Stericycle from June 1997
until July 31, 2014. He has over 17 years of finance experience in high growth environments, mergers and
acquisitions. Prior to joining Stericycle, he was Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer with Telular
Corporation, a provider of wireless data and voice access services. Between 1991 and 1995, he was Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Hexacomb Corporation. He serves as a director of Accelerate
Diagnostics, Inc., a developer of automated diagnostics systems. Mr. ten Brink studied International Business at
the Netherlands School of Business and received an M.B.A. in Finance from the University of Oregon. We
believe that Mr. ten Brink is qualified to serve on our board of directors because of his experience in corporate
finance and in acquiring and integrating acquired companies.

Director Independence

We have been approved to list our common stock on the NASDAQ Global Market in conjunction with
this offering, and accordingly, we have used the definition of ‘‘independence’’ of the NASDAQ Stock Market to
determine whether our directors are deemed to be independent. On the basis of that definition, we have
determined that, upon becoming directors, Messrs. Dayton, Kogler, O’Brien and ten Brink will each be
independent.

Future Additions to Executive Management

Following completion of this offering, we plan to identify, recruit and add several persons to fill key
positions in our management team as we seek to grow and develop our business. We will also seek to add
substantially to our number of full-time employees.

Board Committees

We have established three standing committees of our board of directors: an Audit Committee, a
Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Governance Committee. Each of the committees will report to
the board of directors as they deem appropriate and as the board of directors may request. The expected
composition, duties and responsibilities of these committees are set forth below. In the future, our board of
directors may establish additional committees, as it deems appropriate, to assist it with its responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assists the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities relating to
the integrity of our financial statements, the qualifications and independence of our independent accountants, the
performance of our internal audit function, if any, and our independent accountants and our compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. In addition, the Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing and evaluating
the effectiveness of our processes for assessing significant risk exposures and the measures that management has
taken to minimize such risks. In carrying out these responsibilities, the Audit Committee is charged with, among
other things: appointing, replacing, compensating, evaluating and overseeing our independent accountants;
reviewing with our independent accountants the scope and results of their audit; approving all audit and
permissible non-audit services to be performed by our independent accountants; discussing with management
and our independent accountants the interim and annual consolidated financial statements that we file with the
SEC; reviewing periodically with our counsel any legal and regulatory matters that may have a material adverse
effect on our financial statements, operations, compliance policies and programs; and reviewing and approving
procedures for the confidential anonymous submission of concerns regarding questionable accounting, internal
controls or auditing matters.

Upon completion of this offering, our Audit Committee will consist of Steven Dayton, Richard Kogler
and Frank ten Brink. Our board of directors has determined that Messrs. Dayton, Kogler and ten Brink meet the
definition of “independent director” for purposes of serving on an audit committee under applicable SEC and
NASDAQ rules. In addition, Mr. ten Brink will qualify as our “audit committee financial expert,” as that term is
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defined in the applicable SEC rules. The written charter for our Audit Committee will be available on our
corporate website at www.fenixparts.com upon the completion of this offering. The information contained on our
website is not part of this prospectus.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is responsible for determining the cash and equity compensation of our
executive officers. The Compensation Committee is responsible for, among other things: reviewing the
respective salaries of our executive officers in light of our goals and objectives relevant to each officer;
determining appropriate cash bonuses, if any, for our executive officers; and granting stock options and other
awards under our stock option plan to our executive officers and determining the terms, conditions, restrictions
and limitations of the options and awards granted.

Upon completion of this offering, our Compensation Committee will consist of Richard Kogler, Thomas
O’Brien and Frank ten Brink. Our board of directors has determined that Messrs. Kogler, O’Brien and ten Brink
meet the definition of “independent director” for purposes of serving on a compensation committee under
applicable SEC and NASDAQ rules. The written charter for our Compensation Committee will be available on
our corporate website at www.fenixparts.com upon the completion of this offering. The information contained on
our website does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for developing and recommending to the
board of directors criteria for identifying and evaluating candidates for directorships and making
recommendations to the full board regarding candidates for election or reelection to the board of directors at each
annual stockholders’ meeting. In addition, the Nominating and Governance Committee is responsible for
overseeing our corporate governance guidelines and reporting and making recommendations to the board of
directors concerning corporate governance matters. The Nominating and Governance Committee is also
responsible for making recommendations to the full board concerning the structure, composition and function of
the board of directors and its committees.

Upon completion of this offering, our Nominating and Governance Committee will consist of Gary
Beagell, Steven Dayton and Thomas O’Brien. Our board of directors has determined that Messrs. Dayton, and
O’Brien meet the definition of “independent director” for purposes of serving on a nominating and governance
committee under applicable SEC and NASDAQ rules, but Mr. Beagell does not. The SEC rules and the
NASDAQ Global Market rules generally require all of the members of the Nominating and Governance
Committee to meet the definition of “independent director” within one year of the date of the completion closing
of this offering. We intend to comply with the phase-in of these independence requirements within the time
specified. The written charter for our Nominating and Governance Committee will be available on our corporate
website at www.fenixparts.com upon the completion of this offering. The information contained on our website
does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

Risk Oversight

Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing our risk management process. The Audit Committee
focuses on our general risk management strategy and the most significant risks facing us and ensures that
appropriate risk mitigation strategies are implemented by management. The Audit Committee reports any
significant issues to the board of directors as part of the board’s general oversight responsibility. Our
management is responsible for day-to-day risk management. This oversight includes identifying, evaluating and
addressing potential risks that may exist at the enterprise, strategic, financial, operational, compliance and
reporting levels.
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Leadership Structure of the Board of Directors

We currently have not appointed a Chairman of the Board. Prior to the completion of this offering, our
business activities have been limited to effecting the Combinations and completing this offering. As such, there is
no meaningful role for a Chairman of the Board. Following the completion of this offering, we intend to elect a
Chairman of the Board separate from our Chief Executive Officer. We believe that separating these positions will
allow our Chief Executive Officer to focus on our day-to-day business, while allowing the Chairman of the
Board to lead the board of directors in its fundamental role of providing advice to and oversight of management.
Our board of directors recognizes the time, effort and energy that the Chief Executive Officer will be required to
devote to his position in the current business environment, as well as the commitment required to serve as our
Chairman, particularly as the board of directors’ oversight responsibilities continue to grow. While our bylaws
and corporate governance guidelines do not require the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to be
separate, our board of directors believes that having separate positions is the appropriate leadership structure for
us following the completion of this offering.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

No current or pending member of our board of directors or Compensation Committee serves as a
member of the board of directors or the compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive
officers serving as a member of our board of directors or Compensation Committee.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a general code of ethics which applies to all of our directors, executive officers and
employees, and have also adopted an additional code of ethics directed to certain of our executive officers and
designated accounting personnel. Copies of these codes will be available on our corporate website
www.fenixparts.com upon completion of this offering. The information contained on our website does not
constitute a part of this prospectus.
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EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Director Compensation

Our board of directors is responsible for determining the cash and equity compensation of our directors,
which will be as described below. Each director who is an employee of ours or of a subsidiary of ours will not
receive any additional compensation for serving as a director. Each director who is not an employee of ours or of
a subsidiary of ours (an “outside director”) will receive an option under our 2014 Stock Plan to purchase 40,000
shares of common stock upon his initial election to the board of directors and will also receive an option to
purchase 10,000 shares of common stock at each subsequent annual meeting of stockholders at which he is re-
elected a director. Each option grant to an outside director will be in the form of a nonstatutory stock option
which will fully vest on the first anniversary of the grant date. The option will have a 10-year term and may be
exercised at any time after it becomes vested and prior to its expiration. The exercise price per share of the option
will be the closing price of a share of our common stock on the grant date, with the exception of the initial
options for 40,000 shares to be granted to Messrs. Dayton, Kogler, O’Brien and ten Brink. Each of them will be
elected a director as of the close of business on the day preceding the first day of trading of our common stock,
and the exercise price per share of their initial options will be the public offering price of our stock. See “—2014
Stock Plan.”

In addition, each outside director will receive an annual cash fee based on the director’s board
committee service, as set forth in the following table. A director who serves on more than one committee will
receive a cash fee for service on each committee. Beginning with our first annual meeting following the closing
of this offering, each outside director may elect to receive, in lieu of a cash fee, a number of options to purchase
shares of our common stock equal to a multiple established by our board of directors (currently 4.0) of the
directors’ annual cash compensation divided by the average closing price of our common stock during the period
starting with the day of our last annual meeting and continuing through the day before our current annual meeting
(or, in the case of our first annual meeting, the average price of our common stock during the period starting with
the first day of trading of our common stock and continuing through the day before our first annual meeting).

Director Annual Cash Compensation

Asa Asa
Committee Member Only Committee Chair
Audit Committee $7,500 $15,000
Compensation Committee $5,000 $10,000
Nominating and Governance Committee $2,500 $5,000

No director compensation was paid in 2014.
Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table
The following table shows the total compensation paid or accrued during our last full fiscal year, which

ended December 31, 2014, to our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer, who were our only two
executive officers during the year:

Name and Principal Positions Year Salary Total

Kent RODEITSON . . .o oottt e e e e e 2014 $87,500 $87,500
Chief Executive Officer(1)

SCOtE Pt . o oot e e e e e e e 2014 $87,500 $87,500

Chief Financial Officer(1)



(1) As described below, the salaries for Messrs. Robertson and Pettit have accrued beginning October 1, 2014,
but will be paid only contingent upon the closing of this offering.

Fenix was incorporated in January 2014 and has not conducted any operations other than those activities
related to the acquisition of the Founding Companies and this offering. We anticipate that during 2015, the
annualized base salaries of our Chief Executive Officer and our two most highly compensated executive officers
other than our Chief Executive Officer will be $350,000 for Mr. Robertson, $350,000 for Mr. Pettit and $250,000
for Mr. Gold. In addition to their base salaries, it is contemplated that these executive officers will be eligible to
receive incentive compensation consisting of cash bonuses and awards of options or restricted stock under our
2014 Stock Plan. During the initial five-year term of Mr. Gold’s employment agreement, he will receive a
guaranteed annual bonus of 50% of his base salary with the opportunity to earn a bonus of up to 100% of his base
salary, depending on the attainment of corporate and personal performance goals.

As part of Mr. Robertson’s employment arrangement with us, as of the close of business on the day
preceding the first day of trading of our common stock, he will receive an option under the 2014 Stock Plan to
purchase 200,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price per share equal to our public offering price, or an
award of restricted shares under the 2014 Stock Plan having the same value, or a combination of the two, as
determined by the board of directors. As part of Mr. Pettit’s employment arrangement with us, on the day
preceding the first day of trading of our common stock, he will receive an option under the 2014 Stock Plan to
purchase 150,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price per share equal to our public offering price, or an
award of restricted shares under the 2014 Stock Plan having the same value, or a combination of the two, as
determined by the board of directors. In addition, as compensation for services rendered to us in connection with
this offering and the Combinations, we have accrued the base salaries of Mr. Robertson and Mr. Pettit beginning
on October 1, 2014, and will pay the accrued amounts to them contingent upon and within 30 days after the
closing of this offering and the Combinations. As part of Mr. Gold’s employment arrangement with us, he will
receive an option under the 2014 Stock Plan to purchase approximately 80,000 shares of common stock at an
exercise price per share equal to the closing price on the date of grant, or an award of restricted shares under the
2014 Stock Plan having the same value, or a combination of the two, as determined by the board of directors.
Any such options or restricted shares will vest in equal annual amounts over four years, and any such options will
be exercisable for a period of ten years, subject to the terms of the 2014 Stock Plan. Mr. Gold’s employment
agreement will go into effect as of the closing of the Combinations and this offering, until which time he will
continue to be employed by one of the Founding Companies.

No executive officer had any equity awards outstanding as of December 31, 2014.

2014 Stock Plan

Our sole director adopted the 2014 Incentive Stock Plan (the “2014 Stock Plan” or “plan”) on
November 20, 2014, and our stockholders approved the 2014 Stock Plan on January 5, 2015.

The purpose of the 2014 Stock Plan is to recognize and reward selected officers, directors and
employees for their efforts on the Company’s behalf, to motivate them by appropriate incentives to contribute to
the Company’s attainment of its performance objectives, and to align their interests with those of the Company’s
other stockholders through compensation based on the performance of the Company’s common stock.
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Summary of Principal Terms

The following summary describes the principal terms of the 2014 Stock Plan. The complete text of the
plan appears as Exhibit 10.2 to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part.

Types of Awards. The plan permits the award of stock options, stock appreciation rights (“SARs”)
(either alone or in tandem with stock options), shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units (“RSUs”).

Number of Shares. The plan authorizes a total of 2,750,000 shares of our common stock to be issued
pursuant to awards under the plan.

In determining the shares available for awards under the plan, the shares for which stock options and
SARs are granted count against this maximum on a 1-for-1 basis, and the shares for which restricted stock and
RSU awards are granted count against this maximum on a 2-for-1 basis (so that each share for which a restricted
stock or RSU award is granted reduces by two shares the number of shares available for which awards may be
granted).

If a stock option or SAR lapses or expires unexercised or if a restricted stock or RSU award lapses, the
number of shares in respect of which the stock option or SAR lapsed or expired, or twice the number of shares in
respect of which the restricted stock or RSU award lapsed, is added back to the number of shares available for
which awards may be granted. If an SAR or RSU is settled in cash, the number of shares in respect of such
awards that are settled in cash will not be added back to the available number of shares available for grants of
awards under the plan. If the exercise price of a stock option is paid by the delivery of shares, the number of
shares issued upon exercise of the stock option, without netting the shares delivered in payment of the exercise
price, shall be taken into account in determining the number of shares available for grants of awards under the
plan.

In the event of a change in the number of outstanding shares of our common stock by reason of a stock
dividend, stock split, recapitalization, reorganization or the like, the Committee (defined below) may, and in the
case of a reverse stock split, the Committee shall, equitably adjust the following in order to prevent a dilution or
enlargement of the benefits or potential benefits intended to be provided under the plan: (i) the number of shares
for which awards may be granted under the plan, (ii) the maximum number of shares for which awards may be
granted to any eligible person in a calendar year, (iii) the aggregate number of shares in respect of each
outstanding award, and (iv) the exercise price of each outstanding stock option and SAR. The Committee may
also make any other equitable adjustments that the Committee considers appropriate. Except in the case of a
reverse stock split, adjustments shall be made in the Committee’s discretion, and its decisions shall be final and
binding.

Eligibility. The plan authorizes awards to be made to our full-time and part-time employees (or of our
subsidiaries (as defined in the plan)), our directors, and individuals serving as consultants to us or our
subsidiaries, with the exception that incentive stock options may be granted only to employees. An eligible
person who holds an award under the plan is sometimes referred to as a “participant”.

Individual Limit on Awards. In any calendar year, the maximum number of shares for which awards
may be granted to any eligible person may not exceed 50,000 shares in the case of stock options and SARS and
50,000 shares in the case of restricted stock and RSU awards, in each case taking into account all similar types of
grants and awards under other stock option and equity compensation plans that we may adopt in the future. The
Committee has the authority to make exceptions to these limits.

Term of Plan. The 2014 Stock Plan has a 10-year term which began on January 5, 2015, the date it was
approved by our stockholders. No award under the plan may be made after the plan’s expiration.

Administration. The plan is administered by a committee of the board of directors (the “Committee”).
The Committee is required to consist of two or more directors, all of whom are (i) “non-employee directors” as
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defined in Rule 16b-3 under the Exchange Act, (ii) “independent directors” under the applicable listing standards
of the NASDAQ Global Market and (iii) “outside directors” under § 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Unless the Board designates a different committee, the Compensation Committee of the Board will serve as the
Committee (as long as all of the members of the Compensation Committee qualify).

Subject to the express terms of the plan, the Committee has the authority to select the recipients, number
of shares and other terms and conditions of each award under the plan. The Committee also has the authority to
interpret the plan, adopt, revise and rescind policies and procedures to administer the plan, and make all
determinations required for the plan’s administration.

Performance Goals. The Committee may condition the vesting of any award under the plan on the
attainment of one or more performance goals relating to the Company as a whole, a division or one of our
subsidiaries, measured over a twelve month or longer period. Performance goals may differ among participants
and from award to award. The performance goals that the Committee specifies may relate to: earnings per share;
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization; revenues; income from operations; return on
invested capital; return on assets; internal rate of return; return on stockholders’ equity; and total return to
stockholders.

Stock Options

Stock options granted under the plan may be either incentive stock options intended to satisfy the
requirements of section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code (“ISOs”) or nonstatutory stock options (“NSOs”). A
“nonstatutory” stock option is the generic term for a stock option that does not qualify for special treatment under
the Internal Revenue Code relating to ISOs.

Option Grants to Outside Directors. The plan provides for automatic grants of stock options to outside
directors. An outside director will receive an NSO to purchase 40,000 shares of our common stock upon his
initial election to the board of directors and will also receive an NSO to purchase 10,000 shares of our common
stock at each subsequent annual meeting of stockholders at which he is re-elected a director. Each option granted
to an outside director will fully vest on the first anniversary of the grant date. The option will have a 10-year term
and may be exercised at any time after it becomes vested and prior to its expiration. The exercise price per share
of the option will be the closing price of a share of our common stock on the grant date, with the exception of the
initial options for outside directors who are elected on the day preceding the first day of trading of our common
stock. The exercise price per share of these initial options will be the public offering price of our stock.

Term. Except for options granted to outside directors, the Committee determines the term of each stock
option at the time of the grant. The Committee may extend the expiration date of an option up to the last day of
the option’s term when held by an employee whose employment terminates. Option grants to outside directors
have (i) a term of 10 years in the case of automatic option grants and (ii) a term specified in the underlying award
agreement in the case of discretionary option grants. No option may have a term of more than 10 years.

Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of each stock option may not be less than the closing price
of a share of our common stock on the date that the option is granted. In the case of stock options granted before
our common stock is publicly traded, the exercise price per share may not be less than the fair market value of a
share of our common stock on the date of grant.

Vesting. Other than in the case of automatic option grants to outside directors (see “—Option Grants to
Outside Directors”), the Committee specifies the time or times when each option becomes vested (i.c.,
exercisable). Vesting may be based on the holder’s satisfaction of specified service requirements, performance
goals and/or other conditions. The Committee may accelerate the vesting of an option at any time. An
employee’s option becomes fully vested if the employee’s employment terminates by reason of his or her death.
If an employee’s employment terminates for any other reason (except in connection with a change in control, as
described below) any unvested portion of the option will lapse unless otherwise provided by the Committee. The
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underlying award agreements for options granted to outside directors include terms that address whether vesting
may be accelerated, either in the event of death or for any other reason (except in connection with a change in
control, as described below).

Exercisability. Once vested, an option remains exercisable for the term of the option, subject to early
expiration in certain circumstances. If an employee’s employment terminates for any reason other than the
employee’s death, each option that the employee holds expires as specified in the underlying award agreement,
or if no expiration date is specified, 30 days after the employee’s termination. If an employee’s employment
terminates by reason of his or her death, the option expires on the first anniversary of the employee’s death. The
Committee may extend the expiration date of an option up to the last day of the option’s term in the case of an
employee whose employment terminates. Options granted to outside directors expire as specified in the
underlying award agreement.

Manner of Exercise. The holder of an option may exercise the vested portion of the option by giving
written notice to the Committee, specifying the number of shares of common stock for which the option is being
exercised, and tendering payment of the exercise price. The exercise price is payable in cash or, if permitted by
the Committee, either in the underlying award agreement or at the time of exercise, by (i) delivering shares of our
stock having a fair market value equal to the exercise price, (ii) directing us to withhold, from the shares
otherwise issuable upon exercise of the option, shares of stock having a fair market value equal to the exercise
price, (iii) an open-market broker-assisted sale pursuant to which we receive the portion of the sales proceeds
equal to the exercise price, or (iv) any combination of these methods or any other method that the Committee
authorizes.

No Repricing. Other than for capitalization adjustments or as approved by our stockholders, the exercise
price per share of any stock option may not be reduced and the stock option may not be surrendered to us for
cash or as consideration for the grant of a new stock option or SAR with a lower exercise price per share.

Special Limitations on ISOs. To the extent that the aggregate fair market value (determined in respect of
each ISO on the basis of the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the ISO’s grant date) of the
underlying shares of all ISOs that become exercisable by an employee for the first time in any calendar year
exceeds $100,000, the options are treated as NSOs.

Transferability. No option may be transferred, assigned or pledged, except at death in accordance with
the decedent’s will or the applicable laws of intestacy, or as provided in the underlying award agreement or as the
Committee otherwise permits, or if (i) the transferee is a revocable trust that the employee established for estate
planning reasons (in respect of which the employee is treated as the owner for federal income tax purposes) or
(i1) the transferee is the spouse of the employee or a child, step-child, grandchild, parent, sibling or child of a
sibling of the employee (each an “eligible transferee”), a custodian for an eligible transferee under any Uniform
Transfers to Minors Act or Uniform Gifts to Minors Act or a trust for the primary benefit of one or more eligible
transferees. No option may be subject to execution, attachment or similar process.

Stock Appreciation Rights

A stock appreciation right entitles the holder to receive the appreciation in value over a specified period
of the number of shares of our common stock for which the SAR is awarded. The holder receives in settlement of
the SAR an amount equal to the excess of the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date of
exercise of the SAR over the exercise price of the SAR, multiplied by the number of shares being exercised. The
Committee determines the vesting requirements, type of settlement and other terms of each SAR.

Exercise Price. The exercise price per share of each SAR may not be less than the closing price of a
share of our common stock on the date that the SAR is granted.
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Stand-Alone or Tandem SAR. An SAR may be granted on a stand-alone basis or in tandem with a related
stock option. A tandem SAR entitles the participant to elect to exercise either the SAR or the related option as to
all or any portion of the shares subject to the SAR and option. The exercise of a tandem SAR causes the
automatic cancellation of its related option for the same number of shares, and the exercise, expiration or
cancellation of the related option (other than by reason of the exercise of the tandem SAR) causes the automatic
and immediate cancellation of the tandem SAR for the same number of shares.

Manner of Exercise. The holder of an SAR may exercise the vested portion of an SAR by giving written
notice to the Committee, specifying the number of shares of common stock for which the SAR is being
exercised. Unlike the case with a stock option, no out-of-pocket payment is required to exercise an SAR.

No Repricing. Other than for capitalization adjustments or as approved by our stockholders, the exercise
price per share of any SAR may not be reduced and the SAR may not be surrendered to us for cash or as
consideration for the grant of a new SAR or stock option with a lower exercise price per share.

Settlement. Upon exercise, an SAR may be settled in cash or in shares of our stock, or a combination of
the two, in the Committee’s discretion. Any settlement in cash will be made by us paying to the holder of the
SAR an amount equal to the closing price of a share of our common stock on the date of exercise of the SAR less
the exercise price. Any settlement in shares of our stock will be made by us delivering to the holder of the SAR
shares of our stock having a value equal to the difference between the closing price of a share of our common
stock on the date of exercise of the SAR and the exercise price.

Similarity to Options. Many of the same terms of the plan that apply to stock option grants apply as well
to awards of SARs. See “Stock Options—Term, —Vesting, —Exercisability and —Transferability.”

Restricted Stock

An award of restricted shares is an award of shares of our common stock subject to vesting
requirements, restrictions on transfer and other conditions as the Committee determines.

Vesting. The Committee specifies the time or times when the restricted shares become vested (i.e., no
longer subject to forfeiture). Vesting may be based on the satisfaction of specified service requirements,
performance goals and other conditions. An employee’s restricted shares become fully vested if the employee’s
employment terminates by reason of his or her death. The Committee may accelerate the vesting of the restricted
shares at any time.

Transferability. Prior to vesting, restricted shares may not be transferred or pledged except as permitted
by the Committee. After vesting, the shares may still remain subject to restrictions on transfer under applicable
securities laws and any restrictions that the Committee imposes in the award agreement.

Rights as Stockholder. Subject to the vesting requirements, transfer restrictions and other conditions of
the award, the recipient of an award of restricted shares has all of the rights of a stockholder in respect of the
restricted shares, including all voting and dividend rights and other distribution rights with respect to shares of
our common stock.

Restricted Stock Units

An RSU award is a contractual right that entitles the holder to receive one share of our common stock in
the future. The Committee determines the vesting requirements, type of settlement and other terms of each
restricted stock unit award.
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Vesting. The Committee specifies the time or times when the RSUs become vested (i.e., no longer
subject to forfeiture). Vesting may be based on the satisfaction of specified service requirements, performance
goals and other conditions. An employee’s RSUs become fully vested if the employee’s employment terminates
by reason of his or her death. The Committee may accelerate the vesting of the RSUs at any time.

Settlement. An RSU award may be settled in cash or in shares of our stock, or a combination of the two,
in the Committee’s discretion. Any settlement in cash will be made on the basis of the closing price of a share of
our common stock on the date that the award becomes payable.

Rights as Stockholder. The holder of an RSU award does not have any rights as a stockholder in respect
of the shares subject to the award until the award is settled in stock and those shares have been issued to the
holder.

Amendment and Termination

Our board of directors may amend, suspend or terminate the 2014 Stock Plan at any time. Our
stockholders are required to approve any amendment to the plan that would (i) increase the number of shares of
our common stock for which ISOs may be granted under the plan, (ii) materially increase the number of shares of
our common stock for which other types of awards may be made, (iii) permit any action that would be treated as
a repricing of awards under applicable stock exchange rules or (iv) otherwise require stockholder approval under
any applicable laws, regulations or stock exchange rules.

Change of Control

In the event of a “change of control” as defined in the 2014 Stock Plan, all outstanding stock options,
SARs and RSU awards will become fully vested and exercisable and all restrictions on the shares underlying
restricted stock awards will lapse.

Withholding

All awards under the 2014 Stock Plan are subject to all applicable withholding and we may withhold an
amount sufficient to satisfy its withholding tax obligations, if any, in connection with any award under the plan.
We may also defer making any payment or delivery of shares pursuant to the award unless and until the
participant indemnifies the Company to its satisfaction in respect of its withholding obligation.

Non-U.S. Jurisdictions

The Committee may adopt, amend and terminate a supplement to the plan to permit employees in
another country to receive awards under the supplement (on terms not inconsistent with the terms of awards
under the plan) in compliance with that country’s securities, tax and other laws.

Employment Agreements and Change in Control Arrangements

With the exception of our Executive Vice President, David Gold, none of our executive officers have
employment agreements. Kent Robertson, our Chief Executive Officer, and Scott Pettit, our Chief Financial
Officer, have received and have agreed to the terms of employment offer letters, pursuant to which
Mr. Robertson will receive base compensation of $350,000 per year and Mr. Pettit will receive base
compensation of $350,000 per year. The term of Mr. Robertson’s and Mr. Pettit’s employment is one year, and
can be renewed with the approval of the Board of Directors. Each of Messrs. Robertson and Pettit has entered
into a noncompetition and confidentiality agreement that will be effective upon the closing of this offering,
pursuant to which they have agreed they will not compete with our business, or solicit our customers or
employees, for the period ending on the third anniversary of the date their employment with the Company
terminates.
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David Gold’s employment agreement with Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. will become effective upon the
closing of this offering and the Combinations. His employment agreement has an initial term of five years and is
renewable for successive one-year renewal terms unless terminated as provided therein. Mr. Gold’s base salary
will be $250,000 per year and he will be entitled to cash and stock based incentive compensation upon
achievement of Company and individual performance goals established by our board of directors and Mr. Gold.
As noted above, during his initial term, Mr. Gold will receive a guaranteed cash bonus of 50% of his base salary
and he has been promised an initial equity award of options to purchase 80,000 shares of common stock or the
equivalent in restricted shares or a combination thereof. See “—Executive Compensation.” Mr. Gold’s
employment agreement contains no change of control arrangements. Upon termination of Mr. Gold’s
employment agreement, he will be subject to covenants of noncompetition, nonsolicitation and confidentiality.
Mr. Gold will also be subject to covenants of non-competition, non solicitation and confidentiality pursuant to
the Non-Competition and Confidentiality Agreement he will enter into as a condition to the closing of the
Combination with Standard.

Under his employment agreement, if Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. terminates Mr. Gold’s employment
without cause, or if Mr. Gold resigns for good reason, as specified in the employment agreement, prior to the
fifth anniversary of the agreement’s effective date, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. will provide Mr. Gold with the
greater of severance pay required by the Ontario Employment Standards Act (“ESA”) or continuation of his base
salary through the fifth anniversary date of the effective date. If Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. terminates Mr. Gold’s
employment without cause, or if Mr. Gold resigns for good reason, on or after the fifth anniversary of the
effective date, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. will provide Mr. Gold with the greater of severance pay required by ESA
or a lump sum payment equal to one month of base salary for every completed year of service since the
commencement of the initial term of the employment agreement. In any of these situations Mr. Gold would get
benefits continuation for the minimum period required by ESA.

In the event of a change in control, each outstanding option, as well as outstanding SARs and RSU
awards, if any, under our 2014 Stock Plan will fully vest and become immediately exercisable.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS
Related Person Transactions
Our Formation and Organization

Fenix was formed and initially capitalized in January 2014 by a group of investors, including Ross
Berner, Steven Colmar (through his company, Business Ventures Corp.), Craig Colmar, Scott Pettit and Kent
Robertson (the “founders™), who collectively have acted as our co-founders and paid nominal cash consideration
of $0.001 per share for an aggregate of 1,800,000 shares of our common stock.

In March and April 2014, we issued and sold an aggregate of 402,000 shares of common stock to 13
persons for a purchase price of $5.00 per share (the “First Bridge Offering”). See Notes 5 and 6 of the
accompanying notes to Fenix’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in the prospectus for a
description of such offering. Certain of our directors, executive officers and 5% stockholders, or persons related to
our 5% stockholders, participated in the First Bridge Offering. The following table summarizes the amount of
common stock purchased by each of our directors, executive officers and 5% stockholders or related persons in
connection therewith.

Number of Aggregate
Name Shares Purchased Purchase Price
Steven Colmar 10,000 $50,000
Berner Living Trust 16,000 $80,000
Steven Dayton 120,000 $600,000
Scott Pettit 40,000 $200,000
Kent Robertson 30,000 $150,000

Each of the individuals listed above was a 5% stockholder of the Company at the time of the First Bridge
Offering. The Berner Living Trust is related to Ross Berner, a founder and 5% stockholder, by virtue of the fact
that his father created the trust and his parents serve as trustees. Additionally, Mr. Robertson is our President and
CEO, and Mr. Pettit is our CFO. Steven Dayton purchased his shares through Dayton Family Limited
Partnership, which he controls.

Between September 2014 and April 20, 2015, we issued and sold an aggregate of 530,923 shares of
common stock to 37 persons for a purchase price of $6.50 per share (the “Second Bridge Offering”). See Notes 5
and 6 of the accompanying notes to Fenix’s consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in the
prospectus for a description of such offering. Certain of our directors, executive officers and 5% stockholders
participated in the Second Bridge Offering. The following table summarizes the amount of common stock
purchased by each of our directors, executive officers and 5% stockholders in connection therewith.

Number of Aggregate
Name Shares Purchased Purchase Price
Steven Dayton 34,615.4 $225,000
Richard Kogler 14,000.0 $91,000
Thomas O’Brien 15,384.6 $100,000
Frank ten Brink 14,000.0 $91,000

Steven Dayton was a 5% stockholder at the time of his purchase in the Second Bridge Offering. Mr. Dayton
purchased his shares through Dayton Family Limited Partnership, which he controls. Mr. ten Brink purchased his
shares through the Franciscus J.M. ten Brink Trust, of which he is trustee. Each of Messrs. Kogler, O’Brien and
ten Brink will be appointed a director prior to the closing of our initial public offering.

All share, per share and financial data in the above tables have been adjusted to give effect to the 2,000-
for-1 common stock split, which will occur immediately prior to the closing of this offering.
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Our founders (Kent Robertson, Scott Pettit, Ross Berner, Steven Colmar (through his company,
Business Ventures Corp.) and Craig Colmar) have agreed to transfer shares of our common stock owned by them
to investors in the First Bridge Offering and the Second Bridge Offering having sufficient value to make up any
deficiency between the value of such investors’ common stock at the public offering price and $10.00 per share.
Because the public offering price in this offering is $8.00 per share, such founders will transfer a total of 237,231
shares to investors in the First Bridge Offering and the Second Bridge Offering. Mr. Robertson will transfer
98,846 shares of our common stock, Mr. Pettit will transfer 26,359 shares of our common stock, Mr. Berner will
transfer 59,308 shares of our common stock, Business Ventures Corp. will transfer 39,538 shares of our common
stock, and Mr. Craig Colmar will transfer 13,179 shares of our common stock. Such transfers will occur no later
than ten days after the closing of this offering and will be excepted from the transfer restrictions under the lock-
up agreements signed by each of the transferors. See “Shares Eligible for Future Sale—Lock-Up Agreements.”

We have granted registration rights to purchasers of our common stock in the First Bridge Offering and
Second Bridge Offering.

The Combinations with the Founding Companies

Although the following summarizes the material terms of the Combination Agreements, it does not
purport to be complete in all respects and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by, the full text of the
Combination Agreements, a copy of each of which is filed as an exhibit to the registration statement of which this
prospectus forms a part. Additionally, the following summary discusses the Combination Agreements in general
terms and does not identify all the instances where one Combination Agreement may differ from another. Other
than the amount of consideration to be received, the structural differences between the acquisitions of the US
Founding Companies and Canadian Founding Companies, described below, and certain provisions described at
the end of this section, all of the Combination Agreements are substantially similar.

General

We have entered into Combination Agreements with the shareholders or equity interest holders of each
Founding Company, consisting of eleven corporate entities conducting eight separate businesses. Concurrently
with and conditioned upon the closing of this offering, we will close the transactions pursuant to these
Combination Agreements and acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of stock and other equity interests
of each Founding Company organized in the United States, as listed below (the “US Founding Companies™):

The US Founding Companies

e Don’s Automotive Mall, Inc.*
e Eiss Brothers, Inc.
e Gary’s U-Pull It, Inc.*
e  Green Oak Investments LLC dba GO Auto Recycling
e Horseheads Automotive Recycling, Inc.*
e Jerry Brown, Ltd.
e Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
e Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc.**
Concurrently with and conditioned upon the closing of this offering, our wholly-owned Canadian

subsidiary, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc., will acquire substantially all of the assets of each Founding Company
organized in Canada, as listed below (the “Canadian Founding Companies”):
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The Canadian Founding Companies

e End of Life Vehicles Inc. **

e  Goldy Metals Incorporated**

e  Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated**
* Collectively, the “Beagell Group”
** Collectively, “Standard”

As aresult, at the closing of this offering, all of the US Founding Companies will become wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Fenix, and substantially all of the assets of all of the Canadian Founding Companies will be owned
by our wholly-owned Canadian subsidiary. We collectively refer to the acquisitions of the US Founding Companies
and the purchase of the assets of the Canadian Founding Companies as the “Combinations.”

We agreed on the consideration that we are paying in the Combinations in the course of arm’s length
negotiations with the shareholders or equity interest holders of each Founding Company. In determining and
negotiating this consideration, we relied on the experience and judgment of our management and our evaluation of
the potential synergies that could be achieved in combining the operations of the Founding Companies. We did not
obtain independent valuations, appraisals or fairness opinions to support the consideration that we agreed to pay.

Consideration to be Paid in the Combinations

The consideration that we are paying in each Combination consists of cash, or cash and shares of our
common stock or, in the case of the Canadian Founding Companies, cash and preferred shares of Fenix Parts
Canada, Inc. that are exchangeable on a 1-for-1 basis for shares of our common stock (the “Exchangeable
Preferred Shares”). The aggregate cash component of the consideration for all eleven Combinations, including
certain amounts payable as bonuses to certain key employees and certain amounts payable to reimburse certain
Founding Companies for pre-closing capital expenditures, will be approximately $93.2 million (subject to the
adjustments discussed below), and the aggregate stock component will be 3,157,750 shares of our common stock
in the case of the US Founding Companies and 1,330,000 Exchangeable Preferred Shares of Fenix Parts Canada,
Inc. in the case of the Canadian Founding Companies. In addition, we will deliver promissory notes in the
aggregate amount of $200,000 to the equity interest holders of an affiliate of one of the US Founding Companies.

Cash Consideration Adjustments. The cash component of the consideration for each Combination is
subject to certain adjustments. For each Founding Company other than Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., the cash
component of the Combination Consideration will be (i) reduced by the Founding Company’s indebtedness as of
closing, (ii) increased by the Founding Company’s net cash and inventory as of closing and (iii) increased by the
amount of the Founding Company’s capital expenditures during the six months prior to closing. For Standard
Auto Wreckers, Inc., the cash component of the Combination Consideration will be reduced by Standard Auto
Wreckers, Inc.’s indebtedness as of closing. The aggregate net adjustment for the cash portion of the
Combination Consideration will be an increase of approximately $6.5 million in the aggregate cash component of
the Combination Consideration.

In addition to these adjustments, certain of the Combination Agreements include provisions for
holdbacks, earnouts and other payments. See “—Holdbacks,” “—Earnouts” and “—Other Payments.”

In addition to these adjustments, certain of the Combination Agreements include provisions for the
holdback of shares otherwise to be issued. See “—Holdbacks.”

Fenix Parts Canada Exchangeable Preferred Shares. The Exchangeable Preferred Shares of Fenix Parts
Canada, Inc. to be issued to the Canadian Founding Companies will be substantially the voting equivalent of
shares of our common stock. Each holder of Exchangeable Preferred Shares will receive, through a voting trust
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that will hold one share of our special voting stock authorized and issued solely for this purpose, the voting rights
of the number of shares of our common stock for which the holder’s Exchangeable Preferred Shares may be
exchanged.

A holder of Exchangeable Preferred Shares may exchange all or any part of the holder’s shares at any
time for the same number of shares of our common stock. On or after December 31, 2019, Fenix Parts Canada,
Inc. may redeem all or any part of a holder’s Exchangeable Preferred Shares by delivery to the holder of the same
number of shares of our common stock. In the event of a redemption by Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. prior to
December 31, 2033, the holder of the Exchangeable Preferred Shares to be redeemed may elect to receive cash in
lieu of shares of our common stock for up to 35% of the value of the shares of our common stock otherwise to be
delivered. In the event of a redemption by Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. after December 31, 2033, Fenix Parts
Canada, Inc. may deliver in redemption to the holder of the Exchangeable Preferred Shares the same number of
shares of our common stock, cash equal to the value of the shares of our common stock otherwise to be
delivered, or any combination of the two methods of redemption.

Consideration Summary. The following table sets out the cash and stock components of the
consideration to be paid to (i) the shareholders and equity interest holders of each US Founding Company and to
(i1) the Canadian Founding Companies. The cash and stock consideration payable at closing are each allocated in
the following table between the amount payable as the base combination consideration and additional amounts
payable as contingent consideration, payable for an equity interest in an affiliate of one of the Founding
Companies, or payable on account of recent capital expenditures that will inure to our benefit. In addition, the
cash component of the Combination Consideration is subject to adjustment based on various factors (see “—Cash
Consideration Adjustments™). For purposes of the footnotes to this table, the term the “closing” refers to the
closing of this offering and the Combinations.

Cash Combination Consideration Stock Combination Consideration

Promissory

Founding Company Base Additional Total Notes Base (1) Additional (1) Total (1)
US Founding Companies
Don’s Automotive Mall,
Inc..................... $ 9,253,000 — $ 9,253,000(2) — 606,075 — 606,075
Eiss Brothers, Inc. ........ 6,136,760  $245,000(3) 6,381,760 — 292,227 11,667(4) 303,894
Gary’s U-Pull It, Inc. . . . . .. 7,770,000 — 7,770,000(5) — 575,556 — 575,556
Green Oak Investments
LLC dba GO Auto
Recycling .............. 4,000,000 250,000(6) 4,250,000 $ 200,000(6) 333,334 — 333,334
Horseheads Automotive
Recycling, Inc. .......... 2,640,000 — 2,640,000 — 171,112 — 171,112
Jerry Brown, Ltd. ........ 6,511,048  2,415,000(7) 8,926,048(8) — 666,667 — 666,667
Leesville Auto Wreckers,
Inc..................... 14,302,500(9) — 14,302,500 —  501,112(10) — 501,112
Standard Auto Wreckers,
Inc.(11) ................ 12,000,000 — 12,000,000 — — — —
Canadian Founding
Companies(11)
2434861 Ontario Inc.(12) .. — 3,350,000 3,350,000 — — — —
End of Life Vehicles Inc. .. 600,000 — 600,000 — — — —
Goldy Metals
Incorporated ............ 12,850,000  5,880,000(13) 18,730,000(14) — 494,444 280,000(15) 774,444
Goldy Metals (Ottawa)
Incorporated ............ 5,000,000 — 5,000,000 — 555,556 — 555,556
Total $ 81,063,308 $12,140,000 $93,203,308 $200,000 4,196,083 291,667 4,487,750
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These columns set out the number of shares of our common stock, or in the case of the Combinations
with the Canadian Founding Companies, the number of Exchangeable Preferred Shares of Fenix Parts
Canada, Inc., to be issued by Fenix or Fenix Parts Canada, Inc., as applicable, at the closing of the
Combinations.

This amount does not include consulting payments to be paid to two shareholders of Don’s. A
consulting payment in the amount of $50,000 a year will be paid to each of Donald Beagell, Jr. and
Michael Colsten for each of the first three years following the closing of this offering and the
Combinations. See “—Other Payments” and “—Related Party Consultant and Employment
Agreements.”

An additional $245,000 in cash will be deposited in escrow at the closing and will be paid to the
shareholders of Eiss Brothers only if certain EBITDA targets are satisfied during the twelve-month
period beginning with the month following the month of closing. See “—Holdbacks.”

An additional 11,667 shares will be deposited in escrow at the closing and will be paid to the
shareholders of Eiss Brothers only if certain EBITDA targets are satisfied during the twelve-month
period beginning with the month following the month of closing. See “—Holdbacks.”

This amount does not include consulting payments to be paid to two shareholders of Gary’s. A
consulting payment in the amount of $150,000 a year will be paid to Gary Beagell for each of the first
three years following the closing of this offering and the Combinations, and a consulting payment in the
amount of $75,000 a year will be paid to Linda Beagell for each of the first three years following the
closing of this offering and the Combinations. See “—Other Payments” and “—Related Party
Consultant and Employment Agreements.”

We have agreed to pay an additional $450,000 for our purchase of a 5% membership interest in GO
Pull-It, LLC, an affiliate of GO Auto, of which $250,000 is payable in cash at closing and $200,000 is
payable in the form of two-year promissory notes payable in equal installments on the first and second
anniversaries of the closing. See “—Other Payments.”

We have agreed to pay an additional $2,415,000 in cash at closing as reimbursement to the sharecholders
of Jerry Brown for capital expenses in connection with a new building located on land that we will
lease. See “—Other Payments.”

In addition to the cash amounts disclosed in the table above, the cash to be paid to the shareholders of
Jerry Brown may be increased if (i) certain revenue targets are satisfied during the twelve-month period
beginning with the month following the month of closing or (ii) certain EBITDA targets are satisfied in
calendar year 2016. See “—Earnouts.” The cash amounts disclosed in the table above also do not
include consulting payments to Gerald Brown, a former shareholder of Jerry Brown. A consulting
payment in the amount of $80,000 a year will be paid to Gerald Brown for each of the first fifteen years
following the closing of this offering and the Combinations, subject to exceptions. See “—Other
Payments.”

This amount includes $2,575,000 to be paid to key Leesville employees at the closing as bonuses. See
“—Other Payments.”

(10) This amount includes 271,112 restricted shares of our common stock to be issued to key Leesville

employees at the closing as retention bonuses. See “—Other Payments.”

(11)Prior to closing, the same two shareholders between them directly or indirectly own all of the issued and

outstanding shares of stock of Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., each of the Canadian Founding Companies
and 2434861 Ontario Inc.

(12) At closing, we will contribute $3,350,000 to our wholly owned subsidiary, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc., which

will then pay $3,350,000 to purchase the shares of 2434861 Ontario Inc., a special purpose, non-operating
company that will hold $3,350,000 in cash at closing. Following closing, we will cause 2434861 Ontario
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Inc. to transfer $3,350,000 to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc., which in turn will transfer the same amount to us.
We do not expect these transfers to incur any Canadian or United States income tax or to be subject to any
withholding requirement. (2434861 Ontario Inc. appears in this table to aid the reader’s understanding
regarding Combination Consideration, but it should not be viewed as a Founding Company).

(13) An additional $5,880,000 in cash or, at our option, in the form of a letter of credit under our credit
facility, will be deposited in escrow and will be paid to the Canadian Founding Companies only if
certain revenue targets are satisfied during the twelve-month period beginning with the month following
the month of closing. See “—Holdbacks” and “Credit Facility.”

(14) This amount does not include a salary payable to Kenneth Gold, the shareholder of Goldy Metals
Incorporated. A salary in the amount of $50,000 will be paid to Kenneth Gold during the first year
following the closing of this offering and the Combinations. See “—Other Payments” and “—Related
Party Consultant and Employment Agreements.”

(15) An additional 280,000 Exchangeable Preferred Shares of Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. will be deposited in
escrow and will be paid to the Canadian Founding Companies only if certain revenue targets are
satisfied during the twelve-month period beginning with the month following the month of closing. See
“—Holdbacks.”

Earnouts. The Combination Agreement with Jerry Brown contains two earnout provisions. Each earnout
is payable in cash if certain performance targets are achieved. Under the first earnout provision, if Jerry Brown’s
revenues from specific types of sales (the “Selected Revenues”) for the twelve-month period beginning with the
month following the month of the closing of this offering and the Combinations (the “Earnout Period”) are
greater than Jerry Brown’s Selected Revenues for 2013, we will pay Jerry Brown’s shareholders an amount equal
to seven times the excess, up to $1,750,000. If Selected Revenues for the Earnout Period are equal to or less than
Selected Revenues for 2013, we will not make any additional payments to Jerry Brown’s shareholders with
respect to Selected Revenues.

Under the second earnout provision, if Jerry Brown’s EBITDA for 2016 exceeds $1,753,000, we will
pay Jerry Brown’s shareholders an amount equal to three times the excess. If Jerry Brown’s EBITDA for 2016 is
equal to or less than $1,753,000, we will not make any additional payment with respect to EBITDA.

Other Payments. We will pay additional cash to the Canadian Founding Companies for the inventory in
excess of 500 scrap autos located at each of their two self-services facilities. The per-auto purchase price will be
based on the average amount paid for autos during the thirty days prior to the closing of this offering and the
Combinations.

We will enter into a construction reimbursement agreement with Jerry Brown’s shareholders under
which we will fund $2,415,000 for expenditures incurred in connection with new building construction,
improvements, equipment, furniture and fixtures, which was completed in January, 2015. Additionally, we will
pay to Jerry Brown’s shareholders an amount equal to the value of Jerry Brown’s new and aftermarket or
“takeoff” inventory, the amount of which will be agreed to by the parties, but in no event more than $550,000.

We will pay bonuses to certain key Leesville employees, which in the aggregate will consist of
(1) $2,575,000 in cash and (ii) 271,112 restricted shares of our common stock. The cash component will be paid
at the closing of this offering and the Combinations. The restricted shares will be granted at the closing of this
offering and the Combinations, but will vest twelve months after grant date.

We will pay consulting fees to certain shareholders and former shareholders of certain Founding
Companies following the closing of this offering and the Combinations. A consulting payment in the amount of
$50,000 a year will be paid to each of Donald Beagell, Jr. and Michael Colsten, both of whom are shareholders
of Don’s, for three years. A consulting payment in the amount of $150,000 a year for Gary Beagell and $75,000 a
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year for Linda Beagell, both of whom are shareholders of Gary’s, will be paid for three years. A consulting
payment in the amount of $80,000 a year will be paid to Gerald Brown, a former shareholder of Jerry Brown, for
fifteen years, subject to exceptions set forth in his consulting agreement, as amended. A salary in the amount of
$50,000 will be paid to Kenneth Gold, the shareholder of Goldy Metals Incorporated, for one year.

GO Pull-It, LLC, a Florida limited liability company (“Go Pull-It”), is an affiliate of GO Auto that
operates a self-service auto recycling business. At the closing of the Combinations and this offering, we will
enter into a purchase and option agreement with the members of GO Pull-It under which we will (i) purchase 5%
of the outstanding membership interests in GO Pull-It; (ii) receive an option to purchase all (but not less than all)
of the remaining membership interests in GO Pull-It; and (iii) receive a right of first refusal to purchase the
remaining membership interests in GO Pull-It in the event that GO Pull-It receives an offer from an unaffiliated
third party to purchase GO Pull-It. We have agreed to pay $450,000 for the 5% of GO Pull It’s outstanding
membership interests, $250,000 of which will be paid in cash at closing and $200,000 of which will be paid by
delivery of two-year promissory notes. The call option may be exercised on or before December 31, 2016 for a
purchase price of $9,500,000. The call option may be exercised after December 31, 2016 through and including
December 31, 2021 for a purchase price equal to a pro rata portion of GO Pull-It’s value, with value being equal
to the product of (i) trailing six months annualized EBITDA, multiplied by (ii) seven. The right of first refusal
terminates on December 31, 2021.

As part of the Combinations with the Canadian Founding Companies, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. will
purchase the outstanding shares of 2434861 Ontario Inc. at closing for $3,350,000. 2434861 Ontario Inc. is a
special purpose company that will hold $3,350,000 in cash at the closing.

Shareholders of certain Founding Companies are also owners of entities that will serve as landlords for
certain of our facilities following the closing of this offering and the Combinations. Some of these shareholders
will continue to be associated with Fenix following the closing of this offering and the Combinations. As a result,
such shareholders may directly or indirectly receive lease payments paid by us following the closing of this
Offering and the Combinations. See “Business—Facilities” and “—Related Party Consideration in Connection
with the Combinations.”

Holdbacks. The Combination Agreements for Eiss Brothers and the Canadian Founding Companies
each provides for a holdback of Combination Consideration which will be payable only if certain performance
hurdles are achieved.

The maximum amount of consideration that is subject to the holdback for Eiss Brothers is $245,000 in
cash plus 11,667 shares of our common stock, each of which will be held in escrow upon the closing of the
Combinations. If for the twelve-month period beginning with the month following the month of the closing of
this offering and the Combinations (the “Holdback Period”), the EBITDA of Eiss Brothers is the same as or
greater than Eiss Brothers” EBITDA for 2013 (approximately $484,000) plus $50,000 (the “EBITDA Target”),
Eiss Brothers shareholders will be entitled to receive the full amount of the $245,000 in cash and all of the shares
of our common stock held in escrow. If Eiss Brothers” EBITDA for the Holdback Period is less than the EBITDA
Target (the extent of such shortfall, the “Eiss Shortfall”), we will receive out of escrow (i) a cash distribution
equal to the product determined by multiplying (A) an amount equal to seven times the Eiss Shortfall by (B) a
fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of the cash held in escrow, and the denominator of which is the
sum of the cash held in escrow plus the value of the shares of our common stock held in escrow at the per share
public offering price, subject to exceptions; plus (ii) the same percentage of the earnings on the cash held in
escrow as we receive in accordance with (i), above; plus (iii) a portion of the shares of our common stock held in
escrow equal to the product determined by multiplying (A) an amount equal to seven times the Eiss Shortfall by
(B) a fraction, the numerator of which is the value of the shares of our common stock held in escrow at the per
share public offering price, and the denominator of which is the sum of the cash held in escrow plus the value at
the per share public offering price, subject to exceptions, of the shares of our common stock held in escrow. The
Eiss Brothers shareholders will be entitled to any amounts of cash and stock remaining in escrow after
distributions are made to us.
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The maximum amount of consideration that is subject to the holdback for the Canadian Founding
Companies, in the aggregate, is $5,880,000 in cash or, at our option, in the form of a letter of credit under the
credit facility, plus 280,000 Exchangeable Preferred Shares, both of which will be held in escrow upon the
closing of the Combinations. See “Credit Facility.” If, during the Holdback Period, the Canadian Founding
Companies’ combined revenue from specific types of sales (for example, sales of tires, catalytic converters and
scrap, among other types) (“Post-Closing Revenue”) is the same as or greater than the sum of combined revenue
from the same types of sales for the twelve-month period ending with the month prior to the month of the closing
of this offering and the Combinations (the “Prior Period”) plus $1,200,000, Goldy Metals Incorporated will be
entitled to receive the full amount of the $5,880,000 in cash plus all of the Exchangeable Preferred Shares held in
escrow. If Post-Closing Revenue is less than the sum of combined revenue from the same types of sales for the
Prior Period plus $1,200,000 (the extent of such shortfall, the “Canadian Shortfall”’), Fenix Parts Canada, Inc.
will receive out of escrow (i) a cash distribution equal to the product determined by multiplying (A) $5,880,000
by (B) a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of the Canadian Shortfall, and the denominator of which
is $1,200,000; plus (ii) the same percentage of the earnings on the cash held in escrow as it receives in
accordance with (i), above; plus (iii) a portion of Exchangeable Preferred Shares held in escrow equal to the
product determined by multiplying (A) the number of Exchangeable Preferred Shares held in escrow by (B) a
fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of the Canadian Shortfall, and the denominator of which is
$1,200,000. Goldy Metals Incorporated will be entitled to any amounts of cash and Exchangeable Preferred
Shares remaining in escrow after distributions are made to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc.

Summary of the Terms of the Combination Agreements

Timing of Closing. We expect that the Combinations will close concurrently with the consummation of
this offering. Unless we close all of the Combinations, we will not close any of the Combinations and will not
close this offering.

Representations and Warranties. Each Combination Agreement contains a number of representations
and warranties made on the one hand by Fenix Parts, Inc. (and Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. in connection with the
Combinations with the Canadian Founding Companies) and on the other hand by the shareholders or equity
interest holders of the applicable Founding Company (and, in the case of the Canadian Founding Companies, the
Canadian Founding Companies themselves). These representations and warranties were made as of the date of
the Combination Agreement or, in some cases, as of a date specified in the representation, and may be qualified
by reference to knowledge, materiality or schedules to the Combination Agreement disclosing exceptions to the
representations and warranties. The content of the representations and warranties reflects the results of arms’
length negotiations between the parties regarding their contractual rights. The descriptions of the provisions
below are made for the purpose of describing the terms of the Combination Agreements and not as an affirmation
of the accuracy of such representations and warranties.

Each party made representations to the other including, among others, representations concerning due
organization, authority, enforceability, capital stock, noncontravention and legal proceedings.

The shareholders (or equity interest holders) of the Founding Companies (and in the case of the
Canadian Founding Companies, the Canadian Founding Companies themselves) made additional representations
to Fenix Parts, Inc. (and to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. in the case of the Canadian Founding Companies), including,
among others, representations concerning title to assets, real property, personal property, intellectual property,
computer hardware and software, inventory, accounts receivable, contracts, permits, undisclosed liabilities, taxes,
employee benefit plans, compliance with ERISA, insurance, absence of changes, environmental matters,
organized labor matters and certain business practices.

Indemnification. The shareholders (or equity interest holders) of each Founding Company (and in the
case of the Canadian Founding Companies, the Canadian Founding Companies themselves) have generally
agreed to indemnify us and hold us harmless, and we (and Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. in connection with the

103



Combinations with the Canadian Founding Companies) have generally agreed to indemnify and hold each of
them harmless, from losses relating to a breach by the indemnifying party of its representations and warranties or
covenants contained in the respective Combination Agreement, or the breach of or failure to perform any of its
obligations relating to certain tax matters. Losses relating to a breach of a representation, warranty or covenant
generally may be indemnified if asserted prior to the second anniversary of the closing date of this offering or
prior to the third anniversary of the closing date for breaches by the shareholders of the Founding Companies or
Canadian Founding Companies of certain tax or environmental representations. Indemnification claims relating
to breaches of certain representations or warranties related to shareholder ownership or ownership of assets may
generally be asserted at any time without limit.

The shareholders of Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc. have also agreed to indemnify us and hold us
harmless from losses relating to any counterclaim in connection with its current lawsuit against underwriters at
Lloyds of London pending in New York state courts (the “Lloyds of London Litigation”). Indemnification claims
relating to the Lloyds of London Litigation may be asserted at any time without limit. The shareholders of the
Canadian Founding Companies, as well as the Canadian Founding Companies themselves, have also agreed to
indemnify and hold us and Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. harmless from losses resulting from any liability excluded
from the asset purchases in such Combination (the “Excluded Liabilities”), among other things. Indemnification
claims relating to the Excluded Liabilities may be asserted at any time without limit.

The obligation of the shareholders (or equity interest holders) of each Founding Company (and in the
case of the Canadian Founding Companies, the Canadian Founding Companies themselves) to indemnify us is
generally capped at 40% of the total value of the cash and stock consideration received by such shareholders (or
Canadian Founding Company) in the particular Combination (the “combination purchase price”), except for
certain claims for losses relating to any fraud or intentional misrepresentation, the Lloyds of London Litigation or
any Excluded Liabilities, for which recovery is not capped. We will not be entitled to indemnification from the
shareholders of any Founding Company or from any Canadian Founding Company unless the aggregate amount
we are entitled to by the shareholders of that Founding Company or by the Canadian Founding Company exceeds
1% of the applicable combination purchase price. This threshold does not apply to any loss we incur relating to
certain tax claims, any fraud or intentional misrepresentation, the Lloyds of London Litigation or any Excluded
Liability. There is no threshold for any claim of indemnification by the shareholders of any Founding Company
or by any Canadian Founding Company.

Noncompetition Agreement. Each of the Combination Agreements contains a closing condition that each
shareholder (or equity interest holder) of the US Founding Companies (and, where appropriate, each of the
Canadian Founding Companies) enter into an agreement with us restricting such shareholders’ or Canadian
Founding Company’s ability to compete with us or solicit our employees for five years after the closing.
Additionally, several of these Founding Company shareholders (or equity interest holders) will enter into
employment or consulting agreements with us containing non-compete and non-solicitation covenants.

Closing Conditions. The obligations of Fenix Parts, Inc. (and in the case of the Combinations with the
Canadian Founding Companies, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc.) and the shareholders (or equity interest holders) of
each Founding Company (and in the case of the Combinations with the Canadian Founding Companies, the
Canadian Founding Companies themselves) to complete a particular Combination are subject to the satisfaction
or waiver of conditions including, among others:

e Conditions to all parties’ duty to complete the Combinations:

e the accuracy as of the closing date of the representations and warranties made by the other
parties in the Combination Agreement;

e the other parties’ execution and delivery of all of the documents and instruments that they are
required to execute and deliver or enter into prior to or at closing, and performance, compliance
with or satisfaction in all material respects of the other obligations, agreements and conditions
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under the Combination Agreement that they are required to perform, comply with or satisfy at
or prior to closing;

e the absence of any actual or threatened suit, action or other proceeding that challenges or seeks
damages or other relief in connection with the Combination or that could have the effect of
preventing, delaying, making illegal or otherwise interfering with the Combinations;

e for Combinations with the US Founding Companies, with the exception of Standard Auto
Wreckers, Inc., the receipt by the parties of the written opinion of Grant Thornton LLP to the
effect that the exchange of the shareholders’ shares in the particular US Founding Company for
the consideration will qualify as a transaction meeting the requirements of Section 351 of the
Internal Revenue Code; and

e the closing of each other Combination shall have occurred or will occur contemporaneously
with the closing of the Combination and this offering.

e Conditions to Fenix’s duty to complete the combination:

e cach Founding Company has achieved a specified earnings target for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2013, and is reasonably expected to do so for the twelve months ending
December 31, 2014;

e cach Founding Company shall not have sustained a material adverse change; and

e key personnel of each Founding Company shall have entered into employment agreements with
Fenix Parts, Inc.

e Additional conditions to the shareholders’ duty to complete the Combination:
e the public offering price shall be $8.00 per share or higher.

Termination of the Combination Agreements. Each Combination Agreement may be terminated, under
certain circumstances, prior to the closing of this offering, including:

e by either Fenix or the shareholders (or equity interest holders) of the Founding Company (and, in the
case of the Canadian Founding Companies, the Canadian Founding Companies themselves) if a breach
or default by the other party in the performance of any of its material obligations under the Combination
Agreement occurs and is not cured within ten business days;

e by either Fenix or the shareholders (or equity interest holders) of the Founding Company (and, in the
case of the Canadian Founding Companies, the Canadian Founding Companies themselves) if the other
party fails to satisfy any closing condition by the Outside Date (as defined below), or the satisfaction of
any closing condition becomes impossible;

e by either Fenix or the shareholders (or equity interest holders) of the Founding Company (and, in the
case of the Canadian Founding Companies, the Canadian Founding Companies themselves) if this
offering and the Combination with the Founding Company have not closed by May 15, 2015, subject to
certain exceptions (the “Outside Date”); or

e by the written agreement of Fenix and the shareholders (or equity interest holders) of the Founding
Company (and, in the case of the Canadian Founding Companies, the Canadian Founding Companies
themselves).
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No Combination Agreement provides for a termination fee for the benefit of any party thereto if such
Combination Agreement is terminated by any party. There can be no assurance that the conditions to the closing
of the Combinations will be satisfied or waived or that the Combination Agreements will not be terminated prior
to the closing. However, if the Combinations are not completed, this offering will not be completed.

Lock-Up Agreement. Each of the Combination Agreements contains a closing condition that the
shareholders of the Founding Company enter into Lock-Up Agreements restricting such shareholders’ ability to
transfer the shares of our common stock or the Exchangeable Preferred Shares they receive in the Combination,
as applicable, subject to certain exceptions. These restrictions expire 180 days after the date of this prospectus.

Registration Rights. At the closing of this offering and the Combinations, Fenix and the shareholders of
each US Founding Company (other than Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc.) will enter into registration rights
agreements which provide piggyback registration rights to such shareholders. If, at any time prior to January 1,
2016, we propose to register any shares of our common stock, and the registration form to be used may be used
for the registration of any shares of our common stock received in connection with the Combinations, we must
provide notice of the registration to the US Founding Companies’ shareholders. The US Founding Companies’
shareholders shall be entitled to include the shares they received in connection with the Combinations in the
registration unless we (or the underwriters, if the offering is an underwritten offering) determine that including in
the registration the number of shares that the US Founding Companies’ shareholders have requested will
adversely affect the contemplated offering. If such determination is made, the number of such shares to be
included in the registration will be reduced pro rata.

Additionally, at the closing of this offering and the Combinations, Fenix and each Canadian Founding
Company (other than End of Life Vehicles Inc.) will enter into a registration rights agreement which provides
piggyback registration rights to such Canadian Founding Companies. If, at any time during the one-year period
beginning on the date on which such Canadian Founding Companies first receive Fenix common stock in
exchange for Exchangeable Preferred Shares received in connection with the Combinations, we propose to
register any shares of our common stock, and the registration form to be used may be used for the registration of
any shares of our common stock received in exchange for such Exchangeable Preferred Shares, we must provide
notice of the registration to such Canadian Founding Companies. Such Canadian Founding Companies shall be
entitled to include the shares they received in exchange for such Exchangeable Preferred Shares in the
registration unless we (or the underwriters, if the offering is an underwritten offering) determine that including in
the registration the number of shares that such Canadian Founding Companies have requested will adversely
affect the contemplated offering. If such determination is made, the number of such shares to be included in the
registration will be reduced pro rata. See “Description of Capital Stock of Fenix—Authorized and Outstanding
Capital Stock—Registration Rights Agreements.”
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Related Party Consideration in Connection with the Combinations

Individuals who are or will become our executive officers, directors, 5% stockholders or other related
persons will receive the following consideration from the Combinations (i) for their interests in their respective
Founding Company, subject to adjustments as described above, and (ii) in their respective capacities as lessors of
real property we will lease following the completion of this offering and the Combinations. Amounts set forth in
the “Rent Payments” column are for the aggregate base rental payments over the term of the relevant leases.

Combination Consideration

Cash (before Number of
Related Person adjustments) Shares Rent Payments

Gary Beagell(1) .......... $3,527,580 261,324 $1,447,527(2)
Linda Beagell(3) ......... 3,527,580 261,323 1,447,527(4)
Donald Beagell, Jr.(5) ..... 4,888,668 320,209 3,989,228(6)
David Gold(7) ........... 5,300,000 555,556(8) 8,198,000(9)
Kenneth Gold(10) ........ 31,030,000 774,444(11) 3,041,250(12)
Total ......... ... ..... $48,273,828 2,172,856(13) $18,123,541

(1) Gary Beagell will become a director prior to the closing of this offering. Gary Beagell will receive the cash
and shares of our common stock indicated above as consideration for his interest in Gary’s.

(2) Gary Beagell owns a 50% membership interest in Beagell Properties, LLC, which is the landlord of the
property at 13 Barlow Road, Binghamton, NY, which will be leased to Gary’s following the closing of this
offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of $132,000 in rent over the five year term of the lease for this
property. Gary Beagell’s percentage interest in the aggregate rental payment is $66,000. Beagell Properties,
LLC is also the landlord of the property at 230-246 Colesville Road, Binghamton, NY, which will be leased
to Gary’s following the closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of $2,763,055 in rent
over the 15 year term of the lease for this property. Gary Beagell’s percentage interest in the aggregate rental
payment is $1,381,527.

(3) Linda Beagell is the spouse of Gary Beagell, who will become a director prior to the closing of this offering.
Mrs. Beagell will receive the cash and shares of our common stock indicated above as consideration for her
interest in Gary’s.

(4) Linda Beagell owns a 50% membership interest in Beagell Properties, LLC, which is the landlord of the
property at 13 Barlow Road, Binghamton, NY, which will be leased to Gary’s following the closing of this
offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of $132,000 in rent over the five year term of the lease for this
property. Ms. Beagell’s percentage interest in the aggregate rental payment is $66,000. Beagell Properties,
LLC is also the landlord of the property at 230-246 Colesville Road, Binghamton, NY, which will be leased
to Gary’s following the closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of $2,763,055 in rent
over the 15 year term of the lease for this property. Ms. Beagell’s percentage interest in the aggregate rental
payment is $1,381,527.

(5) Donald Beagell, Jr. is the brother of Gary Beagell, who will become one of our directors prior to the closing
of this offering. Donald Beagell, Jr. will receive the cash and shares of our common stock indicated above as
consideration for his interest in Don’s.

(6) Donald Beagell owns a 50% membership interest in D & B Holdings, LLC, which is the landlord of the
property at 216 Colesville Road, Binghamton, NY, which will be leased to Don’s following the closing of
this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of $4,993,529 in rent over the 15 year term of the lease for
this property. Mr. Beagell’s interest in the aggregate rental payment is $2,496,765. Mr. Beagell also owns a
67% interest in BBHC, LLC, which is the landlord of the property at 1245 Sleepy Hollow Road, Pennsburg,
PA, which will be leased to Don’s following the closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate
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of $1,836,891 in rent over the 15 year term of the lease for this property. Mr. Beagell’s interest in the
aggregate rental payment is $1,230,717. Mr. Beagell also owns a 12.50% interest in Don’s Independent
Salvage Company, LLC, which is the landlord of the property at 1592 Sears Road, Elmira, NY, which will
be leased to Horseheads following the closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of
$2,093,964 in rent over the 15 year term of the lease for this property. Mr. Beagell’s interest in the aggregate
rental payment is $261,746.

David Gold will become an executive officer prior to the closing of this offering. David Gold will receive
$300,000 in cash by virtue of his 50% ownership of End of Life Vehicles Inc. He will receive $5,000,000 in
cash and beneficial ownership of 555,556 Exchangeable Preferred Shares by virtue of his 100% ownership
of Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated.

Consists of Exchangeable Preferred Shares of Fenix Parts Canada, Inc.

David Gold is the sole shareholder of Standard Auto Wreckers (Port Hope) Inc., which is the landlord of the
property at 260 Peter Street, Port Hope, Ontario, which will be leased to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. following
the closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of $4,500,000 in rent over the 15 year term
of the lease for this property. David Gold is also the sole shareholder of Standard Auto Wreckers (Cornwall)
Inc., which is the landlord of the property at 4345 Northfield Road, Cornwall, Ontario, which will be leased
to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. following the closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of
$798,000 in rent over the 15 year term of the lease for this property. David Gold is also the sole shareholder
of Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated, which is the landlord of the property at 5402 Old Richmond Road,
Ottawa, Ontario, which will be leased to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. following the closing of this offering. We
have agreed to pay an aggregate of $2,900,000 in rent over the 15 year term of the lease for this property.

(10) Kenneth Gold is the father of David Gold, who will become an executive officer of ours prior to the closing

of this offering. Kenneth Gold will receive $300,000 in cash by virtue of his 50% ownership of End of Life
Vehicles Inc. He will receive $12,000,000 in cash by virtue of his 100% indirect ownership of Standard Auto
Wreckers, Inc. He will receive $18,730,000 in cash and beneficial ownership of 774,444 Exchangeable
Preferred Shares by virtue of his 100% ownership of Goldy Metals Incorporated.

(11) Consists of Exchangeable Preferred Shares of Fenix Parts Canada, Inc.

(12) Kenneth Gold is the sole shareholder of Goldy Metals Incorporated. Kenneth Gold and Goldy Metals

Incorporated are the landlords of the property at as 1216 Sewells Road, Scarborough, Ontario which will be
leased to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. following the closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate
of $1,341,250 in rent over the 15 year term of the lease for this property. Kenneth Gold is also the sole
shareholder of Goldy Metals Holdings, Inc. Together, Goldy Metals Holdings, Inc. and Goldy Metals
Incorporated own all of the stock of Delana Realty Inc. Delana Realty Inc. is the landlord of the property at
3800 Highland Avenue, Niagara Falls, NY, which will be leased to Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. following the
closing of this offering. We have agreed to pay an aggregate of $1,700,000 in rent over the 15 year term of
the lease for this property.

(13) Consists of an aggregate of 842,857 shares of our common stock and 1,330,000 Exchangeable Preferred

Shares of Fenix Parts Canada, Inc.
Related Party Consultant and Employment Agreements

Following the closing of this offering and the Combinations, we will pay consulting fees and salaries to

certain related parties. We will pay a consulting fee in the amount of $50,000 a year to Donald Beagell, Jr. for
each of the first three years following the closing of this offering and the Combinations. Donald Beagell, Jr. is the
brother of Gary Beagell, who will become one of our directors prior to the closing of this offering. We will pay a
consulting fee in the amount of $150,000 a year to Gary Beagell for each of the first three years following the
closing of this offering and the Combinations, and another consulting fee in the amount of $75,000 a year to
Linda Beagell, the wife of Gary Beagell, for each of the first three years following the closing of this offering and
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the Combinations. We will also pay a salary in the amount of $50,000 to Kenneth Gold during the first year
following the closing of this offering and the Combinations. Kenneth Gold is the father of David Gold, who will
become an executive officer of ours prior to the closing of this offering.

Policies and Procedures for Related Person Transactions

Our board of directors has adopted a written related person policy to set forth the policies and
procedures for the review and approval or ratification of related person transactions. This policy will cover any
transaction, arrangement or relationship, or any series of similar transactions, arrangements or relationships in
which we are to be a participant, the amount involved exceeds $100,000 and a related person had or will have a
direct or indirect material interest, including purchases of goods or services by or from the related person or
entities in which the related person has a material interest, indebtedness, guarantees of indebtedness and
employment by us of a related person.
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The table below sets forth information regarding the projected beneficial ownership of our common
stock immediately after the closing of this offering, by the following individuals or groups:

e cach person or entity who is known by us to own beneficially more than 5% of our outstanding
stock;

e each of our executive officers;
e each of our directors and nominees for director; and

e all of our directors, nominees for director and executive officers as a group.

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes
voting or investment power with respect to the securities in question. Except as otherwise indicated, and subject
to applicable community property laws, the persons named in the table below have sole voting and investment
power with respect to all shares of our common stock held by them.

Shares of common stock issuable pursuant to a stock option, warrant or exchangeable share that is
currently exercisable or exchangeable, or is exercisable or exchangeable within 60 days after the date of
determination of ownership, are deemed to be outstanding and beneficially owned for purposes of computing the
percentage ownership of the holder of the stock option, warrant or exchangeable share but are not treated as
outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

The applicable percentage ownership “Before the Offering” in the following table is based on 2,732,923
shares of our common stock outstanding as of April 20, 2015, and assumes a 2,000-for-1 common stock split that
will occur immediately prior to the closing of this offering. The applicable percentage ownership “After the
Offering” in the following table (i) includes the 12,000,000 shares of our common stock issued in this offering,
(i1) assumes that the underwriters’ over-allotment option will not be exercised and (iii) includes 3,157,750 shares
of our common stock to be issued in the Combinations with the US Founding Companies concurrently with the
closing of this offering. No person holds any stock options, warrants or similar instruments currently exercisable
or exercisable as of or within 60 days after the closing of this offering. Upon completion of this offering, the
Canadian Founding Companies and their shareholders will collectively beneficially own 1,330,000 Exchangeable
Preferred Shares which, upon issuance, will be convertible at any time into shares of our common stock. Shares
of our common stock issuable in exchange for Exchangeable Preferred Shares are deemed to be outstanding and
beneficially owned for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of the beneficial owner of Exchangeable
Preferred Shares but are not treated as outstanding for purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any
other person. Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each shareholder in the following table is c/o Fenix
Parts, Inc., One Westbrook Corporate Center, Suite 920, Westchester, Illinois 60154.

Immediately Before

Offering Immediately After Offering(11)
Number of Number of
Shares Percentage Shares Percentage

Beneficially of Shares Beneficially of Shares
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Outstanding Owned Outstanding
Executive Officers and Directors
Kent Robertson(1) .............. ... ...... 780,000 28.5% 780,000 4.6%
Scott Pettit(2) ... ... 240,000 8.8% 240,000 1.4%
DavidGold(3) ... — — 555,556 3.2%
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Immediately Before

Offering Immediately After Offering(11)
Number of Number of
Shares Percentage Shares Percentage

Beneficially of Shares Beneficially of Shares
Name of Beneficial Owner Owned Outstanding Owned Outstanding
Nominees for Director
Gary Beagell(4) ........... ... ..., — — 522,647 3.1%
Steven Dayton(5) . ......... ... .. ... 154,615.4 5.7% 154,615.4 *
Richard Kogler(6) ........................ 14,000 * 14,000 *
Thomas O’Brien(7) ....................... 15,384.6 * 15,384.6 *
Frank ten Brink(8) ........................ 14,000 * 14,000 *
All executive officers, directors and nominees
for director as a group (8 persons) ........... 1,218,000 44.6% 2,296,203 13.2%
Additional 5% Stockholders
RossBerner(9) . ........ ... ... . ... 458,000 16.8% 458,000 2.7%
Steven Colmar(10) ............. ... ....... 310,000 11.3% 310,000 1.8%

sk

(1)

2)
A3)

4)

)

(6)
(7
®)
)

(10)

(11)

Less than 1% of our outstanding shares of common stock.

Mr. Robertson is our President and Chief Executive Officer and our sole director. Consists of 780,000
shares of our common stock.

Mr. Pettit is our Chief Financial Officer. Consists of 240,000 shares of our common stock.

Mr. Gold will be appointed our Executive Vice President and the President of Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. prior
to the closing of this offering. Consists of 555,556 Exchangeable Preferred Shares to be held by Goldy
Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated following the closing of this offering and the Combinations. Mr. Gold is the
sole shareholder of Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated. Each Exchangeable Preferred Share is
exchangeable for one share of our common stock at any time following the closing of this offering and the
closing of the Combinations.

Mr. Beagell will be elected a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Includes the 261,324 shares
of our common stock Mr. Beagell will receive at the closing of this offering and the Combinations as part of
the consideration for his interest in Gary’s and the 261,323 shares of our common stock that his wife, Linda
Beagell, will receive at the closing of this offering and the Combinations as part of the consideration for her
interest in Gary’s.

Mr. Dayton will be elected a director effective prior to the closing of the offering. Consists of 154,615.4
shares of common stock held by the Dayton Family Limited Partnership. Mr. Dayton is the sole member of
the general partner of the Dayton Family Limited Partnership.

Mr. Kogler will be elected a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Consists of 14,000 shares
of our common stock.

Mr. O’Brien will be elected a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Consists of 15,384.6
shares of our common stock.

Mr. ten Brink will be elected a director effective prior to the closing of this offering. Consists of 14,000
shares of our common stock held by the Franciscus J.M. ten Brink Trust, of which Mr. ten Brink is trustee.
Consists of 458,000 shares of our common stock held by Mr.Berner. Mr. Berner’s business address is P. O.
Box 475097, San Francisco CA 94147.

Consists of 300,000 shares of our common stock owned by Business Ventures Corp., a Texas corporation of
which Mr. Colmar is the president and sole shareholder, and 10,000 shares of common stock held directly by
Mr. Colmar. Mr. Colmar’s business address is 1108 Lavaca Street, #110-247, Austin, Texas 78701.

The number of shares and percentages listed in these columns do not give effect to the transfers by our
founders to the bridge investors discussed in “Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions—
Related Person Transactions—Our Formation and Organization.”
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CREDIT FACILITY

On April 22,2015, we signed a mandate letter with BMO Harris Bank N.A., as administrative agent for
the financial institutions and other lenders who may participate, for a proposed $35,000,000 senior secured credit
facility on terms outlined in a term sheet attached to the mandate letter.

The mandate letter does not constitute a commitment to make the credit facility available to us, nor does
it include all of the terms, conditions, covenants, representations, warranties and other provisions that would be
included in the documents governing the credit facility. Rather it sets out the principal terms and conditions upon
which BMO Harris Bank N.A. will pursue internal credit approval of the facility. The credit facility will be
expressly contingent upon the completion of this offering and the completion of this offering is likewise
contingent upon the execution of the credit facility.

The term sheet proposes a senior secured credit facility in the total amount of $35,000,000. Of that
amount, $25,000,000 would be available as a revolving credit facility, allocated $20,000,000 to us in U.S.
Dollars, with a $7,500,000 sublimit for letters of credit, and $5,000,000 in either Canadian Dollars or U.S.
Dollars, with a $2,500,000 sublimit for letters of credit. The remaining $10,000,000 would be available to us as a
term loan. We have the right from time to time, as long as no default is occurring, to request an increase in the
amount of the revolving credit facility by up to an aggregate of $20,000,000. Proceeds of the credit facility would
be used for capital expenditures, working capital, permitted acquisitions, general corporate purposes and for
certain fees and expenses associated with the closing of the credit facility and this offering. The term of the
revolving credit facility and the term loan facility would be five years.

The credit facility would be secured by a first-priority perfected security interest in substantially all of
our assets as well as all of the assets of our domestic subsidiaries, who would also guaranty our borrowings. In
addition, we would be required to pledge all of the stock in our domestic subsidiaries as security and 66% of the
stock of our direct, Canadian subsidiary, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. (other than its exchangeable preferred shares).

Our U.S. borrowings under the credit facility would bear interest at fluctuating rates determined
quarterly, at our election in advance for any applicable interest period, by reference to the “base rate” plus the
applicable margin within the relevant range of margins provided in the term sheet. The base rate is the highest of
(1) the rate BMO Harris Bank N.A. announces as its “prime rate,” (ii) 0.50% above the rate on overnight federal
funds transactions or (iii) the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) for an interest period of one month plus
1.00%. The applicable margin is based on our total leverage ratio. The term sheet provides that the initial margin
for interest rates on borrowings under the credit facility will be 2.00% on LIBOR loans and 1.00% on base rate
loans.

Our Canadian borrowings under the credit facility would bear interest at fluctuating rates determined
quarterly, at our election in advance for any applicable interest period, by reference to the “Canadian base rate”
plus the applicable margin within the relevant range of margins provided in the term sheet. The Canadian base
rate is the higher of (i) the rate the Bank of Montreal announces as its “reference rate,” or (ii) the Canadian Dollar
Offered Rate (CDOR) for an interest period equal to the term of any applicable borrowing plus 0.50%. The
applicable margin is based on our total leverage ratio. The term sheet provides that the initial margin for interest
rates on borrowings under the credit facility will be 1.00% on base rate loans.

We anticipate that the credit agreement for the credit facility will contain customary events of default,
including our failure to pay any principal, interest or other amount when due, our violation of certain of our
affirmative covenants or any of our negative covenants or a breach of our representations and warranties and, in
certain circumstances, a change of control. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, payment of our
indebtedness may be accelerated and the lending commitments may be terminated.

112



DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK OF FENIX
Authorized and Outstanding Capital Stock

As of April 20, 2015, our authorized capital stock consisted of 30,000,000 shares of common stock,
$0.001 par value per share, of which 1,366.4615 shares are issued and outstanding, held of record by 50
stockholders, one share of special voting stock, none of which is issued and outstanding, and 100,000 shares of
preferred stock, none of which is issued and outstanding. Such issued and outstanding amounts do not reflect the
2,000-for-1 common stock split to occur immediately prior to this offering. Upon completion of this offering,
there will be 17,890,673 shares of common stock outstanding and one share of special voting stock outstanding.
No shares of preferred stock will be outstanding. The following description of our capital stock is only a
summary and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by our amended and restated certificate of incorporation
(our “certificate of incorporation”) and amended and restated bylaws (our “bylaws”), which are included as
exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, and by the applicable provisions of
Delaware law.

Common Stock

Holders of common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters to be voted upon by the
stockholders, including the election of directors. Such holders are not entitled to vote cumulatively for the
election of directors. Holders of a majority of the shares of common stock may elect all of the directors standing
for election. Subject to preferences that may be applicable to any outstanding preferred stock, common
stockholders are entitled to receive ratably such dividends, if any, as may be declared from time to time by the
board of directors out of funds legally available for that purpose. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution or
winding, the common stockholders are entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining after payment of liabilities,
subject to prior distribution rights of preferred stock, if any, then outstanding. Common stockholders have no
preemptive or conversion rights or other subscription rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund provisions
applicable to the common stock.

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently expect to retain
future earnings, if any, to finance the growth and development of our business and do not anticipate paying any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Special Voting Stock

The single share of special voting stock will be entitled, when issued, to vote on any matter submitted to
a vote of holders of our common stock a number of votes equal to the number of Exchangeable Preferred Shares
of Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. issued to the shareholders of the Canadian Founding Companies. The share of special
voting stock is intended to provide the shareholders of the Canadian Founding Companies the equivalent voting
rights in Fenix common stock they would have received if the Combination Agreement for the Canadian
Founding Companies had required us to issue shares of Fenix common stock instead of Exchangeable Preferred
Shares.

The share of special voting stock will be held in a voting trust for the benefit of the shareholders of the
Canadian Founding Companies, and the trustee of the voting trust will vote the share of special voting stock in
accordance with the beneficiaries’ directions. Neither the holder of the share of special voting stock nor the
beneficiaries of the share of special voting stock will be entitled to receive any dividends or other distributions
that we may make in respect of shares of our common stock.

Preferred Stock

The board of directors is authorized, without action by the stockholders, to designate and issue preferred
stock in one or more series and to designate the powers, preferences and rights of each series, which may be
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greater than the rights of the common stock. It is not possible to state the actual effect of the issuance of any
shares of preferred stock upon the rights of holders of the common stock until the board of directors determines
the specific rights of the holders of such preferred stock. However, the effects might include, among other things:

e impairing dividend rights of the common stock;

e diluting the voting power of the common stock;

e impairing the liquidation rights of the common stock; and

e delaying or preventing a change in control of us without further action by the stockholders.
Registration Rights Agreements

At the closing of the offering, we will enter into registration rights agreements with certain of our
stockholders. The following describes the rights granted pursuant such agreements.

Piggyback Registration Rights. If, at any time prior to January 1, 2016 (or, in certain cases, during the
period beginning one year after Exchangeable Preferred Shares are exchanged for our common stock), we
propose to register any shares of our common stock under the Securities Act, and the registration form to be used
may be used for the registration of any shares of our common stock (i) issued and delivered as part of the
Combination Consideration, (ii) issued in exchange for any Exchangeable Preferred Shares issued and delivered
as part of the Combination Consideration and (iii) issued to investors in the First Bridge Offering and the Second
Bridge Offering (collectively, the “Registrable Shares”), then we are required to give notice to all holders of
Registrable Shares and provide them with the right to include their shares in the registration. Such piggyback
registration rights are subject to certain exceptions, conditions and limitations, including, without limitation, pro
rata reductions in the number of shares to be sold by holders of Registrable Shares.

Expenses of Registration. We are required to bear the registration expenses associated with any
registration in accordance with the registration rights agreements, including the reasonable fees of one counsel

chosen by the holders of a majority of the Registrable Shares included in the registration.

See “The Combinations with the Founding Companies—Summary of the Terms of the Combination
Agreements—Registration Rights.”

Warrants
As of the date of this prospectus, no warrants to purchase shares of common stock were outstanding.
Anti-Takeover Provisions

Certain provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could make the
following more difficult:

e the acquisition of us by means of a tender offer;

e acquisition of control of us by means of a proxy contest or otherwise; and

e the removal of our incumbent officers and directors.

These provisions, summarized below, are expected to discourage certain types of coercive takeover
practices and inadequate takeover bids, and are designed to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to

negotiate with our board of directors. We believe that the benefits of increased protection against an unfriendly or
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unsolicited proposal to acquire or restructure us outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging such proposals.
Among other things, negotiation of such proposals could result in an improvement of their terms.

Delaware Anti-Takeover Law. We are subject to Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law,
an anti-takeover law. In general, Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware corporation from engaging in a
“business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a period of three years following the date the person
became an interested stockholder, unless the “business combination” or the transaction in which the person
became an interested stockholder is approved by our board of directors in a prescribed manner. Generally, a
“business combination” includes a merger, asset or stock sale, or other transaction resulting in a financial benefit
to the interested stockholder. Generally, an “interested stockholder” is a person who, together with affiliates and
associates, owns or, within three years prior to the determination of interested stockholder status, did own, 15%
or more of a corporation’s voting stock. The existence of this provision may have an anti-takeover effect with
respect to transactions not approved in advance by the board of directors, including discouraging attempts that
might result in a premium over the market price for the shares of common stock held by stockholders.

Stockholder Meetings. Under our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, only the board of directors, the
chairman of the board, the chief executive officer and the president may call special meetings of stockholders.

No Cumulative Voting. Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws do not provide for cumulative voting
in the election of directors.

Undesignated Preferred Stock. The authorization of undesignated preferred stock makes it possible for
the board of directors without stockholder approval to issue preferred stock with voting or other rights or
preferences that could impede the success of any attempt to obtain control of us. These and other provisions may
have the effect of deferring hostile takeovers or delaying changes in control or management of us.

Provisions in the Certificate of Incorporation. The certificate of incorporation generally requires the
affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock in order to amend any
provisions of the certificate of incorporation concerning, among other things:

e the required vote to amend the certificate of incorporation;

e management of the business by the board of directors;

e number of directors;

e removal and appointment of directors;

e director nominations by stockholders;

e personal liability of directors to us and our stockholders; and

e indemnification of our directors, officers, employees and agents.
Limitations on Directors’ Liability and Indemnification

Our certificate of incorporation provides that our directors will not be personally liable to us or our
stockholders for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as directors, except liability for any of the
following:

e any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders;

e acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation
of law;

115



e payments of dividends or approval of stock repurchases or redemptions that are prohibited by
Delaware law; or

e any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit.

This limitation of liability does not apply to liabilities arising under the federal securities laws and does
not affect the availability of equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws provide that we shall indemnify our directors, officers,
employees and other agents to the fullest extent permitted by law. We believe that indemnification under our
bylaws covers at least negligence and gross negligence on the part of indemnified parties. Our bylaws also permit
us to secure insurance on behalf of any officer, director, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of
his or her actions in such capacity, regardless of whether Delaware law would permit indemnification.

We have entered into agreements to indemnify our directors and executive officers, in addition to the
indemnification provided for in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws. These agreements, among other
things, provide for indemnification of our directors and officers for expenses, judgments, fines, penalties and
settlement amounts incurred by any such person in any action or proceeding arising out of such person’s services
as a director or officer or at our request.

We believe that these provisions and agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as
directors and executive officers. There is no pending litigation or proceeding involving any of our directors,
officers, employees or agents. We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation or proceeding that might
result in a claim for indemnification by a director, officer, employee or agent.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust Company,
LLC. The telephone number of American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC is 1-800-937-5449.

Nasdaq Global Market Listing

We have been approved to list our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market under the symbol
“FENX.”
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Prior to this offering, there has been no market for our common stock, and there can be no assurance
that a significant public market for the common stock will develop or be sustained after this offering. Future sales
of substantial amounts of common stock, including shares issued upon exercise of outstanding options in the
public market following this offering could adversely affect market prices prevailing from time to time and could
impair our ability to raise capital through sale of our equity securities. As described below, no shares issued in
connection with this offering to the selling owners of the Founding Companies as partial consideration for their
shares or equity interests in the Founding Companies in connection with this offering will be available for sale
immediately after this offering because of certain contractual restrictions on resale. Sales of substantial amounts
of our common stock in the public market after the restrictions lapse, or the perception that such sales could
occur, could adversely affect the prevailing market price and our ability to raise equity capital in the future.

Sale of Restricted Shares

Based on the number of shares outstanding as of April 20, 2015, upon the closing of this offering and
assuming (a) no exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option and (b) no exchange of outstanding
exchangeable shares, we will have an aggregate of 17,890,673 shares of common stock outstanding. Of these
shares, all of the 12,000,000 shares of common stock to be sold in this offering, and any shares sold upon
exercise of the underwriters’ over-allotment option, will be freely tradable in the public market without
restriction or further registration under the Securities Act, unless the shares are held by any of our “affiliates” as
such term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. In general, affiliates include our executive officers,
directors and 10% stockholders.

Upon the closing of this offering, the remaining shares of our common stock will be “restricted
securities,” as that term is defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. These restricted securities are eligible for
public sale only if they are registered under the Securities Act or if they qualify for an exemption from
registration under Rules 144 or 701 under the Securities Act, which are summarized below.

Lock-Up Agreements

In connection with this offering, we, our founders, our directors, our executive officers and holders of
substantially all of our common stock have signed lock-up agreements agreeing, subject to certain exceptions,
not to sell, transfer, dispose of or hedge any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or
exchangeable for our common stock during the period from the date of the lock-up agreement continuing through
the date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, except with the prior written consent of BMO Capital Markets
Corp. and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated. One exception to the transfer restrictions contained in the
lock-up agreements allows our founders to effect previously-negotiated transfers of shares of our common stock
to the investors in the First Bridge Offering and Second Bridge Offering. See “Certain Relationships and Related
Person Transactions—Related Person Transactions—Our Formation and Organization.”

Following the lock-up periods set forth in the agreements described above, and assuming that the
representatives of the underwriters do not release any parties from these agreements, all of the shares of our
common stock that are restricted securities or are held by our affiliates as of the date of this prospectus will be
eligible for sale in the public market in compliance with Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

Rule 144

In general, under Rule 144 as currently in effect, beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, our
affiliates who have beneficially owned the shares proposed to be sold for at least six months are entitled to sell in
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the public market, upon expiration of any applicable lock-up agreements and within any three-month period, a
number of those shares of our common stock that does not exceed the greater of:

e 1% of the number of shares of common stock then outstanding, which will equal approximately
179,000 shares immediately after this offering; or

e the average weekly trading volume of our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market during the
four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a notice on Form 144 with respect to such sale.

Such sales under Rule 144 by our affiliates or persons selling shares on behalf of our affiliates are also
subject to certain manner of sale provisions, notice requirements and to the availability of current public
information about us.

In general, under Rule 144, as currently in effect, beginning 90 days after the date of this prospectus, a
person who is not deemed to have been one of our affiliates for purposes of Rule 144 at any time during the three
months preceding a sale, and who has beneficially owned restricted securities within the meaning of Rule 144 for
at least six months, including the holding period of any prior owner who was not an affiliate, is entitled to sell
those shares in the public market (subject to the lock-up agreement referred to above, if applicable) without
complying with the manner of sale, volume limitations or notice provisions of Rule 144, but subject to
compliance with the public information requirements of Rule 144. If such a person has beneficially owned the
shares proposed to be sold for at least one year, including the holding period of any prior owner who was not an
affiliate, then such person is entitled to sell such shares in the public market without complying with any of the
requirements of Rule 144 (subject to the lock-up agreement referred to above, if applicable).

Rule 701

Under Rule 701, each of our employees, officers, directors, consultants or advisors who purchased
shares pursuant to a written compensatory plan or contract is eligible to resell these shares 90 days after the
effective date of this offering in reliance upon Rule 144, but without compliance with specific restrictions. Rule
701 provides that our affiliates may sell their Rule 701 shares under Rule 144 without complying with the
holding period requirement and that persons other than our affiliates may sell their shares in reliance on Rule 144
without complying with the holding period, public information, volume limitation or notice provisions of
Rule 144.

Registration Statements

We intend to file a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act covering all of the shares
of common stock subject to options outstanding or reserved for issuance under our 2014 Stock Plan. We expect
to file this registration statement as soon as practicable after this offering. However, none of the shares registered
on Form S-8 will be eligible for resale until the expiration of the lock-up agreements to which they are subject.
As of December 31, 2014, options to purchase a total of zero shares were outstanding and a total of 2,750,000
shares were reserved for future issuance under our 2014 Stock Plan.
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MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS
FOR NON-U.S. HOLDERS

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax considerations relating to the
purchase, ownership and disposition of our common stock by Non-U.S. Holders (defined below). This summary
does not purport to be a complete analysis of all the potential tax considerations relevant to Non-U.S. Holders of
our common stock. This summary is based upon the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Internal
Revenue Code”), the Treasury regulations promulgated or proposed thereunder and administrative and judicial
interpretations thereof, all as of the date hereof and all of which are subject to change or differing interpretations
at any time, possibly with retroactive effect.

This summary assumes that shares of our common stock are held as “capital assets” within the meaning
of Section 1221 of the Internal Revenue Code. This summary does not purport to deal with all aspects of U.S.
federal income taxation that might be relevant to particular Non-U.S. Holders in light of their particular
investment circumstances or status, nor does it address specific tax considerations that may be relevant to
particular persons (including, for example, financial institutions, broker-dealers, insurance companies,
partnerships or other pass-through entities, certain U.S. expatriates, tax-exempt organizations, pension plans,
“controlled foreign corporations,” “passive foreign investment companies,” corporations that accumulate
earnings to avoid U.S. federal income tax, persons in special situations, such as those who have elected to mark
securities to market or those who hold common stock as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion transaction,
synthetic security or other integrated investment, or holders subject to the alternative minimum tax). In addition,
except as explicitly addressed herein with respect to estate tax, this summary does not address estate and gift tax
considerations or considerations under the tax laws of any state, local or non-U.S. jurisdiction.

For purposes of this summary, a “Non-U.S. Holder” means a beneficial owner of common stock that for
U.S. federal income tax purposes is not treated as a partnership and is not:

e an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States;

e acorporation or any other organization treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, created or organized in or under the laws of the United States, any state thereof or the
District of Columbia;

e an estate, the income of which is included in gross income for U.S. federal income tax purposes
regardless of its source; or

e atrust, if (i) a U.S. court is able to exercise primary supervision over the trust’s administration and
one or more U.S. persons have the authority to control all of the trust’s substantial decisions or
(ii) the trust has a valid election in effect under applicable U.S. Treasury regulations to be treated as
a U.S. person.

If an entity or arrangement that is classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds
our common stock, the tax treatment of persons treated as its partners for U.S. federal income tax purposes will
generally depend upon the status of the partner and the activities of the partnership. Partnerships and other
entities that are classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes and persons holding our common
stock through a partnership or other entity classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes are
urged to consult their own tax advisors.

There can be no assurance that the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) will not challenge one or more of
the tax consequences described herein, and we have not obtained, nor do we intend to obtain, a ruling from the
IRS with respect to the U.S. federal income or estate tax consequences to a Non-U.S. Holder of the purchase,
ownership or disposition of our common stock.
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THIS SUMMARY IS NOT INTENDED TO BE TAX ADVICE. EACH NON-U.S. HOLDER IS
URGED TO CONSULT ITS OWN TAX ADVISOR ABOUT THE U.S. FEDERAL INCOME AND ESTATE
TAXATION, STATE, LOCAL AND NON-U.S. TAXATION AND OTHER TAX CONSEQUENCES TO
THEM OF THE PURCHASE, OWNERSHIP AND DISPOSITION OF OUR COMMON STOCK.

Distributions on Our Common Stock

As discussed under “Dividend Policy” above, we do not currently expect to pay regular dividends on
our common stock. If we do make a distribution of cash or property with respect to our common stock, any such
distributions generally will constitute dividends for U.S. federal income tax purposes to the extent of our current
or accumulated earnings and profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. If a distribution
exceeds our current and accumulated earnings and profits, the excess will constitute a return of capital and will
first reduce the holder’s basis in our common stock, but not below zero. Any remaining excess will be treated as
capital gain, subject to the tax treatment described below in “—Gain on Sale, Exchange or Other Taxable
Disposition of Our Common Stock.” Any such distribution would also be subject to the discussion below in
“—Additional Withholding and Information Reporting Requirements.”

Dividends paid to a Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax
at a 30% rate unless such Non-U.S. Holder provides us or our agent, as the case may be, with the appropriate IRS
Form W-8, such as:

e IRS Form W-8BEN or W-8BEN-E, as applicable (or successor form) certifying, under penalties of
perjury, a reduction in the rate of withholding of tax under an applicable income tax treaty, or

e IRS Form W-8ECI (or successor form) certifying that a dividend paid on common stock is not
subject to withholding of tax because it is effectively connected with a trade or business in the
United States of the Non-U.S. Holder (in which case such dividend generally will be subject to
regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates as described below).

The certification requirement described above also may require a Non-U.S. Holder that provides an IRS
form or that claims treaty benefits to provide its U.S. taxpayer identification number. Special certification and
other requirements apply in the case of certain Non-U.S. Holders that are intermediaries or pass-through entities
for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Each Non-U.S. Holder is urged to consult its own tax advisor about the specific methods for satisfying
these requirements. A claim for exemption will not be valid if the person receiving the applicable form has actual
knowledge or reason to know that the statements on the form are false.

If dividends are effectively connected with a trade or business in the United States of a Non-U.S. Holder
(and, if required by an applicable income tax treaty, attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by such
Non-U.S. Holder in the United States), the Non-U.S. Holder, although exempt from the withholding of tax
described above (provided that the certifications described above are satisfied), generally will be subject to U.S.
federal income tax on such dividends on a net income basis in the same manner as if it were a resident of the
United States. In addition, if a Non-U.S. Holder is treated as a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes,
the Non-U.S. Holder may be subject to an additional “branch profits tax” equal to 30% (unless reduced by an
applicable income treaty) of its earnings and profits in respect of such effectively connected dividend income.

If a Non-U.S. Holder is eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. federal withholding tax pursuant to an income
tax treaty, the holder may obtain a refund or credit of any excess amount withheld by timely filing an appropriate
claim for refund with the IRS.
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Gain on Sale, Exchange or Other Taxable Disposition of Our Common Stock

Subject to the discussion below in “—Additional Withholding and Information Reporting
Requirements,” in general, a Non-U.S. Holder will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax or withholding of
tax on gain realized upon such holder’s sale, exchange or other taxable disposition of shares of our common
stock unless (i) such Non-U.S. Holder is an individual who is present in the United States for 183 days or more in
the taxable year of disposition, and certain other conditions are met, (ii) we are or have been a “United States real
property holding corporation,” as defined in the Internal Revenue Code (a “USRPHC”), at any time within the
shorter of the five-year period preceding the disposition and the Non-U.S. Holder’s holding period in the shares
of our common stock, and certain other requirements are met, or (iii) such gain is effectively connected with the
conduct by such Non-U.S. Holder of a trade or business in the United States (and, if required by an applicable
income tax treaty, is attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by such Non-U.S. Holder in the United
States).

If the first exception applies, the Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax at
a rate of 30% (or at a reduced rate under an applicable income tax treaty) on the amount by which such Non-U.S.
Holder’s capital gains allocable to U.S. sources (including gain, if any, realized on a disposition of our common
stock) exceed capital losses allocable to U.S. sources during the taxable year of the disposition. If the third
exception applies, the Non-U.S. Holder generally will be subject to U.S. federal income tax with respect to such
gain on a net income basis in the same manner as if it were a resident of the United States, and a Non-U.S.
Holder that is a corporation for U.S. federal income tax purposes may also be subject to a branch profits tax with
respect to any earnings and profits attributable to such gain at a rate of 30% (or at a reduced rate under an
applicable income tax treaty).

Generally, a corporation is a USRPHC only if the fair market value of its U.S. real property interests (as
defined in the Internal Revenue Code) equals or exceeds 50% of the sum of the fair market value of its
worldwide real property interests plus its other assets used or held for use in a trade or business. Although there
can be no assurance in this regard, we believe that we are not, and do not anticipate becoming, a USRPHC. Even
if we are or become a USRPHC, a Non-U.S. Holder would not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on a sale,
exchange or other taxable disposition of our common stock by reason of our status as a USRPHC so long as our
common stock is “regularly traded on an established securities market” at any time during the calendar year in
which the disposition occurs and such Non-U.S. Holder does not own and is not deemed to own (directly,
indirectly or constructively) more than 5% of our common stock at any time during the shorter of the five-year
period ending on the date of disposition and the holder’s holding period. However, no assurance can be provided
that our common stock will be regularly traded on an established securities market for purposes of the rules
described above. Each Non-U.S. Holder is urged to consult its own tax advisor about the possible consequences
to them if we are, or were to become, a USRPHC.

Additional Withholding and Information Reporting Requirements

Legislation enacted in March 2010 (commonly referred to as “FATCA”) generally imposes a 30%
withholding tax on U.S. source dividends and, beginning January 1, 2017, on gross proceeds from the sale or
other disposition of stock or property that is capable of producing U.S. source dividends paid to (i) a foreign
financial institution (as defined in Section 1471(d)(4) of the Code), including where the foreign financial
institution is not the beneficial owner of such payments, unless such foreign financial institution enters into a
reporting agreement with the IRS to collect and disclose certain information regarding its U.S. account holders
(including certain account holders that are foreign entities that have U.S. owners), complies with any laws and
rules implementing FATCA under an applicable bilateral governmental agreement with respect to FATCA
between the United States and the foreign financial institution’s jurisdiction of organization and/or is otherwise
registered deemed compliant with FATCA and (ii) certain other non-U.S. entities unless the entity provides the
payor with information regarding certain direct and indirect U.S. owners of the entity, or certifies that it has no
such U.S. owners, and complies with certain other requirements. These new FATCA withholding rules apply
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regardless of whether a payment would otherwise be exempt from the withholding of tax described above in
respect of distributions on and dispositions of our common stock.

Each Non-U.S. Holder is urged to consult its own tax advisor about the possible impact of these rules on
their investment in our common stock, and the entities through which they hold our common stock, including,
without limitation, the process and deadlines for meeting the applicable requirements to prevent the imposition of
this 30% withholding of tax under FATCA.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting

We must report annually to the IRS and to each Non-U.S. Holder the gross amount of the distributions
on our common stock paid to the holder and the tax withheld, if any, with respect to the distributions. Pursuant to
tax treaties or other agreements, the IRS may make its reports available to tax authorities in the Non-U.S.
Holder’s country of residence, organization or incorporation.

Non-U.S. Holders may have to comply with specific certification procedures to establish that the holder
is not a United States person (as defined in the Internal Revenue Code) in order to avoid backup withholding at
the applicable rate, currently 28%, with respect to dividends on our common stock. Dividends paid to Non-U.S.
Holders subject to withholding of U.S. federal income tax, as described above in “—Distributions on Our
Common Stock,” generally will be exempt from U.S. backup withholding.

Information reporting and backup withholding will generally apply to the proceeds of a disposition of
our common stock by a Non-U.S. Holder effected by or through the U.S. office of any broker, U.S. or foreign,
unless the holder certifies its status as a Non-U.S. Holder and satisfies certain other requirements, or otherwise
establishes an exemption. Dispositions effected through a non-U.S. office of a U.S. broker or a non-U.S. broker
with substantial U.S. ownership or operations generally will be treated in a manner similar to dispositions
effected through a U.S. office of a broker. Each Non-U.S. Holder is urged to consult its own tax advisor about the
application of the information reporting and backup withholding rules to them.

Copies of information returns may be made available to the tax authorities of the country in which the
Non-U.S. Holder resides or in which the Non-U.S. Holder is incorporated under the provisions of a specific
treaty or agreement.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withheld under the backup withholding rules
from a payment to a Non-U.S. Holder can be refunded or credited against the Non-U.S. Holder’s U.S. federal
income tax liability, if any, provided that an appropriate claim is timely filed with the IRS.

Federal Estate Tax

Common stock owned (or treated as owned) by an individual who is not a citizen or a resident of the
United States (as defined for U.S. federal estate tax purposes) at the time of death will be included in the
individual’s gross estate for U.S. federal estate tax purposes, unless an applicable estate or other tax treaty
provides otherwise, and, therefore, may be subject to U.S. federal estate tax.

Medicare Contributions Tax

A 3.8% tax is imposed on the net investment income (which includes dividends and gains recognized
upon of a disposition of stock) of certain individuals, trusts and estates with adjusted gross income in excess of
certain thresholds. This tax is imposed on individuals, estates and trusts that are U.S. persons. The tax is
expressly not imposed on nonresident aliens; however, estates and trusts that are Non-U.S. Holders are not
expressly exempted from the tax. Therefore, each Non-U.S. Holder is urged to consult its own tax advisor about
the application of this Medicare contribution tax in their particular situations.
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UNDERWRITING

BMO Capital Markets Corp. and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated are acting as the
representatives of each of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in an
underwriting agreement among us and the underwriters, we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and each of
the underwriters has agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase from us, the number of shares of common
stock set forth opposite its name below.

Number

Underwriter of Shares
BMO Capital Markets Corp. . .....vtiii e 4,500,000
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated ............................ 4,500,000
BB&T Capital Markets, a division of BB&T Securities, LLC ............. 2,100,000
Barrington Research Associates, Inc. ............ ... ... ... ... ...... 900,000
Total ... 12,000,000

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement, the underwriters have
agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase all of the shares sold under the underwriting agreement if any of
these shares are purchased. If an underwriter defaults, the underwriting agreement provides that the purchase
commitments of the nondefaulting underwriters may be increased or the underwriting agreement may be
terminated.

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against specified liabilities, including some liabilities
under the Securities Act, or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of
those liabilities.

The underwriters are offering the shares, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued to and accepted by
them, subject to approval of legal matters by their counsel, including the validity of the shares, and other
conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, such as the receipt by the underwriters of officer’s
certificates and legal opinions. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify offers to the
public and to reject orders in whole or in part.

Commissions and Discounts

The representatives have advised us that they propose initially to offer the shares to the public at the
public offering price set forth on the cover page of this prospectus and to dealers at that price less a concession
not in excess of $0.336 per share. After the initial public offering, the public offering price, concession and
discount may be changed.

The following table shows the public offering price, underwriting discount and proceeds before
expenses to us. The information assumes either no exercise or full exercise by the underwriters of their
over-allotment options.

Without
Per Share Option With Option
Public offering price . ........... i $ 8.00 $96,000,000 $110,400,000
Underwriting discount . ................0o i $ 056 $ 6,720,000 $ 7,728,000
Proceeds, before expenses, to Fenix . .......................... $ 7.44  $89,280,000 $102,672,000

123



The total expenses of the offering, not including the underwriting discount, are estimated at
approximately $1.1 million and are payable by us. We have also agreed to reimburse the underwriters for up to
$20,000 of their legal fees in connection with the review by FINRA of the terms of this offering.

Over-Allotment Option

We have granted an option to the underwriters to purchase up to 1,800,000 additional shares at the
public offering price less the underwriting discount. The underwriters may exercise this option for 30 days from
the date of this prospectus solely to cover any over-allotments. If the underwriters exercise this option, each will
be obligated, subject to conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, to purchase a number of additional
shares proportionate to that underwriter’s initial amount reflected in the above table.

No Sales of Similar Securities

We, our founders, executive officers and directors and certain existing stockholders have agreed, subject
to limited exceptions, not to sell or transfer any common stock for 180 days after the date of this prospectus
without first obtaining the written consent of BMO Capital Markets Corp. and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company,
Incorporated. Specifically, we and these other persons have agreed, subject to certain limitations, not to directly
or indirectly:

e offer, pledge, sell or contract to sell any common stock;

e sell any option or contract to purchase any common stock;

e purchase any option or contract to sell any common stock;

e grant any option, right or warrant for the sale of any common stock;

e lend or otherwise dispose of or transfer any common stock;

e request or demand that we file a registration statement related to the common stock; or

e enter into any swap or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, the economic
consequence of ownership of any common stock whether any such swap or transaction is to be
settled by delivery of shares or other securities, in cash or otherwise.

This lockup provision applies to common stock and to securities convertible into or exchangeable or
exercisable for or repayable with common stock. It also applies to common stock owned now or acquired later by
the person executing the agreement or for which the person executing the agreement later acquires the power of
disposition.

Quotation on the Nasdaq Global Market Listing

We have been approved to list our common stock for quotation on the Nasdaq Global Market under the
symbol “FENX.”

Before this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock. The public offering price
was determined through negotiations among us and the representatives. In addition to prevailing market
conditions, the factors considered in determining the public offering price are:

e the valuation multiples of publicly traded companies that the representatives believe to be
comparable to us;

e  our financial information;
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e the history of the Founding Companies and the prospects for our Company;
e the history of, and the prospects for, the industry in which we compete;

e an assessment of our management, its past and present operations, and the prospects for, and timing
of, our future revenues;

e the present state of our development; and

e the above factors in relation to market values and various valuation measures of other companies
engaged in activities similar to ours.

An active trading market for the shares may not develop. It is also possible that after this offering the
shares will not trade in the public market at or above the public offering price. The underwriters do not expect to
sell more than 5% of the shares being offered in this offering to accounts over which they exercise discretionary
authority.

Price Stabilization, Short Positions and Penalty Bids

Until the distribution of the shares is completed, SEC rules may limit underwriters and selling group
members from bidding for and purchasing our common stock. However, the representatives may engage in
transactions that stabilize the price of the common stock, such as bids or purchases to peg, fix or maintain that
price.

The underwriters may purchase and sell the common stock in the open market. These transactions may
include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales
involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to purchase in this
offering. “Covered” short sales are sales made in an amount not greater than the underwriters’ option to purchase
additional shares from the issuer in this offering. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by
either exercising their option to purchase additional shares or purchasing shares in the open market. In
determining the source of shares to close out the covered short position, the underwriters will consider, among
other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they
may purchase shares through the over-allotment option. “Naked” short sales are any sales in excess of such
option. The underwriters must close out any naked short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A
naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward
pressure on the price of the common shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors
who purchase in this offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or purchases of common shares
made by the underwriters in the open market prior to the completion of this offering.

The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the
underwriters a portion of the underwriting discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased
shares sold by or for the account of such underwriter in stabilizing or short covering transactions.

Similar to other purchase transactions, the underwriters’ purchases to cover the syndicate short sales
may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of the common stock or preventing or retarding a
decline in the market price of the common stock. As a result, the price of the common stock may be higher than
the price that might otherwise exist in the open market.

Neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the direction or
magnitude of any effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of the common stock. In
addition, neither we nor the representatives make any representation that the representatives will engage in these
transactions or that these transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice.
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Electronic Distribution

In connection with the offering, certain of the underwriters or securities dealers may distribute
prospectuses by electronic means, such as e-mail.

Other Relationships

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various
activities, which may include sales and trading, commercial and investment banking, advisory, investment
management, investment research, principal investment, hedging, market making, brokerage and other financial
and non-financial activities and services. Certain of the underwriters and their respective affiliates have provided,
and may in the future provide, a variety of these services to Fenix and to persons and entities with relationships
with Fenix, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses. In particular, we have signed a
mandate letter with BMO Harris Bank N.A., an affiliate of BMO Capital Markets Corp., in connection with a
credit facility that will become effective concurrent with the closing of this offering. We expect to pay BMO
Harris Bank N.A. customary fees in connection with such credit facility. See “Credit Facility.”

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each member state of the European Economic Area that has implemented the Prospectus
Directive (each, a relevant member state), with effect from and including the date on which the Prospectus
Directive is implemented in that relevant member state (the relevant implementation date), an offer of shares
described in this prospectus may not be made to the public in that relevant member state other than:

. to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

. to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the
Prospectus Directive), subject to obtaining the prior consent of the relevant underwriter or
underwriters nominated by us for any such offer; or

. in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,

provided that no such offer of shares shall require us or any underwriter to publish a prospectus pursuant to
Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive.

For purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer of securities to the public” in any relevant
member state means the communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of
the offer and the shares to be offered so as to enable an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for the shares,
as the expression may be varied in that member state by any measure implementing the Prospectus Directive in
that member state, and the expression “Prospectus Directive” means Directive 2003/71/EC (as amended,
including by Directive 2010/73/EU), and includes any relevant implementing measure in the relevant member
state.

The sellers of the shares have not authorized and do not authorize the making of any offer of shares
through any financial intermediary on their behalf, other than offers made by the underwriters with a view to the
final placement of the shares as contemplated in this prospectus. Accordingly, no purchaser of the shares, other
than the underwriters, is authorized to make any further offer of the shares on behalf of the sellers or the
underwriters.
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Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

In the United Kingdom, this prospectus is only being distributed to, and is only directed at, persons in
the United Kingdom that are qualified investors within the meaning of Article 2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive
that are also (i) investment professionals falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005 (the “Order”), (ii) high net worth entities falling within Article 49(2)(a)
to (d) of the Order, and/or (iii) other persons to whom it may lawfully be communicated (each such person being
referred to as a “relevant person”). This prospectus and its contents are confidential and should not be distributed,
published or reproduced (in whole or in part) or disclosed by recipients to any other persons in the United
Kingdom. Any invitation, offer or agreement to subscribe, purchase or otherwise acquire securities described
herein in the United Kingdom will be engaged in only with relevant persons. Any person in the United Kingdom
that is not a relevant person should not act or rely on this document or any of its contents.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the common stock offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Johnson and Colmar,
Bannockburn, Illinois. As of the date of this prospectus, certain individual attorneys of this firm beneficially own
an aggregate of 50 shares of our common stock, which immediately prior to the closing of this offering will
undergo a 2,000-for-1 common stock split, for a total of 100,000 shares of our common stock. Certain legal
matters will be passed upon for the underwriters by Mayer Brown LLP, Chicago, Illinois.

EXPERTS

The financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and for the period from January 2, 2014 (Inception)
to December 31, 2014 of the consolidated Fenix Parts, Inc. in this prospectus have been so included in reliance
on the report of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, appearing elsewhere herein,
given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014 of the combined Beagell Group in this prospectus have been so included in reliance on
the report of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, appearing elsewhere herein,
given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

The financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014 of the combined Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc. and its three Canadian affiliates in this
prospectus have been so included in reliance on the report of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, appearing elsewhere herein, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and
accounting.

The financial statements as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2014 of the each of Eiss Brothers, Inc., Green Oak Investments LLC dba GO Auto
Recycling, Jerry Brown, Ltd. and Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc. all in this prospectus have been so included in
reliance on the respective reports of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
appearing elsewhere herein, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and accounting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 with respect to the common stock
offered by this prospectus. This prospectus, which constitutes a part of the registration statement, does not
contain all of the information set forth in the registration statement or the exhibits and schedules which are part
of the registration statement. For further information with respect to us and our common stock, see the
registration statement and the exhibits and schedules thereto. Any document we file may be read and copied at
the SEC’s public reference rooms in Washington, D.C., New York, New York and Chicago, Illinois. Please call
the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the public reference rooms. Our filings with the SEC
are also available to the public from the SEC’s Web site at Attp.//www.sec.gov.

Upon completion of this offering, we will become subject to the information and periodic reporting
requirements of the Exchange Act and, accordingly, will file periodic reports, proxy statements and other
information with the SEC. Such periodic reports, proxy statements and other information will be available for
inspection and copying at the SEC’s public reference rooms, and the website of the SEC referred to above.
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UNAUDITED PRO FORMA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying unaudited pro forma financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
guidelines specified by Article 11 of Regulation S-X. Specifically, the accompanying unaudited pro forma
balance sheet as of December 31, 2014, has been prepared as if this offering, the contemplated use of the
estimated net proceeds therefrom and the combination of Fenix and eleven other corporate entities that conduct
eight businesses (collectively, the “Transactions”) occurred on December 31, 2014, and include all adjustments
that (i) are deemed to be directly attributable to the Transactions and (ii) are factually supportable. The
accompanying unaudited pro forma statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 has been
prepared as if the Transactions occurred as of January 1, 2014, and include all adjustments that (a) are deemed to
be directly attributable to the Transactions, (b) have a continuing impact on our financial statements, and (c) are
factually supportable. Nonrecurring charges or credits and related income tax effects which may result directly
from the Transactions and which may be included in the statement of operations within twelve months following
the Transactions are not included in the pro forma financial statements.

The Transactions are more fully described in Note 2 hereto. The pro forma adjustments are based upon
various estimates and assumptions that our management believes are reasonable and appropriate given the
currently available information. Use of different estimates and judgments could yield different results.

The pro forma financial statements reflect business combinations under the acquisition method of
accounting in accordance with applicable United States generally accepted accounting principles contained in
ASC 805-10, Business Combinations. Pursuant to ASC 805-10, the total estimated purchase price for each
combination as described in Note 3 is measured at the combination date and allocated to the fair value of net
assets acquired. For purposes of these pro forma financial statements, those fair values have been estimated based
on preliminary estimates and assumptions that can change materially as we complete the allocation process.
Estimating of the fair values of certain tangible and identifiable intangible assets requires the use of significant
estimates and assumptions, including future cash flows and appropriate discount rates. See Note 3 hereto for
further description of the significant estimates and assumptions we used to determine the preliminary fair values
of certain material assets acquired. Certain valuations are pending completion of analyses performed by
independent valuation specialists. We expect to receive completed analyses from our independent valuation
specialists and finalize our fair value determinations within three months of completing the Transactions.

The unaudited pro forma financial statements do not reflect any future operating efficiencies, associated cost
savings or possible integration costs that may occur related to the combinations. Nor do they reflect incremental
costs likely to result from being a public company.

The unaudited pro forma financial statements are included for informational purposes only and do not
purport to reflect our results of operations or financial position that would have occurred had we operated as a
public company or as a group of companies during the periods presented. The unaudited pro forma financial
statements should not be relied upon as being indicative of our financial condition or results of operations had the
Transactions occurred on the date assumed nor as a projection of our results of operations or financial position
for any future period or date.

The unaudited pro forma financial statements should be read in conjunction with “Use of Proceeds,”
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the historical
financial statements and related notes of Fenix and of the Founding Companies all appearing elsewhere in this
prospectus.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2014
(In thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net

Inventories

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Related party receivables

Total current assets
Property and equipment

Cash surrender value of life insurance policies
Intangible assets
Goodwill

Indemnification asset

Refundable purchase price consideration
Deferred income taxes

Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Current portion of long-term debt

Current portion of deferred warranty revenue
Deferred income tax liabilities

Related party payables

Total current liabilities
Deferred warranty revenue, net of current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion

Acquisition funding
Contingent consideration liability
Reserve for uncertain tax positions
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity (deficit):
Fenix common stock
Founding Companies’ capital
Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)

Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Controlling interests equity (deficit)
Noncontrolling interests equity

Total shareholders’ equity (deficit)

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
(deficit)

Other

Founding Acquisition Offering
Fenix Beagell Companies Adjustments Adjustments
Parts Group Standard (Note1) (Note 4) Subtotal (Note4) Proforma
$ 453 $2,770 $ 1,354 $ 1,778 $ (1,136) (b) $ 9,094 $(1,824) (h) $ 7,270
(6,125) (a)
10,000 (k)
— — — — 6,125 (a) 6,125 — 6,125
— 1,188 931 2,749 (4,141) (b) 727 — 727
— 6,736 11,090 15,585 8,779 (d) 42,190 — 42,190
396 100 292 458 — 1,246 (346) (h) 900
— 333 256 — (589) (b) — — —
849 11,127 13,923 20,570 12,913 59,382 (2,170) 57,212
— 4,100 7,689 9,105 (8,687) (b) 14,820 — 14,820
2,613 (d)
— 594 — — — 594 — 594
— — — — 31,760 (d) 31,760 — 31,760
— 180 363 — 58,879 (d) 58,879 — 58,879
(543) (b)
— — — — 4,145 (d) 4,145 — 4,145
— — — — 1,610 (f) 1,610 — 1,610
— — 256 — — 256 — 256
— — 34 227 397 (d) 658 — 658
$ 849 $16,001 $22,265  $29,902 $103,087 $172,104 $ (2,170) $169,934
$1673 8 481 $ 563 $ 1205 $ (274 () $ 3,648 % — $ 3,648
304 1,009 1,188 1,213 (41) (b) 3,773 — 3,773
100 (e)
— 68 — 335 (403) (b) — — —
— 411 180 396 (987) (d) — — —
— — 918 1,789 — 2,707 — 2,707
— — 2,409 120 (2,529) (b) — — —
1,977 1,969 5,258 5,058 (4,134) 10,128 — 10,128
— 11 177 475 (663) (d) — — —
— 62 — 3,106 (3,168) (b) 10,000 — 10,000
10,000 (k)
— — — — 90,389 (f) 90,389 (90,389) (i) —
— — — — 11,233 () 11,233 — 11,233
— 1,969 458 2,089 — 4,516 — 4,516
— — 71 40 13,568 (d) 11,383 — 11,383
(2,296) (e)
— — — — 1,987 () 1,987 — 1,987
1,977 4,011 5,964 10,768 116,916 139,636  (90,389) 49,247
— — — — 3 () 3 12 (§) 15
— 748 5,058 1,116 (6,922) (g) — — —
3,619 — — — 22,997 () 27912 88,207 (j) 116,119
1,296 (c)
(4,747) 8,972 10,641 16,116 (35,729) (g)  (3.847) — (3,847)
1,704 (e)
(804) (c)
- — (75) — 75 (9 @ — — —
(1,128) 9,720 15,624 17,232 (17,380) 24,068 88,219 112,287
— 2,270 677 1,902 (4,849) (2) 8,400 —
8,400 (f) 8,400
(1,128) 11,990 16,301 19,134 (13,829) 32,468 88,219 120,687
$ 849 $16,001 $22,265  $29,902 $103,087 $172,104 $ (2,170) $169,934

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma financial statements.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the year ended December 31, 2014
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Net revenues

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses

Operating income
(loss)
Interest income (expense)

Other income (expense)

Income (loss) before
income taxes
Provision (benefit) for
income taxes

Net income (loss)

Income attributable to
noncontrolling interests

Net income (loss)
attributable to
controlling interests

Basic and diluted loss per
share

Basic and diluted weighted
average shares
outstanding

Other
Founding Acquisition Offering
Fenix Beagell Companies Adjustments Adjustments Pro
Parts Group Standard (Note 1) (Note 5) Subtotal (Note 5) forma
— $30,598 $31,126 $51,863 $(4,580) ()$ 108,216 $ — $ 108,216
(791) (m)

— 19,897 19,717 36,152 (4,580) (1) 71,186 — 71,186

— 10,701 11,409 15,711 (791) 37,030 — 37,030

4,748 8,308 9,524 13,174 8,503 (n) 44,257 — (v 44,257
(4,748) 2,393 1,885 2,537  (9,294) (7,227) (7,227)
1 — — (151) 312 (o) (263) — (263)

(425) (p)

— 297 842 (12) — 1,127 — 1,127
(4,747) 2,690 2,727 2,374 (9,407) (6,363) — (6,363)
— 448 684 500  (4,050) (q) (2,418) — () (2,418)
(4,747) 2,242 2,043 1,874  (5,357) (3,945) — (3,945)

— 625 107 233 (965) (r) — — —
4,747)$ 1,617 $ 1,936 $ 1,641 $(4,392) $ (3,945)% — $ (3,945)
$(4,427.77) $(1,265.86) $  0.22)(v)
1,072 1,505 (s) 2,577 17,151,949 (u) 17,154,526 (V)

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma financial statements.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(1) Basis of Presentation

The unaudited pro forma financial statements present our financial position and results of operations as if
the Transactions described in Note 2 occurred on December 31, 2014, for purposes of the pro forma balance
sheet and on January 1, 2014, for purposes of the pro forma statement of operations. The unaudited pro forma
balance sheet includes the actual financial position of Fenix Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”) and each of the Founding
Companies (as defined below) as of December 31, 2014. Fenix was founded on January 2, 2014. As such, its
actual operating results are included in the pro forma statement of operations only since its founding. The actual
operating results of each Founding Company are included in the pro forma statement of operations for the full
year presented. The pro forma financial statements also reflect the assumptions and adjustments described in
Notes 3, 4 and 5.

The Founding Companies include Don Automotive Mall, Inc., Gary’s U-Pull It, Inc., Horseheads
Automotive Recycling, Inc. (collectively, the “Beagell Group”); Standard Auto Wreckers Inc., End of Life
Vehicles Inc., Goldy Metals Incorporated, Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated (collectively, “Standard”); and
Eiss Brothers, Inc. (“Eiss Brothers™), Green Oak Investments LLC dba GO Auto Recycling (“GO Auto”), Jerry
Brown, Ltd (“Jerry Brown”) and Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc. (“Leesville” and collectively, the “Other
Founding Companies”). For accounting and reporting purposes, Fenix has been identified as the accounting
acquirer and Beagell Group and Standard have been identified as accounting co-predecessors to the Company.

Our significant accounting policies used in the preparation of our unaudited pro forma financial statements

in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles are substantially the same as those of
the Founding Companies.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

The following tables reflect the financial position and results of operations of the Other Founding

Companies as of and for the year indicated below:

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Other noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of deferred warranty revenue
Deferred income tax liabilities
Related party payables
Total current liabilities
Deferred warranty revenue, net of current portion
Long-term debt, less current portion
Reserve for uncertain tax positions
Deferred income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity:
Capital stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Controlling interests equity
Noncontrolling interests equity

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

F-7

As of December 31, 2014

Total
Other
Eiss GO Jerry Founding
Brothers Auto Brown Leesville Companies
$ 633 $ 109 $ 362 $ 674 $ 1,778
753 464 576 956 2,749
5,374 1,395 4,574 4242 15,585
23 92 39 304 458
6,783 2,060 5,551 6,176 20,570
1,417 2,061 4,288 1,339 9,105
135 — — 92 227
$8,335 $4,121 $9,839 $7,607  $29,902
$ 200 $ 292 $ 530 $ 183 1,205
179 331 388 315 1,213
71 44 220 — 335
144 210 42 — 396
— — — 1,789 1,789
— 120 — — 120
594 997 1,180 2,287 5,058
171 218 86 — 475
540 883 1,483 200 3,106
— — 1811 278 2,089
— — — 40 40
1,305 2,098 4,560 2,805 10,768
— 790 — — 790
39 — 94 193 326
6,471 1,233 4,877 3,535 16,116
6,510 2,023 4,971 3,728 17,232
520 — 308 1,074 1,902
7,030 2,023 5,279 4,802 19,134
$8,335 $4,121 $9,839 $7,607  $29,902




Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Total
Other
Eiss GO Jerry Founding
Brothers Auto Brown Leesville Companies
Total revenues $11,975 $9.984 $13,039 $16,865 $51,863
Cost of goods sold 8,838 6,603 8,119 12,592 36,152
Gross profit 3,137 3,381 4,920 4,273 15,711
Operating expenses 2,294 3,043 4,331 3,506 13,174
Operating income 843 338 589 767 2,537
Interest expense 24) (55) (72) — (151)
Other income (expense) 21 6 9 (6) (12)
Income before income taxes 798 289 526 761 2,374
Provision for income taxes — — 108 392 500
Net income 798 289 418 369 1,874
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 15 — 144 74 233
Net income attributable to controlling interests $ 783 $ 2890 $§ 274 $ 295 §$ 1,641

(2) Description of Transactions
Combinations

Through November 2014, Fenix entered into agreements with the owners of each of the Founding
Companies to combine their businesses (the “Combinations”). The aggregate consideration to be paid by Fenix in
the Combinations, subject to adjustment and including, among other things, amounts held in escrow, amounts
payable as bonuses and amounts payable for the reimbursement of certain capital expenditures by certain
Founding Companies, consists of approximately $93,203 in cash, approximately 3,157,750 shares of our
common stock, and approximately 1,330,000 exchangeable preferred shares of our subsidiary, Fenix Parts
Canada, Inc. (collectively, the “Combination Consideration’). The cash portion of the Combination
Consideration is generally subject to adjustment based upon the Founding Companies’ working capital on the
closing date, capital expenditures during the six months preceding the closing of the Combinations and certain
other factors. The stock portion of the Combination Consideration is subject to adjustment based on the public
offering price in this offering. The Combination Consideration was determined by arms-length negotiations
between Fenix and representatives of each Founding Company.

Initial Public Offering:

We are offering 12,000,000 shares of our common stock at a public offering per share price of $8.00. After
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated other offering costs payable by us, we expect
to receive net proceeds of $88,565 in this offering. All of these proceeds will be used to pay the cash portion of
the Combination Consideration due at or near closing.

Common Stock Split:

Immediately prior to the closing of this offering, we will effect a 2,000-for-1 split of our common stock. The
pro forma shares reflected in the following tables give effect to the stock split.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(3) Combination Consideration and Allocation

The aggregate Combination Consideration to be paid by us to equity holders of the Founding Companies in
the Combinations consists of the following:

Beagell Eiss Go Jerry

Group Standard Brothers Auto Brown Leesville
Base Fenix share consideration (a) $10,822 $ —  $2338 $2.667 $ 5,333 $ 1,840
Base Fenix Canada share consideration (b) — 8,400 — — — —
Base cash consideration (c) 19,663 30,450 6,137 4,000 6,511 11,727
Working capital and other adjustments (c) 1,366 200 767 50 — 273
Incremental inventory payments (d) — 3,815 — — 190 —
Incremental capital expenditure payments (e) — — — — 2,415 —
Nonsubstantive consulting fee payments ® 890 50 — — 847 —
Key employee cash bonuses (2) — — — — — 2,575
Incremental off market lease payments (h) 1,950 (2,300) (720) (140) (190) (210)
Investment in Founding Company affiliate 1) — — — 450 — —
Contingent consideration G) — 7,821 326 — 3,086 —

Total Combination Consideration $34,691 $48,436 $8,848 $7,027 $18,192 $16,205

Of this aggregate Combination Consideration, $90,389 is expected to be paid in cash on or near the closing date,
$33,733 represents stock consideration and $9,277 represents discounted cash payments to be made up to 15
years after the Combinations.

(a) For purposes of this table, the per share public offering price is $8.00, which will result in 2,874,970 shares
of Fenix common stock being issued as Combination Consideration.

(b) For purposes of this table, the per share public offering price is $8.00, will result in 1,050,000 exchangeable
preferred shares of Fenix’s subsidiary, Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. (“Exchangeable Preferred Shares”) being
issued as Combination Consideration.

(c) The base cash component of the Combination Consideration for each Combination is subject to certain
adjustments. For each Founding Company other than Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., the cash component of
the Combination Consideration will be (i) reduced by the Founding Company’s indebtedness as of closing
(although none is expected), (ii) increased by the Founding Company’s cash and qualifying inventory as of
closing and (iii) increased by the Founding Company’s capital expenditures during the six months prior to
closing. For Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc., the cash component of the Combination Consideration will be
reduced by Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc.’s indebtedness as of closing (although none is expected). These
estimated adjustments are based on the Founding Company balance sheets as of December 31, 2014. Any
differences in actual cash, qualifying inventory, debt or capital expenditures as of and for the six months
prior to the actual closing date will have a corresponding change to pro forma cash, inventory, debt and
property and equipment and an aggregate equal offsetting impact on goodwill in the pro forma balance sheet
and certain immaterial impacts on pro forma operating results (via, for example, differing pro forma
depreciation expense).

(d) Represents additional consideration for certain excess or specific inventories. This estimated adjustment is
based on the Founding Company inventory listings as of December 31, 2014.

(e) Represents a construction reimbursement for capital expenditures in connection with a new building located
on land that we will lease.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(f) Represents contractual payments to certain equity holders of the Founding Companies and their related
parties over the next 1 to 15 years. These equity holders and their related parties will not be employed by us
and are not expected to provide any substantive services to us.

(g) Represents cash bonuses paid at closing to key employees for past service.

(h) In conjunction with the Combinations, we entered into operating facility lease agreements with affiliates of
the equity holders, generally variable interest entities that were consolidated into the Founding Companies
prior to the Combinations but will not be consolidated by us after the Combinations. Based on preliminary
independent valuations of the market rental rates compared to the actual rental rates for these properties, the
excess or deficiency is reflected as additional Combination Consideration payable/refundable over the term
of the related lease. The effect of discounting these payments at 10% is reflected in the amounts presented.

(i) Represents the payment of $250 in cash at closing and a $200 promissory note payable over two years for a
5% membership interest in an affiliate of Go Auto. We also received an option to purchase the remaining
95% membership interest.

(j) Represents the estimated fair value of contingent consideration arrangements with certain Founding
Company equity holders. Under these arrangements, the equity holders can earn up to an aggregate of
$7,875 in cash, 11,667 shares of Fenix common stock and 280,000 Exchangeable Preferred Shares plus an
uncapped amount of additional cash if certain EBITDA and revenue targets are met over the first or second
year period after closing. The fair value is based on preliminary independent valuations considering our
projections for the relevant Founding Companies, the respective target levels, the relative weighting of
various future scenarios and a discount rate of approximately 4.7%.

Under the acquisition method of accounting, the total purchase price as shown in the table above was
allocated to net tangible and intangible assets of the Founding Companies based on their estimated fair values.
The allocations are preliminary and subject to change based upon finalization of management’s valuation
analysis. Pursuant to the Combination agreements, the equity owners of the Founding Companies or their
affiliates have indemnified us for certain matters, including reimbursement of certain payments by us related to
any of the Founding Companies’ uncertain income tax positions existing at or prior to the Combination date. The
table below summarizes the purchase price allocation of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed as if the
Combinations occurred on December 31, 2014:

Beagell Eiss Go Jerry
Group Standard Brothers Auto Brown Leesville Total
Combination Consideration $34,691 $48,436 $ 8,848 $ 7,027 $18,192 $16,205 $133,399
Historical net assets 11,990 16,301 7,030 2,023 5279 4802 47,425
Net assets not acquired/assumed 3,449 1,693 1,001 1,257 (685) 1,966 8,681
Revaluation adjustments:
Inventories (i) 1,428 4,995 854 126 1,376 — 8,779
Property and equipment (ii) 2,578 31 (231) 29 (72) 278 2,613
Intangible assets (iii) 8,950 7,810 1,820 3,490 3450 6,240 31,760
Indemnification asset (iv) 1,969 87 — — 1,811 278 4,145
Equity interest in and option to acquire
Go Auto affiliate (v) — — — 397 — — 397
Deferred extended warranty revenue (vi) 422 357 314 429 128 — 1,650
Deferred income taxes (vii) (4,991) (1,534) (1,135) (1,548) (1,883) (2,477) (13,568)
Resulting goodwill $15,794 $22,082 $ 1,197 $ 3,338 $ 7,418 $ 9,050 $ 58,879
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

®

Inventory was marked up to 90% of its estimated selling price representing the inventory’s cost and
estimated related profit margin. Selling costs and related profit margin were estimated at all Founding
Companies to be 10%. The acquired inventory is expected to be sold within 18 months. We do not
expect our estimates of 90% and 10% to materially change based on the inventories that we actually
acquire on the Combination date.

(i) Assumptions for property and equipment valuation, which are based on cost and market approaches,

are primarily data from industry databases and dealers on current costs of new equipment and
information about the useful lives and age of the equipment. The remaining useful life of property and
equipment was determined based on historical experience using such assets and varies from 3-20 years
depending on the Founding Company and nature of the assets. Our independent valuation specialist is
assisting us in determining the final valuation of the property and equipment we acquire on the
Combination date. Any change in the valuation resulting from our independent valuation specialist’s
finalization of its analysis cannot be determined at this point. All property and equipment will be
depreciated using the straight-line method.

(iii) The table below summarizes the aggregate intangible assets acquired:

Weighted Year ended
average Amortization December 31, 2014
Amount life (years) method Amortization
Trade names $ 5,090 5 Straight line $1,018
Customer relationships 24,430 15 Accelerated 1,629
Covenants not to compete 2,240 5 Straight line 448
$31,760 $3,095

The fair value of trade names and customer relationships are based on a number of significant
assumptions. Trade names are valued using a “relief from royalty” method, which models cash savings
from owning intangible assets as compared to paying a third party for their use. Descriptions of the
inputs into this method, and the estimates or ranges of these inputs used for all of the Combinations are
as follows:

Compound annual revenue growth rate over termofuse ................ 3%-T7.9%
Percentage of revenue attributable to trade name in forecast year ......... 20%-100%
Royalty rate . ... ... 2%
Discountrate .. ..........iiii e 12.5%-14%
Taxrate .. ... 38.6%-40.9%

The expected useful life of trade names is based on our planned timeframe for using the existing trade
names we will purchase in the Combinations. We expect to amortize such trade names using the
straight-line method as no other method of amortization is more representative of our usage of these
assets.



Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

@iv)

)

(vi)

Customer relationships are valued using an income approach called the multi-period excess earnings
method, a form of discounted cash flow that estimates revenues and cash flows derived from the use of
the intangible asset and then deducts portions of the cash flow that can be attributed to supporting
assets, such as other intangible assets or property and equipment, that contributed to the generation of
the cash flows to arrive at cash flows attributable solely to the intangible asset being valued.
Descriptions of the inputs into this method, and the estimates or ranges of these inputs used for all of
the Combinations are as follows:

Compound annual revenue growth rate in forecast period ............... 2.1%-3.8%
Annual customer attrition Tate . . .. ... .ottt 10%
Gross margin in forecast period . ......... ... ... i 31.8%-47.5%
Contributory asset charges as a percentage of revenue . ................. 0.1%-3.4%
Discountrate . ....... ... . 13.5%-16.0%
Tax rate . ... 38.6%-40.9%

The expected useful life of customer relationships is established as 15 years, which is the period over
which these assets are expected to reasonably contribute to future cash flows. We expect to amortize
such customer relationships using an accelerated method that reflects a greater relative contribution to
future cash flows in the earlier years of the assets’ useful lives.

Our independent valuation specialist is assisting us in determining the final valuation of each of the
intangible assets described above. Any change in the valuation resulting from our independent
valuation specialist’s finalization of its analysis cannot be determined at this point.

We may recover amounts from the shareholders of the Founding Companies if we are required to make
certain income tax or other payments as defined in the relevant Combination agreements after the
Combinations. The indemnification asset above represents the same amount reflected as liabilities for
such matters in the pro forma balance sheet and will be adjusted going forward as new information
becomes available in regards to such liabilities.

The Combination agreement between us and GO Auto contains a provision giving us a 5% ownership
of Go Pull-It LLC, an entity under common control with Go Auto, and the right to purchase the
remaining 95% of Go Pull-It LLC for either a fixed price through the end of 2016 or, after that, a price
based on a formula that is primarily dependent on the EBITDA of Go Pull-It LLC. The amount
reflected above for the purchase right is based on a business valuation of Go Pull-It LLC, which inputs
include but are not limited to, revenue growth, gross margin, operating expenses, income tax rate,
working capital and property and equipment requirements, and an appropriate discount rate.

The Founding Companies have amounts recorded in their historical balance sheets that relate to
extended warranties sold by the companies. Amounts received from customers related to these
warranties was deferred and amortized into revenues on a straight-line basis over the contractual term
of the warranty or five years for lifetime warranties. However, based on historical experience of the
Founding Companies, we do not expect to pay any appreciable costs to fulfill these warranty
obligations and, as such, have eliminated the historical deferred extended warranty revenue balance.

(vii) We expect to record deferred income taxes relating to the difference between financial reporting and

tax bases of assets and liabilities acquired in the Combinations in nontaxable transactions. This
adjustment also includes the elimination of historical deferred income taxes of Founding Companies
acquired in taxable transactions.



Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

The revaluation adjustments described above could change materially as we finalize our assessment of the
allocation and the fair value of the net tangible and intangible assets we acquired, some of which are dependent
on the completion of valuations being performed by independent valuation specialists.

(4) Unaudited Pro forma Balance Sheet Adjustments
Acquisition Adjustments:

(a) Represents a reclassification of available cash to cash held in escrow as security for potential cash
contingent consideration payments.

(b) Represents the following aggregate elimination of net assets not acquired or assumed in the
Combinations, including net assets of variable interest entities (““VIEs”) that were not included in the

Combinations:
Cash $ 1,136
Accounts receivable and other current assets 4,141
Related party receivables 589
Property and equipment 8,687
Goodwill 543
Accounts payable—related party payables (274)
Accrued expenses 41
Current portion of long-term debt (403)
Related party payables (2,529)
Long-term debt, less current portion (3,168)
Total $ 8,681

(c) Represents expenses for shares transferred from the founders to investors in the First and Second
Bridge offerings as of December 31, 2014 and the related income tax effect.

(d) Represents the aggregate adjustments to reflect acquired net assets at their estimated fair values (see
Note (3) above).

(e) Represents Combination-related transaction costs to be incurred after December 31, 2014 ($100) and
the income tax benefit realized upon the reversal of Fenix’s valuation allowance ($1,804) due to the
deferred income tax liabilities resulting from the Combination, and the income tax effect of the expense
described in note (c) above ($492).

(f) Represents the Combination Consideration as more fully described in Note 3 above and summarized

below:
Fenix common stock $ 23,000
Exchangeable Preferred Shares 8,400
Cash paid at closing 90,389
Accrued nonsubstantive consulting fees 1,787
Net refundable consideration related to off market leases (1,610)
Note payable related to GO Auto affiliate 200
Fair value of contingent consideration 11,233
Total $133,399
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(g) Represents the elimination of the Founding Companies’ historical shareholders’ equity.

(k) Represents $10,000 of term loan borrowings under the new senior secured credit facility.

Offering Adjustments:

(h) Represents $88,565 of net cash proceeds from this offering at a public offering price of $8.00 per share
after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated related offering expenses, of
which $346 were incurred as of December 31, 2014, less $90,389 of cash used to fund the cash portion
of the Combination Consideration to be paid at closing.

(i) Represents cash used to fund the portion of the Combination Consideration to be paid at closing.

(j) Represents net cash proceeds from this offering at a public offering price of $8.00 per share after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated related offering costs.

(5) Unaudited Pro forma Statement of Operations Adjustments
Acquisition Adjustments:
(I) Represents the aggregate elimination of sales and costs of sales between Founding Companies.

(m) Represents adjustment to extended warranty contracts revenues due to the fair value adjustment to
deferred extended warranty revenues upon the Combinations described in Note (3). The amounts
represent the reversal of all extended warranty revenue recognized in the historical statement of
operations as such revenues were earned by the Founding Companies.

(n) Represents the following aggregate adjustments:

Year ended
December 31, 2014
Incremental intangible asset amortization $3,095
Incremental depreciation on acquired property and equipment 572
For property not acquired:

Elimination of historical depreciation (121)
Rent expense on property under new operating leases 2,077
Change in fair value of contingent consideration 446

Elimination of historical Combination transaction costs (260)
Compensation related to Leesville share bonuses (i) 2,169
Executive compensation (ii) 525
$8,503

(i) Certain employees will receive 271,112 shares of our restricted common shares at closing as a
bonus; however, these shares will be forfeited over to Leesville’s equity holder if the key
employee is terminated within one year of the Combination. As such, the estimated fair value of
these shares will be reflected as additional compensation expense after the Combinations.

(i1) Represents compensation expense related to the October 2014 employment agreements for our
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, assuming that base salaries in the agreements
were in effect for the full year ended December 31, 2014.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

(o) Represents the following aggregate adjustments:

Year ended
December 31, 2014

Elimination of historical interest expense on indebtedness not assumed in the

Combinations $151
Net interest (expense) income related to deferred Combination Consideration

payments embedded in off market leases with Founding Company affiliates

(10%) 161

$312

(p) Represents interest expense at 4.25% on assumed borrowings of $10,000 under the new senior secured
credit facility.

(qQ) Represents an adjustment to historical income tax expense to result in an estimated pro forma effective
tax rate of 38.0%.

(r) Represents the elimination of noncontrolling interests in VIEs no longer consolidated. Certain of the
Founding Companies’ consolidated VIEs leased property to them. The Founding Companies had no
ownership in these VIEs and when they were consolidated all of the income of the VIEs was classified
as being attributable to noncontrolling interests. After the Combinations, we will not be the primary
beneficiary of these leasing entities and therefore will not consolidate them. This adjustment eliminates
the noncontrolling interests from the pro forma statement of operations relating to all of the
consolidated VIEs of the Founding Companies before the Combinations.

(s) Represents the shares of Fenix common stock to be issued as part of the Combination Consideration.

The unaudited pro forma statement of operations does not include the cost of goods sold impact of the
adjustment of Combination date inventories to fair value nor any Combination-related transaction costs as neither
are considered to have a continuing impact on the company.

Offering Adjustments:

(t) Represents investor expense related to make whole provisions whereby certain of our shareholders are
contractually required to deliver Fenix common shares to other of our shareholders if the offering price
per share in this offering is below $10.00. The amount equals the number of shares required to be
transferred times the public offering price of $8.00 per share for Fenix common shares issued through
December 31, 2014. As this adjustment does not have a continuing impact on our financial statements,
no expense is reflected on a pro forma basis.

(u) Represents the common shares to be issued by us in this offering (12,000,000) and the aggregate
impact of a 2,000-for-1 common stock split (6,151,949).



Fenix Parts, Inc.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Earnings per share

(v) The following table shows the calculation of pro forma earnings per share for the year ended
December 31, 2014:

Year ended December 31, 2014

Fenix Post
Parts Combinations Post IPO
Net loss $ 4747) 8 (3,945 8 (3,945)
Net loss allocable to Fenix Canada preferred stock (i) — (683) on
Net loss allocable to common stock $ @747 $ (3,262) $ (3,854)
Weighted average common shares outstanding 2,144,000 5,154,526 17,154,526
Basic and Diluted loss per share, post-split basis $ 2.21) $ 0.63) $ (0.22)

Year ended December 31, 2014

Pre-split Split Post-split
basis 2,000-for-1 basis

Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Historical basis 1,072 2,000 2,144,000
Issued in Combinations 1,437 2,000 2,874,970
Leesville employee shares 68 2,000 135,556
Subtotal 2,577 5,154,526
Issued in Initial Public Offering N/A 12,000,000

Pro forma N/A 17,154,526

(i) Represents the loss allocable to holders of Fenix Canada’s Exchangeable Preferred Stock as if
such shares participated in Fenix’s loss since the beginning of the year.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Shareholders and Board of Directors
Fenix Parts, Inc.
Miami, Florida

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Fenix Parts, Inc. as of December 31, 2014
and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders’ deficit, and cash flows for the period from
January 2, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our
audit included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Fenix Parts, Inc. at December 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for the period from January 2, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014, in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1, the Company is expected to acquire several businesses, contingent upon the
completion of an initial public offering of its common stock.

/s BDO USA, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 25, 2015
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As of December 31, 2014
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 453,047
Deferred stock offering costs 346,369
Deposit 50,000
Total current assets 849,416
TOTAL ASSETS $ 849,416
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 1,673,259
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 303,731
Total liabilities 1,976,990

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized; 1,215 shares issued and
outstanding —
Additional paid-in capital 3,619,000
Accumulated deficit (4,746,574)
Total shareholders’ deficit (1,127,574)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT $ 849416

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
For the Period from January 2, 2014 (Inception) to December 31, 2014

Net revenues
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses

Loss from operations
Other income

Loss before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Net loss
Basic and diluted loss per share

Weighted average basic and diluted shares outstanding

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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$ _

4,747,116

(4,747,116)
543

(4,746,574)

$(4,746,574)
$ (4,427.77)
1,072



Fenix Parts, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
For the Period from January 2, 2014 (Inception) to December 31, 2014

Additional Total
M pa;dl-(;lr:a Accumulated sharel(:o?ders’
Shares Amount capital deficit deficit
Balance at January 2, 2014 — $— $ — 3 — 3 —
Shareholder contributions 1,215 — 3,619,000 — 3,619,000
Net loss — — — (4,746,574) (4,746,574)
Balance at December 31, 2014 1,215  $— $3,619,000 $(4,746,574) $(1,127,574)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

F-20



Fenix Parts, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Period from January 2, 2014 (Inception) to December 31, 2014

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $(4,746,574)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities
Change in assets and liabilities

Deferred stock offering costs (346,369)
Deposit (50,000)
Accounts payable 1,673,259
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 303,731
Net cash used in operating activities (3,165,953)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds of issuance of common stock 3,619,000
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,619,000
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 453,047
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period —
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 453,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Business and Liquidity

Fenix Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”) was founded on January 2, 2014 to acquire and combine companies in the
automobile recycling and resale industry. Fenix Parts Canada, Inc. (“Fenix Canada”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of Fenix, was established on September 24, 2014 primarily to facilitate the acquisition and combination of
companies in the automobile recycling and resale industry in Canada. Through November 2014, and as amended
to extend the closing conditions through May 15, 2015, Fenix and Fenix Canada (collectively, the “Company”)
have entered into Combination Agreements to acquire (the “Combinations”) eleven corporate entities that
operate eight businesses (the “Founding Companies”) The closing of the transactions subject to these agreements
is contingent upon, among other things, the closing of a future initial public offering (“IPO”).

Pursuant to the Combination Agreements, the aggregate consideration to be paid by the Company in the
Combinations subject to adjustment and including, among other things, amounts held in escrow, amounts payable
as bonuses and amounts payable for the reimbursement of certain capital expenditures by certain Founding
Companies, consists of approximately $93.2 million in cash, approximately 2.8 million shares of Fenix common
stock and approximately 1.2 million exchangeable preferred shares of Fenix Canada (collectively, the
“Combination Consideration”). The cash portion of the Combination Consideration is generally subject to
adjustment based upon the Founding Companies’ working capital on the closing date, capital expenditures during
the six months preceding the closing of the Combinations and certain other factors. The share portion of the
Combination Consideration is expressed in the number of shares subsequent to a planned 2,000-for-1 common
stock split to occur immediately before the completion of the IPO. Such share consideration is also subject to
adjustment based on the public offering price per share in the IPO.

The Company intends to raise the cash portion of the Combination Consideration in its [PO as well as
additional funding for installment payments on certain indebtedness expected to be incurred in the Combinations
and for general corporate purposes.

The Company, subsequent to the Combinations, will be in the business of auto recycling, which is the recovery
and resale of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and aftermarket parts, components and systems, such as
engines, transmissions, radiators, trunks, lamps and seats (referred to as “products”) reclaimed from damaged,
totaled or low value vehicles. The Company will purchase its vehicles primarily at auto salvage auctions. Upon
receipt of vehicles, the Company will inventory and then dismantle the vehicles and sell the recycled components.
The Company’s customers will include collision repair shops (body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto
dealerships and individual retail customers. The Company will also generate a portion of its revenue from the sale
as scrap of the unusable parts and materials and from the sale of extended warranty contracts.

For the period from inception to December 31, 2014, the Company incurred net losses of $4.7 million. The
Company has raised $3.6 million of capital from private equity offerings from inception to December 31, 2014
and used approximately $3.2 million of that capital in its operations. As the Company continues to incur
additional costs as described in Note 3, it will likely need to secure additional financing to fund such costs prior
to the completion of the planned IPO. There can be no assurances that such financing will be available at terms
acceptable to the Company or at all. Absent such additional financing, if needed, management may be unable to
execute its plans to complete the IPO and the Combinations.

Through September 30, 2014, the Company’s chief executive and chief financial officers were not taking
salaries and no compensation expense has been recorded related to services provided by these employees through
that date. Pursuant to letter arrangements, these executives’ salaries were accrued beginning October 1, 2014, but
will be paid only contingent upon the closing of the IPO. Each executive will have the option to receive his
accrued but unpaid salary in the form of an incentive stock option in lieu of cash.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). All significant intercompany transactions and
balances between the Company’s entities have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash equivalents. The majority of cash and cash equivalents are maintained with major financial institutions.

Deferred Stock Offering Costs

Through December 31, 2014, the Company incurred approximately $346,000 of legal, accounting and other costs
directly related to its planned IPO. Such costs will be applied against the gross proceeds from the [PO upon its closing.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method where deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and the respective tax basis and for tax credit carry forwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. A valuation allowance is established when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. The Company evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets by assessing its
valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of such allowance, if necessary. The factors used to assess the
likelihood of realization include historical cumulative losses, the forecast of future taxable income and available
tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve
forecasted taxable income in applicable tax jurisdictions could affect the ultimate realization of deferred tax
assets and could result in an increase in the Company’s effective tax rate on future earnings.

The Company recognizes the benefits of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns
in the provision for income taxes only for those positions that are more likely than not to be realized. The
Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to
evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

its tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately forecast
actual outcomes. As of December 31, 2014, the Company has not identified any uncertain tax positions. The
Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties associated with income tax obligations in income tax expense.

Foreign Currency

The functional currency of Fenix Canada is expected to be the Canadian dollar, although as of December 31,
2014, Fenix Canada had no assets, liabilities or operating activities.

Advertising Expenses

Adpvertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations. Advertising expenses were approximately $18,000 for the period from
January 2, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per share would include the impact of outstanding
common share equivalents as if those equivalents were exercised or converted into common shares if such
assumed exercise or conversion were dilutive. As of December 31, 2014, the Company had no outstanding
common stock equivalents and, as such, diluted earnings (loss) per share is equal to basic earnings (loss) per
share.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) 2014-15, Disclosure of Uncertainties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern, to
address financial reporting considerations about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. As a result,
management will be required to determine every interim and annual period whether conditions or events exist
that raise substantial doubt about an entity’s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date
the financial statements are issued (or are available to be issued, if applicable). ASU 2014-15 is effective for
annual periods ending after December 15, 2016 and for interim periods within annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2016. The Company does not expect that the application of this ASU to materially impact its
consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Note 3. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 31, 2014, consist of following:

Employee wages $ 175,000
Accounting, consulting and legal fees 48,431
Other 80,300

Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $303,731

As described in Note 1, through December 31, 2014, the Company’s has focused on arranging for the
completion of an IPO and the acquisition of eight businesses. As part of that process, and as provided for in the
Combination Agreements, the Company is obligated to fund accounting, auditing and various other costs
associated with the Founding Companies’ efforts to provide historical audited financial statements and to meet
other requirements associated with the IPO. The majority of the Company’s operating expenses and accrued
expenses and other current liabilities relate to these activities.
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Fenix Parts, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4. Income Taxes

The Company recorded no tax expense or benefit for the period from January 2, 2014 (inception) to
December 31, 2014. At the federal statutory rate of 34%, the Company’s $4.7 million loss for the period from
January 2, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014 would have created a federal tax benefit of approximately $1.6
million and a state tax benefit, net of federal impact, of approximately $0.3 million. A full valuation allowance
was established primarily because the uncertainty of the Company’s future prospects results in it being more
likely than not that deferred income tax assets will not be realized.

Note 5. Common Stock

Fenix was formed and initially capitalized in January 2014 by a group of investors, including its chief
executive and chief financial officers, who paid nominal cash consideration for an aggregate of 900 shares of
Fenix common stock. In March and April 2014, Fenix issued and sold an aggregate of 201 shares of common
stock for a purchase price of $10,000 per share. In September 2014, Fenix issued and sold an aggregate of 59
shares of common stock for a purchase price of $15,000 per share. In November and December 2014, Fenix
issued and sold an aggregate of 55 shares of common stock for a purchase price of approximately $13,000 per
share. See Note 6 for further information.

The agreements that relate to the common stock sales subsequent to January 2014 include provisions that
obligate the holders of the common stock issued in January 2014 to compensate the investors in the later sales if
the TPO price of Fenix common stock is less than $10.00 per share (post-stock split). If the IPO price is less than
$10.00 per share, the initial investors must transfer an adequate number of their shares to the later investors equal
in value to the aggregate difference between $10.00 per share (post-stock split) and the IPO price on each Fenix
share owned by those later investors. Common stock holders were also granted registration rights.

The stock component of the consideration for each Combination was negotiated on the basis that the public
offering price for Fenix’s common stock would be at least $10.00 per share. If the public offering price is $10.00
or more per share, there will not be any adjustment to the stock component of the consideration for each
Combination. If the public offering price is less than $10.00 per share but $9.00 or more per share, the number of
shares of Fenix’s common stock and Exchangeable Preferred Shares to be issued for the stock component of the
consideration will generally be increased to the number of shares determined by (i) multiplying the number of
shares otherwise to be issued by $10.00 per share and (ii) dividing the result by the public offering price per
share, generally rounding any resulting fractional share up to a whole share. If the public offering price is less
than $9.00 per share, there will not be any further adjustment to the stock component of the Combination
consideration, and the number of share to be issued will be the number that would be issued if the public offering
price had been $9.00 per share.

Note 6. Subsequent Events

In January 2015, the Company issued approximately 9 additional shares of its common stock to certain
investors for no cash consideration in order to effectively convert their $15,000 per share investments to $13,000
per share investments. Such issuances resulted in a charge to the Company’s earnings in 2015 of approximately
$118,000.

From January through March 25, 2015, the Company issued 130 shares of common stock for a purchase
price of $13,000 per share.

F-25



Fenix Parts, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In January 2015, the Company’s shareholders approved the adoption of the 2014 Stock Plan under which the
Company will have the opportunity to grant various forms of equity awards to its officers, directors and employees.

The Company plans to effect a 2,000-for-1 common stock split immediately before the closing of the
planned IPO. At such time, all share and per share information presented in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements will be adjusted to retroactively reflect the common stock split.

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2015, which is the date these

consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition or
disclosure have been incorporated into these consolidated financial statements.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Shareholders
The Beagell Group
Binghamton, New York

We have audited the accompanying combined balance sheets of the Beagell Group (entities under common
control as described in Note 1) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the related combined statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2014. These combined financial statements are the responsibility of the Beagell Group’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the combined financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Beagell Group is not
required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our
audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Beagell Group’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the combined
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financial statements. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Beagell Group at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1, the Beagell Group is expected to be acquired by an unrelated party.

/s BDO USA, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 25, 2015
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Beagell Group
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Related party receivables

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and fixtures
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment, net

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Cash surrender value of life insurance policies
Goodwill

Total other non-current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.

F-28

2014

2013

$ 2,769,876 $ 1,719,740
1,188,214 1,241,482
6,736,469 5,845,472

99,402 90,989
333,270 294,400
11,127,231 9,192,083
731,959 731,959
187,183 187,183
1,564,293 1,564,293
2,136,646 2,196,632
5,177,043 5,942,554
973,179 876,924
323,712 309,532
(6,993,860)  (7,055,152)
4,100,155 4,753,925
593,671 538,159
180,000 180,000
773,671 718,159
$16,001,057 $14,664,167




Beagell Group
COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS - CONTINUED
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred warranty revenue — current
Current portion of long-term debt
Short-term note payable
Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred warranty revenue - long-term
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Reserve for uncertain tax positions

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common stock, no par value

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Total Beagell Group shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest

Total shareholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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2014

2013

$ 480,949 § 333,551
1,009,147 821,691
410,673 170,545
68,196 7,004

— 120,675
1,968,965 1,453,466
10,656 12,038
62,118 596
1,969,055 1,551,513
2,041,829 1,564,147
4,010,794 3,017,613
748,493 727,973
8,971,722 8,578,003
9,720,215 9,305,976
2,270,048 2,340,578
11,990,263 11,646,554
$16,001,057 $14,664,167




Beagell Group
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

2014 2013 2012
Net revenues $30,597,756  $30,660,989 $31,636,770
Cost of goods sold 19,896,923 19,651,964 19,926,940
Gross profit 10,700,833 11,009,025 11,709,830
Operating expenses 8,307,750 9,257,628 9,648,570
Income from operations 2,393,083 1,751,397 2,061,260
Interest expense (144) — (10,378)
Other income (expense) 297,226 (55,201) 47,689
Income before income tax expense 2,690,165 1,696,196 2,098,571
Income tax expense 447,694 279,377 405,714
NET INCOME 2,242,471 1,416,819 1,692,857
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest 625,470 558,252 363,638

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO BEAGELL GROUP §$ 1,617,001 $ 858,567 $ 1,329,219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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Beagell Group

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Balance at January 1, 2012
Net income

Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Balance at December 31, 2012
Net income
Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Balance at December 31, 2013
Net income
Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Balance at December 31, 2014

Additional Total
M pa;dl-oirr:a Retained Noncontrolling sharel(l)o?ders’
Shares Amount capital earnings interest equity
3,388 $— $686,933 $11,038,436 $1,874,945 $13,600,314
— — — 1,329,219 363,638 1,692,857
12 — 20,520 — 213,000 233,520
— — —  (2,555,967)  (293,840)  (2,849,807)
3,400 — 707,453 9,811,688 2,157,743 12,676,884
— — — 858,567 558,252 1,416,819
12 — 20,520 — — 20,520
— — —(2,092252)  (375.417)  (2,467,669)
3,412 — 727,973 8,578,003 2,340,578 11,646,554
— — — 1,617,001 625,470 2,242 471
12 — 20,520 — — 20,520
— — — (1,223,282) (696,000)  (1,919,282)
3424 $— $748,493 $ 8,971,722  $2,270,048  $11,990,263

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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Beagell Group
COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by

operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment
Provision for uncertain tax positions
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Account payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Deferred warranty revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Premium payments on life insurance policies
Issuance of related party receivables
Capital expenditures

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of debt
Proceeds from debt
Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Net cash used in financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow disclosures
Cash paid for
Income taxes

Interest

2014 2013 2012
$2242471 $ 1,416,819 $ 1,692,857
853,358 862,939 881,412
(325,841) 42,092 (70,576)
417,542 264,643 379,669
53,268 (78,079) 305,097
(890,997) 220,114  (526,272)
(8,413) 8,909 (23,493)
147,398 (123,341) (73,612)
187,457 (18,978)  (186,002)
238,746 13,626 120,311
2,914,989 2,608,744 2,499,391
454,804 26,856 128,853
(55,512) (70,803) (38,478)
(38,870) (42,329) (27,351)
(328,553)  (180,807) (1,384,736)
31,869  (267,083) (1,321,712)
(133,957) (63,850)  (352,019)
135,997 120,675 384,289
20,520 20,520 233,520
(1,919.282)  (2,467,669) (2,849,807)
(1,896,722)  (2,390,324) (2,584,017)
1,050,136 (48,662)  (1,406,338)
1,719,740 1,768,402 3,174,740

$ 2,769,876 $ 1,719,740 $ 1,768,402

$ 32371

$

7,455 $

27,903

$ .

$

10,378

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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Beagell Group
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations

The Beagell Group (the “Company”) includes three commonly-controlled companies: Don’s Automotive
Mall, Inc. (“Don’s”), Gary’s U-Pull It, Inc. (“Gary’s”) and Horseheads Automotive Recycling, Inc.
(“Horseheads”). The Company’s primary business is auto recycling, which is the recovery and resale of original
equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and aftermarket parts, components and systems, such as engines,
transmissions, radiators, trunks, lamps and seats (referred to as “products”) reclaimed from damaged, totaled or
low value vehicles. The Company purchases its vehicles primarily at auto salvage auctions. Upon receipt of
vehicles, the Company inventories and then either a) dismantles the vehicles and sells the recycled components at
its full-service facilities or b) allows retail customers to directly dismantle, recover and purchase recycled parts at
its self-service facilities. In addition, the Company purchases recycled OEM and related products from third
parties for resale and distribution to its customers. The Company’s customers include collision repair shops
(body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual retail customers. The Company also
generates a portion of revenue from the sale of scrap of the unusable parts and materials and from the sale of
extended warranties.

Don’s sells recycled OEM products through its two full-service dismantling and distribution facilities
located in Binghamton, New York and Pennsburg, Pennsylvania. Gary’s and Horseheads sell recycled OEM
products through their self-service facilities in Binghamton and Elmira, New York, respectively. Each of the
three commonly-controlled companies is a New York corporation.

The shareholders of each of the commonly-controlled companies entered into agreements during August
2014, which were subsequently amended to extend the closing conditions through May 15, 2015, with Fenix
Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”) under which Fenix will acquire 100% of their common stock for cash and Fenix common
stock, contingent on, among other things, the closing of an initial public offering of Fenix common stock. The
acquisition will not include the capital stock of any of the Lessors (as defined below).

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The combined financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). All significant intercompany transactions and balances
between the Company’s three entities have been eliminated in combination. The combined Company represents a
single reportable segment.

The combined financial statements include the accounts of D&B Holdings, LL.C and BBHC, LLC - the
lessors of the premises from which Don’s operates, Beagell Properties, LLC - the lessor of the premises from
which Gary’s operates, and Don’s Independent Salvage Company, LLC - the lessor of the premises from which
Horseheads operates (collectively, “the Lessors”). Each of the Lessors are substantially owned by the Company’s
shareholders. The Company has determined that each of the Lessors are variable interest entities because the
holders of the equity investment at risk in these entities do not have the obligation to absorb their expected losses
or receive their residual returns. Furthermore, the Company has determined that it is the primary beneficiary of
each Lessor because the Company has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the
Lessors’ economic performance, namely the operation and maintenance of the significant assets of the Lessors.
Accordingly, and pursuant to consolidation requirements under GAAP, the Company consolidates the Lessors.
All intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation. All of the Lessors operating results are attributable
to the noncontrolling interests in the Company’s combined statements of operations and all of their shareholders’
equity is reported separately from the Company’s shareholders’ equity in the Company’s combined balance
sheets and combined statements of shareholders’ equity.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s combined financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the combined financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of vehicle replacement products and scrap when they are
shipped or picked up by the customers and ownership has transferred, subject to an allowance for estimated
returns and discounts that management estimates based upon historical information. Management analyzes
historical returns (often pursuant to standard warranties on the sold products) and allowances activity by
comparing the items returned to the original invoice amounts and dates. The Company uses this information to
project future returns and allowances on products sold. If actual returns and allowances deviate from the
Company’s historical experience, there could be an impact on its operating results in the period of occurrence.
The Company has recorded a reserve for estimated returns and discounts of approximately $99,000 and $148,000
at December 31, 2014, and 2013, respectively, within accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The Company presents taxes assessed by governmental authorities collected from customers on a net basis.
Therefore, the taxes are excluded from revenue on the combined statements of operations and are shown as a
current liability on the combined balance sheets until remitted. Revenue also includes amounts billed to
customers for shipping and handling.

Revenue from the sale of separately priced extended warranty contracts is reported as deferred revenue and
recognized ratably over the term of the contracts. Revenue from such extended warranty contracts was
approximately $351,000, $280,000 and $108,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold primarily includes a) amounts paid for the purchase of vehicles, scrap, parts for resale
and related products, b) related auction, storage and towing fees, and c¢) other costs of procurement and
dismantling, primarily labor and overhead allocable to dismantling operations.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are primarily comprised of a) salaries and benefits of employees that are not related to
the procurement and dismantling of vehicles, b) facility costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, repairs and taxes
not allocated to dismantling operations, c) selling and marketing costs, d) costs to distribute the Company’s
products and scrap and e) other general and administrative costs.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.
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Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers after a review of each
customer’s credit history. The Company recorded a reserve for uncollectible accounts of approximately $12,000
and $1,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reserve is based upon management’s
assessment of the collectability of specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable and historical
experience. Receivables are written off once collection efforts have been exhausted. Recoveries of accounts
receivable previously written off are recorded when received.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications have been made to conform to the current period presentation. The reclassifications have
no impact on net income.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The majority of cash and cash equivalents are
maintained with several major financial institutions. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts
which, at times, may exceed the insurance limits of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company
has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable
are limited because a large number of customers make up the Company’s customer base. The Company controls
credit risk through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures.

The Company primarily obtains its recycled OEM and related products from damaged, totaled or low value
vehicles purchased at salvage auto auctions. For 2014, 2013 and 2012, substantially all of the vehicles purchased
by the Company for dismantling were acquired at auctions run by two salvage auto auction companies.

Revenue derived from one of the Company’s customers accounted for 14%, 12% and 14% of combined
revenues for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Inventories

Inventories consist entirely of recycled OEM and aftermarket products, including car hulls and other
materials that will be sold as scrap. Inventory costs are established based upon the price the Company pays for a
vehicle, including auction, storage and towing fees, as well as expenditures for buying and dismantling vehicles.
After dismantling, the cost assigned to the salvaged parts and scrap is determined using the average cost of sales
percentage at the Company and applying that percentage to the Company’s inventory at expected selling prices.
The average cost to sales percentage is derived from the Company’s historical vehicle profitability for salvage
vehicles purchased at auction or procured from other sources. With respect to self-service inventories, costs are
established by calculating the average sales price per vehicle, including its scrap value and part value, applied to
the total vehicles on-hand.

For all inventories, carrying value is recorded at the lower of cost or market and is reduced to reflect the age
of the products and current anticipated demand. If actual demand differs from the Company’s estimates,
additional reductions to inventory carrying value would be necessary in the period such determination is made.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged against operations. Renewals and betterments that materially extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. As property and equipment are sold or retired, the applicable cost and
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accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss thereon
is recognized. Depreciation and amortization expense is calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. Depreciation and amortization expense totaled approximately $853,000, $863,000 and
$881,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Approximately $1,426,000 and
$1,458,000 of property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, was held by the
Lessors as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 15 years
Buildings 39 years
Vehicles 5 years
Machinery and equipment 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 10-15 years or term of lease, if shorter
Office furniture and fixtures 7 years

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of property and equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable
based on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows. There were no such events or changes in the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance Policies

The Company pays the premiums for whole life insurance policies for certain shareholders and key
employees. If the Company is the named beneficiary on the policy, it records the premium payments as expenses
offset by the increase in cash surrender value of the related policy. If the Company is not the named beneficiary,
the premiums are recorded as related party receivables until recouped from the shareholder or employee. As of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company had cash surrender value balances of approximately $594,000 and
$538,000, respectively, and related party receivables of approximately $333,000 and $294,000, respectively. The
related party receivables have no stated repayment provisions.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paid for an acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value of the
net identified tangible and intangible assets acquired. The Company is required to perform an annual impairment
review, and more frequently under certain circumstances. Under the qualitative goodwill impairment assessment
standard, management evaluates whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less
than its carrying value. If it is determined that it is more likely than not, the Company proceeds with the next step
of the impairment test, which compares the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value. If the Company
determines through the impairment process that goodwill has been impaired, the Company will record the
impairment charge in its results of operations. The Company has elected to perform its annual evaluation of
impairment as of December 31. There were no impairment charges related to goodwill during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Income Taxes

Each of the three commonly-controlled companies has elected to operate under Subchapter S of the Internal
Revenue Code. Accordingly, the shareholders report their share of the Company’s federal and most state’s
taxable income or loss on their respective individual income tax returns. The Lessors are taxed as partnerships
and therefore no provision for federal and state corporate taxes are recorded for the Lessors.
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The Company recognizes the benefits of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns
in the provision for income taxes only for those positions that are more likely than not to be realized. The
Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to
evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating
tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately forecast
actual outcomes. The Company’s policy is to include interest and penalties associated with income tax
obligations in income tax expense.

Advertising Expenses

Adpvertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses in the accompanying
combined statements of operations. Advertising expenses were approximately $395,000, $449,000 and $520,000
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market
at the measurement date (exit price). The Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the
following categories:

* Level 1 - inputs which are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

* Level 2 - inputs which are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 - inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires
judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels.

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring
basis; however, the Company has no assets or liabilities that require recurring fair value measurements. Fair
value is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and accrued expenses are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity
of these instruments. The Company’s debt is carried at cost and approximates fair value due to its variable or
fixed interest rates, which are consistent with the interest rates in the market.

The Company may be required, on a non-recurring basis, to adjust the carrying value of the Company’s
property and equipment and goodwill. When necessary, these valuations are determined by the Company using

F-37



Beagell Group
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Level 3 inputs. These assets are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, such as when there is
evidence that impairment may exist. There have been no indicators of impairment during 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2014-08, Reporting Discontinued Operations and Disclosures of Disposals of Components of an
Entity, which amends FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 205, Presentation of Financial
Statements, and FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. This standard amends the definition of a
discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations and certain other disposals
that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective on a prospective basis for
annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals that
have not been reported in financial statements previously issued or available for issuance. The Company expects
to adopt this standard on a prospective basis beginning January 1, 2015. Adoption is not expected to have a
material impact on the Company’s combined financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The guidance
in this update supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and creates a single,
principle-based revenue recognition framework that is codified in a new FASB ASC Topic 606. The core
principle of this guidance is for the recognition of revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which a company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new revenue standard is
effective for public entities’ annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods
within those years. Early adoption is not permitted. The new standard allows for either full retrospective or
modified retrospective adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the transition method that will be elected
and the potential effects of the adoption of the new standard on the Company combined financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15 which amends ASC Topic 205, Presentation of
Financial Statements, to describe management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt
about an organization’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This
guidance will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. The Company does not
expect adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on its combined financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis, which
modifies the evaluation of VIEs, and affects the consolidation analysis of reporting entities involved with VIEs.
This guidance for public entities is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard.
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Note 3. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

The components of accrued expenses and other current liabilities are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
Accrued salaries and employee benefits $ 615,558  $561,939
Reserve for returns and discounts 99,454 147,580
Accrued legal fees 135,659 —
Sales taxes payable 18,812 48,004
Other liabilities 139,664 64,168

$1,009,147  $821,691

Note 4. Debt

During 2013, the Company borrowed $120,675 from two of its shareholders. The loan did not bear interest
and was paid in full in June 2014.

In December 2014, the Company entered into a 2-year non-interest bearing loan, secured by the underlying
equipment. Additionally, the Company has two other loans secured by certain equipment purchased with the
related proceeds. These loans do not bear interest and are not subject to any financial covenants. Outstanding
balances were approximately $130,000 and $8,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
aggregate annual future principal payments are approximately $68,000 in 2015 and $62,000 in 2016.

The Company has a line of credit with a financial institution which provides for a maximum borrowing of
$500,000, of which no amounts were outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013. Interest on borrowings is to
be calculated at 0.5% above the prime rate, which was 3.25% at December 31, 2014 and 2013. The facility
expires in December 2015.

The Company has a letter of credit facility with a financial institution in the amount of $30,000 at
December 31, 2014 and 2013. The letter of credit supports an insurance policy. The facility expires in December
2015.

Note 5. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Lease

The Company was obligated under a non-cancelable operating lease for corporate office space, warehouse
and distribution facilities. Through mid-2014, the facilities were owned by certain shareholders of the Company,
at which time they were contributed at minimal value to one of the Lessors . Rental expense for the operating
lease was approximately $72,000 for the year ended December 31, 2014 and $144,000 during each of the years
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Environmental and Related Contingencies

The Company is subject to a variety of environmental and pollution control laws and regulations incident to
the ordinary course of business. The Company currently expects that the resolution of any potential contingencies
arising from compliance with these laws and regulations will not materially affect the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Note 6. Income Taxes

Each of the Company’s commonly-controlled entities described in Note 2 have elected to operate under
Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. The Company’s primary uncertain tax position arises from
uncertainties regarding the continued qualifications of one of the entities for that Subchapter S election. It is
reasonably possible that the amount of benefits from this uncertain tax position will significantly increase or
decrease in the next twelve months; however, no estimate of the range of the amount of the increase or decrease
can be readily made.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of reserves for uncertain tax positions is as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Balance at January 1 $1,199,458 $1,018,846 $ 731,306
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year 396,757 180,612 287,540
Balance at December 31 $1,592,215 $1,199,458 $1,018,846

In addition to the uncertain tax positions included in the table above, the Company has other uncertain tax
positions related to the timing of certain deductions for income tax purposes. The related basis differences caused
by this timing of deductions for income tax purposes and the timing of expense recognition for financial
reporting purposes are reported by the Company’s equity holders. However, interest and penalties are separately
recorded for all uncertain tax positions as part of income tax expense and amounted to approximately $24,000,
$84,000 and $92,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company had
accumulated interest and penalties of approximately $377,000 and $353,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, which are included in the reserve for uncertain tax positions on the combined balance sheets.

The Company is generally no longer subject to examination in primary tax jurisdictions for tax years
through 2011. The Company is not currently subject to any audits or examinations.

Note 7. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company provides a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees, which includes a matching
contribution. Matching Company contributions to this plan were approximately $430,000, $392,000 and
$372,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 8. Common Stock

The capital structure of the combined entities as of December 31, 2014, is as follows:

Common shares, no par value Additiqnal

paid-in

Authorized Issued capital
Don’s 5,000 1,200 $524,005
Gary’s 3,000 2,104 184,488
Horsehead’s 200 120 40,000
$748,493

In each of 2014, 2013 and 2012, the shareholders of Gary’s contributed $20,520 for an additional 12 shares
of common stock.

Note 9. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2015, which is the date the combined
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure have
been incorporated into these combined financial statements.

F-40



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Shareholders
Standard
Toronto, Ontario

We have audited the accompanying combined balance sheets of Standard (entities under common control as
described in Note 1) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 and the related combined statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014. These
combined financial statements are the responsibility of Standard’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these combined financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the combined financial statements are free of material misstatement. Standard is not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
Standard’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the combined financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the combined financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Standard at December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As described in Note 1, Standard is expected to be acquired by an unrelated party.

/s BDO USA, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 25, 2015
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COMBINED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Related party receivables

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land and improvements
Buildings and improvements
Office equipment
Vehicles, trailers and yard equipment
Leasehold improvements
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment, net

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill
Deferred income taxes
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred warranty revenue
Deferred income taxes
Related party payables

Total current liabilities
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES
DEFERRED WARRANTY REVENUE, NET OF CURRENT PORTION

RESERVE FOR UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS
Total liabilities

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common stock, no par value

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Total Standard shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total shareholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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2014

2013

$ 1,354,155 $ 1,901,613
930,903 1,291,561
11,090,360 10,542,985
291,782 212,595
255,698 212,430
13,922,898 14,161,184
1,316,143 1,000,681
3,099,557 1,923,534
1,393,020 1,392,037
6,056,322  6,095.725
1,164,617 875,681
(5,340,370)  (5,287,455)
7,689,289 6,000,203
363,373 394,990
256,287 83,120
33,394 30,064
653,054 508,174
$22,265241  $20,669,561
$ 563,045 $ 536,373
1,187,723 2,103.373
179,832 240,632
918,004 1,161,319
2,409,277 524.965
5257881 4,566,662
70,668 70,668
176,610 219,981
458,425 325,926
5,963,584 5,183,237
5,058,040 5,058,040
10,641,250 8,881,011
(75,129) 904,609
15,624,161 14,843,660
677,496 642,664
16,301,657 15,486,324
$22,265,241  $20,669,561




Standard

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

2014 2013 2012
NELTEVENUES . . oottt ettt ettt e e e e e e e $31,126,456 $31,737,800 $31,036,982
Cost of goods Sold ... ..o 19,717,339 19,713,472 20,242,794
Gross profit . ...t 11,409,117 12,024,328 10,794,188
Operating EXpenSEeS . .« . v v v vt vttt et 9,524,510 11,602,249 10,377,259
Income from operations .................. ... 1,884,607 422,079 416,929
Other iINCOME (EXPENSE) . .. v v vv e ettt en 842,509 30,647 (660)
Income before income tax provision . ..................... 2,727,116 452,726 416,269
Income tax provision . ... ...t (683,683) (171,800) (111,715)
NEtINCOME ...ttt t et e e e e e 2,043,433 280,926 304,554
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest ............... 107,282 68,455 60,687
Net income attributable to Standard . ..................... $ 1,936,151 $ 212471 $ 243,867
NEtINCOME . .o vttt ettt et e e ettt e $ 2,043,433 $§ 280,926 $ 304,554
Foreign currency translation adjustments ...................... (982,425) (697,552) 196,199
Net comprehensive income (10SS) . ......... ... 1,061,008 (416,626) 500,753
Net comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest . . 104,595 68,455 60,687
Net comprehensive income (loss) attributable to Standard . . . . . $ 956,413 $ (485,081) $ 440,066

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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COMBINED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

» Accumulated
—Common stock A;l)g;(tll-oiﬁal Retained com[:);:llf:nsive Noncontrolling sharzl(l)(t)?(liers’
Shares Amount capital earnings income (loss) interest equity
Balance at January 1,

2012 .o 10,400 $—  $4,208,559 $ 8,424,673 $1,405,962  $513,522 $14,552,716
Netincome ............ — — — 243,867 — 60,687 304,554
Foreign currency

translation

adjustments .......... — — — — 196,199 — 196,199
Balance at December 31,

2012 .o 10,400 — 4,208,559 8,668,540 1,602,161 574,209 15,053,469
Netincome ............ — — — 282,234 — (1,308) 280,926
Shareholder

contributions ......... — — 600,608 — — — 600,608
Capitalization of Goldy

Metals Ottawa . ....... 100 — 248,873 — — — 248,873
Foreign currency

translation

adjustments .......... — — — — (697,552) — (697,552)
Balance at December 31,

2013 .. 10,500 — 5,058,040 8,950,774 904,609 572,901 15,486,324
Netincome ............ — — — 1,936,151 — 107,282 2,043,433
Shareholder

distributions . ......... — — — (245,675) — — (245,675)
Foreign currency

translation

adjustments .......... — — — — (979,738) (2,687) (982,425)
Balance at December 31,

2014 ... 10,500 $—  $5,058,040 $10,641,250 $ (75,129) $677.496 $16,301,657

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities:
NEtINCOME . ..ottt ettt e
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization eXpense . ................
Deferred income tax benefit ............ ... .. ... ... ..
Provision for uncertain tax positions ...................
(Gain) loss on disposal of property and equipment ........
Gainonfire ....... ... ..
Insurance proceeds .......... ... ... il
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable ........ ... . ool
Inventories ............ ... i
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ...........
Accounts payable ............. .. . .
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities . .. ... ..

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities ............ i

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures . ........ .. .. .. . . i
Insurance proceeds .......... .. .. .. i
Business acquisition, net of cash acquired ...................

Net cash used in investing activities .. ..........

Cash flows from financing activities
Capitalization of Goldy Metals Ottawa .. ...................
Shareholder distributions .. ........ .. .. .. .. .. . . ...

Net cash provided by financing activities ...........
Effect of foreign exchange fluctuationsoncash ..................

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ..............
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ....................

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year .........................

Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cash paid forincome taxes .. ........... ...,

2014

2013

2012

$2,043433 § 280,926 $ 304,554

682,263 917,945 735,762
(325,789)  (510,272)  (698,538)
(235,888) 153,291 100,859

— (16,816) 5,303
(758,481) — —
1,505,371 — —
402,620 23,629 41,175
(2,173,347)  (468,042) 1,295,391
29306  (123,663) 338,531
38,864 127,914 (151,218)
1,058,278 465270  (219,206)
2,266,630  (850,182) 1,752,613
(3,274,519)  (891,724)  (131,808)
1,091,262
— (2,931,000) —
(2,183,257) (3,822,724)  (131,808)
— 248,873 —
(245,675) — —
(245,675) 248,873 —
(385,155)  (430,389) 46,894
(547,458)  (3,154,058) 1,667,699
1,901,613 5,055,671 3,387,972

$ 1,354,155 $ 1,901,613 $5,055,671

$ 657,513 $ 815,733 § 238,209

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the combined financial statements.
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NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations

Standard (the “Company”) includes four commonly-controlled companies: Standard Auto Wreckers, Inc.
(“Standard Auto”), End of Life Vehicles Inc. (“End of Life Vehicles”), Goldy Metals (Ottawa) Incorporated
(“Goldy Metals Ottawa”) and Goldy Metals Incorporated (“Goldy Metals Toronto”). The Company’s primary
business is auto recycling, which is the recovery and resale of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and
aftermarket parts, components and systems, such as engines, transmissions, radiators, trunks, lights and seats
(referred to as “products”) reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. The Company purchases its
vehicles primarily at auto salvage auctions. Upon receipt of vehicles, the Company inventories and then a)
dismantles the vehicles and sells the recycled components at its full-service facilities or b) allows retail
customers to directly dismantle, recover and purchase recycled parts at its self-service facilities. In addition, the
Company purchases recycled OEM parts and related products from third parties for resale and distribution to its
customers. The Company’s customers include collision repair shops (body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto
dealerships and individual retail customers. The Company also generates a portion of revenue from the sale as
scrap of the unusable parts and materials and from the sale of extended warranty contracts.

Standard Auto is incorporated in New York, End of Life Vehicles, Goldy Metals Ottawa and Goldy Metals
Toronto all operate in Canada and are incorporated in the Province of Ontario. Collectively, the Company has
three full-service dismantling and distribution facilities located in Niagara Falls, New York; Port Hope, Ontario;
and Ottawa, Ontario. The Ottawa facility runs a self-service operation adjacent to its full-service operations and
Goldy Metals Toronto has a second self-service operation in Scarborough, Ontario. End of Life Vehicles is a
website based solution for individuals to arrange for an environmentally responsible disposal of their vehicle.

The shareholders of each of the commonly-controlled companies have entered into agreements with Fenix
Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”) under which Fenix will acquired their respective capital stock or substantially all of their net
assets for cash and preferred shares of Fenix’s Canadian subsidiary, contingent on, among other things, the
closing of an initial public offering of Fenix common stock. The acquisition will not include the capital stock of
Dalana Realty, Port Hope or Cornwall (all as defined below).

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

The combined financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). All significant intercompany transactions and balances
between the Company’s four entities have been eliminated in combination. The combined Company represents a
single reportable segment.

The combined financial statements include the accounts of Dalana Realty, Inc. (“Dalana Realty”), the lessor
of the premises from which Standard Auto operates. Dalana Realty and Standard Auto share common ownership.
In April 2014, Standard Auto Wreckers (Port Hope), Inc. (“Port Hope”), an Ontario corporation, was formed by
one of the Company’s shareholders to hold new property to be used as a full-service dismantling and distribution
facility in Port Hope, Ontario, to replace the Goldy Metals Toronto’s full-service operations in Scarborough
which were not restarted after a fire at the facility in March 2014. The combined financial statements also include
the accounts of Port Hope.

The Company has determined Dalana Realty and Port Hope are variable interest entities (“VIEs”) because
the holders of the equity investment at risk do not have the obligation to absorb its expected losses or receive its
residual returns. Furthermore, the Company has determined it is the primary beneficiary of the VIEs because the
Company has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact Delana Realty’s and Port Hope’s
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economic performance, namely the operations and maintenance of the significant assets of the VIEs.
Accordingly, and pursuant to consolidation requirements under GAAP, the Company consolidates Dalana Realty
and Port Hope. All intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation, and the VIE’s operating results are
attributable to the noncontrolling interest in the Company’s combined statements of operations and all of its
shareholder’s equity is reported separately from the Company’s shareholders’ equity in the Company’s combined
balance sheets and statements of shareholders’ equity.

Foreign Currency

The assets and liabilities of End of Life Vehicles, Goldy Metals Ottawa, Goldy Metals Toronto and Port
Hope, whose functional currency is the Canadian dollar, are translated into US dollars at period-end exchange
rates prior to combination. Income and expense items are translated at the average rates of exchange prevailing
during the period. The adjustments resulting from translating the Company’s financial statements are reflected as
a component of accumulated other comprehensive income within shareholders’ equity. Foreign currency
transaction gains and losses are recognized in net earnings based on differences between foreign exchange rates
on the transaction date and the settlement date. Transaction gains (losses) were $2,200, $9,300 and ($5,900) in
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are included in operating expenses on the consolidated statements of
operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s combined financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the combined financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of vehicle replacement products and scrap when they are
shipped or picked up by the customers and ownership has transferred, subject to an allowance for estimated
returns and discounts that management estimates based upon historical information. Management analyzes
historical returns (often pursuant to standard warranties on the sold products) and allowances activity by
comparing the items to the original invoice amounts and dates. The Company uses this information to project
future returns and allowances on products sold. If actual returns and allowances deviate significantly from the
Company’s historical experience, there could be an impact on its operating results in the period of occurrence.
The Company has recorded a reserve for estimated returns and discounts of approximately $85,000 and $249,000
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, within accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The Company presents taxes assessed by governmental authorities collected from customers on a net basis.
Therefore, the taxes are excluded from revenue on the combined statements of operations and are shown as
current liabilities on the combined balance sheets until remitted. Revenue also includes amounts billed to
customers for shipping and handling.

Revenue from the sale of separately priced extended warranty contracts is reported as deferred revenue and
recognized ratably over the term of the contracts or over five years for life-time warranties. Revenue from such
extended warranty contracts was approximately $412,000, $371,000 and $465,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

F-47



Standard
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Net revenues of approximately $26,914,000, $26,958,000 and $25,913,000 were reported by the Company’s
Canadian entities for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold primarily includes a) amounts paid for the purchase of vehicles and parts for resale,
b) related auction, storage and towing fees, and c) other costs of procurement and dismantling, primarily labor
and overhead allocable to dismantling operations.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are primarily comprised of a) salaries and benefits of employees that are not related to
the procurement and dismantling of vehicles, b) facility costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, repairs and taxes
not allocated to dismantling operations, c) selling and marketing costs, d) costs to distribute products and scrap
and e) other general and administrative costs.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers after a review of each
customer’s credit history. The Company recorded a reserve for uncollectible accounts of approximately $113,000
and $19,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reserve is based on management’s assessment of
the collectability of specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable and historical experience.
Receivables are written off once collections efforts have been exhausted. Recoveries of accounts receivable
previously written off are recorded when received.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications of prior period amounts have been made to conform to the current period presentation. The
reclassifications have no impact on net income.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The majority of cash and cash equivalents are
maintained with major financial institutions. The Company maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at
times, may exceed the insurance limits of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company has not
experienced any losses in such accounts. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are
limited because a large number of customers make up the Company’s customer base. The Company controls
credit risk through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures.

The Company obtains its recycled OEM and related products from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles
purchased at salvage auto auctions. For 2014, 2013 and 2012, substantially all of the vehicles purchased by the
Company for dismantling were acquired at auctions run by two salvage auto auction companies.
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Inventories

Inventories consist entirely of recycled OEM and aftermarket products, including car hulls and other
materials that will be sold as scrap. Inventory costs are established based upon the price the Company pays for a
vehicle, including auction, storage and towing fees, as well as expenditures for buying and dismantling vehicles.
After dismantling, the cost assigned to the salvage parts and scrap is determined using the average cost to sales
percentage at the Company and applying that percentage to the Company’s inventory at expected selling prices.
The average cost to sales percentage is derived from the Company’s historical vehicle profitability for salvage
vehicles purchased at auction or procured from other sources.

For all inventories, carrying value is recorded at the lower of cost or market and is reduced to reflect the age
of the product and current anticipated demand. If actual demand differs from the Company’s estimates,
additional reductions to inventory carrying value would be necessary in the period such determination is made.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged against operations as incurred. Renewals and betterments that materially
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. As property and equipment are sold or retired, the applicable
cost and accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss
thereon is recognized. Depreciation and amortization is calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. Depreciation and amortization totaled approximately $682,000, $918,000 and $736,000
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Approximately $2,370,000 and $455,000
of property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, was held by Dalana Realty and
Port Hope as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Approximately $6,878,000 and $5,015,000 of
property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, was held by the Company’s Canadian
entities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Building and Land improvements 15 years
Office equipment 3 - 10 years
Vehicles, trailers and yard equipment 5 - 10 years
Leasehold improvements 10 -15 years or life of

lease, if shorter

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of property and equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable
based on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows. There were no such events or changes in the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price paid for an acquisition exceeds the estimated fair value of the
net identified tangible and intangible assets acquired. The Company is required to perform an annual impairment
review, and more frequently under certain circumstances. Under the qualitative goodwill impairment assessment
standard, management evaluates whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is less
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than its carrying value. If it is determined that it is more likely than not, the Company proceeds with the next step
of the impairment test, which compares the fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value. If the Company
determines through the impairment process that goodwill has been impaired, the Company will record the
impairment charge in its results of operations. The Company has elected to perform its annual evaluation of
impairment as of December 31. There were no impairment charges related to goodwill during the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method where deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and the respective tax basis and for tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the
years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment
date. A valuation allowance is established when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. The Company evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets by assessing its
valuation allowance and by adjusting the amount of such allowance, if necessary. The factors used to assess the
likelihood of realization include historical cumulative losses, the forecast of future taxable income and available
tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve
forecasted taxable income in applicable tax jurisdictions could affect the ultimate realization of deferred tax
assets and could result in an increase in the Company’s effective tax rate on future earnings.

The Company recognizes the benefits of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns
in the provision for income taxes only for those positions that are more likely than not to be realized. The
Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to
evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating
its tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately forecast
actual outcomes. The Company policy is to include interest and penalties associated with income tax obligations
in income tax expense.

Advertising Expenses

Adpvertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses in the accompanying
combined statements of operations. Advertising expenses were approximately $399,000, $319,000 and $272,000
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market
at the measurement date (exit price). The Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the
following categories:

e Level l—inputs which are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.
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e Level 2—inputs which are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3—inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires
judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels.

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring
basis; however, the Company has no assets or liabilities that require recurring fair value measurements. Fair
value is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Company’s combined financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term
maturity of these instruments. The Company’s debt and related party receivables are carried at cost which
approximates fair value due to their variable or fixed interest rates, which are consistent with the interest rates in
the market.

The Company may be required, on a non-recurring basis, to adjust the carrying value of its property and
equipment or goodwill. When necessary, these valuations may be determined by the Company using Level 3
inputs. These assets are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, such as when there is evidence
that impairment may exist. There have been no indicators of impairment during 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Recent Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2014-08, which amends FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 205,
Presentation of Financial Statements, and FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. This standard
amends the definition of a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations
and certain other disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective
on a prospective basis for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within
those years. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals that have not been reported in financial statements
previously issued or available for issuance. The Company expects to adopt this standard on a prospective basis
beginning January 1, 2015. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s combined
financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The guidance
in this update supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and creates a single,
principle-based revenue recognition framework that is codified in a new FASB ASC Topic 606. The core
principle of this guidance is for the recognition of revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new revenue standard is
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effective for nonpublic entities’ annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods
within those years. Early adoption is not permitted. The new standard allows for either full retrospective or
modified retrospective adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the transition method that will be elected
and the potential effects of the adoption of the new standard on the Company’s combined financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15, which amends ASC Topic 205, Presentation of
Financial Statements, to describe management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt
about an organization’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This
guidance will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. The Company does not
expect adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on its combined financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis, which
modifies the evaluation of VIEs, and affects the consolidation analysis of reporting entities involved with VIEs.
This guidance for public entities is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard.

Note 3. Business Combinations

In March 2013, Goldy Metals Ottawa acquired certain operations of Union Auto Parts (1997) Ltd. (“Union
Auto”), an unrelated party, for a purchase price of CAD $2.91 million (or approximately US$2.93 million). Other
than approximately $200,000 of certain inventories, the acquired net assets included approximately $2.24 million
of land, buildings and equipment and no liabilities, resulting in approximately $488,000 of deductible goodwill.
Goldy Metals Ottawa did not incur material transaction expenses related to this acquisition. Goldy Metals Ottawa
acquired Union Auto to obtain a strategically attractive location in Ottawa, Ontario and to complement other
Standard operations. Since the acquisition date, goodwill decreased in U.S. dollars by $32,000 and $93,000
during 2014 and 2013, respectively, due to foreign currency translation adjustments.

In August 2013, one of the Company’s shareholders formed Standard Auto Wreckers (Cornwall) Inc.
(“Cornwall”), an Ontario corporation, to acquire property located in Cornwall, Ontario to allow for future
expansion of the Goldy Metals Ottawa operations.

Note 4. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, consisted of the
following:

December 31,

2014 2013
Accrued salaries and employee costs ............. $ 140,860 $ 142,859
Reserve for returns and discounts ................ 84,615 248,667
Income taxes payable ................ ... ... .. 443,377 325,370
Management fees payable . ..................... — 981,593
Other liabilities . ...............co ... 518,871 404,884

$1,187,723  $2,103,373
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Note 5. Commitments and Contingencies
Leases

Goldy Metals Toronto pays rent to one of the shareholders under a month to month lease agreement. Lease
expense under this operating lease was approximately $65,000, $70,000, and 72,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Port Hope leases office space to multiple tenants for aggregate annual rent of approximately $60,000. These
leases range from terms of one to three years.

Litigation and Related Contingencies

The Company is subject to a variety of environmental and pollution control laws and regulations incident to
the ordinary course of business. As of December 31, 2013 the Company had approximately CAD $94,000
accrued related to an environmental matter for causing or permitting an oil spill which polluted a nearby creek at
the Goldy Metals Toronto location. This CAD $94,000 settlement was paid in 2014. The Company currently
expects that the resolution of any other contingencies arising from compliance with these laws and regulations
will not materially affect its combined financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

The Province of Ontario has filed a civil lawsuit against Goldy Metals Toronto and the owner of the land on
which the facility is located claiming damages of CAD $10.5 million plus pre- and post-judgment interest and
court costs, for alleged historical and spill-related contamination and property encroachment damage. The
lawsuit is currently in the pre-discovery stage and no accrual has been recorded.

Note 6. Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following components:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current
Domestic ..................... $ 472,865 $ 336,960 $ 274,723
Foreign ...................... 536,607 345,112 535,530
Total current .............. 1,009,472 682,072 810,253
Deferred
Domestic .............. ... ... (352,963)  (342,880)  (593,312)
Foreign ...................... 27,174 (167,392)  (105,226)
Total deferred . ............ (325,789)  (510,272)  (698,538)
Income tax provision ....... $ 683,683 $171,800 $ 111,715

Income taxes have been based on the following components of income (loss) before provision for income
taxes:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
Domestic ....................... $ (313,050) $(409,567) $(1,086,799)
Foreign........... ... ... .. .. ... 3,040,167 862,293 1,503,070

$2,727,117  $452,7726 $ 416,269
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The U.S. federal statutory rate is reconciled to the effective tax rate as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012

U.S. federal statutory rate . ................couin... 34%  34%  34%
State income taxes, net of state credits and federal tax
IMPaCt . ..ot 0 4 4
Impact of foreign tax rates . ........................ (8) (26) (19)
Changes in uncertain tax positions . .................. 11 34 22
Other,net . ...t e (12) ®) (16)
Effective taxrate ............... ..., 25%  38% @ 25%

The significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013
Deferred tax assets
Accrued expenses and reserves ............ $ 54550 $ 267,925
Goodwill ......... ... ... ... .. .. .. ..... 257,452 305,004
Net operating loss carryforwards ........... 156,873 76,471
State tax creditS . .. ... 33,026 39,475
Total deferred tax assets .............. 501,901 688,875
Deferred tax liabilities
Inventories ............ ... ... ... ... ..... (612,467) (1,429,243)
Property and equipment .................. (158,037) (408,499)
Other ....... ... .. (463,782) —
Total deferred tax liabilities ........... (1,234,286) (1,837,742)
Net deferred tax liability .. ............ $ (732,385) $(1,148,867)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are reflected on the combined balance sheets as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013
Non-current deferred tax assets . ................. $ 256,287 $ 83,120
Current deferred tax liabilities . .................. (918,004) (1,161,319)
Non-current deferred tax liabilities ............... (70,668) (70,668)

There are net operating loss carryforwards for foreign jurisdictions which result in tax benefits of
approximately $592,000 and $289,000 at December 31, 2014 and, 2013, respectively. The net operating loss
carryforwards expire by 2033, while most tax credit carryforwards have no expiration. Realization of these
deferred tax assets is dependent on the generation of sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration dates.
Based on historical and projected operating results, management believes that it is more likely than not that
earnings will be sufficient to realize the deferred tax assets for which valuation allowances have not been
provided. While management expects to realize the deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowances, changes in
estimates of future taxable income or in tax laws may alter this expectation.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Balance at January 1 ... ... ... i e $142,340 $119,403 $ 72,002
Additions for tax positions of prior years .................iiiiiiana... (1,341) 22,937 47,401
Balance at December 31 . ... ... ... $140,999 $142,340 $119,403

The Company’s uncertain tax positions include positions related to the timing of certain deductions for
income tax purposes. The related basis differences caused by this timing of deductions for income tax purposes
and the timing of expense recognition for financial reporting purposes are reflected in the Company’s deferred
income tax liabilities. However, interest and penalties are separately recorded for all uncertain tax positions as
part of income tax expense and amounted to approximately $135,000, $130,000 and $53,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company had accumulated interest and penalties of
approximately $317,000 and $184,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which are included in
the reserve for uncertain tax positions on the combined balance sheets.

The Company is generally no longer subject to examination in the Company’s primary tax jurisdictions for
tax years through 2011. The Company is not currently subject to any audits or examination.

Note 7. Related-Party Transactions

The Company had related party payables of approximately $2,409,000 and $525,000 at December 31, 2014
and 2013, respectively. These amounts are due to Goldy Metals Holdings, Inc., the majority owner of Dalana
Realty, for funds advanced to Dalana Realty and to the primary owner of Port Hope for funds advanced for
working capital needs, are payable on demand and bear no interest.

The Company had related-party receivables of approximately $256,000 at December 31, 2014. This amount
consists of a loan receivable from Goldy Metals Holdings, Inc. of approximately $109,000, a loan receivable of
approximately $104,000 from 1321 Erie Rd., a related party through common ownership, and certain advances to
shareholders and other related entities of approximately $43,000. The Company has related party receivables of
approximately $212,000 at December 31, 2013. This amount consists of a loan receivable from Goldy Metals
Holdings, Inc. of approximately $96,000, a loan receivable of approximately $97,000 from 1321 Erie Rd., a
related party through common ownership, and certain advances to shareholders and other related entities of
approximately $19,000. These receivables represent advances from the Company to pay various operating
expenses of the related parties and are due on demand. None of the receivables bears interest, with the exception
of the 1321 Erie Road note which has a fixed rate of 2.5% per annum.

The Company pays management fees to two shareholders. There is no formal agreement, and the amount
paid each year is largely discretionary. Management fees were approximately $ —, $1,020,000 and $1,050,000
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are included in operating expenses in
the combined statements of operations. A portion of management fees due to these shareholders (approximately
$601,000) was converted into Goldy Metals Toronto’s shareholders equity in 2013.

The Company leases one of its Goldy Metals Toronto facilities from a shareholder on a month-to-month
basis. Rent is paid at the rate of approximately $6,000 per month and no amounts were payable at December 31,
2014 or 2013.

F-55



Standard
NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8. Gain on Fire

On March 3, 2014, a fire occurred at the Goldy Metals Toronto facility located in Scarborough, Ontario. The
fire destroyed the dismantling facility and a substantial portion of the location’s inventory. The Company
received approximately $2,597,000 in insurance proceeds and recognized a $758,000 gain within other income as
a result of the settlement of lost inventory, damaged buildings and other miscellaneous items from the fire. The
Company is in the process of finalizing the insurance claim and does not anticipate significant additional
recovery.

Note 9. Common Stock

The capital structure of the combined entities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, as follows:

Common stock, no par value 4o b

Authorized Issued in Capital
Standard Auto . .................. 1,000 200 $1,427,429
End of Life Vehicles .............. unlimited 200 20
Goldy Metals Ottawa ............. unlimited 100 248,873
Goldy Metals Toronto . ............ unlimited 10,000 3,374,418
$5,058,040

As described in Note 7, in 2013, the shareholders of Goldy Metals Toronto converted approximately
$601,000 of amounts due to them into additional paid-in capital with no common stock issued.

Note 10. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2015, which is the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure have
been incorporated into these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Shareholders
Eiss Brothers, Inc.
Watertown, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Eiss Brothers, Inc., which comprise
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2014, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Eiss Brothers, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter
As described in Note 1, the Company is expected to be acquired by an unrelated party.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 25, 2015

F-57



Eiss Brothers, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Shareholder note receivable
Other non-current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Current portion of deferred warranty revenue
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
DEFERRED WARRANTY REVENUE, NET OF CURRENT PORTION
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTION

Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, no par value; 300 shares authorized, issued and outstanding as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings

Total Eiss Brothers, Inc. shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest

Total shareholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2014

2013

$ 633483 $ 351,874
752,609 576,028
5374372 5,368,739

23,052 20,000
6,783,516 6,316,641
67,162 67,162
1,552,760 1,552,760
940,779 762,093
228,776 228,776

(1,372,919)  (1,270,406)
1,416,558 1,340,385
117,058 144,173

17,506 18,279

$ 8,334,638 $ 7,819,478

$ 200,020 $ 139,375
178,947 178,890
143,313 92,710
71,280 75,250
593,560 486,225
170,808 182,742
540,359 516,303
1,304,727 1,185,270
38,515 38,515
6,471,168 6,090,072
6,509,683 6,128,587
520,228 505,621
7029911 6,634,208

$ 8,334,638 $ 7,819,478




Eiss Brothers, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Net revenues
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses

Income from operations
Interest expense
Other (expense)/income, net

Net income
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income attributable to Eiss Brothers, Inc.

2014 2013 2012
$11,974,642  $10,022,320  $9,053,626
8,837,835 7,253,257 6,199,941
3,136,807 2,769,063 2,853,685
2,294,035 2,420,368 2,582,406
842,772 348,695 271,279
(23,943) (23,782)  (40,312)
(21,018) 23,235 13,947
797,811 348,148 244,914
14,607 16,672 11,099
$ 783204 $ 331476 $ 233815

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Eiss Brothers, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Balance at January 1, 2012
Shareholder distributions
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2012
Shareholder distributions
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2013
Shareholder distributions
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2014

Additional N Total
M pa;dl-oiﬁa Retained contr(())lllling sharel(l)o?ders’

Shares Amount capital earnings interest equity
300 $— $38,515  $5,794,991 $477,850 $6,311,356
— — — (188,154) — (188,154)
- = — 233815 11,099 244914
300 — 38,515 5,840,652 488,949 6,368,116
— — — (82,056) — (82,056)
- = — 331476 16,672 348,148
300 — 38,515 6,090,072 505,621 6,634,208
— — (402,108) — (402,108)
— — — 783,204 14,607 797,811
300 $— $38,515 $6,471,168 $520,228 $7,029,911

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Eiss Brothers, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 797,811 $ 348,148 $ 244914
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities
Depreciation expense 102,513 111,727 106,005
Gain on disposal of equipment — — (500)
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (176,581) (82,578) 84,278
Inventories (5,633) 44,570  (301,825)
Other current assets (3,052) — —
Other non-current assets 773 1,818 2,298
Account payable 60,645 (24,097) 7,880
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 57 (11,673) (27,663)
Deferred warranty revenue 38,669 7,081 39,530
Net cash provided by operating activities 815,202 394,996 154,917
Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures (178,686) (4,640) (31,770)
Proceeds from the sale of equipment — — 3,918
Loan to shareholder — — (155,000)
Payments on shareholder loan 27,115 6,938 3,889
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities (151,571) 2,298  (178,963)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of long term debt (96,032) (114,783) (77,667)
Proceeds from long-term debt 116,118 — 155,000
Shareholder distributions (402,108)  (82,056) (188,154)
Net cash used in financing activities (382,022) (196,839) (110,821)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 281,609 200,455  (134,867)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 351,874 151,419 286,286
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 633,483 $ 351,874 $ 151,419
Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cash paid for interest $ 23943 $§ 23,782 $ 40,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Note 1. Nature of Operations

Eiss Brothers, Inc. (the “Company”), a New York corporation, engages primarily in auto recycling, which is
the recovery and resale of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and aftermarket parts, components and
systems, such as engines, transmissions, door assemblies, trunk lids, lights and fenders (referred to as “products™)
reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. The Company purchases its vehicles primarily at auto
salvage auctions. Upon receipt of vehicles, the Company inventories and then dismantles the vehicles and sells
the recycled components. In addition, the Company purchases recycled OEM and related products from third
parties for resale and distribution to its customers. The Company’s customers include collision repair shops
(body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual retail customers. The Company also
generates a portion of its revenue from the sale as scrap of the unusable parts and materials and from the sale of
extended warranty contracts. The Company operates a full service recycling facility in Watertown, New York.

The shareholders of the Company have entered into an agreement dated August 11, 2014, which was
subsequently amended to extend the closing conditions through May 15, 2015, with Fenix Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”)
under which Fenix will acquire 100% of the Company’s shares for cash and Fenix common stock, contingent
upon, among other things, the closing of an initial public offering of that common stock. The acquisition will not
include the capital stock of Eiss Brothers Partnership (“EBP”).

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of EBP, the lessor of the premises from which
the Company operates. EBP is wholly-owned by all of the Company’s shareholders. The Company has
determined that EBP is a variable interest entity because the holders of the equity investment at risk in EBP do
not have the obligation to absorb its expected losses or receive its residual returns. Furthermore, the Company
has determined that it is EBP’s primary beneficiary because the Company has the power to direct the activities
that most significantly impact EBP’s economic performance, namely the operation and maintenance of the
significant assets of EBP. Accordingly, and pursuant to consolidation requirements under GAAP, the Company
consolidates EBP. All intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation. All of EBP’s operating results
are attributable to the noncontrolling interest in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and all of
its shareholders’ equity is reported separately from the Company’s shareholders’ equity in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of shareholders’ equity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of vehicle replacement products and scrap when they are
shipped or picked up by the customers and ownership has transferred, subject to an allowance for estimated
returns and discounts that management estimates based upon historical information. Management analyzes
historical returns (often pursuant to standard warranties on the sold products) and allowances activity by
comparing the items returned to the original invoice amounts and dates. The Company uses this information to
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project future returns and allowances on products sold. If actual returns and allowances deviate significantly from
the Company’s historical experience, there could be an impact on its operating results in the period of
occurrence. The Company has recorded a reserve for estimated returns and discounts of approximately $104,000
and $139,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, within accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The Company presents taxes assessed by government authorities collected from customers on a net basis.
Therefore, the taxes are excluded from revenue on the consolidated statements of operations and are shown
within accrued expenses and other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet until remitted. Revenue
also includes amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling.

Revenue from the sale of separately priced extended warranty contracts is reported as deferred revenue and
recognized ratably over the term of the contracts, or over five years for life-time warranties. Revenue from such
extended warranty contracts was approximately $154,000, $174,000 and $128,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold primarily includes a) amounts paid for the purchase of vehicles and parts for resale,
b) related auction, storage and towing fees, and c) other costs of procurement and dismantling, primarily labor
and overhead allocable to dismantling operations.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are primarily comprised of a) salaries and benefits of employees that are not related to
the procurement and dismantling of vehicles, b) facility costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, repairs and taxes
not allocated to dismantling operations, c) selling and marketing costs, d) costs to distribute products and scrap
and e) other general and administrative costs.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers after a review of each
customer’s credit history. The Company recorded a reserve for uncollectible accounts of approximately $9,000
and $12,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reserve is based on management’s assessment of
the collectability of specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable and historical experience.
Receivables are written off once collections efforts have been exhausted. Recoveries of accounts receivable
previously written off are recorded when received.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The majority of cash and cash equivalents are
maintained with several major financial institutions. From time to time, the Company’s cash balances may
exceed Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limits. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts
receivable are limited because a large number of customers make up the Company’s customer base. The
Company controls credit risk through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures.
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The Company primarily obtains its recycled OEM and related products from damaged, totaled or low value
vehicles purchased at salvage auto auctions. For 2014, 2013 and 2012, substantially all of the vehicles purchased
by the Company for dismantling were acquired at auctions run by two salvage auto auction companies.

Inventories

Inventories consist entirely of recycled OEM and aftermarket products, including car hulls and other
materials that will be sold as scrap. Inventory costs are established based upon the price the Company pays for a
vehicle, including auction, storage and towing fees, as well as expenditures for buying and dismantling vehicles.
After dismantling, the cost assigned to the salvage parts and scrap is determined using the average cost to sales
percentage at the Company and applying that percentage to the Company’s inventory at expected selling prices.
The average cost to sales percentage is derived from the Company’s historical vehicle profitability for salvage
vehicles purchased at auction or procured from other sources.

For all inventories, carrying value is recorded at the lower of cost or market and is reduced to reflect the age
of the product and current anticipated demand. If actual demand differs from the Company’s estimates,
additional reductions to inventory carrying value would be necessary in the period such determination is made.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged against operations as incurred. Renewals and betterments that materially extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. As property and equipment are sold or retired, the applicable cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss thereon is recognized.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Depreciation
totaled approximately $103,000, $112,000 and $106,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. Approximately $853,000 and $880,000 of property, net of accumulated depreciation, was held by
EBP as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Building improvements 15 years
Equipment 3 - 10 years
Vehicles 5 years

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of property and equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable
based on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows. There were no such events or changes in the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to operate under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue Code. EBP is taxed as a
partnership. Accordingly, the shareholders report their share of the Company’s federal and most state taxable
income or loss on their respective individual income tax returns.

The Company recognizes the benefits of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns
in the provision for income taxes only for those positions that are more likely than not to be realized. The
Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to
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evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating
the Company’s tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not
accurately forecast actual outcomes. The Company had no unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2014 or
2013, is generally no longer subject to examination in its primary tax jurisdictions for tax years through 2011 and
is not currently subject to any audits or examinations. Should any interest or penalties accrue on uncertain tax
positions, the Company would record them as income tax expense.

Advertising Expenses

Adpvertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Advertising expenses were approximately $6,000, $11,000 and $18,000
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market
at the measurement date (exit price). The Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the
following categories:

e Level 1 - inputs which are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 - inputs which are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 - inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires
judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels.

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring
basis; however, the Company has no assets or liabilities that require recurring fair value measurements. Fair
value is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Company’s financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued expenses that are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term
maturity of these instruments. The Company’s debt and shareholder note receivable are carried at cost which
approximates fair value due to their variable or fixed interest rates, which are consistent with the interest rates in
the market.

The Company may be required, on a non-recurring basis, to adjust the carrying value of its property and
equipment. When necessary, these valuations may be determined by the Company using Level 3 inputs. These
assets are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, such as when there is evidence that an
impairment may exist. There have been no indicators of impairment during 2014, 2013 or 2012.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2014-08, which amends FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 205,
Presentation of Financial Statements, and FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. This standard
amends the definition of a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations
and certain other disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective
on a prospective basis for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within
those years. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals that have not been reported in financial statements
previously issued or available for issuance. The Company expects to adopt this standard on a prospective basis
beginning January 1, 2015. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The guidance
in this update supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and creates a single,
principle-based revenue recognition framework that is codified in a new FASB ASC Topic 606. The core
principle of this guidance is for the recognition of revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new revenue standard is
effective for nonpublic entities’ annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted but only for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The new standard allows for
either full retrospective or modified retrospective adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the transition
method that will be elected and the potential effects of the adoption of the new standard on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15 which amends ASC Topic 205, Presentation of
Financial Statements, to describe management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt
about an organization’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This
guidance will be effective for the Company’s fiscal year ended December 31, 2016. The Company does not
expect adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis, which
modifies the evaluation of variable interest entities (“VIEs”), and affects the consolidation analysis of reporting
entities involved with VIEs. This guidance for nonpublic entities is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2016, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard.

Note 3. Long-term Debt
The following table presents the Company’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Mortgage loan $375,251  $418,105
Term loan 125,508 144,173
Notes payable 110,880 29,275
Total long-term debt 611,639 591,553
Less current portion 71,280 75,250
Long-term debt, net of current portion $540,359  $516,303
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The mortgage loan is a 15 year loan held by EBP, with an original amount of $587,000, entered into in
October 2007 with a maturity date in December 2022. The loan had a fixed interest rate of 7.50% through
November 2012 and now has a floating rate of 3.00 points over the 5-year Treasury bill rate fixed at each five
year anniversary of the mortgage. This variable rate was 3.63% at December 31, 2014 and 2013. Principal and
interest are payable monthly. The mortgage loan is secured by the property held by EBP.

The term loan is a 15 year loan that was entered into in May 2012 with an original amount borrowed of
$155,000 and a maturity date in May 2027. The loan bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.75% through May 2017,
and after that at a floating rate of 3.00 points over the weekly average yield on the 5-year Treasury bill rate at
each five year anniversary date of the mortgage. This variable rate was 3.63% at December 31, 2014 and 2013.
Principal and interest are payable monthly. The loan is secured by the assets of the Company.

Notes payable consist of the following:

* afive year term loan, with an original amount of $116,118, for a piece of equipment entered into in
September 2014, which bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.50% through September 2019. Principal and
interest are paid monthly. The loan is secured by the equipment.

e asix year term loan, with an original amount of $54,472, for a piece of equipment entered into in
January 2009, which bears interest at a fixed rate of 6.25% through February 2015. Principal and
interest are paid monthly. The loan is secured by the equipment.

* afive year term loan, with an original amount of $74,600, for a piece of equipment entered into in
October 2009, which bears interest at a fixed rate of 4.99% through October 2014. Principal and
interest are paid monthly. The loan is secured by the equipment.

e afive year term loan, with an original amount of $82,750, for a piece of equipment entered into in
September 2009, which bears interest at a fixed rate of 5.25% through September 2014. Principal and
interest are paid monthly. The loan is secured by the equipment.

None of the long-term debt described above contained financial covenants as of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

The aggregate annual principal payments for the next five years and thereafter of long-term debt at
December 31, 2014 are summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2015 $ 71,280
2016 74,289
2017 77,429
2018 80,706
2019 77,609
Thereafter 230,326

Total $611,639

Line of Credit

The Company has a line of credit with Watertown Savings Bank which requires renewal in September 2015.
The line has a borrowing capacity of $100,000. Interest on any outstanding balance was payable monthly at a
fixed rate of 6.00% through November 2012, and at a floating rate of prime plus 0.50% through December 31,
2014 (effective rate of 3.75% at December 31, 2014). There were no amounts outstanding on this line of credit as
of December 31, 2014 and 2013.
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Note 4. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases

Rental expense for operating leases was approximately $3,000, $7,000 and $3,000 during the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Future minimum lease commitments under operating leases are
insignificant.

Environmental and Related Contingencies

The Company is subject to a variety of environmental and pollution control laws and regulations incident to
the ordinary course of business. The Company currently expects that the resolution of any potential contingencies
arising from compliance with these laws and regulations will not materially affect the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 5. Shareholder Note Receivable

In 2012, after borrowing an equal amount of funds under the term loan described in Note 3, the Company
loaned one of its shareholders $155,000 in the form of a note receivable. Interest on the note is fixed at 5.75%,
and, along with the principal, is payable annually through maturity in May 2027. The total outstanding balance
on the note, including current portion included in other current assets, was approximately $126,000 and $144,000
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Interest income was approximately $8,000, $7,000 and $8,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 6. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company provides a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees, which includes a matching
contribution. Matching Company contributions to this plan were approximately $30,000, $31,000 and $28,000
for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 7. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2015, which is the date these
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition or
disclosure have been incorporated into these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Shareholders
Green Oak Investments LLC
Jacksonville, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Green Oak Investments LLC d/b/a GO Auto
Recycling, which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of
operations, members’ interest, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Green Oak Investments LL.C as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and
its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter
As described in Note 1, the Company is expected to be acquired by an unrelated party.
/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 25, 2015
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Green Oak Investments LL.C d/b/a GO Auto Recycling
BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Related party advances

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land and improvements
Buildings
Equipment
Trucks and trailers
Accumulated depreciation

Property and equipment, net
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ INTEREST

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Current portion of deferred warranty revenue

Current portion of long-term debt (including related party)

Related party line of credit

Line of credit

Total current liabilities

DEFERRED WARRANTY REVENUE, NET OF CURRENT PORTION
LONG-TERM DEBT (INCLUDING RELATED PARTY), NET OF CURRENT

PORTION
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

MEMBERS’ INTEREST
Members’ interest
Retained earnings

Total members’ interest
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ INTEREST

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2014 2013

$ 108,858 $ 296,200
463,874 450,071
1,395,561 982,214
91,861 34,193

— 79,464

2,060,154 1,842,142

1,722,848 1,710,000
160,205 160,205
217,946 161,605

79,306 29,288
(119,727)  (82,125)

2,060,578 1,978,973

$4,120,732  $3,821,115

$ 292,149 § 335,808
330,999 141,305
210,283 112,179

43,970 164,365
120,000 115,000
— 40,000

997,401 908,657
217,793 119,377

882,612 859,482
2,097,806 1,887,516

790,000 790,000
1,232,926 1,143,599

2,022,926 1,933,599
$4,120,732  $3,821,115




Green Oak Investments LL.C d/b/a GO Auto Recycling
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

2014 2013 2012
Net revenues $9,983,589 $8,022,063 $5,507,268
Cost of goods sold 6,603,015 5,586,623 3,777,559
Gross profit 3,380,574 2,435,440 1,729,709
Operating expenses 3,042,609 2,302,613 1,627,550
Income from operations 337,965 132,827 102,159
Interest expense (54,904) (60,017) (60,853)
Other income (expense) 6,266 10,890 (1,666)
NET INCOME $ 289,327 $ 83,700 $ 39,640

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Green Oak Investments LL.C d/b/a GO Auto Recycling

STATEMENTS OF MEMBERS’ INTEREST

For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Balance at January 1, 2012
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2012
Net income

Balance at December 31, 2013
Net income
Members’ distributions

Balance at December 31, 2014

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Total
Members’ Retained members’
interest earnings interest
$790,000 $1,020,259 $1,810,259
— 39,640 39,640
790,000 1,059,899 1,849,899
— 83,700 83,700
790,000 1,143,599 1,933,599
— 289,327 289,327
— (200,000)  (200,000)
$790,000 $1,232,926 $2,022,926




Green Oak Investments LL.C d/b/a GO Auto Recycling
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating
activities
Depreciation expense
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Related party advances
Account payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred warranty revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Payments of debt
Proceeds of debt
Members’ distributions

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow disclosures:
Cash paid for interest

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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2014

2013

2012

$ 289,327 § 83,700 $ 39,640

37,603 27,448 25,572
(13,804) (162,430) (102,258)
(413,347) 114,854 (45,855)
(57,668)  (34,099) 94)
79,464 (79,464) —
(43,659) 185,990 59,294
189,694 23,966 41,159
196,521 135,181 39,461
264,131 295,146 56,919
(119,208)  (34,000)  (68,810)
(119,208)  (34,000)  (68,810)
(160,280) (201,339) (175,539)
28,015 120,352 215,453
(200,000) — —
(332,265)  (80,987) 39,914
(187,342) 180,159 28,023
296,200 116,041 88,018

$ 108,858 $ 296,200 $ 116,041

$ 48,293 $ 55,626 $ 62,274




Green Oak Investments LL.C d/b/a GO Auto Recycling
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations

Green Oak Investments LLC d/b/a GO Auto Recycling (the “Company”), a Delaware corporation, engages
primarily in auto recycling, which is the recovery and resale of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and
aftermarket parts, components and systems, such as engines, transmissions, door assemblies, trunk lids, lights
and fenders (referred to as “products”) reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. The Company
purchases its vehicles primarily at auto salvage auctions. Upon receipt of vehicles, the Company inventories and
then dismantles the vehicles and sells the recycled components. In addition, the Company purchases recycled
OEM and related products from third parties for resale and distribution to its customers. The Company’s
customers include collision repair shops (body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual
retail customers. The Company also generates a portion of its revenue from the sale as scrap of the unusable parts
and materials and from the sale of extended warranty contracts. The Company operates a full-service recycling
facility in Jacksonville, Florida.

The members of the Company have entered into an agreement dated August 14, 2014, which was
subsequently amended to extend the closing conditions through May 15, 2015, with Fenix Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”)
under which Fenix will acquire 100% of the Company’s members’ interest for cash and Fenix common stock,
contingent upon, among other things, the closing of an initial public offering of that common stock. As part of
the agreement, Fenix also will acquire a 5% ownership interest in GO Pull-It LLC (“LLC”), a related party
described in Note 6, and an option to acquire the remaining 95% of the LLC by January 2022.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of vehicle replacement products and scrap when they are
shipped or picked up by the customers and ownership has transferred, subject to an allowance for estimated
returns and discounts that management estimates based upon historical information. Management analyzes
historical returns (often pursuant to standard warranties on the sold products) and allowances activity by
comparing the items returned to the original invoice amounts and dates. The Company uses this information to
project future returns and allowances on products sold. If actual returns and allowances deviate significantly from
the Company’s historical experience, there could be an impact on its operating results in the period of
occurrence. The Company has recorded a reserve for estimated returns and discounts of approximately $107,000
and $75,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, within accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The Company presents taxes assessed by governmental authorities collected from customers on a net basis.
Therefore, the taxes are excluded from revenue on the statements of operations and are shown as a current
liability on the balance sheets until remitted. Revenue also includes amounts billed to customers for shipping and
handling.
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Revenue from the sale of separately priced extended warranty contracts is reported as deferred revenue and
recognized ratably over the term of the contracts. Revenue from such extended warranty contracts was
approximately $178,000, $67,000 and $16,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold primarily includes a) amounts paid for the purchase of vehicles and parts for resale,
b) related auction, storage and towing fees, and c) other cost of procurement and dismantling, primarily labor and
overhead allocable to dismantling operations.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are primarily comprised of a) salaries and benefits of employees that are not related to
the procurement and dismantling of vehicles, b) facility costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, repairs and taxes
not allocated to dismantling operations, c) selling and marketing costs, d) costs to distribute products and scrap
and e) other general and administrative costs.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers after a review of each
customer’s credit history. The Company recorded a reserve for uncollectible accounts of approximately $35,000
and $23,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reserve is based upon the aging of the accounts
receivable, the Company’s assessment of the collectability of specific customer accounts and historical
experience. Receivables are written off once collection efforts have been exhausted, and recoveries of accounts
receivable previously written off are recorded when received.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications of prior period amounts have been made to conform to the current period presentation. The
reclassifications have no impact on net income.

Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The majority of cash and cash equivalents are
maintained with major financial institutions. From time to time, the Company’s cash balances may exceed
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation limits. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable
are limited because a large number of customers make up the Company’s customer base. The Company controls
credit risk through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures.

The Company primarily obtains its recycled OEM and related products from damaged, totaled or low value
vehicles purchased at salvage auto auctions. For 2014, 2013 and 2012, substantially all of the vehicles purchased

by the Company for dismantling were acquired at auctions run by two salvage auto auction companies.
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Inventories

Inventories consist entirely of recycled OEM and aftermarket products, including car hulls and other
materials that will be sold as scrap. Inventory costs are established based upon the price the Company pays for a
vehicle, including auction, storage and towing fees, as well as expenditures for buying and dismantling vehicles.
After dismantling, the cost assigned to the salvaged parts and scrap is determined using the average cost of sales
percentage at the Company and applying that percentage to the Company’s inventory at expected selling prices.
The average cost to sales percentage is derived from the Company’s historical vehicle profitability for salvage
vehicles purchased at auction or procured from other sources.

For all inventories, carrying value is recorded at the lower of cost or market and is reduced to reflect the age
of the products and current anticipated demand. If actual demand differs from the Company’s estimates,
additional reductions to inventory carrying value would be necessary in the period such determination is made.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged against operations as incurred. Renewals and betterments that materially extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. As property and equipment are sold or retired, the applicable cost and
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss thereon is recognized.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Depreciation
totaled approximately $38,000, $27,000 and $26,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 39 years
Equipment 10 years
Computer servers 5 years
Trucks and trailers 5 years

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of property and equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable
based on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows. There were no such events or changes in the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a partnership under the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, the
members’ report their share of the Company’s federal and state taxable income or loss on their respective
individual income tax returns.

The Company recognizes the benefits of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns
in the provision for income taxes only for those positions that are more likely than not to be realized. The
Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to
evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating
its tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately forecast
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actual outcomes. The Company has no unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2014 or 2013. The
Company is generally no longer subject to examination in its primary tax jurisdictions for tax years through 2011
and is not currently subject to any audits or examinations. Should any interest or penalties accrue on uncertain
tax positions, the Company would record such expense in income tax expense.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses in the accompanying
statements of operations. Advertising expenses were approximately $20,000, $22,000 and $14,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market
at the measurement date (exit price). The Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the
following categories:

e Level 1 - inputs which are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 - inputs which are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

* Level 3 - inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires
judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels.

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring
basis; however, the Company has no assets or liabilities that require recurring fair value measurements. Fair
value is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable, and accrued expenses are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity
of these instruments. The Company’s debt is carried at cost and approximates fair value due to its variable or
fixed interest rates, which are consistent with the interest rates in the market.

The Company may be required, on a non-recurring basis, to adjust the carrying value of its property and
equipment. When necessary, these valuations are determined by the Company using Level 3 inputs. These assets
are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, such as when there is evidence that impairment
may exist. There have been no indicators of impairment during 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2014-08, which amends FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 205,
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Presentation of Financial Statements, and FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. This standard
amends the definition of a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations
and certain other disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective
on a prospective basis for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within
those years. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals that have not been reported in financial statements
previously issued or available for issuance. The Company expects to adopt this standard on a prospective basis
beginning January 1, 2015. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The guidance
in this update supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and creates a single,
principle-based revenue recognition framework that is codified in a new FASB ASC Topic 606. The core
principle of this guidance is for the recognition of revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new revenue standard is
effective for nonpublic entities’ annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted but only for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The new standard allows for
either full retrospective or modified retrospective adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the transition
method that will be elected and the potential effects of the adoption of the new standard on the Company’s
financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-15 which amends ASC Topic 205, Presentations of
Financial Statements, to describe management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt
about an organizations ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This
guidance will be effective for the Company’s year ended December 31, 2016. The Company does not expect
adoption of this ASU to have a material impact on its financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis, which
modifies the evaluation of variable interest entities (“VIEs”), and affects the consolidation analysis of reporting
entities involved with VIEs. This guidance for nonpublic entities is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2016, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard.

Note 3. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, consist of the following:

2014 2013
Deferred revenue, non-warranty $ 54,150 $ —
Reserve for sales returns 106,499 75,474
Accrued salaries 63,233 27,499
Accrued property taxes 20,922 19,431
Accrued interest 13,788 8,091
Accrued other 72,407 10,810

Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $330,999  $141,305
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Note 4. Debt
The following table presents the Company’s debt as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Related party mortgage $894,344  § 927,905
Synovus Bank equipment loans 32,238 95,942
Total debt 926,582 1,023,847
Less current portion 43,970 164,365
Long-term debt, net of current portion $882,612 $ 859,482

See Note 6 for a description of the related party mortgage.

During 2014, the Company satisfied three of its 5-year term equipment loans, and entered into one new 5-
year term equipment loan at a fixed rate of 4.75%, secured by the underlying equipment. At December 31, 2013,
the Synovus Bank equipment loans included four 5-year term loans used to fund the purchase of several different
vehicles and equipment. The four loans bore interest at fixed rates of 4.15% or 4.50%, were due in 2018 with
monthly installments of principal and interest and were secured by the underlying vehicles and equipment. These
loans were further secured by personal guarantees of two of the members of the Company. Three of these loans
were entered into on behalf of, and then advanced to, the related party described in Note 6. The vehicles and
equipment underlying such loans are recorded on the related party’s financial statements.

The Company also has a revolving line of credit with Synovus Bank which was established on June 7, 2012
and provides for a maximum borrowing of $200,000 and expires on June 7, 2017. Future advances are at the
lender’s discretion. The line of credit bears interest at a fixed annual rate of 5.0% until the index rate changes as
defined in the credit agreement. This line of credit is secured by the accounts receivable and inventories of the
Company, and is further secured by personal guarantees of two of the members of the Company. The balance of
the Synovus Bank line of credit outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013 was $0 and $40,000, respectively.

The aggregate annual principal payments for the next five years and thereafter under the Company’s debt at
December 31, 2014, are summarized as follows:

Years
2015 $ 43,970
2016 46,174
2017 47,562
2018 45,992
2019 43,931
Thereafter 698,953
Total $926,582

Note 5. Commitments and Contingencies
Environmental and Related Contingencies

The Company is subject to a variety of environmental and pollution control laws and regulations incident to
the ordinary course of business. The Company currently expects that the resolution of any potential contingencies
arising from compliance with these laws and regulations will not materially affect the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Note 6. Related-party Transactions
GO Pull-It LLC

GO Pull-It LLC (“LLC”) was organized in 2012 by the owners of the Company and operates a self-service
auto parts business. The Company has no direct ownership or voting rights in LLC. The Company has
determined that LLC is a VIE as it has required subordinated financial support for its operations, including the
Company’s loans and guarantee described below. However, the Company has no other business activities with
LLC and its loans and guarantee are significantly smaller than the amount of equity, loans and guarantees made
directly by certain of the Company’s members who are also the majority members of LLC. Accordingly, the
Company determined that certain of the members of the Company and LL.C were more closely related to LLC
than was the Company itself. As such, the Company does not deem itself to be the primary beneficiary of LLC
and does not consolidate LLC.

In 2013, after borrowing an equal amount of funds under the term loans described in Note 4, the Company
loaned approximately $79,000 to LLC. Interest on the notes was at fixed rates of 4.15% or 4.50%, and, along
with the principal, was payable monthly through 2018. The notes were satisfied in 2014. Additionally, the
Company guarantees another LLC note payable with outstanding balances of $53,000 and $66,000 (both
unaudited) at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The Company does not expect to incur any losses under
this guarantee.

During 2014 and 2013, the Company had sales of $238,000 and $48,000, respectively, to LLC and the
Company had purchases of $47,000 and $4,000, respectively, from LLC. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Company had a receivable of $30,000 and $29,000, respectively, from LLC which was included within accounts
receivable. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company owed $2,000 and $9,000, respectively, to LLC which
was included within accounts payable.

Mervis Industries (“Mervis”)

Mervis indirectly owns a significant portion of the Company. In addition to the below debt, the Company
paid fees of approximately $30,000, $15,000 and $0 to Mervis for accounting and other services in 2014, 2013
and 2012, respectively.

The mortgage due to Mervis is a term loan due in monthly installments of $6,600 with 5.0% annual fixed
interest, due through August 2031. The loan is secured by the underlying property. Interest expense on this debt
was approximately $46,000, $47,000 and $49,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

The Company also has a line of credit with Mervis. The line has a borrowing capacity of $200,000 and is
due on demand. The balance of the related party line of credit outstanding at December 31, 2014 and 2013 was
$120,000 and $115,000, respectively. The line is unsecured and does not have any covenants. Interest expense on
this debt was approximately $6,000, $5,200 and $10,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Note 7. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2015, which is the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure have
been incorporated into these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Shareholders
Jerry Brown, Ltd.
Queensbury, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Jerry Brown, Ltd., which comprise
the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2014, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Jerry Brown, Ltd. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter
As described in Note 1, the Company is expected to be acquired by an unrelated party.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 25, 2015
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Jerry Brown, Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowance
Inventories
Income tax receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Vehicles
Machinery and equipment
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and fixtures
Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Property and equipment, net
TOTAL ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013
$ 362343 $ 302,712
575,795 546,171
4,574,440 4,906,073
— 16,732
39,087 62,686
5,551,665 5,834,374
341,176 341,176
682,405 447,008
2,549,882 1,883,823
692,867 756,059
1,096,745 868,546
115,541 194,977
399,991 399,992
737,492 472,761
(2,328,435)  (2,138,265)
4,287,664 3,226,077
$9,839,329  $ 9,060,451




Jerry Brown, Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - CONTINUED
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Deferred warranty revenue - current
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Reserve for uncertain tax positions
Deferred warranty revenue, net of current portion
Long-term debt, net of current portion

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, no par value; 200 shares authorized, issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Total Jerry Brown, Ltd. shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interests

Total shareholders’ equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013
$ 530,532 $ 596,942
387,602 275,467
42,297 91,574
219,695 185,960
1,180,126 1,149,943
1,811,305 1,711,899
85,991 37,620
1,482,883 1,078,891
3,380,179 2,828,410
4,560,305 3,978,353
94,453 94,453
4,876,453 4,662,063
4,970,906 4,756,516
308,118 325,582
5,279,024 5,082,098
$9,839,329  $9,060,451




Jerry Brown, Ltd.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Net revenues
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses

Income from operations
Interest expense, net
Other income

Income before income tax provision
Income tax provision

Net income
Net income attributable to the noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to Jerry Brown, Ltd.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013 2012
$13,038,919 $12,083,569 $10,651,946
8,118,953 7,718,522 6,615,213
4,919,966 4,365,047 4,036,733
4,330,588 3,645,423 3,746,766
589,378 719,624 289,967
(71,604) (23,239) (12,715)
9,262 6,060 9,183
527,036 702,445 286,435
108,110 63,799 153,708
418,926 638,646 132,727
144,536 137,880 19,018

$ 274390 $ 500,766 $ 113,709




Jerry Brown, Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2014, and 2013 and 2012

Additional Total
M pa;dl-(;?la Retained Noncontrolling sharel(:o?ders’
Shares Amount capital earnings interests equity
Balance at January 1, 2012 200 $— $94,453  $4,047,588  $ 149,286 $4,291,327
Net income — — — 113,709 19,018 132,727
Balance at December 31, 2012 200 — 94,453 4,161,297 168,304 4,424,054
Net income — — — 500,766 137,880 638,646
Capitalization of JBAP Properties LLC — — — — 19,398 19,398
Balance at December 31, 2013 200 — 94,453 4,662,063 325,582 5,082,098
Net income — — — 274,390 144,536 418,926
Distributions to shareholders — — — (60,000) (162,000) (222,000)
Balance at December 31, 2014 200 $— $94,453 $4,876,453  $ 308,118  $5,279,024

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Jerry Brown, Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

2014 2013 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 418926 $ 638,646 $ 132,727
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities

Depreciation expense 365,480 305,137 292,374
Gain on disposal of equipment (9,262) (14,585) (17,345)
Deferred income tax (benefit) — (1,597,603) (10,500)
Provision for uncertain tax positions 99,406 1,658,401 53,498
Change in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable (29,624) (15,517) 72,890
Inventories 331,633 (541,038) (8,240)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 23,599 (7,006) (11,387)
Income tax receivable 16,732 42,078 (58,810)
Account payable (66,410) 244,789 717,308
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 112,135 (176,381) (2,258)
Deferred warranty revenue (906) (4,368) (57,290)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,261,709 532,553 462,967
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of equipment 14,651 69,553 46,372
Capital expenditures (1,432,462) (1,395,056) (311,993)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,417,811) (1,325,503) (265,621)
Cash flows from financing activities
Notes payable payments (238,087) (876,708) (213,097)
Notes payable borrowings 675,820 1,721,000 34,041
Distributions to shareholders (222,000) — —
Capitalization of JBAP Properties LLC — 19,398 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 215,733 863,690  (179,056)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 59,631 70,740 18,290
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 302,712 231,972 213,682
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 362,343 $ 302,712 $ 231,972
Supplemental cash flow disclosures
Cash paid for
Interest $ 75,127 $ 26828 $ 26,950
Income taxes $ 2,250 $ 1,500 $ 169,520

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Jerry Brown, Ltd.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations

Jerry Brown, Ltd. (the “Company”), a New York corporation, engages primarily in auto recycling, which is
the recovery and resale of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and aftermarket parts, components and
systems, such as engines, transmissions, door assemblies, trunk lids, lights and fenders, (referred to as
“products”) reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. The Company purchases its vehicles
primarily at auto salvage auctions. Upon receipt of vehicles, the Company inventories the vehicles then
dismantles and sells the recycled components. In addition, the Company purchases recycled OEM parts, new
parts and related products from third parties for resale and distribution to its customers. The Company’s
customers include collision repair shops (body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto dealerships and individual
retail customers. The Company also generates a portion of revenue from the scrap sales of the unusable parts and
materials and from the sale of extended warranty contracts. The Company operates a full-service recycling
facility in Queensbury, New York.

The shareholders of the Company have entered into an agreement dated September 30, 2014, which was
subsequently amended to extend the closing conditions through May 15, 2015, with Fenix Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”)
under which Fenix will acquire 100% of the Company’s shares for cash and Fenix common stock, contingent
upon, among other things, the closing of an initial public offering of that common stock. The acquisition will not
include the capital stock of the LLCs (as defined below).

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of SBLB Properties, LLC, SBLB Properties II,
LLC, and JBAP Properties LL.C (collectively the “LLCs”), the lessors of the premises from which the Company
operates. The LLCs are wholly-owned by all of the Company’s shareholders. The Company has determined that
the LLCs are variable interest entities because the holders of the equity investment at risk in these three entities
do not have the obligation to absorb their expected losses or receive their residual returns. Furthermore, the
Company has determined that it is the primary beneficiary of each of the LLCs because the Company has the
power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of these entities, namely
the operation and maintenance of the assets of these entities, which are leased to the Company. Accordingly, and
pursuant to consolidation requirements under GAAP, the Company consolidates each of the LLCs. All
intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation. All of the LLC’s operating results are attributable to
the noncontrolling interests in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and all of their shareholders’
equity is reported separately from the Company’s shareholders’ equity in the Company’s consolidated balance
sheets and statements of shareholders’ equity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of vehicle replacement products and scrap when they are
shipped or picked up by the customers and ownership has transferred, subject to an allowance for estimated
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returns and discounts that management estimates based upon historical information. Management analyzes
historical returns (often pursuant to standard warranties on sold products) and allowances activity by comparing
the items returned to the original invoice amounts and dates. The Company uses this information to project future
returns and allowances on products sold. If actual returns and allowances deviate significantly from the
Company’s historical experience, there could be an impact on its operating results in the period of occurrence.
The Company has recorded a reserve for estimated returns and discounts of approximately $57,000 and $139,000
at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, within accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The Company presents taxes assessed by government authorities collected from customers on a net basis.
Therefore, the taxes are excluded from revenue on the consolidated statements of operations and are shown as a
current liability on the consolidated balance sheet until remitted. Revenue also includes amounts billed to
customers for shipping and handling.

Revenue from the sale of separately priced extended warranty contracts is reported as deferred revenue and
recognized ratably over the term of the contracts or over five years for life time warranties. Revenue from such
extended warranty contracts was approximately $153,000, $155,000 and $157,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold primarily includes a) amounts paid for the purchases of vehicles and parts for resale,
b) auction, storage and towing fees, and c) other costs of procurement and dismantling, primarily labor and
overhead allocable to dismantling operations.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are primarily comprised of a) of salaries and benefits of employees that are not related
to the procurement and dismantling of vehicles, b) facility costs such as rent, utilities, insurance, repairs and
taxes not allocated to dismantling operations, c) selling and marketing costs, d) costs to distribute the Company’s
products and scrap and e) other general and administrative costs.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers after a review of each
customer’s credit history. The Company recorded a reserve for uncollectible accounts of approximately $20,000
and $32,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reserve is based upon the aging of the accounts
receivable, the Company’s assessment of the collectability of specific customer accounts and historical
experience. Receivables are written off once collection efforts have been exhausted. Recoveries of accounts
receivable previously written off are recorded when received.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. The
reclassifications have no impact on net income.
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Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The majority of cash and cash equivalents are
maintained with a major financial institution. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are
limited because a large number of customers make up the Company’s customer base. The Company controls
credit risk through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures.

The Company obtains its recycled OEM and related products from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles
purchased at salvage auto auctions. For 2014, 2013, and 2012, substantially all of the vehicles purchased by the
Company for dismantling were acquired at auctions run by two major salvage auto auction companies.

Inventories

Inventories consist entirely of recycled OEM and aftermarket products, including car hulls and other
materials that will be sold as scrap. Inventory costs are established based upon the price the Company pays for a
vehicle, including auction, storage and towing fees, as well as expenditures for buying and dismantling vehicles.
After dismantling, the cost assigned to the salvaged parts and scrap is determined using the average cost to sales
percentage at the Company and applying that percentage to the Company’s inventory at expected selling prices.
The average cost to sales percentage is derived from the Company’s historical vehicle profitability for salvage
vehicles purchased at auction or procured from other sources.

For all inventories, carrying value is recorded at the lower of cost or market and is reduced to reflect the age
of the product and current anticipated demand. If actual demand differs from the Company’s estimates,
additional reductions to inventory carrying value would be necessary in the period such determination is made.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Expenditures for maintenance
and repairs are charged against operations. Renewals and betterments that materially extend the life of an asset
are capitalized. As property and equipment are sold or retired, the applicable cost and accumulated depreciation
are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss thereon is recognized. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Depreciation totaled approximately
$365,000, $305,000 and $292,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Approximately $353,000 of property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, was held by the LLCs
as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land improvements 15 years
Buildings 39 years
Vehicles 5 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 3-5 years
Office furniture and fixtures 7 years
Leasehold improvements 10-15 years or life of lease, if shorter

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of property and equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable
based on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows. There were no such events or changes in the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.
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Income Taxes

Through December 31, 2012, the Company’s income taxes were accounted for under the asset and liability
method whereby deferred income tax assets and liabilities were recognized for the future tax consequences
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and
the respective tax basis and for tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities were measured using
the enacted tax rate expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences were
expected to be recovered or settled. A valuation allowance was provided for deferred tax assets if it was more
likely than not that they would expire before the Company was able to realize their benefit.

Effective January 1, 2013, the Company elected to operate under Subchapter S of the Internal Revenue
Code. Accordingly, after that date, the shareholders and the LLC owners report their share of the Company’s
federal and most state’s taxable income or loss on their respective individual income tax returns. Deferred
income taxes as of that date, which were a net liability of approximately $1,598,000 (primarily consisting of
inventory basis differences), were eliminated and reflected as an income tax benefit in the consolidated statement
of operations for the year ended December 31, 2013.

The Company recognizes the benefits of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns
in the provision for income taxes only for those positions that are more likely than not to be realized. The
Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to
evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating
tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately forecast
actual outcomes. The Company is generally no longer subject to examination in its primary tax jurisdictions for
tax years through 2011 and is not currently subject to any audits or examinations. Interest and penalties accrued
on uncertain tax positions are recorded in income tax expense.

Advertising Expenses

Adpvertising costs are expensed as incurred and included in operating expenses in the accompanying
consolidated statements of operations. Advertising expenses were approximately $128,000, $176,000 and
$121,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market
at the measurement date (exit price). The Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the
following categories:

e Level I - inputs which are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 - inputs which are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 - inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.
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The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires
judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels.

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring
basis; however, the Company has no assets or liabilities that require recurring fair value measurements. Fair
value is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Company’s consolidated financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to the
short-term maturity of these instruments. The Company’s debt is carried at cost and approximates fair value due
to its variable or fixed interest rates, which are consistent with the interest rates in the market.

The Company may be required, on a non-recurring basis, to adjust the carrying value of the Company’s
property and equipment. When necessary, these valuations may be determined by the Company using Level 3
inputs. These assets are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, such as when there is evidence
that impairment may exist. There have been no indicators of impairment during 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2014-08, which amends FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 205,
Presentation of Financial Statements and FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. This standard
amends the definition of a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations
and certain other disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective
on a prospective basis for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within
those years. Early adoption is permitted, but only for disposals that have not been reported in financial statements
previously issued or available for issuance. The Company expects to adopt this standard on a prospective basis
beginning January 1, 2015. Adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The guidance in
this update supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and creates a single,
principle-based revenue recognition framework that is codified in a new FASB ASC Topic 606. The core principle
of this guidance is for the recognition of revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in judgments and
assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new revenue standard is effective for
nonpublic entities’ annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is permitted, but
only for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The new standard allows for either full
retrospective or modified retrospective adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the transition method that
will be elected and the potential effects of the adoption of the new standard on its consolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, which amends ASC Topic 205, Presentation of Financial
Statements, to describe management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an
organizations ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This guidance
will be effective for the Company’s year ending December 31, 2016. The Company does not expect adoption of
this ASU to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis, which
modifies the evaluation of variable interest entities (“VIEs”), and affects the consolidation analysis of reporting
entities involved with VIEs. This guidance for nonpublic entities is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2016, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017, with early
adoption permitted. The guidance for public entities is effective for fiscal years, and for interim periods within
those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2015. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting the new standard.

Note 3. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 consist of following:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013
Compensation $325,367  $120,209
Accrued sales and use taxes payables 5,715 16,069
Sales returns, discounts & allowances reserve 56,520 139,189

Other — —
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $387,602  $275,467

Note 4. Long-term Debt
The following table presents the Company’s long-term debt as of December 31, 2014 and 2013:

As of December 31,
2014 2013
Adirondack Trust Company - vehicle and equipment $ 83,014 $ 167,684
Adirondack Trust Company - building 1,570,976 1,048,579
Related-party loan 48,588 48,588
Total debt 1,702,578 1,264,851
Less current portion 219,695 185,960
Long-term debt, net of current portion $1,482.883  $1,078,891

The Adirondack Trust Company vehicle and equipment loans include five loans with terms from three to
five years used to fund the purchase of several different vehicles and equipment between 2010 and 2013. The
five loans bear interest at annual fixed rates ranging from 4.25% to 5.8%, with a weighted average of 5.1%,
mature between 2015 and 2017 with monthly installments of principal and interest and are secured by the
underlying vehicles and equipment.

The Adirondack Trust Company building loan is a 10 year term loan with an original amount of $1,675,000
used towards the construction of a new warehouse. The note was entered into on September 11, 2013 and bears
interest at an annual fixed rate of 4.25% until October 11, 2018 and then at a rate equal to the lender’s Base
Lending Rate (currently 4.25%) until September 11, 2023. The first six monthly payments commenced on
October 11, 2013 and consisted of interest only. Thereafter, principal and interest are paid monthly through
September 11, 2023. The loan is secured by the underlying building.
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Related party loan is a loan with an original amount of $48,588 used towards general funds of the business.
The note was entered into prior to January 1, 2012 and bore interest at an annual fixed rate of 10.0% with no set
term or maturity date. Interest was paid annually in the amount of $4,859. The note was fully paid in February
2015.

The aggregate annual principal payments for the next five years and thereafter under the Company long-
term debt at December 31, 2014 are as follows:

2015 $ 219,695
2016 187,192
2017 172,222
2018 178,440
2019 186,173
Thereafter 758,856

Total $1,702,578

Line of Credit

On September 11, 2013, the Company entered into a line of credit with The Adirondack Trust Company,
with an initial borrowing capacity of $300,000. Interest on any outstanding balance is payable monthly at a
variable rate based on Prime (3.25% at December 31, 2014). No balance was outstanding at December 31, 2014
or 2013.

Note 5. Commitments and Contingencies
Environmental and Related Contingencies

The Company is subject to a variety of environmental and pollution control laws and regulations incident to
the ordinary course of business. The Company currently expects that the resolution of any potential contingencies
arising from compliance with these laws and regulation will not materially affect the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 6. Income Taxes

The income tax provision (benefit) consists of the following components:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current
Federal $ 99,406 $ 1,559,985 $150,695
State 8,704 101,417 13,513
Total current 108,110 1,661,402 164,208
Deferred
Federal — (1,454,337) (9,624)
State — (143,266) (876)
Total deferred — (1,597,603) (10,500)

Income tax provision

$108,110 $ 63,799  $153,708
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The U.S. federal statutory rate is reconciled to the effective tax rate as follows:

Year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

U.S. federal statutory rate — % — %  34.00%
State income taxes, net of state credits and federal tax impact — — 3.18
Non-deductible expenses — — 1.17
Change in uncertain tax positions 20.50 236.52 17.57
Change in income tax status — (227.43) —
Income from pass through entities — — (2.26)

Effective income tax rate 20.50% 9.08%  53.66%

The Company has a liability for uncertain tax positions taken on its tax return as a C corporation in 2011
and 2012 related to accounting methods. It is possible that the amount of such benefits will significantly increase
or decrease in the next twelve months. However, no estimate of the range of the amount of the increase or
decrease can be made. A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross uncertain tax positions is as
follows:

2014 2013 2012
Balance at January 1 $1,570,736  $ — $—
Additions based on tax positions related to the current year — 1,570,736 —
Balance at December 31 $1,570,736  $1,570,736  $—

The Company’s uncertain tax positions include positions related to the timing of certain deductions for
income tax purposes. The related basis differences caused by this timing of deductions for income tax purposes
and the timing of expense recognition for financial reporting purposes are reflected in the Company’s deferred
income tax liabilities. However, interest and penalties are separately recorded for these uncertain tax positions as
part of income tax expense and amounted to approximately $99,000, $88,000 and $53,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The Company had accumulated interest and penalties of
approximately $240,000 and $141,000 as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which is included in the
reserve for uncertain tax positions on the consolidated balance sheets.

Note 7. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company provides a retirement plan for the benefit of substantially all of its employees that includes a
401(k) provision which allows employees to contribute and defer taxes on a portion of their compensation. The
plan has a provision which requires non-elective Company contributions in the amount of 3% of the covered
compensation of plan participants. For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Company’s non-
elective contributions were approximately $346,000, $132,000 and $98,000, respectively.

Note 8. Related-party Transactions

In 2014 and 2013, the Company paid $70,000 to a family member of the owners for consulting services.
Additionally, in 2012, the Company paid this same individual $194,000 in rent for a property owned by an LLC
in 2014 and 2013. Such amounts are recorded in net income attributable to the non-controlling interests in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Note 9. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2015, which is the date these financial
statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure have been
incorporated into these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Shareholder
Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
Rahway, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.,
which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2014, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc. as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter
As described in Note 1, the Company is expected to be acquired by an unrelated party.

/s/ BDO USA, LLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 25, 2015
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Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

2014 2013
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 673,527 $ 269,458
Accounts receivable, net of allowance 955,595 732,489
Inventories 4,242,094 3,848,685
Income taxes receivable — 12,163
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 304,911 256,125
Total current assets 6,176,127 5,118,920
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Land 625,084 621,771
Land improvements 261,476 261,475
Building and improvements 605,638 593,140
Vehicles 306,390 264,805
Machinery and equipment 519,059 519,058
Leasehold improvements 285,636 275,597
Computer equipment 83,601 83,602
Office furniture and fixtures 9,479 9,479
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (1,356,701)  (1,219,374)
Property and equipment, net 1,339,662 1,409,553
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Other non-current assets 91,711 83,226
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,607,500 $ 6,611,699

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS - CONTINUED
As of December 31, 2014 and 2013

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Income taxes payable
Deferred income tax liability

Total current liabilities
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term debt
Deferred income tax liability
Reserve for uncertain tax positions

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock, no par value, 1,000 shares authorized, 500 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2014 and 2013
Additional paid-in-capital
Retained earnings

Total Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc. shareholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest

Total shareholders’ equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2014

2013

$ 183,086 § 207,991
289,289 281,793
26,218 3,207
1,788,571 1,527,715
2,287,164 2,020,706
200,000 200,000
39,777 72,928
278,363 152,996
518,140 425,924
2,805,304 2,446,630
193,435 193,435
3,534,698 2,919,324
3,728,133 3,112,759
1,074,063 1,052,310
4,802,196 4,165,069
$7,607,500 $6,611,699




Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Net revenues
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Operating expenses

Income (loss) from operations
Other expense

Income (loss) before income tax expense (benefit)
Income tax expense (benefit)

Net income (loss)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

Net income (loss) attributable to Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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2014 2013 2012
$16,864,697 $18,201,706 $16,966,515
12,591,561 13,163,945 12,672,845
4273,136 5,037,761 4,293,670
3,506,568 4,819,107 4,476,293

766,568 218,654 (182,623)

(5.879) (2,859) (8,094)

760,689 215,795 (190,717)

392,115 142,797 (42,276)

368,574 72,998 (148,441)

73,761 161,030 19,082
$ 204813 $ (88,032) $ (167,523)




Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Balance at January 1, 2012
Net (loss) income
Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Balance at December 31, 2012
Net (loss) income
Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Balance at December 31, 2013
Net income
Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Balance at December 31, 2014

Common stock Additiqnal . . Total
—_— paid-in Retained Noncontrolling shareholders’
Shares Amount capital earnings interest equity

500 $— $193,435 $3,225,099 $ 678,257  $4,096,791

— — — (167,523) 19,082 (148,441)

— — — — 30,147 30,147

— — — (24,369) — (24,369)

500 — 193,435 3,033,207 727,486 3,954,128

— — — (88,032) 161,030 72,998

— — — — 163,794 163,794

- = — (25,851) — (25,851)

500 — 193,435 2,919,324 1,052,310 4,165,069

— — — 294,813 73,761 368,574

— — — 336,791 51,992 388,783

e — (16230)  (104,000)  (120,230)

500 $— $193,435 $3,534,698 $1,074,063  $4,802,196

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization expense
Deferred income tax expense (benefit)
Provision for uncertain income tax benefits
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Other non-current assets
Accounts payable
Income taxes payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Note payable borrowings
Note payable payments
Shareholder contributions
Shareholder distributions

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental cash flow disclosure
Cash paid for
Income taxes

Interest

2014 2013 2012
$368,574 $ 72,998 $(148,441)
137,326 138,237 104,789
227,707 3,386 (76,000)
125367 115,863 9,958
(223,106) 193,726  (156,303)
(393,409) (123,553) 206,500
12,163 8,649  (20,812)
(48,786)  (48,978)  (8,185)
(8,485)  (83,216) 1,045
(24,905) 11,966 3,544
23,011)  (1,106) 4313
53,516 (20,426) 147,040
202,951 267,546 67,448
(67,435)  (552,690) (126,702)
(67,435)  (552,690) (126,702)

— 200,000 —
— — (5.915)
388,783 163,794 30,147
(120,230)  (25.851)  (24,369)
268,553 337,943 (137)
404,069 52,799  (59,391)
269458 216,659 276,050
$673,527 $ 269458 $ 216,659
$ 18420 $ 22,091 $ 16,254
$ 6000 $ 1,147 $ —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Nature of Operations

Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc. (the “Company”), a New Jersey corporation, engages primarily in auto
recycling, which is the recovery and resale of original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) and aftermarket parts,
components and systems, such as engines, transmissions, door assemblies, truck lids, lights and fenders, (referred
to as “products”) reclaimed from damaged, totaled or low value vehicles. The Company also sells used cars and
motorcycles. The Company purchases its vehicles primarily at auto salvage auctions. Upon receipt of vehicles,
the Company inventories the vehicles then dismantles and sells the recycled components. In addition, the
Company purchases recycled OEM and related products from third parties for resale and distribution to its
customers. The Company’s customers include collision repair shops (body shops), mechanical repair shops, auto
dealerships and individual retail customers. The Company also generates a portion of revenue from scrap sales of
the unusable parts and materials. The Company operates a full-service recycling facility in Rahway, New Jersey.

The shareholder of the Company entered into an agreement dated August 18, 2014, which was subsequently
amended to extend the closing conditions through May 15, 2015, with Fenix Parts, Inc. (“Fenix”) under which
Fenix will acquire 100% of the Company’s shares for cash and Fenix common stock, contingent on, among other
things, the closing of an initial public offering of that common stock. Fenix will not acquire the equity interests
of any of the Loki-Lot I, LLC, PPP Group, LLC, Loki-Lott II, LLC, and Gin-Jac, Inc. (collectively, the
“Lessors™).

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Lessors of the premises from which the
Company operates. The Lessors are owned by the Company’s shareholder and an employee. The Company has
determined that each Lessor is a variable interest entity because the holders of the equity investment at risk in the
Lessors do not have the obligation to absorb their expected losses or receive their residual returns. Furthermore,
the Company has determined that it is the primary beneficiary of each Lessor because the Company has the
power to direct the activities that most significantly impact each Lessor’s economic performance, namely the
operation and maintenance of the significant assets of each Lessor, and the Company has the obligation to absorb
losses or rights to receive benefits from the Lessors that could potentially be significant to the Lessors.
Accordingly, and pursuant to consolidation requirements under GAAP, the Company consolidates each Lessor.
All intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation. All of the Lessors’ operating results are
attributable to the noncontrolling interests in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations and all of
their shareholders’ equity is presented separately from the Company’s shareholder’s equity in the Company’s
consolidated balance sheets and statements of shareholders’ equity.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, and the reported amounts of
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of vehicle replacement products and scrap, and the sale of
used cars and motorcycles when they are shipped or picked up by the customers and ownership has transferred,
subject to an allowance for estimated returns and discounts that management estimates based upon historical
information. Management analyzes historical returns (often pursuant to standard warranties on the sold products)
and allowances activity by comparing the items returned to the original invoice amounts and dates. The Company
uses this information to project future returns and allowances on products sold. If actual returns and allowances
deviate significantly from the Company’s historical experience, there could be an impact on its operating results
in the period of occurrence. The Company has recorded a reserve for estimated returns and discounts of
approximately $60,000 and $95,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, within accrued expenses and
other current liabilities.

The Company presents taxes assessed by government authorities collected from customers on a net basis.
Therefore, the taxes are excluded from revenue on the consolidated statement of operations and are shown as
current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets until remitted. Revenue also includes amounts billed to
customers for shipping and handling.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of goods sold primarily includes a) amounts paid for the purchase of vehicles and parts for resale,
b) related auction, storage and towing fees, and c) other cost of procurement and dismantling, primarily labor and
overhead allocable to dismantling operations, or in the case of motorcycle and car sales, to preparing the vehicles
for sale.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses are primarily comprised of a) salaries and benefits of employees that are not related to
the procurement, dismantling and/or preparation of vehicles for sale, b) facility costs such as rent, utilities,
insurance, repairs and taxes not allocated to dismantling operations, c) selling and marketing costs, d) costs to
distribute the Company’s products and scrap, and e) other general and administrative costs.

Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers after a review of each
customer’s credit history. The Company recorded a reserve for uncollectible accounts of approximately $34,000
and $41,000 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The reserve is based on management’s assessment of
the collectability of specific customer accounts, the aging of the accounts receivable and historical experience.
Receivables are written off once collection efforts have been exhausted. Recoveries of accounts receivable
previously written off are recorded when received.

Reclassifications

Reclassifications of prior period amounts have been made to conform to the current period presentation. The
reclassifications have no impact on net income.
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Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist
primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable. The majority of cash and cash equivalents are
maintained with several major financial institutions. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts
receivable are limited because a large number of customers make up the Company’s customer base. The
Company controls credit risk through credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures.

The Company primarily obtains its recycled OEM and related products from damaged, totaled or low value
vehicles purchased at salvage auto auctions. For 2014, 2013 and 2012, substantially all of the vehicles purchased
by the Company for dismantling were acquired at auctions run by two salvage auto auction companies.

Inventories

Inventories consist of recycled OEM and aftermarket products, including car hulls and other materials that
will be sold as scrap, as well as used cars and motorcycles for resale. Inventory costs for recycled OEM parts are
established based upon the price the Company pays for a vehicle, including auction, storage and towing fees, as
well as expenditures for buying and dismantling vehicles. After dismantling, the cost assigned to the salvaged
parts and scrap is determined using the average cost of sales percentage at the Company and applying that
percentage to the Company’s inventory at expected selling prices. The average cost to sales percentage is derived
from the Company’s historical vehicle profitability for salvage vehicles purchased at auction or procured from
other sources. Inventory costs for used cars and motorcycles for resale are established based on historical cost
plus any applicable labor and overhead.

For all inventories, carrying value is recorded at the lower of cost or market and is reduced to reflect the age
of the product and current anticipated demand. If actual demand differs from the Company’s estimates,
additional reductions to inventory carrying value would be necessary in the period such determination is made.

Inventories consist of the following:

December 31,

2014 2013
Recycled OEM parts, related products and scrap $3,503,585  $3,138,930
Used cars and motorcycles 738,509 709,755

$4,242,094  $3,848,685

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Expenditures
for maintenance and repairs are charged against operations. Renewals and betterments that materially extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. As property and equipment are sold or retired, the applicable cost and
accumulated depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts and the resulting gain or loss thereon
is recognized. Depreciation and amortization expense is calculated using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives or, the case of leasehold improvements, the term of the related lease or reasonably assured
renewal periods, if shorter. Depreciation and amortization expense totaled approximately $137,000, $138,000
and $105,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Approximately $926,000 and
$919,000 of property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, was held by the Lessors as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Land and building improvements 15 years
Buildings 39 years
Vehicles 5 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Leasehold improvements 10-15 years or life of lease, if shorter
Computer equipment 3 years
Office furniture and fixtures 7 years

The Company evaluates the recoverability of the carrying amount of property and equipment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be fully recoverable
based on an analysis of undiscounted cash flows. There were no such events or changes in the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 or 2012.

Income Taxes

Except for certain of the Lessors that are limited liability companies, income taxes are accounted for under
the asset and liability method where deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and
liabilities and the respective tax basis and for tax credit carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in
tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is
established when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.
The Company evaluates the realizability of its deferred tax assets and adjusts the valuation allowance, if
necessary. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization include historical cumulative losses, the
forecast of future taxable income and available tax planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the
net deferred tax assets. Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income in applicable tax jurisdictions could affect
the ultimate realization of deferred tax assets and could result in an increase in the Company’s effective tax rate
on future earnings.

For those Lessors structured as limited liability companies, income or loss is reported by the entities’
owners and no income tax expense or benefit is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company recognizes the benefits of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken in tax returns
in the provision for income taxes only for those positions that are more likely than not to be realized. The
Company follows a two-step approach to recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions. The first step is to
evaluate the tax position for recognition by determining if the weight of available evidence indicates it is more
likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of related appeals or litigation
processes, if any. The second step is to measure the tax benefit as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely
of being realized upon ultimate settlement. The Company considers many factors when evaluating and estimating
its tax positions and tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustments and which may not accurately forecast
actual outcomes. Should any interest or penalties accrue on uncertain tax positions, the Company would record
such expense in income tax expense.

Advertising Expenses

Advertising costs, which are expensed as incurred, were approximately $37,000, $32,000 and $41,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.
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Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities are defined as the exchange price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants in the principal market
at the measurement date (exit price). The Company is required to classify fair value measurements in one of the
following categories:

e Level 1 - inputs which are defined as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

e Level 2 - inputs which are defined as inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly.

e Level 3 - inputs are defined as unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities. Financial assets and
liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement requires
judgment, and may affect the valuation of the fair value of assets and liabilities and their placement within the
fair value hierarchy levels.

Certain assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value on either a recurring or non-recurring
basis; however, the Company has no assets or liabilities that require recurring fair value measurements. Fair
value is determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants.

The Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts
payable and accrued expenses are carried at cost, which approximates fair value due to the short-term maturity of
these instruments. The Company’s debt is carried at cost and approximates fair value due to its fixed interest
rates, which are consistent with the interest rates in the market.

The Company may be required, on a non-recurring basis, to adjust the carrying value of the Company’s
property and equipment. When necessary, these valuations are determined by the Company using Level 3 inputs.
These assets are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances, such as when there is evidence that
impairment may exist. There have been no indicators of impairment during 2014 or 2013.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update
(“ASU”) No. 2014-08, which amends FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 205, Presentation of
Financial Statements, and FASB ASC Topic 360, Property, Plant, and Equipment. This standard amends the
definition of a discontinued operation and requires new disclosures of both discontinued operations and certain other
disposals that do not meet the definition of a discontinued operation. This guidance is effective on a prospective basis
for annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2014, and interim periods within those years. Early adoption is
permitted, but only for disposals that have not been reported in financial statements previously issued or available for
issuance. The Company expects to adopt this standard on a prospective basis beginning January 1, 2015. Adoption is
not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The guidance
in this update supersedes nearly all existing revenue recognition guidance under U.S. GAAP and creates a single,
principle-based revenue recognition framework that is codified in a new FASB ASC Topic 606. The core
principle of this guidance is for the recognition of revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those

F-105



Leesville Auto Wreckers, Inc.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

goods or services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new revenue standard is
effective for nonpublic entities’ annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. Early adoption is
permitted, but only for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The new standard allows for
either full retrospective or modified retrospective adoption. The Company is currently evaluating the transition
method that will be elected and the potential effects of the adoption of the new standard on its consolidated
financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15, which amends ASC Topic 205, Presentation of Financial
Statements, to describe management’s responsibility to evaluate whether there is substantial doubt about an
organizations ability to continue as a going concern and to provide related footnote disclosures. This guidance
will be effective for the Company’s year ending December 31, 2016. The Company does not expect adoption of
this ASU to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In February 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-02, Amendments to the Consolidation Analysis, which
modifies the evaluation of variable interest entities (“VIEs”), and affects the consolidation analysis of reporting
entities involved with VIEs. This guidance for nonpublic entities is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2016, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 31, 2017, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting the new standard.

Note 3. Debt

The Company’s long-term debt consists of a $200,000 note payable entered into by one of the Lessors in
October 2013. Interest only is due annually beginning in October 2014 and the entire principal is due in October
2018. The interest rate on the note is fixed at 3% for the term of the note. Proceeds from the note were used to
partially finance the purchase of land and a building. The note is collateralized by the land and building.

In June 2011, the Company entered into a commercial line of credit with a borrowing base of $1,500,000
(the “line of credit”) and a maturity date of August 5, 2015. All obligations under the line of credit are secured by
a first-priority lien on substantially all of the Company’s assets. Interest under the line of credit will be charged
on the principal amount outstanding from time to time at prime. As of December 31, 2014, there have been no
borrowings against this line of credit.

Note 4. Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

Prepaid expenses and other current assets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, consist of following:

2014 2013
Prepaid insurance $249,689  $248,522
Deposits and other 41,695 5,510
Prepaid taxes 13,527 —
Prepaid license fees — 2,093
Total prepaid expenses and other current assets $304911  $256,125
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Note 5. Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, consist of following:

2014 2013
Employee salaries and benefits payable $160,112  $178,366
Reserve for returns, discounts and allowances 59,558 95,000
Other 69,619 8,427
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $289,280  $281,793

Note 6. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Lease

One of the Lessors is obligated under a noncancelable operating lease for land, as well as various other
equipment leases. The future minimum lease commitments under these leases at December 31, 2014, are as
follows:

Years ending December 31:

2015 $ 19,500
2016 24,000
2017 24,000
2018 24,000
2019 24,000
Thereafter 18,000

Future minimum lease payments $133,500

Rental expense was approximately $18,000 during each of the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Environmental and Related Contingencies

The Company is subject to a variety of environmental and pollution control laws and regulations incident to
the ordinary course of business. The Company currently expects that the resolution of any potential contingencies
arising from compliance with these laws and regulations will not materially affect the Company’s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Note 7. Income Taxes
The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following components:

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Current
Federal $134,341 $116,358  $ 26,201
State 30,067 23,053 7,523
Total current income tax expense 164,408 139,411 33,724
Deferred
Federal 193,842 2,882 (64,697)
State 33,865 504 (11,303)
Total deferred income tax expense
(benefit) 227,707 3,386 (76,000)
Income tax expense (benefit) $392,115  $142,797  $(42,276)
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The U.S. federal statutory rate is reconciled to the effective tax rate as follows:

For the year ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012

U.S. federal statutory rate 34.00% 34.00%  (34.00)%
State income taxes, net of state credits and

federal tax impact 7.91 10.21 (1.73)
Non-deductible expenses 0.34 3.05 3.49
Unrecognized income tax benefits 14.03 45.47 16.63
Taxes related to income from pass-through

entities (2.97) (25.37) (3.40)
Other, net (1.77) (1.19) (3.16)
Effective income tax rate 51.54% 66.17% (22.17)%

The significant components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31,
2014 2013
Deferred income tax assets
Accrued expenses and reserves $ 37,068 $ 54,318
Total deferred income tax assets 37,068 54,318
Deferred income tax liabilities
Property and equipment (39,777) (72,928)
Inventories (1,330,980) (1,173,853)
Accounts receivable (394,945) (308,932)
Prepaid insurance (99,714) (99,248)
Total deferred income tax liabilities (1,865,416) (1,654,961)
Net deferred income tax liability $(1,828,348)  $(1,600,643)

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2014 2013
Balance at January 1 $33971 $§ —
Additions for tax positions of current year — 33,971
Balance at December 31 $33,971  $33,971

The Company’s uncertain tax positions include positions related to the timing of certain deductions for
income tax purposes. The related basis differences caused by this timing of deductions for income tax purposes
and the timing of expense recognition for financial reporting purposes are reflected in the Company’s deferred
income tax liabilities. However, interest and penalties are separately recorded for these uncertain tax positions as
part of income tax expense and amounted to $125,367 and $81,892 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013, respectively. The Company had accumulated interest and penalties of $244,392 and $119,025 as of
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, which along with the gross unrecognized tax benefits is reported as
the reserve for uncertain tax positions on the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company is generally no longer subject to examination in primary tax jurisdictions for tax years
through 2011. The Company is not currently subject to any audits or examinations.
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Note 8. Related Party Transactions

In addition to the Lessors, the Company’s shareholder, sometimes along with a Company employee, wholly
or partially own other entities with which the Company or the Lessors have had transactions. In one case,
$500,000 of cash was loaned by the Company to one of these other entities in January 2013 and repaid, with no
interest, during 2013. In several instances, the shareholder used distributions from one or more of these other
entities to fund contributions into one or more of the Lessors. During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013
and 2012, such contributions amounted to $51,992, $163,794 and $30,147, respectively. In certain cases, the
Company has determined that these other entities are variable interest entities and the Company or the Lessors
have variable interests in such entities. However, in each case, the Company determined that other variable
interest holders in those other entities had more power to direct the activities of those other entities that most
significantly impact their economic performance or were more closely related to them. As such, these other
entities are not consolidated with the Company.

Additionally, the Company leases certain computer equipment and software from one of these other entities
on a month-to-month basis. Related rental expense was approximately $24,000 for each of the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012. Some of the Lessors lease real estate to some of these other entities on a
month-to-month basis. Related rental income, included in net revenues on the consolidated statements of
operations, was approximately $15,000, $105,000 and $15,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, respectively. The Company also sells inventory to one of these other entities. Related net revenues were
approximately $86,000, $236,000 and $110,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The aggregate amounts due to or from the Company and these other entities were immaterial at
each of December 31, 2014 and 2013.

Note 9. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company provides a defined contribution plan covering eligible employees, which includes a matching
contribution. The matching Company contributions to this plan were approximately $160,000, $171,000 and
$147,000 for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Note 10. Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through March 25, 2015, which is the date the consolidated
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition or disclosure have
been incorporated into these consolidated financial statements.

F-109



12,000,000 Shares

cFENIX

PARTS

Fenix Parts, Inc.

Common Stock

PROSPECTUS

BMO CAPITAL MARKETS
STIFEL

BB&T CAPITAL MARKETS

BARRINGTON RESEARCH

Through and including June 8, 2015 (the 25th day after the date of this prospectus), all dealers
effecting transactions in these securities, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required
to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to the dealers’ obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting
as underwriters with respect to their unsold allotments or subscriptions.




	TABLE OF CONTENTS 
	Summary 
	Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company 
	Risk Factors 
	Industry and Market Data 
	Cautionary Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements 
	Use of Proceeds 
	Dividend Policy 
	Capitalization 
	Dilution 
	Selected Financial Data 
	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
	Business 
	Management 
	Executive and Director Compensation 
	Certain Relationships and Related Person Transactions 
	Principal Stockholders 
	Credit Facility  
	Description of Capital Stock of Fenix 
	Shares Eligible for Future Sale 
	Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Considerations for Non-U.S. Holders 
	Underwriting 
	Legal Matters 
	Experts 
	Where You Can Find More Information 
	Index to Financial Statements 

	Index to Financial Statements 
	Introduction to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements 
	Unaudited Pro Forma Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014 
	Unaudited Pro Forma Statement of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 
	Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statements 
	Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
	Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2014 
	Consolidated Statement of Operations for the period from January 2, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014 
	Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Deficit for the period from January 2, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014 
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the period from January 2, 2014 (inception) to December 31, 2014 
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
	Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
	Combined Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 
	Combined Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Combined Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Combined Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
	Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
	Combined Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 
	Combined Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Combined Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Combined Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Notes to Combined Financial Statements 
	Independent Auditor's Report 
	Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 
	Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
	Independent Auditor's Report 
	Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 
	Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Statements of Members' Interest for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Notes to Financial Statements 
	Independent Auditor's Report 
	Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 
	Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
	Independent Auditor's Report 
	Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 
	Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 
	Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.3
  /CompressObjects /Off
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams true
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings false
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Preserve
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 100
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.00000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages false
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 100
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.00000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages false
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 150
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 2.00000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (RRD Low Resolution \(Letter Page Size\))
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


